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CORPORATE PROFILE
D EEHN

DaFa Properties Group Limited (‘DaFa Properties” or the “Company”,
together with its subsidiaries, the “Group”) was listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) (Stock Code:
6111.HK) on 11 October 2018, which marked an important milestone in
the development of the Company. The Company is a real estate developer
which headquartered in Shanghai, deeply engaged in the Yangtze River
Delta Region with a focus on the development and sales of residential
properties. Upholding the business philosophy of “pursuing excellence
with integrity and innovation”, the Group aims to provide high-quality
properties and creating specific living scenes for its customers through the
development and construction of premium properties.

DaFa Properties positions its brand as “Design for Life” and has gradually
developed highly standardised product series in the past 25 years in
order to provide the most suitable and best quality housing products for
properties purchasers with different needs. DaFa Properties, as a “blissful
living service provider”, strive to provide scenario experiences and high-
quality, cost-effective products for customers who seek for quality living
through operational excellence.
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CORPORATE PROFILE (continued)

DaFa Properties has been widely recognized in the industry by virtue of its
outstanding business policies and brand concept. In the past few years,
we have won various awards from a number of institutions, including “China
Property Award of Supreme Excellence”, “2021 Valuable Listed Real Estate
Companies”, “2020 Innovative Enterprise for Social Responsibility” and
“2020 Innovative Enterprise for Chinese Real Estate of the Year” and other
awards.

The Group actively implemented the “1+1+X” strategic plan, while
intensively penetrating the core areas of the Yangtze River Delta Region,
the Group extended its presence into Chengdu-Chongging Metropolitan
Area, and maintained its strategic focus on other key cities with high
development potential. As at 31 December 2021, the Group positioned
its presence with 80 projects in aggregate in 28 cities including Shanghai,
Nanjing, Wenzhou, Chengdu, Ningbo, Hefei, Wuxi and Changzhou, etc. to
create a benchmark for local cities.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

NEEHR

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Executive Directors

Mr. Ge Yiyang (Chairman)

Mr. Leng Junfeng (appointed on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Liao Lujiang (resigned on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Chi Jingyong

Mr. Yang Yongwu

Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. Gu Jiong
Mr. Sun Bing
Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas

AUDIT COMMITTEE

Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas (Chairman)
Mr. Sun Bing
Mr. Gu Jiong

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Sun Bing (Chairman)

Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas

Mr. Gu Jiong

Mr. Leng Junfeng (appointed on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Liao Lujiang (resigned on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Yang Yongwu

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

Mr. Ge Yiyang (Chairman)
Mr. Yang Yongwu

Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas
Mr. Sun Bing

Mr. Gu Jiong

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE COMMITTEE

Mr. Gu Jiong (Chairman)

Mr. Leng Junfeng (appointed on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Liao Lujiang (resigned on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Yang Yongwu
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AUDITOR

Ernst & Young
Certified Public Accountants
Registered Public Interest Entity Auditor

LEGAL ADVISERS

As to Hong Kong law:
Paul Hastings

As to Cayman Islands law:
Walkers (Hong Kong)

CAYMAN ISLANDS PRINCIPAL SHARE
REGISTRAR AND TRANSFER OFFICE

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman Islands

HONG KONG SHARE REGISTRAR

Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited

Shops 1712-1716, 17th Floor
Hopewell Centre

183 Queen’s Road East
Wanchai

Hong Kong

REGISTERED OFFICE

The offices of Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)
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FEHSZE -
Walkers (Hong Kong)

FHERNEREFERAE

Walkers Corporate Limited
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008
Cayman Islands
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Walkers Corporate Limited 834 %= &z
190 Elgin Avenue

George Town

Grand Cayman KY1-9008

Cayman Islands
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CORPORATE INFORMATION (continueq)

NEIEE @

HEADQUARTERS AND PRINCIPAL
PLACE OF BUSINESS IN THE PRC

No. 2, Lane 1188
Shenhong Road
Minhang District
Shanghai

PRC

PRINCIPAL PLACE OF BUSINESS IN

HONG KONG

Room 2805-06

28/F, Bank of America Tower
12 Harcourt Road, Central
Hong Kong

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wong Chin Hung
Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty

AUTHORISED REPRESENTATIVES

Mr. Yang Yongwu
Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty

PRINCIPAL BANKERS

Bank of China

China Minsheng Banking Corp., Ltd.
China Zheshang Bank Co., Ltd.

Ping An Bank Co., Ltd.

Agricultural Bank of China Limited
China Construction Bank Corporation
China Merchants Bank Co., Ltd.
Bank of Jiangsu Co., Ltd.

CITIC Bank Corporation Limited

WEBSITE

www.dafaland.com

STOCK CODE

6111
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MAJOR HONOURS AND AWARDS

CORPORATE BRAND

Honor/Award

P g

TEKERER

5 m e

Awarding body
HEEE

24,

30

30

30

30 30

30

30

The Most Valuable Small and Mid-Cap Company on the
Fifth Golden Hong Kong Stocks List
(FhESEREE)RER/NTEAR

Listed Real Estate Enterprise with Best Investment Value

RAREEBELTEDL

2020 Leading & Pioneer Real Estate Brand in Innovation
2020 BRI R g mIE&E b

2020 High Quality Residential Model Project (Puyue Binhu Wang of
Dafa Deshang)

2020 EmmE AEHEIER (KABRHENENRE)

Medal of 2020 Pioneer Brand in the Market of
Yanxuan Best Real Estate

20208 3% 4f 5 155 i1 5 7t $% on 1 224

2020 China Real Estate Honor List of Brand Influential Enterprise
2020 BIE HIEALE MM T E %

2021 Top 10 Annual Marketing Cases in Real Estate Sector of China
20215 B+ K i 7 F 2 & SH ZR )

2021 Best Value Real Estate Listed Companies
2021 EBEMELMAR

2021 Top 100 China Real Estate Enterprise in terms of
Customer Satisfaction

2021 EHEMEZFHEZETOP 100

2021 Top 67 China Real Estate Enterprises in Human Capital Value
2021 B hE R E A N EARBETOP 67

2021 Excellent Investment Value Award for Listed Companies

2021 F EE ML EEELTAA

Zhitong Finance, RoyalFlush Finance
BB - RTEIRE K

chinalou.cn

ERIN= N

Yidian Zixun
—EhEE

The Economic Observer

house.163.com

WIFE

china.com.cn

R EIA

Leju Financial
LRI

National Business Daily
T HKENE

CRIC Research Center

e iR T O

CRIC Research Center
7, 10 B B 5T AR 0

21st Century Business Herald
2R B E
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MAJOR HONOURS AND AWARDS (continued)
FELERKIE 2

Honor/Award Awarding body
RE R HEER
© 2021 Award for Chinese Real Estate Enterprises with Leju Financial
A Growth Brand
2021 Fh B ER R mig b X LEME

Q

30

30 30

30

44th in Top 100 Private Enterprises & 37th in Top 100
Growth Enterprises in Shanghai of 2021

2021 B REMPEFBRL44E - BEKRDEITHE

2021 Real Estate Development Enterprise with
Best Investment Value

CONFERABEEERERELE

Award for Chinese Property Enterprises of Supreme Excellence

BETEEMEREAR

Top 100 Blue Chip Enterprises, Top 10 Enterprise in terms of
Comprehensive Growth Potential

ESORES  GAREEN10%

2021 Best Innovative Brand
2021 FEREMMNMIE

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY

Shanghai Enterprise Confederation,
Shanghai Entrepreneurs Association and
Jiefang Daily

FETREBAE  DETEERBEE
g =g

China Real Estate Finance Journal

B i E S B RS

Organising Committee of China Property
Award

FREEMECEARERS

The Economic Observer

International Financial News

B & B ¥R

TEHEEE

Honor/Award Awarding body
L 3| HEEEE
Q The Most Socially Responsible Real Estate Enterprise chinalou.cn
' mEnemaREe B EAH
@ 2021 ESG Leading Model Enterprise in Real Estate Industry Hexun.com
Y coEmmERESGAK AL % A48
@ Annual Extraordinary Employer in Shanghai of 2021 Liepin
Y oo bmEEEAEE R
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT
ERHRE

Dear Shareholders, B SRR

On behalf of the board of directors (the “Board”) of DaFa Properties, | am ZARAZERRALKMTEETS([EEE))MAM
pleased to present shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) the AR T &I RE ([BRE)IZE AR D FEH E2021
annual report of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 (the F12A31HEFE(ER]  [HREBWR)HF
“Year” or “Reporting Period”). Ea

During the Year, the Group, together with its joint ventures and associates, FR @ NEBEREA S ¥ NMEE N R8RS
recorded accumulated contracted sales of approximately RMB37,563.0 ZFtARIEESEHARK37,563.08E T
million, increasing by approximately 23.9% year-on-year. The Group also Rt EF#923.9% - AE B R R E B AEREH
recorded revenue for the Reporting Period of approximately RMB5,911.3 W AL ARES5 911.3A &It © R N4
million, decreasing by approximately 35.7% year-on-year, mainly due to  35.7% : T EHN BN WENEER D LT
the decrease in areas of properties delivered and the decline in average FIERIBUAR TN EBEMISRBTE » W
selling price of properties in the context of the COVID-19 pandemic and ERBEMFHEB YK  BERZFEMRDEED
the unfavorable macro market environment, which resulted in a decrease  EMERHIUWES D ©

in the revenue recognised from sale of properties during the year.

202153 ANNUAL REPORT 2021 9



CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (continued)
FEWRE @

— 3_
e

BUSINESS REVIEW

In 2021, the opening year of China’s “14th Five-Year” Plan, economy
was effected by the complex and ever-changing environment at home
and abroad as well as the COVID-19 pandemic, the supply chain was
continually disrupted and disordered and therefore, economic activities
were adversely affected. At the end of 2021, the economic growth
momentum was hampered moderately and the consumption index declined
slightly, therefore, it was clear that challenges continued in all aspects.
However, China’s economy recovered at a steady pace with strong growth
momentum under the guidance of continuous, stable and sustainable
macro policies as China continued to strengthen its anti-epidemic efforts
and deepen economic and social development achievements. In 2021,
the growth of China’s gross domestic product (the “GDP”) was more
satisfying than expected, and the GDP per capita exceeded US$12,000,
outperforming the average level of the world. According to the National
Bureau of Statistics of China (the “NBSC”), in 2021, the GDP of China
reached RMB114,367 billion, representing a year-on-year increase of 8.1%
and a two-year average growth of 5.1%, exceeding RMB100 trillion for the
second consecutive year, and achieving a good start for the “14th Five-
Year” Plan. The GDP of China recorded a year-on-year growth of 4.9%
and 4.0% respectively during the third quarter and fourth quarter of 2021.

10 DAFA PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED K&~ EHAERAR

e e
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CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)

In terms of the real estate market, the real estate market of China was
relatively steady and achieved outstanding sales performance in the first
half of the year, and there was a deep adjustment in the second half,
therefore, it remained at a relatively high level in scale for the whole year.
Under the keynote of “houses are for living in not for speculation”, the
central and local governments had intensively rolled out austerity policies
to stabilise market expectations, such as “adjusting policies based on
different cities” and “Three Red Lines”, such measures promoted a
virtuous circle and the healthy development of the real estate industry, and
finalised the targets of “stable land prices, house prices and expectations”.
At the beginning of 2021, the “Two Centralisations” policy on centralised
announcement and centralised supply of residential land was launched by
the central government in key cities, to control the pace of land supply,
and guide the rational competition in residential land market with effective
measures.

As one of the top 100 listed real estate enterprises in China, DaFa
Properties has always been deeply penetrated in the Yangtze River Delta
Region, covering the Chengdu-Chongqging Metropolitan Area and actively
deploying in the golden metropolitan clusters nationwide. In the second
half of 2021, even though that the investments in the Yangtze River Delta
Region had decreased, the overall popularity of it was relatively high,
42% of the annual investments of top 100 real estate enterprises was
centralised in the Yangtze River Delta Region and it continued to dominate
in terms of market size. Chengdu-Chongaing Metropolitan Area is the
fourth economic growth pillar under the national strategic deployment in
recent years. The central government stresses the synergistic development
of Chengdu and Chongging to build an important economic centre
with national influence and a high-quality liveable area, and to create an
important growth pillar and new power source that drives the high-quality
development of the nation. Benefiting from the “1+1+X” strategic guidance,
the Group achieved an increase of approximately 23.9% year-on-year in
accumulated contracted sales during the Year, which exceeded the annual
target of RMB36,000 million.

FEHRE @

EEMEMSHIE @ FEEMEMS ¥+ F4
HEE - HERR  TH+FHBREAE 2
FRENMRBFEEKF - BHETNISEUEE
T IBEEAT » PR FBRFZELE T
ERERUABEMHEL - (AR =84
BRI PR T B = 2 R B IR Fl 2 R 8
BRE[EHmE BEE BEHIER-T
2021 F &Y FRAEEFWMMHELEEEAM
Ehnd ERHEMIMERIRE - 25+
M ERNZ - WIABSIE S BEFEATS
RIB MR

EATREER ETED » KA ~HRELFrHRE
AR BEXaHTEIERHEE2ER
WAL - 2021F T F - BER=-AMERD
REFRDY BE2FERBEDARARS - 8
BELCEFRETHLWRETRRE=AME -
MISREGEFESA - BONETEATFRE
REEHBETHELQELEERG - P RBUT
RHBRINEE EEMNGATE  BREAER
PEFEINEELEFRL  =amEEETER
o GRS 2ESEERENESERIR
MEFBE IR - B2ER[1+1+X B RS 353
EERFARNRFERCRAHEESHERALEREY
23.9% ' BT EF ARKICOEITHBEIR
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (continued)
FEWRE @

During the Year, upholding the business philosophy of “pursuing
excellence with integrity and innovation”, the Group received recognitions
and accolades from different institutions in the industry, including the “2021
Top 100 Chinese Real Estate Companies”, “2021 Best Value Real Estate
Listed Companies”, “the Most Valuable Small and Mid-Cap Company on
the Fifth Golden Hong Kong Stocks List”, “2021 Excellent Investment Value
Award for Listed Real Estate Companies”, “2021 Top 10 Annual Marketing
Cases in Real Estate Sector of China”, “2021 Award for Chinese Property
Enterprises of Supreme Excellence”, “2021 Award for Chinese Real Estate
Enterprises with Growth Brand”, “2021 Sydney Design Awards — Silver
Winner” and “2021 US MUSE Design Awards — Gold Winner”.

In the past 25 years, DaFa Properties has been actively fulfilling its
corporate social responsibility and fulfilling its responsibility and mission in
various aspects from corporate governance, product quality management,
green project construction to public welfare and charity while upholding
the philosophy of “building a better city life and improving the quality of
living environment”. With the introduction of the national vision of “carbon
peak and carbon neutrality”, DaFa Properties is gradually strengthening
the management of carbon emissions and environmental pollution
during its operations. Adhering to the green wisdom of “the harmonious
coexistence of city, architecture, and nature”, DaFa Properties continues
to rely on environmental protection technology research and development,
design, construction and application, so as to maximise the harmonious
coexistence of man and nature. In June 2021, DaFa Properties announced
the establishment of the environmental, social and governance (‘ESG”)
committee to assist the Board to review and monitor the ESG policies
and practices of the Group. In July 2021, DaFa Properties announced
the establishment of a green financing framework to facilitate the Group’s
sustainable development through issuing green bonds, raising green loans
and other forms of financing. While achieving high-quality development in
business operation, in terms of talent training, DaFa Properties continually
adheres to the concept of meritocracy, achieves the empowerment of all
employees by strengthening employee care and training, adheres to the
original intention, and, under the guidance of the charity values of “walking
with kindness, sharing with love”, continually fulfills its social responsibility
with practical actions. As to public welfare and charity, DaFa Properties
had invested in a number of public welfare areas through the “DFL
Foundation”, with an aim to improve the quality of living environment and
serve the society. Leveraging on the Company’s effort on green building,
responsible charity and corporate governance, etc., DaFa Properties won
the “2021 ESG Leading Model Enterprise in Real Estate Industry”. As of 31
December 2021, the Group achieved 100% satisfaction of green energy-
saving standards for all projects, and 13 projects have obtained 2-star
green building design label certificate or design approval.

12 DAFA PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED KkihF=&EFBR AR

FA - AEEBEFIFIAEEF - BRF ]
SRS - BISTREERTRKIENRR
MKRE B aE2021FEEBESH100
Bl (2021 EBEME ETAR] - [KEQE
eEREE)REPIDTERA] - [2021FE
SHEEEBEMELETAR] - [20210FH+ X
MEFELEHERM]  [BEETPEEHMELER
#82021] - [20216F P B ER KM REEEKX
2% | LA %2 [2021 Sydney Design AwardsiR 2] -
[2021ZBIMUSE Design Awards# 22| % -

ERELSF KAMT—ERGRITH M
B HOEEER ENMEEL - H0EE
ERUNE A GAEE LA ERIEZRumE
FEE ReABEREINETSRFESD - BE
BIRIBH[REE - xR A IMES - KA~
EZE LI 2B BIR P i EURIR 55 4 8
B o RAMTRAIT - #E - BAMRM]
MEEEEES  FERBSERREMMNSH
B RENCEIANER  AREHEIR A M
BRI LA - R2021FE6H - KiiE
MAIRIE - tEe RER(ESG))ZEE - A
HHESERHT NEREAEBEMNESGEBER LT
FIEME  WHR2021F78 » EMRULLBFTE
B BRBETHEBES  E5HCERME
RN EETS  REEENAFERE -
EEHEMSEEERMAR - KREAMTEA
FEBEFHE BEFABESIASTE  BBE
TEAZMEI  BER2EHE  T5¥0L 0 &
[EBZRTT FESZIMAEEBERESIT
L BITE R BITAGEER - RHEEH
M AEHMFEBBRIRKRELAZEST|RBERA
ZREAEES  URAABRERE MRS
RO BREQAFELHERESE  EEA %= -
RENRBEFEMSE S - KA [2021
FEMEITEESGELEADE|RIF - HE
2021F12A31H - KEZERAEIBEE 100%
MR EEEIZE  13EEEES _ENGE
SRR BRI E -



CHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT (Continued)

Land Reserves

During the Year, in line with the Company’s development needs and
industry trends, the Group deeply penetrated the Yangtze River Delta
Region and the Chengdu-Chongqging Metropolitan Area to strategically
position its presence in the golden metropolitan clusters nationwide
adhering to the “1+1+X” strategic guidance. Its projects covered Wenzhou,
Wuxi, Wuhu, Nanjing, Hefei, Chengdu, Chongging and other cities. With
reasonable and attractive land costs, the Group extended its presence
actively to ensure the sustainable development of its land reserves.

Throughout 2021, the Group together with its joint ventures and associates
added 7 quality land parcels with an estimated total planned gross floor
area (“GFA”) of approximately 1.1 million sg.m.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group together with its joint ventures and
associates owned a total of 80 projects distributed in 28 cities.

OUTLOOK

Looking forward into 2022, the global economy is likely to suffer from
the chronic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic under the threat of
virus mutation. There are still uncertainties brought by the increasingly
complicated and uncertain external environment on China’s economic
growth, while it is facing pressure from demand contraction, supply shocks
and weakening expectations. Under such a circumstance, the government
will make economic stability its top priority and pursue progress while
ensuring stability.
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CHAIRMAN'’S STATEMENT (continued)
FEWRE @

In respect of the real estate market, “houses are for living in not for
speculation” remains the core principle in the long run. The central
and local governments have intensively introduced austerity policies to
stabilise market expectations and continuously strengthened the financial
regulations in the real estate sector, in order to lead development of the
real estate market into a high-efficient, steady and healthy manner. With
the continuous promotion of new urbanisation with people as the core,
the demand in the real estate market remains strong. On the other hand,
under the influence of austerity policies such as “Three Red Lines” and
“Two Centralisations”, the real estate regulatory environment remains
relatively tight. Local governments will continue to implement city-specific
policies and tighten property austerity measures. In 2021, more than
30 popular cities introduced new regulatory policies, and the trend of
tightening austerity measures may continue to spread to the popular third-
and fourth-tier cities, resulting in more marked regional differentiation. In
December 2021, the central government re-established its guideline of
policy for the real estate market and adopted supportive measures such
as lowering the deposit reserve requirement ratio, to release a promising
prospect. With the continuous improvement of the long-term real estate
mechanism, the market is expected to maintain an overall stable operation.

To cope with the reform cycle of the real estate market, we will flexibly
adjust our strategic focus according to market changes, self-reform,
and improve our risk resistance ability. In the face of the growth trend
of ongoing upgrade, the Group will continue to adhere to the “1+1+X”
strategic guidance, actively deploy products, marketing and investment,
and comprehensively deepen the development of golden metropolitan
clusters nationwide such as the Yangtze River Delta Region and the
Chengdu-Chongging Metropolitan Area. DaFa Properties will flexibly adjust
our strategy and layout for each stage according to market changes, with
a view to enhancing the overall competitiveness of the Group and ensuring
the comprehensive, stable and sustainable development of the Group.

Ge Yiyang
Chairman of the Board, Executive Director

14 April 2022
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES (continued)
FEYEME &

PROJECTS DEVELOPED BY THE GROUP REERBENER

As at 31 December 2021, the Group, together with its joint ventures and ~ # E2021F12A31H L FE » AEBERE
associates, engaged in a total of 80 property development projects. The A& NEE AT LR HE T80EYMEMEE
table below sets forth the details of the property development projects B o N&RFHHH2021F12 A31 B AEEEREH
of the Group together with its joint ventures and associates as at 31 A& MEMBE N RINYEMZEERFE
December 2021:

GFA under
Interest development/ Completed
attributable Accumulated for future |  time/Expected
Project name i to the Group | product Total site area Total GFA | completed GFA development | completion time
ELYS
BRI AR RIEE/
RS AEBER| SREDR BEER BEAR| RIxIRE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(EHX) (LK) (FFH) (FHK)
1 Dafa Bliss Huating Shanghai ~ 100% Residential 45,428 118,139 118,139 - 1172017
RERNER L iz
2 Shanghai Kai Run Jin Cheng Shanghai ~ 100% Residential 16,929 53,925 53,925 - 06/2006
LB 9 iz
3 Ningbo Zhongshan Junfu Ningbo 98% Residential 61,226 171,227 171,227 - 12/2018
ERPIER Y iz
4 Dafa Bliss Garden Nanjing 100% Residential 32,451 69,101 69,101 - 06/2017
RERGER 2 iz
5 Dafa Yan Lan Wan Nanjing 100% Residential 70,231 172,283 172,283 - 07/2013
RERRE 2 frz
6 Nanjing Kai Run Jin Cheng Nanjing 100% Residential 35,962 228,440 228,440 - 10/2009
ARd B BR =
7 Nanjing Kaihong Junfu Nanjing 100% Residential, 27,243 59,895 59,895 - 01/2011
commercial
ARIEENR BR Iz @%
8 Kaixin Jinyuan A Wenzhou ~ 100% Residential 40,504 146,332 146,332 - 0172017
giRsREA bl frx
9 Kaixin Jinyuan B Wenzhou ~ 96% Residential 45,562 167,180 167,180 - 03/2018
S iRER bl fre
10 Dafa Bliss Oriental (Wenzhou) Wenzhou ~ 90% Residential, 26,576 120,240 120,240 - 12/2019
commercial
RER R (M) bl % B%
1 Wenzhou Metropolis No. 1 Wenzhou ~ 100% Residential 14,713 70,955 70,955 - 12/2020
BMEeE—% bl fr=
12 Shanghai IST Mall Shanghai~ 100% Commercial - 25,870 25,870 - 06/2006
Complexes
930S bk AxkRA
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES (continued)
FEYEME »

Interest Completed
attributable | Type of Accumulated time/Expected
Project name i to the Group | product Total site area Total GFA | completed GFA completion time
A58 RHERT TIRE/
EEEA EihEs EmER BEBER| SREDR BEER Bt IRE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FHK) (E5%) (E5%)
13 Harbor Ring Plaza Shanghai ~ 100% Offices 118 1,499 1,499 - 1211997
BEES v BAE
14 Nanjing IST Mall Nanjing 100% Commercial - 35,921 35921 - 12/2011
Complexes
ARLEAS 2 EELy
15 Changzhou Wujin New City Changzhou  31% Residential 69,261 169,796 169,796 - 1212019
Metropolis
FMR e HE B iz
16 Yixing Zhongliang Dafa Wuxi 36% Residential 25,829 53,150 53,150 - 8/2020
Mansion One
HEG2ALENER &5 frz
17 Jurong Bliss Oriental Zhenjang  47% Residential 45,781 118,978 - 118,978 06/2024
RRGR BT iz
18 Jurong Yueju Garden Zhenjang  23% Residential 38,731 94,624 - 94,624 12/2023
IRHERE B iz
19 Changxing Bliss Oriental Huzhou 34% Residential 52918 145,992 145,992 - 11/2020
RERWFEA gl fr=
20 AnjiRongxin Yuejiang Mansion  Huzhou ~ 23% Residential 53,254 113,955 113,955 - 12/2020
RERERLN gl frz
21 Huzhou Bliss Four Seasons Huzhou 10% Residential, 35,461 113,459 113,459 - 12/2021
commercial
g A M iz A%
22 Changshu Shuang Jing Hua Court  Suzhou 25% Residential 17,361 48,853 48,853 - 06/2020
FRERERE &l ft=
23 Yingde Longyue Four Seasons  Qingyuan ~ 92% Residential 14,014 84,366 84,366 - 05/2021
Court
RERWINES BE ff=
24 Xuzhou Dafa Tongyin Xuzhou 51% Residential 24,441 66,906 06,906 - 12/2020
Bliss Mansion
BNAZ BRI &M frx
25 Hefei Gongyuan Tianzhu Hefei 31% Residential 49,546 144,904 144,904 - 06/2021
sERAERE Al iz
26 Hefei Bliss Four Seasons Hefei 43% Residential 25,168 73,059 73,059 - 06/2021
Gl &l fr=
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES (continued)
FEYEME &

GFA under
Interest development/ Completed
attributable | Type of Accumulated for future | time/Expected
Project name i to the Group | product Total site area Total GFA | completed GFA development | completion time
REs/
A58 BRI AREE RIKRE/
BEEA EihEs EmER BEBER| SREDR BENR BEER| RTINS
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FHK) (E5%) (E5%) (FAK)
27 Yixing Bliss Oriental Wuxi 4% Residential 17,959 40,336 40,336 - 12/2020
EERNRA &5 frx
28 Taizhou Xuefu No. 1 Taizhou 4% Residential 17,008 45,165 45,165 - 06/2021
AMERES =i =
29 Cixi Yulin Mansion Ningbo 43% Residential 46,508 115,622 115,622 - 06/2021
EREM £y fix
30 Wenzhou Rui'an Ruixiang No. 1 Wenzhou ~ 45% Residential 28,368 113,805 113,805 - 06/2021
BMRZREES petll fr=
3 Hangzhou Liangzhu Qinlan Hangzhou  30% Residential 18,708 62,192 62,192 - 06/2021
MR il i
32 Changzhou Lijia Longyue Mansion Changzhou  43% Residential 27,590 066,448 06,448 - 06/2021
FMERERR B =
33 Changzhou Zhenglu Changzhou  27% Residential 53,936 160,842 160,842 - 12/2020
Tianning Rongyuefu
ENEERERNE Ei frz
34 Nanchang Xijiangyue Nanchang  49% Residential 11,551 37,487 37,487 - 10/2021
BEAIR s i
35 Ta'an Jimei Jiayue Tai'an 31% Residential 35,154 143,165 - 143,165 10/2022
RREEEN % fr=
36 Jiangmen Guoyuefu Jiangmen  31% Residential 30,240 101,751 101,751 - 11/2021
PRSE i iy fr=
37 Wenzhou Yongjia Clearwater Bay Wenzhou  46% Residential 69,851 249,952 249,952 - 06/2021
BMKGEEKE bl fr=
38 Znhengzhou Bliss Four Seasons  Zhengzhou  90% Residential 25,510 69,662 - 69,662 09/2022
BHEKEEZE ) fr=
39 Wenzhou Longxia Road Wenzhou ~ 44% Residential 12,310 57,313 - 57,313 07/2022
Luhu Bay
BNEEREMNE bl =
40 Jinhua Yongkang Bliss Bay Jinhua 45% Residential 18,389 53,100 - 53,100 12/2022
SRR £% ft=
4 Wenzhou Xi Yue Li Wenzhou ~ 30% Residential 24,251 100,575 - 100,575 07/2022
BNERE bl fr=
42 Wenzhou Chen Yang Li Wenzhou ~ 36% Residential 10,274 28,088 - 28,088 06/2022
ANFERE bl ff=
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES (continued)
FEYEME »

Project name

RS

Wuzhen Xi Yue Hua Yuan
SARNER

Xuzhou Shen Wang Tian Chen
BHREXR

Hefei Jun Yu Tian Xia
AEZ@XT

Hefei Yue Hu Xin Zhu
At RiE
Changzhou Yun Xi
FMEE

Jinhua Yun Zhu

$RES

Xining Dafa Xiyue
BEATEH

Wuxi Puyue Binhu Wang
BEENENZ

Ningnan Guojing Mansion
EREER

Taicang Xiyue Lanting
REESRE

Wenzhou Riverside 1265
BT 1265

Chengdu Puyue Longshan
RAELRL

Suzhou Yuesijii Huating
FNGREER

Weilan Cloud Atlas
HEZH

The Light of Wenzhou Lucheng
mMERZ %

Longteng Longyue Mansion
RRRENIT

Banshan Cloud Mansion
FIEL

Tongxiang
(e
Xuzhou
Gl
Hefel
Al
Hefel
afl
Changzhou
Gl
Jinhua
fia-
Xining
BE
Wuxi
&%
Ningbo
R
Taicang
&
Wenzhou
BN
Chengdu
A#
Suzhou
&M
Ningbo
9
Wenzhou
bl
Changzhou
Eil
Nanjing
2

Interest
attributable
to the Group

A%N
L3 5

34%

30%

14%

15%

7%

2%

52%

45%

42%

64%

13%

97%

26%

8%

20%

4

%

25%

Type of
product

EmRR

Residential
iz
Residential
iz
Residential
%
Residential
1=E
Residential
iz
Residential
=z
Residential
%
Residential
iz
Residential
=
Residential
iz
Residential
fFz
Residential
(i
Residential
=
Residential
iz
Residential
i3
Residential
(i3
Residential
i

Total site area

RIEBER

()

(#5%)

61,250

15,985

83,478

67,834

36,712

26,802

150,269

52,696

42,747

20,787

32,388

42,380

38,724

77,638

71,506

10,359

34,852

Total GFA | completed GFA

REEER

(sq.m)

(®5)

165,700

53,080

167,742

180,742

98,208

70,057

212,383

181,654

137,121

53,567

100,679

80,914

101,070

189,306

236,716

22,319

100,306

Accumulated
RHERT
BENR
(sq.m.)

(E5%) (FHK)

. 165,700

- 53,080

- 167,742

- 180,742

- 98,208

70,057 -

- 212,383

- 181,604

137,121 -

- 53,567

- 109,679

- 85,914

- 101,070

- 189,306

- 236,716

- 22,379

- 100,308

Completed
time/Expected
completion time

ZTIKE/
BitnIRE

09/2022

12/2022

10/2022

06/2022

06/2022

06/2021

09/2023

06/2022

06/2021

06/2022

06/2022

06/2022

09/2022

06/2022

12/2022

07/2022

12/2022
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES (continued)
FEYEME &

GFA under
Interest development/ Completed
attributable | Type of Accumulated for future | time/Expected
Project name i to the Group | product Total site area Total GFA | completed GFA development | completion time
REs/
A58 BRI AREE RIKE/
BEEA EihEs EmER BEBER| SREDR BEER BEER| RTINS
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FHK) (E5%) (E5%) (FHK)
60 Xiyue Binhu Bay Wuxi 22% Residential 52,717 114,146 - 114,146 06/2022
BifeBiE £ frx
61 Huguang Liyuan Chengdu ~ 33% Residential 64,522 162,064 - 162,064 06/2022
WrEk B =
62 Chengdu Xiyue Century Chengdu  48% Residential 64,643 176,694 - 176,694 06/2022
RAERAET B iz
63 Chongaing Xiyong = Yin Weilai ~ Chongging ~ 48% Residential 53,445 114,032 - 114,032 06/2022
BRAA - AR E1 iz
64 Jing Runli Wenzhou ~ 24% Residential 11,101 50,110 - 50,110 1212022
EHE bl iz
65  Yunyueli Wenzhou ~ 32% Residential 12,609 35,915 - 35,915 12/2022
EiE bl iz
66 Dafa Sunkwan Mingyue Sij Wuhu 33% Residential 80,973 184,612 - 184,612 12/2022
A% baging 30 frz
67 Ming Yuexuan Wenzhou ~ 14% Residential 34,109 119,654 - 119,654 06/2023
shiier patll ft=
68 Puyue Manchen Changzhou  31% Residential 49,911 132,228 - 132,228 12/2022
EHER M i
69  Yasong Lanting Ningbo 13% Residential 55,584 172,932 - 172,932 11/2022
TelERE EY =
70 Yujing Yunxi Chengdu  29% Residential 21,493 77,420 - 77,420 12/2022
HEZE pe =
n Bliss Chunxiao Yangzhou  41% Residential 77,399 201,197 - 201,197 09/2023
BUER A frz
72 Jingyue Xingchen Yangzhou  27% Residential 74,093 189,389 - 189,389 09/2023
SHER Ml i
78 Jiangyu Bay Mianyang ~ 39% Residential 28,116 114,144 - 114,144 12/2022
TEE &5 i
74 Wenzhou Hanlin Jiujing Wenzhou ~ 17% Residential 104,207 427,908 - 427,908 09/2023
MBI NIR bl =
75 Lishui Tianzuan Lishui 27% Residential 43,435 111,328 - 111,328 06/2023
EAON | Bk ft=
76 Chongging Tao Li Xu Chongaing  50% Residential 27,932 59,188 - 59,188 06/2023
ERER E ft=
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SUMMARY OF PRINCIPAL PROPERTIES (continued)
FEYEME »

Interest Completed
attributable | Type of Accumulated time/Expected
Project name i to the Group | product Total site area Total GFA | completed GFA completion time
A58 RHERT RIKE/
EEEA EihEs EmER BEBER| SREDR BENR Bt IRE
(sq.m.) (sq.m.) (sq.m.)
(FHK) (E5%) (E5%) (FHK)
77 Wuhu Puyue Guangnian (A) Wuhu 70% Residential 88,270 169,573 . 169,573 12/2023
BeEUREN i iz
78 Wuhu Puyue Guangnian (B) Wuhu 70% Residential 74175 145,228 - 145,228 12/2023
EeRiIRER) i =
79 Chengdu Qingbaijiang Chengdu  50% Residential 36,325 126,354 - 126,354 12/2023
District Project
REATERIEER B iz
80  Qionglai Yuanshu Yihao Yuan Chengdu  34% Residential 37,289 100,499 - 100,499 06/2024
Bk RESHE P =
Total 3,275,715 9,264,474 3,642,606 5,721,808
@i
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEBNWR DN

MARKET OVERVIEW

In 2021, the central government stuck to the keynote of “houses are for
living in but not for speculation, and adjusting policies in different cities” and
constantly optimised the regulatory regime over the real estate sector. The
cumulative number of real estate regulatory controls adopted during the
year reached 651, indicating the government’s determination in precisely
controlling the real estate market in China, urging the industry to return to
rationality and promoting the healthy and stable development of the real
estate market. Under the ongoing guidance of policies, the pace of reform
in the real estate industry is speeding up. The official implementation of
austerity policies such as “Three Red Lines” and “Centralised Land Supply”
in early 2021, brought about significant changes to the real estate industry,
obviously cooled down the sales of real estate. According to the data from
the NBSC, sales of commodity houses followed a up and down trend in
2021. In the first half of the year, both sales area and amount of commodity
houses hit a record high for the same period, while the growth momentum
got hampered obviously in the second half. Yet, the sales and sales area of
commodity houses ended the year with a full-year sales growth. The sales
of commodity houses amounted to RMB1,820 million in 2021, representing
a year-on-year increase of 4.8%; and the sales area of commodity houses
was 1,790 million sg.m., representing a year-on-year increase of 1.9%,
which indicated that China’s residential demand was still strong.

In 2021, an obvious indication of downward trend began to appear on
the entire land market in the second half of the year, which ran at high
levels in the first half. With transactions on the real estate market cooling
down, coupled with mortgage resources and loan interest rates being
tightened up, and the strengthening of supervision over proceeds from
pre-sales, real estate enterprises are facing increasingly large pressure on
their capital chains. The centralised land supply policy changed the land
acquisition and development pace of real estate enterprises, and is also
regarded as one of the biggest market changes to the real estate sector
in 2021. In addition, austerity policies such as pricing restrictions, sales
restrictions and purchase restrictions were introduced intensively during
the year, continuously releasing signals of the tightening industry-wide
austerity efforts. Abiding by national policies and regulatory requirements,
DaFa Properties will promote the sound and healthy development of the
real estate industry, while strengthening its self-construction and adjusting
development strategies in a timely manner, so as to maintain a stable and
balanced development of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

BUSINESS REVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the principal activities of the Group
are property development and property investment, among which, property
development is the main source of the income for the Group.

PROPERTY DEVELOPMENT

Contracted sales

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group, together with its joint
ventures and associates, recorded accumulated contracted sales of
approximately RMB37,562.9 million, increased by approximately 23.9% as
compared to approximately RMB30,320.0 million in 2020. Such increase
was mainly due to the fact that the Group, together with its joint ventures
and associates, has been intensively penetrating into the real estate market
in the Yangtze River Delta Region and Chengdu-Chongaing Metropolitan
Area, resulting in an increase of its accumulated saleable gross floor area
(“GFA”).

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the accumulated contracted
GFA of the Group, together with its joint ventures and associates, recorded
a growth of approximately 10.0% from 2,045,067 sg.m. in 2020 to
2,249,555 sg.m. in 2021. The contracted average selling price (“ASP”)
increased by approximately 12.6% to approximately RMB16,698 per sg.m.
for the year ended 31 December 2021 as compared to approximately
RMB14,826 per sg.m. in 2020.

EEEFWED @

e e

HE2021F12A31BILFE » AEERNEEE
BERYERBELMERE - Ef - WERER
AEEFBWAKIR ©

E K
SEHE

HE2021F12A31HILFEE  AEBEERE
AECERBENRRBRFARBEESEY
AR®37,562.98 BT © B2020F KK AR
30,320.08 &# LK L23.9% « HIERTIEE
AR AEBEBEREALCERBE AR —HHR
ERFEMR=ZAE R BTENEET
5 BYHZRAAHEEEARBE(REEE))
BEANFTER ©

HE2021F12A31HIEFE  A5EEERHE
BEDERBE QAR RS RELEmMERH2020
F#2,045,067F 7K + EF4910.0%%E2021
F#/)2,249,555F 5K o H 22021412 A 31
HIEFE  6aRFHEE(TFHEBDHAR
#16,6987C, F 7K  B2020F MM AR
14,8267T,F 5 KL H14I12.6% °
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEEE R DT

The following table sets forth a breakdown of the contracted sales of the TR IIANEFERESZDEREE QAR
Group, together with its joint ventures and associates, for the year ended & £2021F12 A31H It FEMNA R HEESHA
31 December 2021:

2021 2020
20214 20204

Contracted Contracted Contracted Contracted
sales amount GFA sales amount GFA
CRHESE EREEEE BRIHE & & [FIREEE
(RMB in million) (sq-m.) (RMB in million) (sg.m.)
City (AR®BER) (FHK) [ (AREBRET) (F772K)
Wenzhou BN 7,350.1 318,388 8,101.3 403,172
Chengdu B ED 4,208.8 271,635 238.5 25,581
Changzhou BM 3,408.8 215,342 1,964.0 156,608
Wuxi 55 3,280.7 174,461 1,624.6 72,537
Nanjing MR 3,028.8 77,838 1.2 175
Hefei &he 2,160.7 166,941 2,519.8 195,601
Wuhu O 2,151.4 210,287 680.2 90,768
Lishui N 1,616.9 55,265 - -
Chongaing BB 1,211.3 89,425 323.7 35,885
Ningbo B 1,148.6 102,914 3,175.5 216,098
Tongxiang A %8 1,088.3 78,685 719.1 49,877
Jinhua S 1,036.1 49,342 1,003.0 52,531
Suzhou ERIN 1,003.7 45,819 818.0 37,513
Yangzhou M 782.7 58,920 - -
Xining i 708.3 60,028 624.9 53,420
Nantong R 677.2 34,788 694.7 35,669
Xuzhou HIN 538.6 24,937 1,564.5 118,147
Taicang KE 411.4 21,618 612.2 32,208
Jiangmen AN 368.0 36,935 505.7 49,315
Huzhou N 350.0 26,431 860.1 61,776
Taian B 299.2 32,978 762.9 85,831
Zhengzhou BN 205.7 30,357 521.9 77,372
Yancheng BB 4 181.8 29,966 2451 42,039
Qingyuan TBIR 170.2 26,168 305.7 49,552
Others =) 85.7 10,087 520.8 34,037
Hangzhou AN = = 1,386.7 44,052
Zhoushan th = = 545.9 25,303
Total HEt 37,562.9 2,249,555 30,320.0 2,045,067
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Revenue recognized from sale of properties

Revenue recognized from sale of properties for the year ended 31
December 2021 amounted to approximately RMB5,819.9 million,
representing a decrease of approximately 35.9% from approximately
RMB9,085.3 million in 2020, accounting for approximately 98.4% of the
Group’s total revenue. The Group’s total completed and delivered GFA
amounted to 467,447 sqg.m. for the year ended 31 December 2021,
decreased by approximately 30.6% from 673,189 sg.m. for the same
period of 2020.

The decrease in revenue recognized from sales of properties was primarily
due to a decrease in completed and delivered GFA during the year ended
31 December 2021.

The following table sets forth the details of the revenue recognized from the
sales of properties of the Group by areas for the year ended 31 December
2021:

EEEFWED @

HEMEEmA WS

HE2021F12A31BHLLEFE  HEMEDRE
AU EARES819.98 8T © 820204
H#AR9,085.3B BILH A 4135.9% ' (H7K
EEBWNRIH8.4% ° NEBEH E2021612
AS1BLEFEERINERNNRBRELETDES
467,447F 7K - 82020F R HiR9673,189F ;5
HKIE A 4930.6% o

HEMECHERRIZRL  TEHAREZR
2021F12A3HILLFE  ERTRERNHE
SAEFERM DT -

TREVAEBREZ2021F12A31BIEFE
HEMEDBRUREFBIEED) «

2021 2020
20214 20204
Recognized GFA Recognized GFA
revenue delivered revenue delivered
ERRAWE EBRAVEEEE EERlE BRXNEEERE
(RMB in Million) (sq-m.) (RMB in Million) (sg.m.)
City i (AR®¥BER) (FEK) | (AREEET) (FEAK)
Wenzhou BN 2,597.3 189,565 2,257.3 86,035
Ningbo B 2,486.3 184,537 - -
Hefei Ahe 335.0 33,553 1,671.8 137,800
Qingyuan BIR 201.7 48,268 - -
Huzhou AN 90.7 9,876 413.0 46,181
Taizhou &M 10.7 955 428.9 33,792
Anging ZE 3.4 515 230.0 35,366
Zhoushan A = = 1,140.5 66,106
Jiaxing =i = = 775.5 67,765
Xuzhou RN = = 773.3 55,629
Chengdu XD = = 563.4 70,588
Wuxi i3 - = 358.7 31,047
Chongaing EE = = 208.3 21,886
Others Hih 4.8 178 264.6 20,994
Total a5 5,819.9 467,447 9,085.3 673,189
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continueq)

EEEFWED @

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale represent completed properties
remaining unsold at the end of each financial year and are stated at the lower
of cost and net realizable value. Cost of completed properties held for sale
is determined by an apportionment of related costs incurred attributable to
the unsold properties.

The Group’s completed properties held for sale decreased by approximately
58.7% from approximately RMB2,042.7 million as of 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB946.2 million as of 31 December 2021. The decrease
was mainly due to the delivery of completed properties to customers
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion. Properties under development are stated at the lower of
cost comprising land costs, construction costs, capitalized interests
and other costs directly attributable to such properties incurred during
the development period and net realizable value. Upon completion, the
properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

The Group’s properties under development increased by approximately
39.0% from approximately RMB12,676.0 million as of 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB17,621.7 million as of 31 December 2021.
The increase was mainly due to the new land parcels acquired and under
development during the year ended 31 December 2021.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s core business remains in the
Yangtze River Delta Region and Chengdu-Chongging Metropolitan Area,
while selectively penetrating its business into other key cities with high
development potential. The Group, together with its joint ventures and
associates, had 80 projects under development and completed projects,
65 of which are located in the Yangtze River Delta Region.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

PROPERTY INVESTMENT

As at 31 December 2021, the Group mainly owned two commercial
complexes in Shanghai and Nanjing as per below:

e Shanghai IST Mall (formerly known as Shanghai Kai Hong Plaza),
located at Nos. 1611 and 1661 Sichuan North Road and Nos. 1-3,
Lane 258, Dongbaoxing Road, Hongkou District, Shanghai, the PRC,
features high-end, professional and decent style, as well as family-
friendly facilities and businesses that promote leisure, joy and family
bonding.

e Nanjing IST Mall, located at Nos. 100 and 132 Zhongshan Road,
Xuanwu District, Nanjing City, Jiangsu Province, the PRC, features
vibrant, modern and individualistic style that targets urban residents
who enjoy socializing, exploring new frontiers and consuming for what
they believe to be valuable.

LAND RESERVES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, combining development needs
of the Company and industry trends, the Group further specified the
“1+1+X” layout system under the strategic guidance of deep penetration of
the Yangtze River Delta Region and positioned its presence in the golden
metropolitan clusters nationwide. While intensively penetrating the core
areas of the Yangtze River Delta Region, the Group extended its presence
into Chengdu-Chongging Metropolitan Area, and maintained its strategic
focus on other key cities with high development potential, and actively
penetrated the presence with reasonable and attractive land costs to
ensure the sustainable development of the Group’s land reserves.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group together with its joint ventures and
associates owned a total of 80 projects distributed in 28 cities.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group together with its joint
ventures and associates acquired 7 new land parcels with an estimated
total planned GFA of approximately 1.1 million sg.m..
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (Continued)
BEEE R DT

The table below sets forth the details of the new land parcels of the Group ~ FEREHFIANEFERE S 2D EREE QAR
together with its joint ventures and associates for the year ended 31  #Z£2021F 12831 H |- FE R F L IR F1S ¢
December 2021:

Total site Estimated

area total GFA

Project name Type of product (sq.m.) (sq.m.)

fhET 42

AL i E R (L

HARA ] EmER (E75K) (FE752K)

1 Wenzhou Hanlin Jiujing Wenzhou Residential 104,207 427,908
R e ILIR BN F=

2 Lishui Tianzuan Lishui Residential 43,435 111,323
BKe K BK F=

3 Chongaing Tao Li Xu Chongaing Residential 27,932 59,188
BEHFF Ex F=

4 Wuhu Puyue Guangnian (A) Wuhu Residential 88,270 169,573
HOROBE K EF (A %t F=

5 Wuhu Puyue Guangnian (B) Wuhu Residential 74175 145,228
HOH BN N F (B) O F=

6 Chengdu Qingbaijiang District Project  Chengdu Residential 36,325 126,354
RERT S RIIIRIER &R =

7 Qionglai Yuanshu Yihao Yuan Chengdu Residential 37,289 100,499
TRIR o JR £ = 55 b FED F=

Total
Wt 411,633 1,140,073
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)
EEEFWED @

FINANCIAL REVIEW B 7% B EE

Revenue Uy &=

The revenue of the Group decreased by approximately 35.7% from AN&EEHWRAE E2020F128318 IEEE
approximately RMB9,188.5 miillion for the year ended 31 December 2020 HI# A R%9,188.56E B LB L #I35. 7% 2 & =
to approximately RMB5,911.3 million for the year ended 31 December 2021512 A31H IFFERH ARES,911.3H
2021. The decrease was mainly attributable to the decrease in revenue E7T > @RS T EHNHEW X ORI
recognised from sales of properties. BAETEL ©

For the year ended 31 December 2021, revenue recognised from sales #ZE2021F12 A31HILFE  HEWEDHER
of properties accounted for approximately 98.4% of the total revenue, Wz HBRWZER4)98.4% » MY EBEEWA -
whereas the property lease income, property management services and  #3 & 12 R & & 2 8 0 RGN AR 15 a0z
management consulting service income accounted for only approximately — AJ%91.6% °

1.6% of the total revenue.

For the year ended 31 December
BZE12A31ALEE

2021 2020
20215 20204
% of total % of total
Revenue revenue Revenue revenue
{48 W = Bz
g BaL & ANt
RMB in million % RMB in million %
ARMBETR % AR¥BET %
Sales of properties VI HE 5,819.9 98.4 9,085.3 98.9
Property lease income PEREWA 51.7 0.9 49.5 0.5
Property management services ~ #1¥%E 1 RIS &
and management consulting ERBARE KA
service income 39.7 0.7 53.7 0.6
Total 4zt 5,911.3 100.0 9,188.5 100.0
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continueq)

BEEFWE DM

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group decreased by approximately 30.5% from
approximately RMB7,270.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB5,055.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2021, which was primarily attributable to the decrease in total GFA of
properties delivered during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Gross profit and gross profit margin

The gross profit of the Group decreased by approximately 55.4% from
approximately RMB1,917.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB855.7 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
which was primarily attributable to (i) the decrease in revenue recognized
from sales of properties during the year ended 31 December 2021; and
(i) the decrease in gross profit margin and the increase in impairment
provision for inventory during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The gross profit margin decreased from approximately 20.9% for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately 14.5% for the year ended 31
December 2021, primarily due to the decrease in average selling prices
of property projects, which was affected by the COVID-19 pandemic and
unfavourable macro market environment.

SHEMA

AEBEREEKNAREZE2020F12H31H EF
EMHARET? 270.8BE TR L #130.5% 2 &,
£2021F12A31HIEFEMH ARKS,055.5
BB TEHREZE2021F12A31BILFE
ERNYEBREmMBER DT -

ERRENR

NEBMBOENBEE2020F 128310 IEFE
RAOARENN7.7TEB TRV HIS5.4%EEHE
2021F12A31HEFEMHARKESSS.7THE
T TEAROEE2021F12A31HILFEEH
EVECERUER D+ R()EZE2021F12H
31 B IEFEEF XD K7 EREEE AT
B oo

EFEREZ2020F12831HIEFEHNY
20.9% @ EHE2021F12A31 B L FEMHL
14.5%  TEZEHNZIHBEBETFZEN
MHEIEE R TFHEE TR -

= B/ AR

BRIRE

For the year ended 31 December

BZ12A31ALFE
2021 2020
20215 20204
Gross Gross profit Gross  Gross profit
profit margin profit margin
5 EFE =7 EF%
RMB in million % RMB in million %
ARBEET % ARBEET %
Sales of properties VI HE 790.6 13.6 1,848.9 20.4
Property lease income LIES -1 N 44.6 86.3 43.0 86.9
Property management services 1 E B RS &
and management consulting EIEBAREBA
service income 20.5 51.8 25.8 48.0
Total st 855.7 14.5 1,917.7 20.9
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Finance income

Finance income consists of interest income on bank deposits. The
finance income of the Group increased by approximately 151.9% from
approximately RMB26.2 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB66.0 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
mainly due to the increase in interest income generated from certain fixed
bank deposits during the year ended 31 December 2021.

Other income and gains

Other income and gains of the Group decreased by approximately 36.6%
from approximately RMB345.5 million for the year ended 31 December
2020 to approximately RMB219.2 million for the year ended 31 December
2021. The decrease was primarily due to the decrease of gain on foreign
exchange by approximately RMB132.9 million when compared to the year
ended 31 December 2020.

Selling and distribution expenses

The selling and distribution expenses of the Group decreased by
approximately 6.1% from approximately RMB289.7 million for the year
ended 31 December 2020 to approximately RMB271.9 million for the
year ended 31 December 2021, primarily due to the effective cost control
measures imposed by the Group.

Administrative expenses

The administrative expenses of the Group decreased by approximately
0.9% from approximately RMB449.5 million for the year ended 31
December 2020 to approximately RMB445.4 million for the year ended
31 December 2021, mainly due to the effective cost control measures
imposed by the Group.

EEEFWED @
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BEWAREZE2020F12 A31B IEFENHAR
¥26.2B EILIEMNAI151.9%EE F2021F12
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REZE2021F12A31B L FEE T EHRITE
SREEERF BULAIE DIFTER ©

HAb WA K &

AEEMEMUY A R =B EE2020F12H
S1IRAEFEMHARKI4S5BEETH I L
36.6%EHZE2021F12A31BIEFEHHA
REE2192BB L - ZR D HNEZHRBRESE
202012 A1 A IEFEE LR D AR
1329 & T °

HERDHAX
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continueq)

EEEFWED @

Other expenses

Other expenses primarily consist of charitable donations and other
miscellaneous expenses.

Other expenses of the Group decreased by approximately 6.1% from
approximately RMB26.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB24.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
mainly due to the effective cost control measures imposed by the Group.

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

The Group’s fair value losses on financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss during the year ended 31 December 2021 mainly represented
the realized gain/loss, unrealized capital appreciation/impairment and
exchange gain/loss on financial assets at fair value through profit or loss of
approximately RMB163.7 million (for the year ended 31 December 2020:
approximately RMB2.9 million). The fair value losses were primarily due to
the decrease in the market prices of listed securities held by the Group for
investment purpose.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s portfolio of investment in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss was approximately RMB856.4
million (31 December 2020: approximately RMB937.1 million), which were
held for capital appreciation and investment income.

Fair value gains on investment properties

Fair value gains on investment properties of the Group turnaround from
fair value losses on investment properties of approximately RMB8.2 million
for the year ended 31 December 2020 to fair value gains of approximately
RMB20.8 million for the year ended 31 December 2021. The investment
properties which recorded fair value gains primarily located in Nanjing and
Shanghai.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Finance costs

The finance costs of the Group increased by approximately 97.7% from
approximately RMB235.5 million for the year ended 31 December 2020 to
approximately RMB465.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021,
primarily due to the decrease of the interest capitalisation rate for the
borrowings attributable to development of the property projects.

Share of profits and losses of joint ventures and
associates

The Group recorded a share of gains (net) of joint ventures and associates
of approximately RMB22.6 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
(for the year ended 31 December 2020: losses of approximately RMB24.6
million). The share of gains (net) for the year ended 31 December 2021
were primarily due to the increase of revenue recognized from sales of
properties of the joint ventures and associates during the year ended 31
December 2021.

Income tax expense

The Group’s income tax expense represents corporate income tax and
land appreciation tax payable by the Group’s subsidiaries in the PRC.

The Group’s income tax expense decreased by approximately 55.1% from
approximately RMB534.9 million for the year ended 31 December 2020
to approximately RMB240.1 million for the year ended 31 December 2021
mainly due to the decrease in the Group’s taxable profit for the year ended
31 December 2021.

Loss for the year

As a result of the foregoing, the Group recorded a loss for the year ended
31 December 2021 of approximately RMB428.8 million when compared to
a profit for the year of approximately RMB715.3 million for the year ended
31 December 2020. The Group also recorded a loss attributable to owners
of the parent of approximately RMB480.4 million for the year ended 31
December 2021 when compared to a profit attributable to owners of the
parent of approximately RMB338.9 million for the year ended 31 December
2020.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continueq)
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LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL AND CAPITAL
RESOURCES

The Group has always pursued a prudent treasury management policy and
actively manages its liquidity position to cope with daily operation and any
demands for capital for future development.

The Group funded and is expected to continue to fund its operations
principally from cash generated from its operations, mainly including
proceeds from pre-sales and sales of our properties, receipt of rental
income, as well as issuance of bonds, bank loans and borrowings from
financial institutions. Going forward, the Group may also look for additional
financing opportunities.

Cash position

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had cash and cash equivalents of
approximately RMB1,051.8 million (31 December 2020: approximately
RMB3,891.2 million), pledged deposits of approximately RMB1,059.8
million (831 December 2020: approximately RMB1,256.2 million) and
restricted cash of approximately RMB1,747.6 million (31 December 2020:
approximately RMB2,128.6 million).

Cash and cash equivalents of the Group are mainly denominated in
Renminbi with the remaining denominated in US dollars and Hong Kong
dollars.

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

As at 31 December 2021, the total interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings of the Group were approximately RMB8,505.7 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB7,086.3 million), of which, the
Group’s fixed-rate borrowings accounted for approximately 50.0%. The
Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings were denominated in
Renminbi, US dollars and Hong Kong dollars.

34 DAFA PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED KAk~ AR AT

REHE - UBREXRER

AEE-EFTERESEERRRERERE
HRBESMN - RN B ELEMRKER
MEREEHRK -

AEERTUERSEEIEULRERBRS
(E2BRMERE RHEMSEHANRKEES
WA AR ETES  RITERALEBREBEER
BSEE - BHR > AKRBENAESRBEIRE
e -

BEMRR

M2021F12A31H » AEENRERIASE
B AANRE1,051.88 87T (2020912 A 31
B:HOARKE3891.2AE8T)  DEMERLD
ARM1,059.85 &L (2020F12A31H : &
AR 256 2HETL) RXBRAHFESHARE
1,747.6 B8 L (2020F12A31H : HARE
2,128.6EB87T) °

AEBENRERRASFEYAARERTIESR
BB HUXTRETAEREN -

ATERITREMER

2021F 128318 + AEBMGTBIRITREA
BEEEE AN ARKES 505.7H 87t (2020512
A31H : HARKET7,086.3B8L)  EfF » K
SEZEEMEEELLEBLHS50.0% ALE
Mt BRITREMEEUARE ZETRAET
HIME -



MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Certain borrowings of the Group were secured by properties under
development, completed properties held for sale, investment properties,
property, plant and equipment, pledged deposits and financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss of the Group. As at 31 December 2021,
assets with an aggregate value of approximately RMB11,673.5 million (31
December 2020: approximately RMB12,978.3 million) have been pledged
to banks and other financial institutions to secure the borrowings of the
Group.

Senior notes

On 11 July 2019 and 13 November 2019, the Company issued notes at
a coupon rate of 12.875% due 2021 with an aggregate principal amount
of US$300,000,000 (the “July 2019 Notes”). The Company raised net
proceeds of approximately US$290,084,000. At any time prior to 11 July
2021, the Company may at its option redeem the July 2019 Notes at a
pre-determined redemption price.

For the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company repurchased
and cancelled an aggregate principal amount of US$20,000,000 of the
July 2019 Notes. For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company
further repurchased and cancelled an aggregate principal amount of
US$80,000,000 of the July 2019 Notes. On 12 July 2021, the Company
repaid in full all the outstanding principal and interest of the July 2019
Notes.

On 29 January 2020, the Company issued notes at a coupon rate of
11.5% due 2021 with an aggregate principal amount of US$200,000,000
(the “danuary 2020 Notes”). The Company raised net proceeds of
approximately US$196,573,000 (after deduction of an underwriting
discount and commissions and other expenses). On 27 January 2021,
the Company repaid in full all the outstanding principal and interest of the
January 2020 Notes.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continueq)
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On 30 July 2020, 21 October 2020 and 17 December 2020, the Company
issued notes at a coupon rate of 12.375% due 2022 with an aggregate
principal amount of US$360,000,000 (the “July 2020 Notes”). The
Company raised net proceeds of approximately US$347,084,000 (after
deduction of an underwriting discount and commissions and other
expenses). At any time prior to 30 July 2022, the Company may at its
option redeem the July 2020 Notes at a pre-determined redemption price.

On 19 January 2021 and 10 June 2021, the Company issued notes at
a coupon rate of 9.95% due 2022 with an aggregate principal amount
of US$280,000,000 (the “January 2021 Notes”). The Company raised
net proceeds of approximately US$268,748,000 (after deduction of an
underwriting discount and commissions and other expenses). At any time
prior to 18 January 2022, the Company may at its option redeem the
January 2021 Notes at a pre-determined redemption price. On 29 October
2021, the Company repurchased an aggregate principal amount of
US$95,500,000 of the January 2021 Notes (the “Repurchased Notes”).
The Repurchased Notes were cancelled as at 31 December 2021.
After such cancellation, the principal amount of the January 2021 Notes
outstanding was US$184,500,000 as at 31 December 2021,

On 28 October 2021, the Company issued notes at a coupon rate of
13.5% due 2023 with an aggregate principal amount of US$100,000,000
(the “October 2021 Notes”). The Company raised net proceeds of
approximately US$97,872,000 (after deduction of an underwriting discount
and commissions and other expenses). At any time prior to 28 April 2023,
the Company may at its option redeem the October 2021 Notes at a pre-
determined redemption price.

The proceeds were fully used primarily for refinancing the existing
indebtedness of the Group.

The fair values of the early redemption options of the July 2020 Notes,
the January 2021 Notes and the October 2021 Notes were not significant
and therefore was not recognised by the Group on inception and as at 31
December 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Total indebtedness

As at 31 December 2021, total indebtedness, which includes interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings and senior notes, amounted to
approximately RMB12,648.5 million (31 December 2020: approximately

HER

M2021F12831H
12,648.5A 8T (2020512A31H : HARME
12,649.2BE7T) » HBEMFERITREMESR

RMB12,649.2 million).

REXRER -

EEEFWED @

CREBEARARE

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREEFIT
Current B AR
Bank loans — secured BITER - FER 325,987 421,930
Other loans — secured Hi B - HIEA 272,650 915,409
Current portion of long term bank loans REFRITERB BB
- secured - B 982,741 418,524
Current portion of long term other loans HEREBAERENEE D
- secured - B 1,656,997 126,730
Current portion of long term other loans Hitb REFE M EIE o
- unsecured — AR = 5,000
Senior notes BREEE 3,501,609 3,217,164
Subtotal INET 6,739,984 5,104,757
Non-current JEENER
Bank loans — secured RITER - FER 3,905,957 4,197,119
Other loans — secured HEi B - HIEHA 1,361,357 937,963
Other loans — unsecured HEmER - EEH = 63,644
Senior notes BREEE 641,208 2,345,678
Subtotal INET 5,908,522 7,544,404
Total HRET 12,648,506 12,649,161
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continueq)

BEEFWE DM

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARBT

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARETT

Bank loans repayable: EEERTENR
Within one year or on demand —F R IR ERK 1,308,728 840,454
In the second year MRE—F 1,572,545 1,564,256
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZZFRF
(BREREMF) 836,436 1,177,420
Beyond five years FEFERE 1,496,976 1,455,443
Subtotal INE 5,214,685 5,037,573
Other borrowings repayable: EEEHMESE .
Within one year or on demand —FANIZER 1,929,647 1,047,139
In the second year REZF 1,361,357 667,767
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=FFHF
(BRERMT) = 333,840
Subtotal INE 3,291,004 2,048,746
Senior notes repayable: EEEELERE
Within one year —F R 3,501,609 3,217,164
In the second year RE_F 641,208 2,345,678
Subtotal INEE 4,142,817 5,562,842
Total #ast 12,648,506 12,649,161

Net gearing ratio

FEMEE

The Group’s net gearing ratio increased from approximately 61.2% as AEEHFEBEEH2020F12H31HHL
at 31 December 2020 to approximately 102.2% as at 31 December  61.2%3EMNZE2021F12 31 HHIAI102.2% + F+
2021, primarily due to the decrease in cash and bank balances as at 31  Z=BHRVIA® LIRITHARN2021F12 431 AR
December 2021. Net gearing ratio was calculated as total indebtedness 4 o FBEXRNIZBEIERIE & RIRITEH#RK
less cash and bank balances divided by total equity. Al ErE o
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Contingent liabilities

The Group provides (1) mortgage guarantees to banks in respect of the
mortgage loans they provided to the Group’s customers in order to secure
the repayment obligations of such customers. The mortgage guarantees
are issued from the date of grant of the relevant mortgage loans and
released upon the earlier of (i) the transfer of the relevant real estate
ownership certificates to the customers, or (i) the settlement of mortgage
loans by the customers. If a purchaser defaults on the mortgage loan,
the Group is typically required to repurchase the underlying property by
paying off the mortgage loan. If it fails to do so, the mortgagee banks will
auction the underlying property and recover the balance from the Group if
the outstanding loan amount exceeds the net foreclosure sale proceeds;
and (2) guarantees to bank and other institutions in connection with
facilities granted to the joint ventures, associates and independent third
party companies of the Group. As of 31 December 2021, an allowance of
approximately RMB25,500,000 (31 December 2020: Nil) was provided for
as a result of the guarantees provided to the joint ventures and associates.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s contingent liabilities were as follows:

Guarantees given to banks in connection
with facilities granted to purchasers of

EEEFWED @

FREE

AEBNORBITRETFAEEZTFHNIRBER
MERBZBER  UERZEZFPMNENRE
- ZERBERBR THBIKBERZ AR
B YR TIEREEMRG - (FEETBER
EREZBBEFEFL H()\BEPEBRBER -
WEFHEXIZBER  ASE—REBBMNE
RIBERMN A A BB - WAREMNBIZ
BEF - RIBRITBINERBEDE  mMEKRE
EERFEBETF FEREERSKIE - BlHA
AEBYTHHE MQRETFTAERAGZE D
¥ BERRMBIE=ZFRAANBERET
N E MR AR - HZ=2021F12H831H -
BAECERBEDNRREEREEEOA
R#25500,0007T (2020512 A31H : &)

MR2021F12A31H » AEEMKABELOT ¢

2021
20214

2020

20204
RMB’000
AREF T

RMB’000
AR® T

FERITIFH M BRI T A%
YR E T RE M ER

the Group’s properties 6,404,332 4,497,483
Guarantees given to financial institutions in MEREBELINERETAED

connection with facilities granted to joint ¥ BERRREBYE=FRNF

ventures, associates and independent A R R

third party companies 3,206,869 1,858,500
Total wast 9,611,201 6,355,983
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continueq)

BEEFWE DM

Commitments

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had the following commitments:

EiE

20215128318 » KEEHAEDT ¢

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T T ARBTIT
Contracted, but not provided for: DETAVB R B -

Property development activities S ESREOR ) 1,678,121 2,877,994
Acquisition of land use rights U B - b {5 A A 277,133 -

Capital contributions payable to joint JERTEERERBENT]
ventures and associates FE 635,739 1,468,935
Total HEt 2,590,993 4,346,929

Significant investments, major acquisitions and
disposals

For the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had entered into the
following material disposals and acquisition:

On 9 June 2021, (i) Shanghai Dafa Land Group Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Dafa”) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Chengdu
Kunfa Properties Development Company Limited (“Chengdu Kunfa”)
entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which Shanghai
Dafa has agreed to sell and Chengdu Kunfa has agreed to purchase the
90.84% equity interest in Chongging Rongque Real Estate Co., Ltd. at the
consideration of RMB12,127,000; and (i) Shanghai Dafa and Chengdu
Kunfa entered into an equity transfer agreement, pursuant to which
Shanghai Dafa has agreed to sell and Chengdu Kunfa has agreed to
purchase 100% equity interest in Shanghai Hanyan Real Estate Co., Ltd. at
the consideration of RMB70,049,000. For more details, please refer to the
announcement of the Company dated 9 June 2021.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

On 25 June 2021, Wenzhou Kaixuan Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Wenzhou
Kaixuan”) (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) and Wenzhou
Ruishun Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Wenzhou Ruishun”) entered into a share
transfer agreement, pursuant to which Wenzhou Kaixuan has agreed to
purchase and Wenzhou Ruishun has agreed to sell 26% of the equity
interests in Zhejiang Xinyuan Investment Management Ltd. (“Zhejiang
Xinyuan”) at a consideration of RMB2.6 million. Accordingly, Zhejiang
Xinyuan became a subsidiary of the Company and the financial results of
the Zhejiang Xinyuan and its subsidiary have been consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements of the Group. For more details, please
refer to the announcement of the Company dated 25 June 2021.

Save as aforesaid, during the year ended 31 December 2021, the
Group did not hold other significant investments in, or conduct material
acquisitions or disposals of, subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates.

Exchange risk

The Group mainly operates its business in the PRC. Other than the foreign
currency denominated bank deposits and senior notes, the Group’s
business is principally conducted in Renminbi and therefore did not have
any other material direct exposure to foreign exchange fluctuations for
the year ended 31 December 2021. Accordingly, the Group considers its
exposure to currency risk to be insignificant. As at 31 December 2021,
the Group has not entered into any hedging transactions against foreign
currency risks.

OUTLOOK FOR 2022

Looking forward into 2022, the global economy is likely to suffer from
the chronic impact of the COVID-19 pandemic under the threat of
virus mutation. There are still uncertainties brought by the increasingly
complicated and uncertain external environment on China’s economic
growth, while it is facing pressure from demand contraction, supply shocks
and weakening expectations. Under such a circumstance, the government
will make economic stability its top priority and pursue progress while
ensuring stability.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continueq)

EEEFWED @

In respect of the real estate market, “houses are for living in not for
speculation” remains the core principle in the long run. The central
and local governments have intensively introduced austerity policies to
stabilise market expectations and continuously strengthened the financial
regulations in the real estate sector, in order to lead development of the
real estate market into a high-efficient, steady and healthy manner. With
the continuous promotion of new urbanisation with people as the core,
the demand in the real estate market remains strong. On the other hand,
under the influence of austerity policies such as “Three Red Lines” and
“Two Centralisations”, the real estate regulatory environment remains
relatively tight. Local governments will continue to implement city-specific
policies and tighten property austerity measures. In 2021, more than
30 popular cities introduced new regulatory policies, and the trend of
tightening austerity measures may continue to spread to the popular third-
and fourth-tier cities, resulting in more marked regional differentiation. In
December 2021, the central government re-established its guideline of
policy for the real estate market and adopted supportive measures such
as lowering the deposit reserve requirement ratio, to release a promising
prospect. With the continuous improvement of the long-term real estate
mechanism, the market is expected to maintain an overall stable operation.

To cope with the reform cycle of the real estate market, we will flexibly
adjust our strategic focus according to market changes, self-reform,
and improve our risk resistance ability. In the face of the growth trend
of ongoing upgrade, the Group will continue to adhere to the “1+1+X”
strategic guidance, actively deploy products, marketing and investment,
and comprehensively deepen the development of golden metropolitan
clusters nationwide such as the Yangtze River Delta Region and the
Chengdu-Chongging Metropolitan Area. DaFa Properties will flexibly adjust
our strategy and layout for each stage according to market changes, with
a view to enhancing the overall competitiveness of the Group and ensuring
the comprehensive, stable and sustainable development of the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the Group had a total of 804 employees (31
December 2020: 1,029 employees). For the year ended 31 December
2021, the Group recognised staff costs of approximately RMB323.4
million (for the year ended 31 December 2020: approximately RMB359.7
million). The Group provided employees with salaries and benefits that, in
its opinion, were competitive with market standards and regularly reviewed
the remuneration policies based on employees’ contributions and industry
standards. The Group also contributed to medical insurance, pension
insurance, maternity insurance, unemployment insurance, work-related
injury insurance and housing provident funds for our employees and paid
relevant insurance premiums. In addition, the Group was committed
to cultivating all-level skilled employees, providing training programs
based on the positions and expertise of our employees to enhance their
understanding and apprehension of the property industry and related
fields. Besides internal training, the Group also engaged external experts to
provide training courses for its employees from time to time.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

The Board believes that high corporate governance standards are essential
in providing a framework for the Group to safeguard the interests of its
shareholders and to enhance its corporate value and accountability.
The Board and the management of the Company are committed to the
maintenance of good corporate governance practices and procedures.

The Company has adopted the corporate governance code (the
“Corporate Governance Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) as its own code on corporate governance. To the best knowledge
of the Directors, the Company has complied with all applicable code
provisions under the Corporate Governance Code for the year ended 31
December 2021.

The Directors will use their best endeavors to procure the Company to
continue to comply with the Corporate Governance Code.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continueq)

BEEFWE DM

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code for Securities Transactions
by the Directors of Listed Issuers as set out in Appendix 10 to the
Listing Rules (the “Model Code”) as its own code of conduct regarding
the securities transactions by the Directors and the Group’s senior
management who, because of his/her office or employment, is likely to
possess inside information in relation to the Company or its securities.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31
December 2021. In addition, the Company is not aware of any non-
compliance of the Model Code by the senior management of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company repurchased part
of the senior notes of the Company. Details are set out in the sub-section
headed “Senior notes” of the section headed “Management Discussion
and Analysis” in this report.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Company had repurchased
a total of 2,293,000 shares of HK$0.001 each on the Stock Exchange
at an aggregate consideration of approximately HK$9,540,000 (the
“Repurchased Shares”). As at the date of this report, all of the
Repurchased Shares were cancelled and accordingly the issued share
capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value of these shares.
Details of the repurchases are as follows:

Number of
shares
repurchased

BERGOBE

Month/Year

December 2021 202112 A 2,293,000
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B X P iR AR B #99,540,0008 ST @ A&
2,293,0000% & R EHE £0.001 B T ([ 88
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Lowest
price paid
per share

BRZMNH
RIEE®K
HK$

BT

4.11

Highest
price paid
per share

BRZMAH
BaEE

Aggregate
consideration

mRE
HK$’000
ABILTTT
9,540
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS (continued)

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
has purchased, sold or redeemed any of the Company’s listed securities
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules requires there to be an open market in
the securities for which listing is sought and a sufficient public float of an
issuer’s listed securities to be maintained. This normally means that at least
25% of the issuer’s total issued listed securities capital must at all times be
held by the public.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public float as
required under the Listing Rules.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT

EERSREERE

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Ge Yiyang, aged 38, has been an executive Director on 23 March
2018. Mr. Ge is responsible for the overall strategic planning of the Group.
He has over 15 years of experience in the PRC real estate industry. In
addition, Mr. Ge currently holds directorship in some subsidiaries of the
Group.

Mr. Ge obtained his bachelor’s degree in business administration and
computer science from Aston University in the U.K. in July 2006. He also
obtained an executive master business administration degree from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business ()L 26x) in Beijing, the PRC in
September 2013.

Mr. Leng Junfeng, aged 49, has been an executive Director and was
appointed as the chief executive officer since 31 January 2022. He is
responsible for the daily operation and management of the Group. Mr.
Leng is in charge of the investment development centre, product and
operation centre and marketing management centre of the Group. He also
takes charge of the cost and procurement centre of the Group.

Mr. Leng joined the Group in March 2018 and was appointed as the chief
operating officer and senior vice president of the Group on 1 March 2020.
Mr. Leng was appointed as the chairman of the board of directors of our
regional company in Shanghai area on 1 March 2021.

Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Leng served as general manager of the
planning operations department/marketing department of Tahoe Group
Co., Ltd* EREEKH BR QA (a company listed on the Shenzhen
Stock Exchange, stock code: 000732) from February 2017 to February
2018, where he was responsible for operations management and
marketing management of the group.

Mr. Leng served as the vice president of Northern China of Shimao Group
Holdings Limited (tt /% % B2 A% G PR A2 7)) (@ company listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 813) from February 2015 to January 2017; as
general manager of an engineering company in Shenyang under China
Overseas Land& Investment Limited (7 B8 53 E AR A ) (@ company
listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 688) from October 2013 to
February 2015; and as general manager of Wuhan Branch of China State
Construction Land Co. Ltd. ({F B # @ 2 AR A &) from January 2011 to
October 2013. He has accumulated more than 20 years of experience in
corporate management.
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DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continueq)

Mr. Leng holds a bachelor’s degree in heating and ventilating discipline
from Jilin Jianzhu University and a master’s degree in management from
Conservatoire national des arts et métiers (77 B Bl 37 2} £ 1 {7 B2 &5 1R £2 7).
Mr. Leng is a member of the Chartered Institute of Building.

Mr. Chi Jingyong, aged 44, has been an executive Director since 23
March 2018 and is primarily responsible for cost control and procurement
of the Group. Mr. Chi has over 20 years of experience in the PRC real
estate industry. Mr. Chi is currently the chairman of the board of directors
of Wenzhou Kaize Real Estate Co., Ltd. (a wholly-owned subsidiary of the
Company).

Mr. Chi obtained his bachelor’s degree in architectural engineering from
Tongiji University ([} X&) in Shanghai, the PRC in January 2006 through
online education. He also obtained a master’s degree in international
real estate from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Hong Kong
in October 2012. Mr. Chi was granted the qualification as a first-class
constructor (— &AM by the Ministry of Personnel of the PRC (R A
R HEFE A ZEEB) and the Ministry of Construction of the PRC (FZHE AR
H B2 & E6) in March 2007. He also obtained the qualification as a cost
engineer granted by the Ministry of Human Resources and Social Security
of the PRC (F#E AR KEFE A N ERMEZREZ) and the Ministry of
Housing and Urban-Rural Development of the PRC (R A R X MEEE
AN 40 52 3% 26) in January 2012. Since March 2014, Mr. Chi has also been
a senior engineer authorized by Zhejiang Province Human Resources and
Social Security Department (#1/T& A 1 BRI S IRIEEE).

Mr. Yang Yongwu, aged 55, has been an executive Director since 23
March 2018 and is primarily responsible for corporate governance of the
Group. Mr. Yang has over 18 years of experience in financial management.
In addition, Mr. Yang currently holds directorship in some subsidiaries of
the Group.

Mr. Yang obtained his bachelor’s degree in financial accounting from
Zhejiang Open University (4T LE#H T8 A 2) in Zhejiang Province, the
PRC in September 1990. He acquired his accounting license in May 1996
from the Ministry of Finance of the People’s Republic of China. Mr. Yang
obtained the qualification as an accountant in May 1996 as certified by the
Ministry of Finance of the PRC (/7 2 A = ££ 1 B0 87 B ).

EENSHREEE®

REEFRBETMRERSRBEXB T EMM
FEBVMERMEEE SR EESRET S
I - REERKBEERFHEESEEER -

MFEB LA - 445% 0 B2018F3H23HEESL
FANTES  TZBERSEHKAEG K
B EENTREMETERGB20ERK
B o MAEERKNARARNEZETAGAM
IEBEBRAFMNESEZER

A AER2006F 1 ARBERKEIEFE L
BRERNSBHELTIZEE T B o HINKR2012
FIOAMBUREANBAEEIRENHERE
HETE 207 o A A R2007FIAEFE A
RAMBEAEZBRAEAREMEEREIET
—REERER o IR 2012F1 ARG E
ARHNBANERMAERETRPEAR
HANEF B 2R 5P LS E TIRAE
1% o B2014F3AR  MAEETANIEAD
BRMit e RERRATN SR TIZAN o

BXREEE  555% 0 H2018F3H23AKESL
FENTES  TZEELEENGEER -
BEEREEISTFNTBERLR - Wi 15
SEBRBRASES T FATEEESRAA -

15 5 £ 19904 9 A B 15 R BT T & 4L B #
BERASUBEFABET 2N - RN19965F5
AESHEARAMBIGHRIAEEOSTHE
BIRTE o BREN1096F5 A BT EARK
MBI BB R BRI FETRNE % o

20215 % ANNUAL REPORT 2021 47



DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT (continueq)

EENSHREERE®

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Gu Jiong, aged 49, was appointed as the independent non-executive
Director on 10 September 2018 and is primarily responsible for providing
independent advice on the operations and management of the Group.

From July 1995 to April 2004, Mr. Gu was with Ernst & Young Shanghai
office and was the senior manager of audit department when he left the
firm. From April 2004 to December 2009, he successively worked in
UTStarcom Telecom Co., Ltd. and its holding company, UTStarcom Inc.,
a company listed on Nasdaq (stock code: UTSI) and a global telecom
infrastructure provider specialized in the provision of packet optical
transport and broadband access products to network operators, where he
was responsible for accounting and financial matters of this company. He
was the financial controller when he left UTStarcom Inc. in December 2009.
From January 2010 to August 2013, Mr. Gu served as the chief financial
officer of BesTV New Media Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai
Stock Exchange (stock code: 600637) (currently known as Oriental Pearly
Media Co., Ltd. (3877 BA TR T 1 88 1% 15 A IR A 7)) and principally engaged in
the provision of technical services, content services and marketing services
for television terminals, computer terminals and mobile terminals through
media source platforms, where he was responsible for the financial matters
of this company. Since September 2016, Mr. Gu has been the chief
financial officer and vice president of CMC Holdings Limited (# A X/tH
fR & 2 7)), an investment platform focused on media and entertainment
investments, where he has been responsible for its corporate strategy and
overall financial management in the operation. From September 2013 to
August 2016, Mr. Gu served as the chief financial officer of CMC Capital
Partners (2 AX L EE R EES), an investment fund specializing in
media and entertainment investments in the PRC and globally. From June
2015 to November 2020, Mr. Gu was an independent non-executive
director of Chen Xing Development Holdings Limited (the shares of which
were listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 2286). From June 2019 to
November 2020, Mr. Gu was an independent non-executive director of Tu
Yi Holding Company Limited (the shares of which were listed on the Stock
Exchange, stock code: 1701). From July 2015 to June 2021, Mr. Gu was
an independent non-executive director of Xinming China Holdings Limited
(stock code: 2699). Mr. Gu has been appointed as an independent director
of Amlogic (Shanghai) Co., Ltd., a company listed on the Shanghai Stock
Exchange (Stock code: 688099). Mr. Gu has also been an independent
non-executive director of Ascletis Pharma Inc. (stock code: 1672) since
August 2018, Mulsanne Group Holding Limited (Stock code: 1817) since
April 2019 and Vesync Co., Ltd (Stock code: 2148) since December 2020,
all of which are listed on the Stock Exchange.
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Mr. Gu obtained a bachelor’s degree in financial management from Fudan
University (18 2 X&) in Shanghai, the PRC in July 1995. He has been
a non-practicing member of The Chinese Institute of Certified Public
Accountants (B Xt & 5TAD 1% ) since April 2004,

Mr. Sun Bing, aged 47, was appointed as the independent non-executive
Director on 10 September 2018 and is primarily responsible for providing
independent advice on the operations and management of the Group. Mr.
Sun has over 20 years of experience in auditing matters. From September
2000 to July 2020, Mr. Sun served as the partner of BDO China SHU LUN
PAN Certified Public Account LLP ((Z{Z & 5T R B FT(RF ok L@ A %)),
and had been primarily responsible for coordinating and organizing the
implementation of corporate audit matters and audit reports. Since March
2017, Mr. Sun has been an independent director of Shanghai Jingwei
(Group) Co., Ltd. (F/8£& 4 (5 E)F R A R)), a company primarily engaged
in asset management, investment management and corporate consulting
services, where he was responsible for providing independent advice to
this company. Since July 2020, Mr. Sun has been the partner of Shanghai
Rightway Capital LLP (E/8 E ARLEE S BEIEF L ERER).

Mr. Sun obtained a bachelor’s degree from the University of Shanghai
for Science and Technology (/83 T A& in Shanghai, the PRC with a
major in accounting and a minor in computer application in July 1997. He
also obtained a master’s degree of professional accountancy from The
Chinese University of Hong Kong in Hong Kong in December 2011. Mr.
Sun registered as a certified public accountant with the Shanghai Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (/8T &&TEI#H€) in December
1999.

Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas, aged 50, was appointed as the independent
non-executive Director on 10 September 2018 and is primarily responsible
for providing independent advice on the operations and management of
the Group. Mr. Fok has worked in the listing division of the Stock Exchange
and has extensive experience in the field of corporate finance specializing
in equity financing and financial restructuring. From September 2007 to
July 2016, Mr. Fok was an executive director of Jian ePayment Systems
Limited (the shares of which were listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 8165). From June 2010 to June 2019, Mr. Fok was an independent
non-executive director of Landing International Development Limited (the
shares of which were listed on the Stock Exchange, stock code: 582).
From August 2007 to June 2020, Mr. Fok was an independent non-
executive director of China Smarter Energy Group Holdings Limited (the
shares of which are listed on the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1004). Currently, Mr. Fok is an independent non-executive director
of SFund International Holdings Limited (the shares of which are listed on
the main board of the Stock Exchange, stock code: 1367).
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Mr. Fok is also a member of the CPA Australia, He is also a Chartered
Financial Analyst.

Save as disclosed above, none of the Directors has any other directorships
in listed companies during the three years immediately prior to the date of
this annual report.

Save as disclosed in this annual report, each of the Directors has confirmed
that there are no other matters that need to be brought to the attention of
the Shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”) and there is no
other information which is required to be disclosed pursuant to paragraph
12 of Appendix 16 to the Listing Rules.

SENIOR MANAGEMENT

The senior management is responsible for the day-to-day management
and operation of the business.

Mr. Leng Junfeng, aged 49, is an executive Director and the chief
executive officer. For details of his biography, please see sub-section
headed “Executive Directors” in this section.

Mr. Chi Jingyong, aged 44, is an executive Director and vice president.
For details of his biography, please see sub-section headed “Executive
Directors” in this section.

Mr. Yang Yongwu, aged 55, is an executive Director and vice president.

For details of his biography, please see sub-section headed “Executive
Directors” in this section.
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Mr. Wong Chin Hung, aged 43, joined the Group as the chief financial
officer of the Company and vice president in July 2019 and was appointed
as the joint company secretary of the Company in January 2020. Mr.
Wong is responsible for strategic planning, corporate finance, financial
reporting and investor relations of our Company. Mr. Wong has over 20
years of experience in corporate governance, corporate finance, auditing
and financial reporting. From January 2018 to July 2019, Mr. Wong
served as the chief financial officer and company secretary for Yuzhou
Group Holdings Company Limited (formerly known as Yuzhou Properties
Company Limited), a company listed on the Stock Exchange (stock code:
1628). Mr. Wong was also an audit partner of an international C.P.A. firm.

Mr. Wong graduated with a bachelor’s degree of Business Administration
in Accounting from City University of Hong Kong. Mr. Wong is a member
of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and the
Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.

Mr. Ge Lv, aged 38, has been the vice president of the Group in April
2016, and was appointed as the chairman of the board of directors of
our regional company in Nanjing on 3 December 2019. Mr. Ge was re-
designated as the chairman of the board of directors of our regional
company in Jiangsu and Anhui area on 26 November 2020. He is in
charge of the commercial centre, strategic investment department of the
Office of the Board and the regional company in Jiangsu and Anhui area of
the Group. He joined the Group as the assistant to the general manager of
Shanghai Dafa in March 2007. From September 2009 to March 2015, Mr.
Ge was the general manager of Nanjing Wisdom Warden. From February
2014 to March 2015, Mr. Ge was the director of the commercial centre
of the Group. From April 2015 to March 2016, Mr. Ge was the assistant
president of the Group. Mr. Ge has over 14 years of experience in the PRC
real estate industry. In addition, Mr. Ge currently holds directorship in some
subsidiaries of the Group.
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Mr. Ge obtained his bachelor’s degree in business management and
computer science from Aston University in the U.K., in July 2006. He also
obtained his executive master business administration degree from Cheung
Kong Graduate School of Business in September 2017.

Mr. Wang Xiaogang, aged 40, joined the Group in July 2018 as a
project director, and was promoted to the general manager of our regional
company in Shanghai area in March 2021. Prior to joining the Group,
Mr. Wang served as a project general manager of Shimao Group from
April 2013 to July 2018, and was responsible for the daily operation and
management of a property development project.

Mr. Wang served as the head of engineering department of Zhangjiakou
Xuanhua Jiayuan Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (RER A &1t 3=/R
E i EFIE AR A F]) from November 2009 to April 2013, and he has
accumulated over 11 years’ experience in project management since then.

Mr. Wang graduated from Suzhou University of Science and Technology in
2002, majoring in construction engineering.

Mr. Kong Xinguo, aged 45, joined the Group in July 2018 and was
appointed as the chairman of the board of directors of our regional
company in Hangyong on 9 January 2020, and was re-designated as the
chairman of the board of directors of our regional company in Zhejiang
area on 16 November 2020. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Kong served as
the chairman of southern regional company of Zhongliang Real Estate (#
24 ZE) from January 2017 to April 2018, and was responsible for the daily
operation and management of the region.

Mr. Kong served as the deputy general manager of China Fortune Land
Development Co., Ltd. from May 2014 to January 2017 and the chief
engineer head of Wanda Group from April 2012 to April 2014, and he
has accumulated over ten years’ experience in corporate operation and
management since then.

Mr. Kong holds a doctorate degree in civil engineering from The University

of Akron in the United States as well as a bachelor’'s and master’s degree
in civil engineering from Southeast University.
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Mr. Wang Zhi, aged 36, joined the Group in April 2019 and was appointed
as the general manager of our regional company in Western China area
and are responsible for the daily operation and management of Western
China region. Prior to joining the Group, Mr. Wang served as the regional
operation director and project director of Beijing region of China SCE
Group Holdings Limited (a company listed on the Stock Exchange, stock
code: 1966.HK) from March 2017 to March 2019, and was responsible
for the daily operation and management of Beijing region. Mr. Wang
has accumulated over ten years’ experience in corporate operation and
management since then.

Mr. Wang holds a master’s degree in municipal engineering from Shenyang
Jianzhu University as well as a bachelor’s degree in engineering from Jilin
University.

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

Mr. Wong Chin Hung was appointed as the joint company secretary of
the Company on 31 January 2020. For details of Mr. Wong Chin Hung,
please see sub-section headed “Senior Management” in this section.

Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty, is one of the joint company secretaries. Ms. So
currently serves as a vice president of SWCS Corporate Services Group
(Hong Kong) Limited, a professional services provider specializing in
corporate services, and has over 24 years of experience in the corporate
secretarial field.

Ms. So received a Master of Laws degree in Chinese and Comparative
Law from the City University of Hong Kong and a Master of Business
Administration degree from the University of Leicester in the United
Kingdom in 2004 and 1999, respectively. Ms. So has been an associate
member of both The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as
The Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) in the United
Kingdom and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries since
1997.

In compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of the joint
company secretaries has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training for the year ended 31 December 2021.

As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Wong Chin Hung and Ms. So Shuk
Yi Betty are the joint company secretaries of the Company.
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CORPORATE INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated in the Cayman Islands under the Cayman
Companies Law, as an exempted company with limited liability on 18
December 2017. The shares of the Company (the “Shares”) were listed on
the Stock Exchange on 11 October 2018.

PRINCIPAL OPERATIONS

The Group is an expanding real estate developer in the Yangtze River
Delta Region focusing on the development and sales of residential
properties. Headquartered in Shanghai, the PRC, we have an active
presence in the Yangtze River Delta Region and Chengdu-Chongging
Metropolitan Area. As at 31 December 2021, we had a diverse portfolio
of 80 projects consisting of 74 residential properties, 3 residential and
commercial complexes, 2 commercial complexes and 1 office floor. Of all
the aforementioned projects, 65 projects are located in Yangtze River Delta
Region and 9 projects are located in Chengdu-Chongqging Metropolitan
Area.

Details of the principal activities of the principal subsidiaries of the Group
are set out in note 1 to the financial statements of the Group in this annual
report. There were no significant changes in the nature of the Group’s
principal activities during the year ended 31 December 2021. As at the
date of this annual report, the Board has no intention to significantly
change the principal business of the Group.

RESULTS

The results of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 and
the state of the Group’s financial position as at that date are set out in
the financial statements on pages 117 to 298 of this annual report. The
Group’s business review and outlook are provided in the section headed
“Chairman’s Statement” in this annual report. An analysis of the Group’s
performance using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report.
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BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the business of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 and outlook are set out in the section headed “Chairman’s
Statement”. An analysis of the Group’s performance during the year ended
31 December 2021 using financial key performance indicators is set out
in the section headed “Management Discussion and Analysis”. Save as
disclosed in the section headed “Subsequent Events after the Reporting
Period” below, the Group has no significant events after the end of the
financial year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report.

MATERIAL ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSALS

Save as disclosed in the section headed “Management Discussion and
Analysis — Significant investments, major acquisitions and disposals” in this
annual report, during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report, the Group did not have any material acquisition
or disposal of subsidiaries and associated companies.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of the movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group
during the year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 13 to the
financial statements of the Group in this annual report.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS

Details of the bank and other borrowings of the Group as at 31 December
2021 are set out in note 30 to the financial statements of the Group in this
annual report.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the year ended
31 December 2021 are set out in the consolidated statement of changes
in equity in this annual report. As at 31 December 2021, the Company’s
reserves available for distribution calculated in accordance with the provision
of Companies Law of the Cayman Islands amounted to approximately
RMB835.0 million.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

Sales to the Group'’s five largest customers accounted for less than 30% of
the Group’s total revenue for the year ended 31 December 2021. Purchase
from the Group’s five largest suppliers accounted for less than 30% of the
Group’s total purchase for the year ended 31 December 2021.

To the best of the knowledge of the Directors, none of the Directors, their
respective close associates or any Shareholder who owns more than 5%
of the issued share capital of the Company had any interest in any of the
five largest customers and suppliers of the Group during the year ended 31
December 2021.

SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital during the
year ended 31 December 2021 are set out in note 33 to the financial
statements.

DIRECTORS AND DIRECTORS’ SERVICE
CONTRACTS

The Directors during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the
date of this annual report are:

Executive Directors

Mr. Ge Yiyang (Chairman)

Mr. Leng Junfeng (appointed on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Liao Lujiang (resigned on 31 January 2022)
Mr. Chi Jingyong

Mr. Yang Yongwu

Independent Non-executive Directors
Mr. Gu Jiong

Mr. Sun Bing
Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas
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Directors’ Service Contracts

Each of the executive Directors has entered into a service contract with
the Company for a specific term of three years and shall be subject to
re-election as and when required under the Articles of Association, until
terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions of the service
contract or by either party giving to the other not less than 30 days’ prior
notice in writing.

Each of the independent non-executive Directors has entered into a letter
of appointment with the Company for a specific term of three years and
shall be subject to re-election as and when required under the Articles of
Association, until terminated in accordance with the terms and conditions
of the letter of appointment or by either party giving to the other not less
than two months’ prior notice in writing.

None of the Directors has entered into any service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within one year
without payment of compensation (other than statutory compensation).

CONFIRMATION OF INDEPENDENCE
OF INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

The Company has received a confirmation of independence from each
of the independent non-executive Directors pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the
Listing Rules. The Board has assessed their independence and concluded
that all the independent non-executive Directors are considered to be
independent pursuant to the Listing Rules.

DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS AND FIVE
HIGHEST PAID INDIVIDUALS

Details of the remuneration of the Directors and those of the five highest
paid individuals of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 are
set out in note 8 and note 9 to the financial statements of the Group in this
annual report.

None of the Directors waived his emoluments nor has agreed to waive his
emoluments for the year ended 31 December 2021.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING
BUSINESS

As at the date of this annual report, none of the Controlling Shareholders
of the Group or the Directors was engaged or had interest in any business,
apart from the business of the Group, which competes or is likely to
compete, directly or indirectly, with the Group’s business, which would
require disclosure under Rule 8.10 of the Listing Rules.

COMPLIANCE WITH NON-COMPETITION
UNDERTAKINGS

Deed of Non-Competition

The Group’s Controlling Shareholders, namely, Mr. Ge Hekai, Mr. Ge
Yiyang, Mr. Ge Heming, Ms. Jin Linyin, Splendid Sun Limited, Sound
Limited, Shade (BVI) Limited, Glorious Villa Limited and He Hong Limited
(together, the “Covenantors”) entered into a deed of non-competition on
10 September 2018 (the “Deed of Non-Competition”) in favour of the
Company, pursuant to which each of the Covenantors has, among other
things, irrevocably and unconditionally undertaken, jointly and severally,
with the Company that, the Covenantors shall not, and shall procure
that their close associates (other than members of the Group) shall not,
directly or indirectly, carry on, engage in, invest in, participate in, attempt
to participate in, render any services to, provide any financial support to
or otherwise be involved in or interested in, whether alone or jointly with
another person and whether directly or indirectly or on behalf of or to
assist or act in concert with any other person, any business or investment
activities in the PRC or anywhere except the United Kingdom which are the
same as, similar to or in competition or likely to be in competition with the
business carried on or contemplated to be carried on by any member of
the Group from time to time (the “Restricted Business”).
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The Deed of Non-Competition shall expire on the earlier of (i) the date when
the Covenantors and, as the case may be, any of their close associates,
cease to hold, or otherwise be interested in, beneficially in aggregate
whether directly or indirectly, 30% or more (or such other percentage of
shareholding as stipulated in the Listing Rules to constitute a controlling
shareholder) of the issued share capital of the Company; or (iij the date on
which the Shares cease to be listed on the Stock Exchange (except for
temporary suspension of trading of the Shares).

For details of the Deed of Non-Completion, please refer to the section
headed “Relationship with Controlling Shareholders — Non-Competition
Undertakings” in the prospectus of the Company dated 28 September
2018.

Annual Review

The Covenantors have confirmed that they did not refer, or procured the
referral of, any investment or commercial opportunities relating to the
Restricted Business to the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021.

The Company has received a written confirmation from each of the
Covenantors in respect of the compliance by them and their close
associates with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition. The
independent non-executive Directors have reviewed the Deed of Non-
Competition and assessed whether the Covenantors and their close
associates have complied with the terms of the Deed of Non-Competition,
and were satisfied that each of the Covenantors has complied with its/
his/her undertakings under the Deed of Non-Competition during the year
ended 31 December 2021.
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RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

The Group entered into certain related party transactions with related
parties during the year ended 31 December 2021 which constituted
connected transactions or continuing connected transactions of the Group,
details of which are set out in note 41 to the financial statements. The
Company has complied with the disclosure requirements in accordance
with Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

The Group has entered into various transactions which constituted
continuing connected transactions under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.
The transaction amount of the continuing connected transactions of the
Group for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out below:

Nature of Transaction

REME

Connected Person
BEAL
Exempt continuing connected transaction

BRI ERER S

Rental serviceNote2)
0 BR 7 i)

1. Dafa Group Co. Ltd. (“Dafa Group”)MNe "
ABEBGRAR (ARERE) @

Non-exempt continuing connected transaction
AR IFEER S

2. Dafa Group

REE PRI B BB AR R 130

3. DaFa Property Management®te 4
servicesMote 9

RE YR E HR 0e 2 ) 2 BB RS 1o

Notes:

1. Dafa Group, a company established in the PRC with limited liability, is principally
engaged in office building leasing business. Dafa Group is wholly-owned by
the Controlling Shareholders and hence a connected person of the Company.
The premise is used as offices by Shanghai Dafa Land Group Co. Ltd. (F/&X
BEHESLEB AR A T) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company)
(“Shanghai Dafa”) and/or its subsidiaries.
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As disclosed in the prospectus, Shanghai Dafa and Dafa Group entered into a
tenancy agreement (the “Tenancy Agreement”) on 19 April 2018, pursuant
to which Shanghai Dafa leased from Dafa Group certain premises located
at 6/F and 7/F, Dafa Commercial Building, Hui Min Lu Bei Shou, Lu Cheng
District, Wenzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC with a GFA of approximately
1,210.83 sqg.m. for a term of three years commencing from 19 April 2018 to 18
April 2021 at an annual rental of approximately RMB1,744,000. The Tenancy
Agreement was early terminated on 31 December 2020.

On 1 January 2021, Wenzhou Kaize Real Estate Co., Ltd. (&N g2 E ¥
HBR/AR]) (an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) (‘Wenzhou
Kaize”) and Dafa Group entered into a new tenancy agreement (the “New
Tenancy Agreement”), pursuant to which Wenzhou Kaize leased from Dafa
Group certain premises located at 6/F and 7/F, Dafa Commercial Building, Hui
Min Lu Bei Shou, Lu Cheng District, Wenzhou, Zhejiang Province, the PRC with
a GFA of approximately 1,210.83 sg.m. for a term of one year commencing
from 1 January 2021 to 31 December 2021 at an annual rental of approximately
RMB1,768,000.

Since each of the applicable percentage ratio (other than the profits ratio)
under the Listing Rules in respect of the annual cap is less than 0.1%, the
transactions under the New Tenancy Agreement are within the de minimis
threshold stipulated in Rule 14A.76(1)(a) of the Listing Rules and are exempt
from the reporting, annual review, announcement, circular and independent
Shareholders’ approval requirements under Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules.

Shanghai Dafa and Dafa Group entered into a framework agreement (the
“Framework Agreement”’) on 15 March 2019, pursuant to which Shanghai
Dafa agreed to purchase, and Dafa Group agreed to supply elevator
equipment and the relevant after-sale services for a term from 15 March 2019
to 31 December 2021. The annual cap of the transactions contemplated
under the Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 is
RMB150,000,000.

As described above, Dafa Group is a connected person of the Company.
Therefore, the transactions contemplated under the Framework Agreement
constitute continuing connected transactions of the Company.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the proposed annual
caps under the Framework Agreement is more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the
transactions contemplated under the Framework Agreement are subject to the
announcement, reporting and annual review requirements but are exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

For details of the Framework Agreement, please refer to the announcement of
the Company dated 15 March 2019.

The Company has followed the pricing policies and guidelines when determining
the pricing and terms of the above continuing connected transactions during
the year ended 31 December 2021, the details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 15 March 2019.
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DaFa Property Management, a limited liability company established in the
PRC, is principally engaged in the provision of property management and
related services in the PRC. DaFa Property Management is wholly-owned by
Mr. Ge Hekai (a controlling shareholder of the Company) upon completion of
the acquisition of equity interest in DaFa Property Management through Mr.
Ge Hekai’s wholly owned company on 20 November 2020 and hence DaFa
Property Management had become a connected person of the Company.
Therefore, the continuing transactions under the existing agreements, in
relation to the provision of property management services by DaFa Property
Management to members of the Group before DaFa Property Management
had become a connected person of the Company, have become continuing
connected transactions of the Company, and have been covered by the
Property Management Services Framework Agreement (as defined in Note 5
below).

The Company and DaFa Property Management entered into a property
management services framework agreement (the “Property Management
Services Framework Agreement”) on 20 November 2020, in relation to the
provision of property management services by members of the DaFa Property
Management to members of the Group in respect of the property projects
of the Group for a term from 20 November 2020 to 31 December 2022. The
annual cap of the transactions contemplated under the Property Management
Services Framework Agreement for the year ended 31 December 2021 is
RMB63,110,000. The proposed annual cap of the transactions contemplated
under the Property Management Services Framework Agreement for the year
ending 31 December 2022 is RMB69,230,000.

As described above, DaFa Property Management is a connected person of
the Company. Therefore, the transactions contemplated under the Property
Management Services Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions of the Company.

As the highest applicable percentage ratio in respect of the proposed annual
caps under the Property Management Services Framework Agreement is
more than 0.1% but less than 5%, the transactions contemplated under the
Property Management Services Framework Agreement are subject to the
announcement, reporting and annual review requirements but are exempt from
the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter 14A of the
Listing Rules.

For details of the Property Management Services Framework Agreement,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 20 November 2020.

The Company has followed the pricing policies and guidelines when determining
the pricing and terms of the above continuing connected transactions during
the year ended 31 December 2021, the details of which are set out in the
announcement of the Company dated 20 November 2020.
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Confirmation from the Independent Non-executive
Directors

The independent non-executive Directors confirmed that the above
continuing connected transactions have been entered into in the ordinary
and usual course of business of the Group on normal commercial terms
that are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole. The independent non-executive Directors further
confirmed that the annual caps in respect of the Framework Agreement
are fair and reasonable and in the interests of the Company and its
Shareholders as a whole.

Confirmation from the Auditor

For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s auditor
has been engaged to report on the continuing connected transactions in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance Engagements 3000
(Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews of
Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740
“Auditor’s Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong
Kong Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants.

In respect of the continuing connected transactions, the Company’s
auditor confirmed that:

(@ nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the continuing connected transactions have not been approved by the
Board of the Company;

(b) for transactions involving the provision of goods or services by the
Group, nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe
that the transactions were not, in all material respects, in accordance
with the pricing policies of the Group;

(c) nothing has come to their attention that causes them to believe that
the transactions were not entered into, in all material respects, in
accordance with the relevant agreements governing such transactions;
and

(d) with respect to the aggregate amount of each of the continuing
connected transactions, nothing has come to their attention that
causes them to believe that the continuing connected transactions
have exceeded the relevant annual cap.
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DIRECTORS’ AND CONTROLLING
SHAREHOLDERS’ INTERESTS IN
TRANSACTION, ARRANGEMENT OR
CONTRACTS

Other than those transactions disclosed in note 41 to the financial
statements of the Group in this annual report and in the paragraphs
headed “Related Party Transactions and Connected Transactions” in this
section, no Director or Controlling Shareholder of the Company has any
material interest, either directly or indirectly, in any transaction, arrangement
or contract of significance to the Group’s business to which the Company,
any of its subsidiaries, fellow subsidiaries or its parent companies were a
party subsisted at the end of the year or at any time during the year ended
31 December 2021.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Description of principal risks and uncertainties that the Company may be
facing can be found in the “Management Discussion and Analysis” and
“Corporate Governance Report” of this annual report.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND
REGULATIONS

Compliance procedures are in place to ensure adherence to applicable
laws, rules and regulations which have a significant impact to the Group.
As at the date of this annual report, except as disclosed in the annual
report, the Group complied with, in all material respects, all the relevant
and applicable PRC laws and regulations governing the business of
property development and management and the Group has obtained all
licenses, permits and certificates for the purpose of operating its business.

As at the date of this annual report, the Company’s joint ventures and
associates were not involved in and the Board is not aware of any
non-compliance incidents that might adversely affect the value of the
Company’s interests in them.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole
or any substantial part of the business of the Company were entered into
or subsisted during the year ended 31 December 2021.
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

During the year ended 31 December 2021, there were no any rights to
acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in or debentures
of the Company granted to any Director or their respective spouse or
children under 18 years of age, nor were there any such rights exercised
by them. Also, there was no arrangement to which the Company, its
holding company, or any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries is a party
that would enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the articles of
association of the Company, or the law of Cayman Islands being the
jurisdiction in which the Company was incorporated under which would
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing
Shareholders.

DISCLOSURE PURSUANT TO RULE 13.21
OF THE LISTING RULES

As stated in the announcement of the Company dated 23 August 2021, on
23 August 2021, to finance the Group’s offshore general working capital
need, the Company accepted as borrower a facility letter (the “Facility
Letter”) issued by Hang Seng Bank Limited as lender (the “Lender”)
pursuant to which a US$30 million term loan facility (the “Facility”) would
be made available by the Lender to the Company subject to the terms
and conditions of the Facility Letter. The loan under the Facility shall be
repaid on the date falling 12 months from the loan drawdown date of the
Facility. As at 31 December 2021, the principal amount of the Facility made
available to the Company by the Lender amounted to US$30 million.

Pursuant to the Facility Letter, throughout the life of the Facility, (i) the
Company shall procure that Mr. Ge Yiyang or his immediate family
member(s) (being his parents, spouse and children) shall remain as the
chairman of the Board and an executive director of the Company; and
(i) Mr. Ge Hekai and Mr. Ge Yiyang are required to collectively own at
least 65% of the, direct or indirect, beneficial shareholding interest in the
issued share capital of, and carrying at least 65% of the voting rights in
the Company. As at the date of this annual report, Mr. Ge Hekai and Mr.
Ge Yiyang together hold approximately 72.86% of the, direct or indirect,
beneficial shareholding interest in the issued share capital of the Company.
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TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors are not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders by reason of their holding of the Company’s securities.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set
out in the section headed “Corporate Governance Report” in this annual
report.

EMPLOYEE AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2021, the Group employed a total of 804 employees
(as at 31 December 2020: 1,029 employees). For the year ended 31
December 2021, the staff cost recognised of the Group amounted to
approximately RMB323.4 million (for the year ended 31 December 2020:
approximately RMB359.7 million).

The remuneration policy of the Group is to provide remuneration packages
including salary, bonuses and various allowances, so as to attract and
retain top quality staff. In general, the Group determines employee salaries
based on each employee’s qualifications, position and seniority. The Group
has designed a periodical review system to assess the performance of
its employees, which forms the basis of the determination on salary rises,
bonuses and promotions. As required by PRC regulations, the Group
makes contributions to mandatory social security funds for the benefit of
the Group’s PRC employees that provide for pension insurance, medical
insurance, unemployment insurance, personal injury insurance, maternity
insurance and housing funds.

Furthermore, the Group has implemented systematic, specialty-focused
vocational training programs for its employees at different levels on a
regular basis to meet different requirements and emphasise individual
initiative and responsibility. The Group believes that these initiatives have
contributed to increased employee productivity.

The Group’s employees do not negotiate their terms of employment
through any labor union or by way of collective bargaining agreements.
During the year ended 31 December 2021, no labor dispute had occurred
which materially and adversely affected or was likely to have a material and
adverse effect on the operations of the Group.
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DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continueq)

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND
GOVERNANCE

Environmental Protection

The Group is subject to a number of environmental laws and regulations
including the Environmental Protection Law of the PRC ({f# A R
MBIRIB{REL)), the Prevention and Control of Environmental Noise
Pollution Law of the PRC ({FrZE A R LM BIIRIBR R 5 B5567K5)), the
Environmental Impact Assessment Law of the PRC ({12 A R LA E

IRIBFEFEL)) and the Administrative Regulations on Environmental
Protection for Development Projects ({E %18 B IR 35 (REE E 1551)).

Pursuant to applicable laws and regulations, each of the Group’s
development projects must undergo an environmental assessment before
the commencement of construction. The Group must fulfill environmental
impact assessment procedures with the relevant environmental protection
authorities. The procedures may contain certain standards, which must
be incorporated into the design, construction and operation of the project.
The Group requires its construction companies to comply with these
standards during the construction process. The Group also encourages
its construction companies to use environmentally friendly equipment and
technologies. Upon the completion and before the delivery of the property,
the relevant environmental protection authorities inspect the project to
ensure compliance with all applicable environmental laws and regulations.

As at 31 December 2021, the Group did not encounter any material issues
in passing inspections conducted by the relevant environmental protection
authorities upon completion of the properties. During the year ended
31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report, no material
fines or penalties were imposed on the Group for non-compliance of PRC
environmental laws and regulations. As at the date of this annual report, the
Group had obtained all required approvals in relation to the environmental
impact reports, where applicable, for the projects of the Group under
development.

Social Responsibility

The Group has entered into employment contracts with its employees in
accordance with the applicable PRC and Hong Kong laws and regulations.

The Group maintains social welfare insurance for its full-time employees in
the PRC and Hong Kong, including pension insurance, medical insurance,
personal injury insurance, unemployment insurance and maternity
insurance, in accordance with the relevant PRC and Hong Kong laws and
regulations.
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Health and Work Safety

The employee’s administrative measures adopted by the Group contain
policies and procedures regarding work safety and occupational health
issues. The Group provides its employees with annual medical checks and
safety training, and the construction sites of the Group are equipped with
safety equipment including gloves, boots and hats.

The chairman’s office of the Group is responsible for recording and
handling work accidents as well as maintaining health and work safety
compliance records.

During the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report, the Group did not encounter any material safety accident, there
were no material claims for personal or property damages and no material
compensation was paid to employees in respect of claims for personal or
property damages related to safety accident.

INDEMNITY AND INSURANCE PROVISIONS

The Articles of Association provide that the Directors, managing directors,
alternate Directors, Auditors, Secretary and other officers for the time
being of the Company and the trustees (if any) for the time being acting in
relation to any of the affairs of the Company, and their respective executors
or administrators, shall be indemnified and secured harmless out of the
assets of the Company from and against all actions, costs, charges,
losses, damages and expenses which they or any of them, their or any of
their executors or administrators, shall or may incur or sustain by reason
of any act done, concurred in or omitted in or about the execution of their
duty or supposed duty in their respective offices or trusts. The Company
has arranged appropriate directors and officers liability insurance in respect
of legal action against Directors.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the Share Option Scheme as set out in this annual report, no
equity-linked agreements were entered into by the Group, or subsisted
during the year ended 31 December 2021.

68 DAFA PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED XAkt =S£MHAR AT

BERIERZE

AEEFEANETEEREZHARNTIFL R
ERERFEEENBRENER AKERESR
RUFERBLELEEI - AAKRENEZET
WhkEZ2ERE BRTFE R2#HERE
E

AEENEIERLAEATCHIERETIREN
ARRIFRER TIER 26 Rk -

REZE2021F12A31B tFEREEAFRA
B AEBUEEBSTANEALEEN - NE
EABEERMEBINERARRRLER
ERALE2EHNMATEELTERLINBERR
EEXNEKREE -

MERERBRRE

MESRANNATE  EF  EF8EE - 21
BE  BifH - WERARRAERNEMSR
BEMRARBMEAEHTENZFEAM
BIREEEMNEBRITASEEEEARER
REZEMBUNEENBREREZZBRENE
IMIEL - BASERITTAMIERS A RS
BRREZWMAARD KA BR BX R
ELhAX EEAARAEETESRERE
RAREBE - ARFICHEFAIGEEHAEE
THLHEENES MRl E T ERR

B SR 80 10 R

PR AN SR T B R R AT 8IS - MBI E 2021412
ABTH L E - AEE W EAT IR E
KA E I ALER -



DIRECTORS’ REPORT (continueq)

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS AFTER THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Disposal of 33% equity interest in Chengdu Yuehu Lixin
Real Estate co., Lid.

On 4 January 2022, Chengdu Hanwei Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Chengdu
Hanwei”) (an indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company) has
entered into an equity transfer agreement with Xiamen Chenxuan Enterprise
Management Partnership (Limited Partnership) (“Xiamen Chenxuan”),
pursuant to which Chengdu Hanwei has agreed to sell and Xiamen
Chenxuan has agreed to acquire, 33% equity interest in Chengdu Yuehu
Lixin Real Estate co., Ltd. at a total consideration of RMB194,895,187.07.
For more details, please refer to the announcements of the Company
dated 4 January 2022 and 14 January 2022.

Completion of the exchange offer and consent
solicitation relating to the January 2021 Notes and
Issuance of US$138,384,000 12.5% senior notes due
2022

On 18 January 2022, all conditions precedent to the exchange offer and
consent solicitation relating to the January 2021 Notes have been fulfilled
and the exchange offer and consent solicitation has been completed.
The exchange and consent consideration, settled on the same date,
is comprised of (i) US$5,765,600 as upfront principal payment, (i)
US$1,441,400 as cash consideration, (i) an new issue of US$138,384,000
of the 12.5% senior notes due 2022, and (iv) US$7,131,126.26 as accrued
interest, to eligible holders who have validly tendered their January 2021
Notes pursuant to the exchange offer and consent solicitation. For more
details, please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 6
January 2022, 13 January 2022, 14 January 2022 and 18 January 2022.

Certain non-payment events relating to the January
2021 Notes and the July 2020 Notes

On 18 January 2022 and 2 March 2022, certain non-payment events
relating to the January 2021 Notes and the July 2020 Notes have been
occurred respectively. For more details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 18 January 2022 and 2 March 2022.
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Winding-up petition relating to the January 2021 Notes

On 18 February 2022, a winding-up petition (the “Petition”) was filed
against the Company, and a separate winding-up petition was filed against
Yinyi Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“Yinyi”), a subsidiary of the Company,
respectively at the High Court of the Hong Kong Special Administrative
Region in relation to the January 2021 Notes in the principal amount of
US$15,000,000 (plus accrued and unpaid interest), in which the Company
was the issuer and Yinyi was a guarantor. For more details, please refer
to the announcement of the Company dated 21 February 2022. The
Company will make further announcement(s) to keep its shareholders and
investors informed of any significant developments in relation to the Petition
as appropriate or as required under the Listing Rules.

Notices of acceleration relating to the July 2020 Notes
and October 2021 Notes

On 1 April 2022, the Company received notices of acceleration from
holders of the July 2020 Notes and October 2021 Notes. For more details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 1 April 2022 and
4 April 2022.

Save as disclosed above, the Group has no other significant events after
31 December 2021 that are required to be disclosed.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Rule 8.08 of the Listing Rules requires there to be an open market in
the securities for which listing is sought and a sufficient public float of an
issuer’s listed securities to be maintained. This normally means that at least
25% of the issuer’s total issued share capital must at all times be held by
the public.

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and to
the knowledge of the Directors as at the latest practicable date prior to the
issue of this annual report, the Company has maintained a sufficient public
float as required under the Listing Rules.
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ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Annual general meeting of the Company will be held on Friday, 17
June 2022 (the “AGM”). The notice of the AGM will be published and
despatched to the Shareholders in accordance with the requirements of
the Listing Rules in April 2022.

FURTHER POSTPONEMENT OF PAYMENT
OF 2021 INTERIM DIVIDEND

Reference is made to the announcement of the Company dated 4 January
2022, taking into consideration the recent macro industry environment of
the real estate industry in the People’s Republic of China and volatility of
the market, in order to preserve the cash level of the Group, the Board
had resolved that the payment of the 2021 Interim Dividend would be
postponed to on or about Wednesday, 6 April 2022.

In light of the continued unfavourable macro market environment faced
by the Group and taking into account the multiple uncertainties on the
Company'’s ability to continue as a going concern as disclosed in note
2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, in order to preserve the cash
resources of the Group for its operations and for better working capital
management purposes, the Board has resolved that the payment of the
2021 Interim Dividend will be further postponed to on or about Wednesday,
6 July 2022. Notwithstanding the postponement of the payment date, the
2021 Interim Dividend will continue to be payable to those shareholders
of the Company whose names appeared on the Company’s register of
members on Thursday, 23 December 2021.

The Directors have been undertaking plans and measures to improve the
Group’s liquidity and financial position, which are set out in note 2.1 to the
consolidated financial statements. The Directors are of the view that, taking
into account such plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient
working capital to finance its operations and meet its financial obligations
as and when they fall due within the next twelve months from 31 December
2021, including the payment of the 2021 Interim Dividend on or about 6
July 2022. The Company will continue to use its best endeavour to ensure
the payment of the 2021 Interim Dividend on the payment date. Should
there be any update to the payment of the 2021 Interim Dividend (including
but not limited to, any further postponement of the payment of the 2021
Interim Dividend), further announcement(s) will be made by the Company
as and when appropriate.
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PAYMENT OF FINAL DIVIDEND

The Board has resolved not to recommend the payment of any final
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: RMB4.8 cents per
share).

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been audited by Ernst & Young. A resolution for the re-
appointment of Ernst & Young as the Company’s auditor is to be proposed
at the AGM. There is no change in the auditor of the Company in the
preceding three financial years.

PROFESSIONAL TAX ADVICE
RECOMMENDED

If the Shareholders are unsure about the taxation implications of
purchasing, holding, disposing of, dealing in, or the exercise of any rights in
relation to the Shares, they are advised to consult an expert.

For and on behalf of the Board
DaFa Properties Group Limited

Ge Yiyang
Chairman

Hong Kong, 14 April 2022
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

The Company is committed to achieving high standards of corporate
governance to safeguard the interests of the Shareholders and to enhance
corporate value and accountability. The Board is pleased in presenting this
Corporate Governance Report for the year ended 31 December 2021.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has adopted the Corporate Governance Code contained in
Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules as its own code on corporate governance.
To the best knowledge of the Directors, the Company has complied with
all applicable code provisions under the Corporate Governance Code
during the year ended 31 December 2021 and up to the date of this annual
report.

The Directors will use their best endeavors to procure the Company to
continue to comply with the Corporate Governance Code.

COMPLIANCE WITH THE MODEL CODE
FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS BY
DIRECTORS

The Company has adopted the Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding the securities
transactions by the Directors and the Group’s senior management who,
because of his/her office or employment, is likely to possess inside
information in relation to the Company or its securities.

All Directors have confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company,
that they have complied with the Model Code during the year ended 31
December 2021 and up to the date of this annual report. In addition, the
Company is not aware of any non-compliance of the Model Code by the
senior management of the Group during the year ended 31 December
2021 and up to date of this annual report.
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THE BOARD

1.

74

Responsibilities

The Board assumes the responsibility of leadership and control of
the Company, and supervises and approves significant decisions
regarding financial performance, strategic development objectives and
operations of the Company. The Board delegates to the management
authority and responsibility for the Company’s daily operations and
businesses management according to the Board’s instructions.
The Board has established various committees and has delegated
to the audit committee (the “Audit Committee”), the remuneration
committee (the “Remuneration Committee”), the nomination
committee (the “Nomination Committee”), the environmental, social
and governance committee (the “ESG Committee”) of the Board
(collectively, the “Board Committees”) various duties. All the Board
Committees perform their distinct roles in accordance with their
respective terms of reference.

All Directors shall at all times ensure that they carry out duties in good
faith, in compliance with applicable laws and regulations, and in the
interests of the Company and the Shareholders.

Board Composition
Executive Directors

Mr. Ge Yiyang (Chairman)

Mr. Leng Junfeng (Chief Executive Officer)
(appointed on 31 January 2022)

Mr. Liao Lujiang (resigned on 31 January 2022)

Mr. Chi Jingyong

Mr. Yang Yongwu

Independent Non-Executive Directors

Mr. Gu Jiong
Mr. Sun Bing
Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas

Save as disclosed in this annual report, to the best knowledge of the
Company, there are no financial, business, family, or other material/
relevant relationships among members of the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board at all times met
the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the appointment of at
least three independent non-executive Directors representing at least
one-third of the Board and at least one independent non-executive
Director with appropriate professional qualifications, or accounting or
related financial management expertise.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Company has received written annual confirmation from each of
our independent non-executive Directors of his or her independence
pursuant to the requirements of the Listing Rules. The Company
considers all the independent non-executive Directors to be
independent in accordance with the independence requirements set
out in the Listing Rules.

Appointment, Re-election and Removal of Directors

The procedures and process of appointment, re-election and removal
of the Directors are laid down in the Articles of Association. The
primary duties of the Nomination Committee include, but are not
limited to, reviewing the structure, size and composition of the Board,
assessing the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors and making recommendations to the Board on matters
relating to the appointment of the Directors.

Each of our executive Directors has entered into a service contract
with the Company. The term of their respective service contract is
three years and shall be subject to re-election as and when required
under the Articles of Association, until terminated in accordance with
the terms and conditions of the service contract or by either party
giving to the other not less than 30 days’ prior notice in writing.

Each of our independent non-executive Directors has entered into an
appointment letter with the Company. The term for their appointment
letters is three years and shall be subject to re-election as and
when required under the Articles of Association until terminated in
accordance with the terms and conditions of the appointment letter
or by either party giving to the other not less than three months’ prior
notice in writing.

In accordance with the Articles of Association, all of the Directors are
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years and
the Board has power from time to time and at any time to appoint any
new Director to fill a causal vacancy or as an addition to the Board.
Any Director so appointed shall hold office until the next following
annual general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for
re-election at that meeting.

Induction and Continuing Development for Directors

Each newly appointed Director receives formal, comprehensive and
tailored induction on the first occasion of his or her appointment,
so as to ensure that he or she understands the business and
operations of the Company and that he or she is fully aware of his or
her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing Rules and other
relevant regulatory requirements.
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The Directors are continually provided with information relating to the
developments in the legal and regulatory regime and the business and
market environments to facilitate the execution of their responsibilities.
Continuing briefings and professional development for the Directors
were arranged by the Company and its professional advisers.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, each Director has attended
training sessions arranged by the Company regarding the continuing
obligations of listed companies and its directors, disclosure obligations
of listed companies and update on the Listing Rules.

According to records provided by the Directors, a summary of training
received by the Directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 is as
follows:

EERERRHAREREREENEIAR
%i‘%&ﬁi‘%ﬂ% %ﬁ%’*)?&él’]ﬁﬂ AT Bh
HIETT cARANEEXBHECA/E
%zﬂiﬁif‘sﬁ?ﬁn &ii?%%fﬂ?& ¥

HZE2021F12A31HLFE S2FH
E2NBAARRLTHNFIRE  ZER
BRAREHELELMARREESENHENER
B EMARMNBREEB L ETMARNNE
3o

RiIFEERENTE  EFRHEE2021F
12A31 AL FEEGNIEIHELT

Name of Director Training*
EEnS B>

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Ge Yiyang

E-BraE

Mr. Leng Junfeng (appointed on 31 January 2022)
RIS (7202251 AB1BEZ )

Mr. Liao Lujiang (resigned on 31 January 2022)
BET 5o (5202241 A31 B B# )

Mr. Chi Jingyong

MIEBETE

Mr. Yang Yongwu

B E

Independent Non-Executive Directors
BUFHTES

Mr. Gu Jiong

FEAMSE A

Mr. Sun Bing

HiKksE A&

Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas

Each of the Directors has participated in training and reading materials
provided by the Company, which are related to notifiable transactions,
connected transactions, corporate governance and the continuing
obligations of listed companies and their directors.
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Attendance Record of Board Meetings EFxgomiEiitt

Number of Meetings and Directors’ Attendance CRABREEHEX

Code provision C.5.1 of the Corporate Governance Code prescribes EERTRIASTRAEXC.5.1EHRTE -
that at least four regular Board meetings should be held in each FrLARANATEHESEEE 220
year at approximately quarterly intervals with active participation of BEEAMA X EK&%(?% IR 2
majority of directors, either in person or through electronic means of HeR(ERRS A AR ©
communication.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Board has convened REZE2021F12A31BIEFE  EFgH
12 Board meetings and the Company has convened an annual general BR12AESEEBZ AR AIE EHKE
meeting. The Company has not held any other general meetings BFERE - XARIREE2021F12A31H
during the year ended 31 December 2021. Details of the attendance of LFFEETERBTEMNEMBRREAG - EF
members of the Board at the Board meetings and the annual general eRELREFESRIRIBAFRE 2
meeting are listed as follows: FOERENT ¢

Attended/Number of meeting(s) held HESBAE BITEHRRE

Name of Director Board meetings | Annual general meeting
EEHE Exgex BREBFRE

Executive Directors

HITES

Mr. Ge Yiyang 12/12 1/1
E—Bx4E

Mr. Leng Junfeng (appointed on 31 January 2022) N/A N/A
R 1B S & (7202261 A1 BEZ ) TNE R @M
Mr. Liao Lujiang (resigned on 31 January 2022) 12/12 11
BET 54 (7202291 A31 B BHT)

Mr. Chi Jingyong 12/12 1/1
AEBSEE

Mr. Yang Yongwu 12/12 11
BKR KA

Independent Non-Executive Directors

BYFHITES

Mr. Gu Jiong 12/12 1/1
AR 55

Mr. Sun Bing 12/12 1/1
RikEHE

Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas 12/12 1/1
B N
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Practices and Conduct of Meetings

Notices of regular Board meetings are served to all of the Directors
at least 14 days before the meetings to provide all Directors with an
opportunity to attend and include matters in the agenda. For other
Board and committee meetings, reasonable notices were generally
given.

Board papers together with all appropriate, complete and reliable
information were sent to all of the Directors at least three days before
each Board meeting or committee meeting to keep the Directors
apprised of the latest developments and financial position of the
Company and to enable them to make informed decisions. When
Directors or committee members are unable to attend a meeting,
they will be advised of the matters to be discussed and given an
opportunity to make their views known to the chairman of the Board or
the committee members prior to the meeting.

Each Director also had separate and independent access to the senior
management of the Company whenever necessary.

The senior management of the Company attend all regular Board
meetings and where necessary, other Board and committee meetings,
to advise on business developments, financial and accounting matters,
statutory and regulatory compliance, corporate governance and other
major aspects of the Company.

The joint company secretaries are responsible for taking and keeping
minutes of all Board meetings and committee meetings. Draft
minutes are normally circulated to the Directors for comment within a
reasonable time after each meeting and the final version is open for the
Directors’ inspection.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the chairman and the chief executive officer of the
Company have been separated as required by Code Provision C.2.1
of the Corporate Governance Code. For the year ended 31 December
2021, Mr. Ge Yiyang has served as the Chairman of the Company
and Mr. Liao Lujiang has served as the chief executive officer of the
Company. Mr. Liao Lujiang resigned as the chief executive officer
of the Company and Mr. Leng Junfeng was appointed as the chief
executive officer of the Company on 31 January 2022.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Company has established the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee, the Nomination Committee and the ESG Committee. Each
of these committees has specific written terms of reference which deal
clearly with their authority and duties. The chairmen of these committees
will report their findings and recommendations to the Board after each
meeting.

1. Audit Committee

The Company has established the Audit Committee with written terms
of reference in compliance with the Corporate Governance Code as
set out in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules. The primary duties of the
Audit Committee are to review and supervise our financial reporting
process and internal control system of the Company, oversee the audit
process, provide advice and comments to the Board and perform
other duties and responsibilities as may be assigned by the Board.

The Audit Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Fok
Ho Yin Thomas, Mr. Sun Bing and Mr. Gu Jiong, each of them is
an independent non-executive Director. The chairman of the Audit
Committee is Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas who possesses appropriate
accounting and related financial management expertise.

The primary duties of the Audit Committee comprise communication,
supervision and verification work for internal and external auditors of
the Company, including:

e to propose the appointment, re-appointment or replacement of
external auditor, to provide advice to the Board, to approve the
remuneration and engagement terms of external auditor;

e to review and monitor external auditor to see if it is independent
and objective and whether its auditing process is effective,
to discuss the nature, scope and method of auditing and the
relevant reporting responsibilities with the audit institution prior to
the commencement of audit work, to formulate and implement
policies for engaging external auditor to provide non-audit
services;

e to supervise the internal audit system of the Company and its
implementation, to review financial information of the Company
and its disclosure;
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e to be responsible for communication between internal auditors
and external auditors;

e to review the financial control, internal control and risk
management systems of the Company and conduct audits on
material connected transactions; and

e to perform other responsibilities required by laws, regulations,
rules, regulatory documents, Articles of Association and assigned
by the Board.

The Audit Committee convened two meetings during the year ended

31 December 2021. The table below sets forth the details of the
attendance at these meetings:

Name of committee member

o AEANEESENEINEEFE N Z H
4

o BRAATMBBEN  ABBER
RRERERLHEAMER ST
B R

1

o BITARE EAM - RA - BEEXH
HBERANREANEZSHIRD
HMEE -

REE2021F12A31BILEE » Bt£ 8
eHEMMNIEE - T REVNZEEE
HEEES

Attended/Number of
meeting(s) held

HESERE

ZEEREMA

Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas (Chairman)
BEERTE(EE)

Mr. Sun Bing

BRoksEa

Mr. Gu Jiong

EObe

In those meetings, the Audit Committee reviewed the Group’s policies
on corporate governance and discussed the same with the Board,
reviewed the financial reporting system, compliance procedures,
internal control and risk management systems and associated
processes, the effectiveness of the internal audit function and the re-
appointment of the external auditor and fulfilled duties as required
aforesaid. The Board had not deviated from any recommendation
given by the Audit Committee on the selection, appointment,
resignation or dismissal of external auditor.

The Audit Committee also reviewed (i) the annual results of the
Company and its subsidiaries for the year ended 31 December 2020
as well as the auditor’s report prepared by the external auditor relating
to accounting issues and major findings in course of audit; and (i) the
interim results of the Company and its subsidiaries for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 as well as the review report prepared by the
auditor relating to accounting issues and major findings in course of
review.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the remuneration of the auditor for
the year ended 31 December 2021 and has recommended the Board
to re-appoint Ernst & Young as the auditor of the Company for the year
ending 31 December 2022, subject to approval by the Shareholders at
the AGM.

Remuneration Committee

The Company has established the Remuneration Committee
with written terms of reference in compliance with the Corporate
Governance Code as set out in Appendix 14 of the Listing Rules.
The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to establish,
review and make recommendations to the Directors on our policy
and structure concerning remuneration of the Directors and senior
management and on the establishment of a formal and transparent
procedure for developing policies concerning such remuneration,
determine the terms of the specific remuneration package of each
executive Director and senior management and review and approve
performance-based remuneration by reference to corporate goals and
objectives.

The Remuneration Committee consists of five members, namely Mr.
Sun Bing, Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas, Mr. Gu Jiong, Mr. Leng Junfeng
and Mr. Yang Yongwu. The chairman of the Remuneration Committee
is Mr. Sun Bing.

The primary duties of the Remuneration Committee are to formulate
appraisal standards and conduct appraisals for Directors and
senior management of the Company, and to formulate and review
the remuneration policies and proposals for Directors and senior
management of the Company. The details are as follows:

e to make proposals and recommendations to the Board on
remuneration plans or proposals and establishment of formal
and transparent procedures for the formulation of the above
remuneration plans or proposals according to the primary scope,
responsibilities, importance of the management positions of
Directors and senior management members and the remuneration
standards of relevant positions in other relevant enterprises;

e to formulate the specific remuneration packages for all executive
Directors and senior management members, and to make
recommendation to the Board on remuneration of non-executive
Directors;
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e to review the performance of duties of Directors (non-independent
Directors) and senior management members of the Company and
to conduct annual performance appraisals on them; and

e to perform other responsibilities required by laws, regulations,
rules, regulatory documents, Articles of Association and assigned
by the Board.

The Remuneration Committee convened one meeting during the year

ended 31 December 2021. The table below sets forth the details of
the attendance at the meeting:

Name of committee member

ZEEREMSA

s ERARFEZCEBEVER) LSRE
BEERENERBERLEHETFE
BMEZ &

BITAR 2R - RA BEEXF -
HBERARNREAREEGRIRD
HMEE -

REZE2021F12A31HILFE  HFMEE
@%ﬂﬁ Rk TRIIZZEHE

Attended/Number of
meeting(s) held

HESBERE
EHTERNRE

Mr. Sun Bing (Chairman)

BRIKEE(EE)

Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas

EER A

Mr. Gu Jiong

Bk A

Mr. Leng Junfeng (appointed on 31 January 2022)
R 1B % & (1202261 A1 HEZ )

Mr. Liao Lujiang (resigned on 31 January 2022)
BT 5t A4 (7202241 A31 B B#E)

Mr. Yang Yongwu

B KA

The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee during
the year ended 31 December 2021 included, among others, reviewing
and making recommendation to the Board of the remuneration and
other benefits paid by the Company to the Directors and the senior
management of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021
and other related matters.

Details of the Directors’ remuneration are set out in note 8 to the
Financial Statements. In addition, the remuneration payable to the
senior management of the Company (who are not the Directors) by
band for the year ended 31 December 2021 is set out in the section
headed “Corporate Governance Report — Remuneration of Senior
Management” of this annual report.
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Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee consists of five members, namely Mr. Ge
Yiyang, Mr. Yang Yongwu, Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas, Mr. Sun Bing and
Mr. Gu Jiong. The chairman of the Nomination Committee is Mr. Ge
Yiyang.

The primary duties of the Nomination Committee of the Company
comprise the selection and recommendation of candidates, election
criteria and procedures for appointments of Directors and senior
management members of the Company. The details are as follows:

e to make recommendation to the Board about the size and
composition of the Board according to the operating activities,
size of assets and shareholding structure of the Company;

e to conduct research on the selection criteria, procedure and
methods for Directors and senior management members and
submit to the Board for consideration;

e to screen the candidates for Directors and senior management
members and make recommendations;

e to conduct comprehensive assessment on the skills, knowledge
and experience of Directors and senior management members,
and to review the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

e to perform other responsibilities required by laws, regulations,
rules, regulatory documents, Articles of Association and assigned
by the Board.
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The Nomination Committee convened one meeting during the year
ended 31 December 2021. The table below sets forth the details of
the attendance at the meeting:

Name of committee member

ZEEHENS

REE2021F12A31BILEE  IRZ £ 8
eHEARA—AgE TRIBIZTZHE
FEFEIS -

Attended/Number of
meeting(s) held

HESERE
ETEBRRHE

Mr. Ge Yiyang (Chairman)
E—BrE(EE)

Mr. Yang Yongwu

B KL

Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas
Mr. Sun Bing

BRiKEAE

Mr. Gu Jiong

JEER 55 A

The work performed by the Nomination Committee during the
year ended 31 December 2021 included, among others, reviewing
the structure, size and composition of the Board, assessing the
independence of independent non-executive Directors and making
recommendation to the Board on the re-election of the retiring
Directors.

Where vacancies on the Board arise, the Nomination Committee
will carry out the selection process by making reference to the skills,
experience, professional knowledge, personal integrity and time
commitments of the proposed candidates, the Company’s needs and
other relevant statutory requirements and regulations.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy was approved and adopted by the Board
on 28 March 2019 for evaluating and selecting any candidate for
directorship. The Nomination Committee would consider the following
criteria, including, among other things, character and integrity,
qualifications (cultural and educational background, professional
qualifications, skills, knowledge and experience and diversity aspects
under the Board Diversity Policy), any potential contributions the
candidate can bring to the Board in terms of qualifications, skKills,
experience, independence and diversity, and willingness and ability to
devote adequate time to discharge duties as a member of the Board
and/or Board committee(s).
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The Nomination Committee and/or the Board should, upon receipt
of the proposal on appointment of new Director and the biographical
information (or relevant details) of the candidate, evaluate such
candidate based on the criteria as set out above to determine
whether such candidate is qualified for directorship. The Nomination
Committee should then recommend to the Board to appoint the
appropriate candidate for directorship with a ranking of the candidates
(if applicable) by order of preference based on the needs of the
Company and reference check of each candidate.

Board Diversity Policy

In order to enhance the effectiveness of the Board and to maintain the
high standard of corporate governance, the Company has adopted
the board diversity policy which sets out the objective and approach
to achieve and maintain diversity of the Board. Pursuant to the
board diversity policy, the Company seeks to achieve Board diversity
through the consideration of a number of factors when selecting
the candidates to the Board, including but not limited to gender,
skills, age, professional experience, knowledge, cultural, education
background, ethnicity and length of service. The ultimate decision of
the appointment will be based on merit and the contribution which the
selected candidates will bring to the Board.

The Directors have a balanced mix of knowledge and skills, including
overall management and strategic development, human resources,
information technology, accounting and financial management, risk
management, corporate governance and evaluation of properties and
assets. They obtained degrees in various majors including business
administration, computer science, public administration, architectural
engineering, international real estate, accounting and financial
management. The Board has three independent non-executive
Directors with different industry backgrounds, representing more than
one third of the members of the Board. Furthermore, the Board has a
wide range of age, ranging from 38 years old to 55 years old. Taking
into account our existing business model and specific needs as well
as the different background of our Directors, the composition of the
Board satisfies our board diversity policy.

Our Nomination Committee is responsible for ensuring the diversity of
our Board members. Our Nomination Committee will review the board
diversity policy from time to time to ensure its continued effectiveness
and the Company will disclose in its corporate governance report
about the implementation of the board diversity policy on an annual
basis.
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4. ESG Committee

The Company established an ESG committee with written terms of
reference in compliance with the Listing Rules on 18 June 2021.

The ESG Committee consists of three members, namely Mr. Gu Jiong,
Mr. Leng Junfeng and Mr. Yang Yongwu. The chairman of the ESG
Committee is Mr. Gu Jiong.

The principal duties of the ESG Committee include, among other
things: (i) formulating and reviewing the Group’s environmental,
social and governance (‘ESG”) liabilities, vision, strategies, structure,
principles and policies; (i) monitoring the channels and means of
communication with the Group’s stakeholders; (iii) reviewing key ESG
trends and related risks and opportunities, and assess the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s ESG structure and business model;
(iv) overseeing the Group’s sustainability performance; (v) overseeing
the funding of the initiatives on corporate social responsibilities; and (vi)
reviewing and recommending to the Board for approval of the annual
ESG report of the Company.

The ESG Committee convened one meeting during the year ended

31 December 2021. The table below sets forth the details of the
attendance at the meeting:

Name of committee member

ESGZEE

AR AR 2021 ¢6H 18 H B IR - #R AR
SYVESGZEE  UHlETHEmMBESAE -

ESGZE g =RKEMAK  NEML
£ REBERERBKREE - ESGER R
SIFEREMNEE -

ESGZEEMTERERE(HFBERE)()
SIERBRIAEENIRE g kER
([ESGNEMF - s - Bl - &8 - RAIR
BRER (i) BE R AN SE (B BA H I 2 AR BE 35 A008
BRENFR () FRESGHEEZBE I
&ﬁf%ﬂ R AIHEE - W A B /ESG

EEREFEAZSTREARBR  (VEE
K'EIE’JT?F?%)E%:ZEE (VBB SER
TPEMSETIIENLEE T 0 RV)EH
NAFHFEESGRE  TEZEEER
B o

%Eﬁzﬁzomimﬂeﬂ HIEFE  ESGZ B
gREA—RgE TRV ZEEHL
FEFEIE -

Attended/Number of
meeting(s) held

HESBERE

ZEENERR

Mr. Gu Jiong (Chairman)

BRI & (F )

Mr. Leng Junfeng (appointed on 31 January 2022)
R 1B S & (7202261 A1 BEZ )

Mr. Liao Lujiang (resigned on 31 January 2022)
BET 54 (7202291 A31 A BHT)

Mr. Yang Yongwu

KR S
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DIVIDEND POLICY

The dividend policy of the Company, adopted by the Board on 28 March
2019, is set out as follows:

Payment of dividends by the Company is also subject to any restrictions
under the Companies Law of Cayman Islands and the memorandum and
articles of association of the Company. The Board will review the dividend
policy as appropriate from time to time. The declaration and payment of
dividends shall be determined at the sole discretion of the Board. The
Board shall also take into account the following factors when considering
whether to propose dividends and determining the dividend amount:

1. the Group’s actual and expected financial performance;

2. retained earnings and distributable reserves of the Company and each
of the members of the Group;

3. the Group’s working capital requirements, capital expenditure
requirements and future expansion plans;

4. the Group’s liquidity position;

5. contractual restrictions on the payment of dividends by the Company
to the Shareholders or by the Company’s subsidiaries to the Company;

6. taxation considerations;
7. general economic conditions, business cycle of the Group’s business
and other internal or external factors that may have an impact on the

business or financial performance and position of the Group; and

8. other factors that the Board deems relevant.
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REMUNERATION OF SENIOR
MANAGEMENT

The remuneration payable to the senior management of the Company (who
are not the Directors) for the year ended 31 December 2021 is shown in
the following table by band:

Remuneration band

= AR FE Y

HE2021F12A31B I FERN TR S
EEEBWHER)NFMEZSEHA TRIR

Number of individual (s)

A A% 5 AE
Nil to HK$1,000,000 Z % 1,000,000/ 7T 4
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ T2 1,500,000/ 7T 3
HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T & 4,500,000/ 7T 1
8
Ag¢ 3o A S o
MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES EFRXZHEESTH
TRANSACTIONS
The Company has adopted the Model Code. Specific enquiries have been ~ ANA BB HMIZESTE] - ARFRIEALEES
made to all the Directors and the Directors have confirmed that they have  #EH B 8&2 3 ﬁﬁi%iﬁaﬁﬁ?ﬂﬁ AE 22021

complied with the Model Code for the year ended 31 December 2021.

The Company’s employees, who are likely to be in possession of inside
information of the Company, have also been subject to the Model Code for
securities transactions. No incident of non-compliance of the Model Code
by the Company’s employees was noted by the Company for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for preparing the financial
statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021. The
Board is responsible for presenting a balanced, clear and understandable
assessment of annual and interim reports, inside information announcements
and other financial disclosures required by the Listing Rules and other
regulatory requirements.

88 DAFA PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED XAk =SEMHAR AT

F12A31H L FE—HETEZESF o

AR EEARNRANEHENARAFRE NAEE
THEHERXHRESTA - REE2021F12H31
HIEFE  ARARIWEBREAQREETEST
TZAETRI E M o

ESETHMBERBRNEE

EERREGEAREAQAIEE2021F12A4
IR FEMBERE E2eaaHFERF
HE NEEE AT RIZEMHARREME
EERHAENEMYBEEEL TS - JBWim
IR R AT o



CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a net loss
of RMB428,771,000. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total bank
and other borrowings and senior notes amounted to RMB12,648,506,000,
out of which RMB6,739,984,000 will be due for repayment within the
next twelve months, while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB1,051,775,000. Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group did
not repay a principal of US$40,360,000 (equivalent to RMB257,323,000)
and interest of US$22,275,000 (equivalent to RMB142,019,000) for certain
senior notes due in January and March 2022 respectively. On 1 April
2022, the Group received the acceleration notices from the holders of at
least 25% in an aggregate principal amount of the senior notes due in July
2022 and April 2023 respectively. As a result, senior notes and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with an aggregate principal amount
of RMB4,189,720,000 became default or cross-default, out of which
RMB3,307,425,000 were repayable on demand. A winding-up petition was
filed by certain senior notes holders against the Company and an indirectly
wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company respectively on 18 February
2022.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties which
may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. In view of such circumstances, the directors of the Company
have undertaken a number of plans and measures to improve the Group’s
liquidity and financial position, including:

(i)  The Group has appointed financial and legal advisers to assist it in a
holistic restructuring of its senior notes, in order to reach a consensual
solution with all the stakeholders as soon as practical;

(i) The Group has appointed legal counsels in relation to the winding-up
petitions;

(i) The Group has been actively negotiating with the Group’s existing
lenders to seek renewal or extension for repayment of the Group’s
bank and other borrowings;

(iv) The Group will continue to actively communicate with banks to
timely secure relevant project development loans for qualified project
development;
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(v) The Group will continue to seek other alternative financing and
borrowings to finance the settlement of its existing financial obligations
and future operating and capital expenditures;

(vi) The Group has prepared a business strategy plan mainly focusing on
the acceleration of the sales of properties;

(vi) The Group has implemented measures to speed up the collection
of outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and
expenses; and

(viii) The Group will continue to seek suitable opportunities to dispose of its
equity interests in certain project development companies in order to
generate additional cash inflows.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into account
the above plans and measures, the Group will have sufficient working
capital to finance its operations and meet its financial obligations as and
when they fall due within the following twelve months from 31 December
2021. Accordingly, the directors of the Company are satisfied that it is
appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial statements of the Group
for the year ended 31 December 2021 on a going concern basis.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern, adjustments
may have to be made to write down the carrying values of assets to their
recoverable amounts, to provide for any further liabilities which might arise,
and to reclassify non-current assets and non-current liabilities as current
assets and current liabilities, respectively. The effect of these adjustments
has not been reflected in the consolidated financial statements.

Save as disclosed above, the Directors confirm that, to the best of their
knowledge, information and belief, having made all reasonable enquiries,
they are not aware of any material uncertainties relating to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.

The senior management of the Company has provided such explanation
and information to the Board as necessary to enable the Board to carry
out an informed assessment of the financial information and position of
the Company in order to put forward such information to the Board for
approval.
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DISCLAIMER OF OPINION ISSUED BY THE
INDEPENDENT AUDITOR

As a result of the matters discussed in the section headed “DIRECTORS’
RESPONSIBILITIES FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING”, the Group’s financial
conditions, together with the other matters as described in note 2.1 to
the consolidated financial statements, indicate the material uncertainties
relating to going concern, the Company’s auditor does not express an
opinion on the consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2021. The Independent Auditor’s Report is contained
in pages 113 to 116 of this annual report.

The Directors have been undertaking measures to improve the Group’s
liquidity and financial position (collectively, the “Measures”), which are
set out in the section headed “DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
FINANCIAL REPORTING” above or in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial
statements.

Pending the Company’s formal appointment of the auditor for its
consolidated financial statements for the year ending 31 December
2022, the Company’s auditor has indicated to the Company that whether
the multiple uncertainties relating to going concern can be adequately
addressed depends on the implementation of the Measures. Upon formal
appointment of auditors for its consolidated financial statements for
the year ending 31 December 2022, the Company will actively engage
and update the Company’s appointed auditor on the progress of the
implementation of the Measures.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the disclaimer of opinion and also
the Board’s position and its view as well as the Measures to address the
related issue. The Audit Committee respects the independent judgment of
the Company’s auditor in relation to the disclaimer of opinion. The Audit
Committee is in agreement with the Board and the management in relation
to the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, and in particular
the Measures to be implemented by the Group. The Audit Committee is
of the view that the Board should continue its efforts in implementing the
Measures with the intention of mitigating the Group’s liquidity pressure and
removing the disclaimer of opinion.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR AND AUDITOR’S
REMUNERATION

The statement of the external auditor of the Company about their reporting
responsibilities for the financial statements is set out under the section
headed “Independent Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.
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The external auditor of the Company will be invited to attend the
annual general meeting to answer questions about the conduct of the
audit, the preparation and content of the auditor’s report and auditor’s
independence.

For the year ended 31 December 2021, an analysis of the fee paid/payable
to the external auditor of the Company in respect of audit services and
non-audit services is set out as follows:

Service Category

BR3% 8 5

NSRS Cop NI ST R -
NEIEBRES TE  FEERENRHELA
BIA KRB H B 1 S -

HE2021F12A318 1L FE - BB RIE M IE
EBitRBMEN B AQAGINBET AN E
DIWTWR ¢

Fees Paid/Payable
e ENER
RMB’000

AR¥T T

Audit services ZEaT IR 2,950
Other assurance services £ th 1% 75 AR 7% 3,400
Non-audit services 3FZE &R 334

6,684

JOINT COMPANY SECRETARIES

The joint company secretaries of the Company are Mr. Wong Chin Hung
and Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty. Ms. So Shuk Yi Betty, a vice president of
SWCS Corporate Services Group (Hong Kong) Limited (an external service
provider), fulfils the qualification requirements laid down in the Listing Rules.
Mr. Wong Chin Hung is the primary corporate contact person of Ms. So
Shuk Yi Betty, the joint company secretary.

Biographical details of the joint company secretaries are set out under
“Directors and Senior Management” section in this annual report. In
compliance with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules, each of the joint company
secretaries has undertaken no less than 15 hours of relevant professional
training during the year ended 31 December 2021.

GOING CONCERN

The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in the Group will be
able to continue as a going concern while maximizing the return to the
Shareholders through the optimization of the debt and equity balance.

Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’ Responsibilities For Financial
Reporting” above, there are no material uncertainties relating to events
or conditions that cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to
continue as a going concern.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

The Directors acknowledge their responsibilities for preparing all information
and representations contained in the consolidated financial statements of
the Company for the year ended 31 December 2021 which give a true and
fair view of the state of affairs of the Company and of the results and cash
flows for the relevant period. The Directors consider that the consolidated
financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December
2021 have been prepared in conformity with all applicable accounting
standards and requirements and reflect amounts that are based on the
best estimates and reasonable, informed and prudent judgment of the
Board and the management. Save as disclosed in the section “Directors’
Responsibilities For Financial Reporting” above, the Directors are not aware
of any material uncertainties relating to events or conditions which may
cast significant doubt upon the Company’s ability to continue as a going
concern. Accordingly, the Directors have prepared the financial statements
of the Company on a going concern basis. The statements of the auditor of
the Company about its reporting responsibility on the consolidated financial
statements of the Company are set out in the section headed “Independent
Auditor’s Report” in this annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

RISK MANAGEMENT

The Board is responsible for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Company and for reviewing their effectiveness. Such
systems are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure
to achieve business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and not
absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The management of the Group updates and reports the key risk areas,
including any remedial plans, if deemed necessary or appropriate, to the
Audit Committee for consideration. The identified key risk areas and the
appropriate risk mitigation strategies were reviewed and commented by
the Board at its meeting annually.
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The Board, through the Audit Committee, conducted review of both design
and implementation effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group for the year ended 31 December 2021,
covering all material controls, including financial, operational and compliance
controls, with a view to ensuring that resources, staff qualifications and
experience, training programmes and budget of the Group’s accounting,
internal audit and financial reporting functions are adequate. In this respect,
the Audit Committee communicates any material issues to the Board.

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group had performed
internal control review and assessed the effectiveness of the Group’s
risk management and internal control systems. The results of the review
and assessment were reported to the Audit Committee and the Board.
Moreover, improvements in internal control and risk management measures
to enhance the risk management and internal control systems of the Group
and mitigate risks of the Group were adopted by the Board. Based on
the recommendations as well as the comments of the Audit Committee,
the Board considered the internal control and risk management systems
effective and adequate.

RISK CONTROL MECHANISM

The Company recognizes that risk management is critical to the success
of any property developer in the PRC. Key operational risks that the
Company face include changes in general market conditions and the
regulatory environment of the PRC property market, availability of suitable
land sites for developments at commercially acceptable prices, local
economic environment, expansion risks relating to entering into new cities
or geographic regions, ability to timely complete our construction projects
with sound quality, available financing to support our growth, competition
from other property developers and our ability to promote and sell our
properties in a timely fashion.

In order to meet these challenges, the Company has adopted a series
of internal control policies, procedures and plans that are designed to
reasonably assure effective and efficient operations, reliable financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations. See
“Directors’ Report — Principal Risks and Uncertainties” for a discussion
of various risks and uncertainties the Company faces. In addition, the
Company also faces various market risks. In particular, the Company is
exposed to credit, liquidity, interest rate and currency risks that arise in the
normal course of our business. See note 44 to the financial statements of
the Group for a discussion of these market risks.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

In order to ensure the effective implementation of such internal control
policies, the Company has adopted various on-going measures, including
the following:

e The Board of Directors is responsible for and has general powers over
the management and conduct of the business of the Company. Any
significant business decision involving material risks, such as decisions
to expand into new geographic regions or to incur significant corporate
finance transactions, is reviewed, analyzed and approved at the Board
level to ensure a thorough examination of the associated risks at our
highest corporate governance body.

e Our management team at the headquarter level is in charge of the
daily business operations and risk monitoring of the Company, and is
responsible for the supervision of the respective fields of operations on
a daily basis as well as the supervision and approval of any material
business decisions of our city and project companies. We adopt a
centralized approach to review and approve the business plan and
structure. Our financial and accounting matters are directly controlled
and reviewed at our headquarters level to ensure the consistency
and accuracy. Our cost management department centralizes major
procurement and construction contracts entered into to monitor
the risks associated with such contracts, and also our internal
audit function and legal affairs department to ensure regulatory
and contractual compliance. Our IT system facilitates the above
management processes.

e Qur final site selection decisions are made by our investment
committee. This committee is specifically formed to review and
approve such business development and consists of our Chairman of
the Board of Directors, the chief executive officer fo the Group and the
vice presidents of relevant departments at the headquarters level.

e For particular operational and market risks, control measures are
adopted at an operational level. For example, the Company controls
major construction risk by engaging qualified construction contractors
with strict contractual requirements and reputable independent third-
party project supervisory companies while maintaining daily quality
control supervision.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

TEERHRE @

e The Company enforces strict control and accountability policies
and manuals at an individual employee level and conducts ongoing
training. Our policies and manuals are updated consistently based on
our operational needs. The Company seeks to maintain a corporate
culture with a high level of responsibility, integrity and reliability to
manage our operational and market risks.

e Qur internal audit function performs regular reviews on the design and
implementation of the internal controls and follows through remediation
of deficiencies identified, the details of which are set out above.

INTERNAL CONTROL

The internal control system is designed to provide reasonable and
adequate assurance for effective and efficient operations, reliable financial
reporting and compliance with applicable laws and regulations.

Our internal control system covers all major aspects of our operations,
including, among others, sales, procurement, asset management,
budgeting and accounting processes. To effectively implement such
processes, the Company has a set of comprehensive policies and
guidelines which set out details regarding the internal control standards,
segregation of responsibilities, approval procedures and personnel
accountability in each aspect. The Company also carries out regular
internal assessments and training to ensure our employees are equipped
with sufficient knowledge on such policies and guidelines.

The Board had conducted an annual review of the Group’s risk
management and internal control systems for the year ended 31 December
2021 and considered them effective and adequate.

INFORMATION DISCLOSURE

The Company discloses information in compliance with the Listing
Rules and other applicable laws, and publishes periodic reports and
announcements to the public in accordance with relevant laws and
regulations. In particular, the Company has put in place a robust
framework for the disclosure of inside information in compliance with the
Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong)
(“SFO”). The framework sets out the procedures and internal controls for
the handling and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner
so as to allow all the stakeholders to apprehend the latest position of the
Company. The framework and its effectiveness are subject to review by the
Board on a regular basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

INTERNAL AUDIT

The Company has an internal audit function. The primary role of the
internal audit function is to help the Board and the senior management
of the Company to protect the assets, reputation and sustainability of the
Company. The internal audit function provides independent and objective
assurance as to whether the design and operational effectiveness of the
Company’s framework of risk management, control and governance
processes, as designed and represented by the Company’s management,
is adequate. The internal audit function of the Company is independent of
the risk management and internal control systems of the Company.

Results of audit work together with an assessment of the overall risk
management and control framework are reported to the Audit Committee
as appropriate. The internal audit function also reviews the Company’s
management’s action plans in relation to audit findings and verifies the
adequacy and effectiveness of the mitigating controls before formally
closing the issue.

SHAREHOLDERS

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS AND
INVESTORS

The Company is committed to pursuing active dialogue with Shareholders
as well as to provide timely disclosure of information concerning the
Company’s material developments to its Shareholders, investors and other
stakeholders.

Annual general meeting of the Company serves as an effective forum for
communication between the Shareholders and the Board. Notice of annual
general meeting together with the meeting materials will be despatched to
all Shareholders not less than 21 days and not less than 20 clear business
days before the annual general meeting. As one of the measures to
safeguard the Shareholders’ interests and rights, separate resolutions will
be proposed at general meetings on each substantial issue, including the
election of individual Directors, for Shareholders’ consideration and voting.
In addition, the Company regards annual general meeting as an important
event, and all Directors, the chairmen of all Board Committees, senior
management and external auditor will attend the annual general meeting
of the Company to address Shareholders’ inquiries. If the chairmen of the
Board or each Board Committee fail to attend the meeting, then other
members of each Board Committee will be invited to attend the annual
general meeting and answer Shareholders’ inquiries thereat. All resolutions
proposed at general meetings will be voted by poll. The voting results will
be posted on the websites of the Stock Exchange (www.hkexnews.hk) and
the Company (www.dafaland.com) on the same day of the relevant general
meetings.
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To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website
(www.dafaland.com), where the latest information and updates on its
business operation and development, corporate governance practice,
contact information of investor relations and other information are published
for the public’s access.

PROCEDURES FOR SHAREHOLDERS TO
CONVENE AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL
MEETING

In accordance with article 64 of the Articles of Association of the Company,
any one or more Shareholders holding at the date of deposit of the
requisition not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital of the Company
carrying the right of voting at the general meetings of the Company shall at
all times have the rights, by written requisition to the Board or the company
secretary of the Company, to require an extraordinary general meeting
to be called by the Board for the transaction of any business specified in
such requisition; and such meeting shall be held within two months after
the deposit of such requisition. If within 21 days of such deposit the Board
fails to process to convene such meeting, the requisitionist(s) himself
(themselves) may do so in the same manner, and all reasonable expenses
incurred by the requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall
be reimbursed to the requisitionist(s) by the Company.

PROCEDURES FOR PUTTING FORWARD
PROPOSALS AT GENERAL MEETINGS

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to propose new resolutions
at the general meetings under the Articles of Association of the Company
and the Cayman Islands Companies Law. However, Shareholders
who wish to propose resolutions may follow article 64 of the Articles of
Association of the Company for requisitioning an extraordinary general
meeting and including a resolution at such meeting. The requirements and
procedures of article 64 are set out above.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT (continued)

PROCEDURES FOR DIRECTING
SHAREHOLDERS’ ENQUIRIES TO THE
BOARD

Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries and concerns to the
Board in writing through the investor relations, the contact details of which
are as follows:

Address: Rooms 2805-06
28/F, Bank of America Tower
12 Harcourt Road, Central
Hong Kong

Email: ir@dafaland.com

AMENDMENT TO THE MEMORANDUM
AND ARTICLES OF ASSOCIATIONS

For the year ended 31 December 2021, there has not been any change in
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS
EmilE

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES, UNDERLYING SHARES AND
DEBENTURES OF THE COMPANY OR ITS
ASSOCIATED CORPORATIONS

As at 31 December 2021, the interests and short positions of the Directors
and the chief executives of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares
and debentures of the Company or its associated corporation (within the
meaning of Part XV of the SFO), which were required to be entered in
the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 352 of the SFO,
or which were otherwise required, to be notified to the Company and the
Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code, are set out below:

Interests in Shares of the Company

Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity

EEME
Mr. Ge Yiyang®@®

EEME 54

Interest of concert parties/founder
of a discretionary trust who can
influence how the trustee exercises
his discretion

B35 —BUITEA TR AR EXTA
AT K IS R BB (55T
IDAVIUN
Notes:

(1) “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

(2) Pursuant to the Deed of Act-in-concert, each of the Ultimate Controlling
Shareholders (namely, Mr. Ge Hekai (father of Mr. Ge Yiyang), Ms. Jin Linyin
(mother of Mr. Ge Yiyang), Mr. Ge Heming (uncle of Mr. Ge Yiyang) and Mr. Ge
Yiyang) had agreed to, consult each other and reach a unanimous consensus
among themselves on such matters being the subject matters of any
shareholders’ resolution, prior to putting forward such resolution to be passed
at any shareholders’ meeting of the members of our Group or their respective
predecessors during the period when they (by themselves or together with their
associates) remain in control of our Group and they have confirmed that they
have historically voted on such resolutions in the same way since 1 January
2015 or the date when they became interested in any member of our Group,
whichever is earlier.
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Number of Shares
or underlying Shares
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R ER  REIEETAREESTE
MAR B MR TS AR

RARQFRMDOERS

Approximate
percentage of

interested” shareholding

BEREZHRORN

HERGEEM
600,000,000 (L)

BOKRED L
72.47%

GEE
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

As such, each of the Ultimate Controlling Shareholders together with their
respective holding companies (being Splendid Sun Limited, Sound Limited,
Shade (BVI) Limited, Glorious Villa Limited and He Hong Limited) are all deemed
to be interested in the total Shares directly and indirectly held by Splendid
Sun Limited, Sound Limited, Shade (BVI) Limited, Glorious Villa Limited and
He Hong Limited. Therefore, Mr. Ge Yiyang is deemed to have interest in the
Shares held by Splendid Sun Limited, Glorious Villa Limited and He Hong
Limited for the purpose of Part XV of the SFO.

Mr. Ge Yiyang transferred the entire issued share capital of Glorious Villa
Limited to Grandeur Home Limited on 26 August 2020. Grandeur Home Limited
is wholly owned by a trust established in Cayman Islands by Mr. Ge Yiyang (as
settlor) for the benefit of his family members. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. indirectly held
120,000,000 Shares in the capacity of trustee of such trust. Therefore, Mr. Ge
Yiyang is deemed to have interest in such Shares held in trust for the purpose
of Part XV of the SFO.

Interests in Associated Corporations

©)

EaEE e

it SERERKRRERESENERAD
7] (BPSplendid Sun Limited * Sound Limited
Shade (BVI) Limited ~ Glorious Villa Limited }&
He Hong Limited) ¥4 18 & # & Splendid Sun
Limited * Sound Limited * Shade (BVI) Limited -
Glorious Villa Limited&He Hong Limited & #% &Fﬁ
BERANDERMDER - At - ABHFRBAE
PIEXVERT & “—Hﬁf‘ﬁi?&ﬁ%%&ﬁsmendld
Sun Limited + Glorious Villa Limited }2He Hong
Limited 5 A AR (7 )1 5 o

B — 15 £ M2020%F8 A26 H #5Glorious Villa
Limited#) 2 #F 2 217 A% N85 3% F Grandeur Home
Limited ° Grandeur Home Limited/d8 & — B35 4
(EAZRANRHASHERYNETUERRKE
MEABSZHAN)ZEWS - TMF (Cayman) Ltd.JA
ZEEAM B D EE B %ZEFE120,000, oooﬁﬁﬁﬁ
7o Bt - EHFRKBAEKRHIEXVHBME -
—H%?ﬁi%&%ﬁz%ﬁés%zuﬂ%ﬁmﬁFéﬁﬂxfﬁqﬂ%ﬁﬁ
HE o

MBS EE R ER

Approximate

Name of associated percentage
Name of Director Nature of Interest/Capacity corporation of shareholding
EEgE REEME 515 HEEE A8 BRAERES L
Mr. Ge Yiyang Beneficial interest Glorious Villa Limited™@ 100%

R Pt EaiEn
Interest in controlled corporation He Hong Limited™ 21%

R EE
Notes: B3

)

Pursuant to the Deed of Acting-in-Concert, each of the ultimate controlling
shareholders had agreed to, consult each other and reach a unanimous
consensus among themselves on such matters being the subject matters
of any Shareholders’ resolution, prior to putting forward such resolution to
be passed at any Shareholders’ meeting of the members of the Group or
their respective predecessors during the period when they (by themselves or
together with their associates) remain in control of the Group and they have
confirmed that they have historically voted on such resolutions in the same way
since 1 January 2015 or the date when they became interested in any member
of the Group, whichever is earlier.

As such, Glorious Villa Limited, together with Splendid Sun Limited, Sound
Limited, Shade (BVI) Limited and He Hong Limited controlled 72.47% of the
voting power at general meetings of the Company as at 31 December 2021
and therefore Glorious Villa Limited, Splendid Sun Limited, Sound Limited,
Shade (BVI) Limited and He Hong Limited are associated corporations of the
Company.

M

BE—STEHRE  SRERERBRREEREEE
(EARFSEEEBEA) RAE %‘JZSE@HHFEEHE
EEAREIAEREAEBKEARRESTEN
AT & AT R A 2 @B E‘fiui#/?% ERTE
FEMH L ETEREGEI KL ER—BER
BHEHRBEB2015F1A1HNERAEE
ERKEARBE RSB HUUARESR AE) R
ERAETRARZERERETIRE -

E It - 72021128318 + Glorious Villa Limited
i#[FSplendid Sun Limited * Sound Limited -
Shade (BVI) LimitedxHe Hong LimitediA AR A
AR ARG EIEHI72.47% M E M - Bt -
Glorious Villa Limited * Splendid Sun Limited -
Sound Limited + Shade (BVI) Limited &zHe Hong
Limited5 & 48 2 RIAREE A E -
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continueq)

BRI E e

(2) Mr. Ge Yiyang transferred the entire issued share capital of Glorious Villa
Limited to Grandeur Home Limited on 26 August 2020. Grandeur Home Limited
is wholly owned by a trust established in Cayman Islands by Mr. Ge Yiyang (as
settlor) for the benefit of his family members. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. indirectly held
120,000,000 Shares in the capacity of trustee of such trust. Therefore, Mr. Ge
Yiyang is deemed to have interest in such Shares held in trust for the purpose
of Part XV of the SFO.

Interests in Debentures of the Company

Nature of Interest

Name of Director

EEfE FEEME
Mr. Ge Yiyang Beneficial interest (note)
E—GxE Bt n (5

Note:

Mr. Ge Yiyang held US$2.7 million of the July 2020 Notes with an aggregate
principal amount of US$360 million, which are listed on the Stock Exchange.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, none of the Directors
and chief executives of the Company had any interests or short positions
in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures of the Company or its
associated corporations, recorded in the register required to be kept by the
Company under section 352 of the SFO or required to be notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS’
INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
THE SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES
OF THE COMPANY

So far as is known to the Company, as at 31 December 2021, as recorded
in the register required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of
the SFO, the following persons, other than a Director or chief executive of
the Company, had an interest of 5% or more in the Shares or underlying
Shares:

Name of Shareholders Nature of Interest/Capacity

BRREE LB EREE 545

EaEE e

FTERRRAEQF R RAEE
REONERRKXE

BARRXRFTA » R2021F 128318 » HOAR
RIIREES RS EHIEI36 I ATENERL
MErE - THALT(RARESHESITHA
BRRIN IR AR R B 5% A L

s

Ik

B

He Hong Limited Beneficial interest

Interest of concert parties!”
—BATE)A TR0

Splendid Sun Limited Beneficial interest
BamEn
Interest of controlled corporation
RiEHDEE R
Interest of concert parties™

—BTE) A TR
Mr. Ge Hekai Interest of controlled corporation
B kE RAEHEE S
Interest of concert parties™
—BITE) A TR
Ms. Zhu Lan Interest of spouse®
KEZ L BB =@
Glorious Villa Limited Beneficial interest

Number of Shares Approximate
or underlying Shares percentage of
interested® shareholding
EERZNRMOR
HEARGEB® BREREI L
600,000,000 (L) 72.47%
600,000,000 (L) 72.47%
600,000,000 (L) 72.47%
600,000,000 (L) 72.47%
600,000,000 (L) 72.47%

BEniEns

Interest of controlled corporation
RiEwDEE R

Interest of concert parties®”
—BATEIA TR
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continueq)

BRI E e

Name of Shareholders

BREREE LB

Mr. Ge Yiyang
BE-BrAE

Ms. Yang Yaqi
BHEH £

Shade (BVI) Limited

Ms. Jin Linyin
eMELL

Sound Limited

Mr. Ge Heming
BREEAE

Ms. Wu Xiaolin
REMLZ+

Grandeur Home Limited

TMF (Cayman) Ltd.

Number of Shares
or underlying Shares
Nature of Interest/Capacity interested®

BEESNRON

EEME 54

Interest of concert parties™”
—BITEA RO

Founder of a discretionary trust

who can influence how the trustee

exercises his discretion®

AR EXEAMAITEERISED

TBIERERILA®

Interest of spouse®

FoiB e

Interest of controlled corporation
RiEHDEE R
Interest of concert parties®”

—HITPALHERD

Interest of controlled corporation
RiEtDEEE R
Interest of concert parties™”

—HITBALERD

Interest of controlled corporation
RiEtDEEE R
Interest of concert parties”

—HATEIA LA

Interest of controlled corporation
RiEHDEEE R
Interest of concert parties”

—HITBALERD

Interest of spouse®

(¥ el

Interest of controlled corporation®
REHDEE RS

Trustee®
ZFEAO
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HERGOEE®
600,000,000 (L)

600,000,000 (L)

600,000,000 (L)

600,000,000 (L)

600,000,000 (L)

600,000,000 (L)

600,000,000 (L)

120,000,000 (L)

120,000,000 (L)

Approximate
percentage of
shareholding

BOFRED L
72.47%

72.47%

72.47%

72.47%

72.47%

72.47%

72.47%

14.49%

14.49%



DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

Notes:

M

©

Pursuant to the Deed of Act-in-Concert, each of the ultimate controlling
shareholders had agreed to, consult each other and reach a unanimous
consensus among themselves on such matters being the subject matters
of any Shareholders’ resolution, prior to putting forward such resolution to
be passed at any Shareholders’ meeting of the members of the Group or
their respective predecessors during the period when they (by themselves or
together with their associates) remain in control of the Group, and they have
confirmed that they have historically voted on such resolutions in the same way
since 1 January 2015 or the date when they became interested in any member
of the Group, whichever is earlier.

As such, Glorious Villa Limited, together with Splendid Sun Limited, Sound
Limited, Shade (BVI) Limited and He Hong Limited controlled 72.47% of the
voting power at general meetings of the Company as at 31 December 2021
and therefore Glorious Villa Limited, Splendid Sun Limited, Sound Limited,
Shade (BVI) Limited and He Hong Limited are associated corporations of the
Company.

Ms. Zhu Lan, the spouse of Mr. Ge Hekali, is deemed to be interested in Mr. Ge
Hekai’s interest in our Company by virtue of the SFO.

Ms. Yang Yaqi, the spouse of Mr. Ge Yiyang, is deemed to be interested in Mr.
Ge Yiyang’s interest in our Company by virtue of the SFO.

Ms. Wu Xiaolin, the spouse of Mr. Ge Heming, is deemed to be interested in
Mr. Ge Heming'’s interest in our Company by virtue of the SFO.

Mr. Ge Yiyang transferred the entire issued share capital of Glorious Villa
Limited to Grandeur Home Limited on 26 August 2020. Grandeur Home
Limited is wholly owned by a trust established in Cayman Islands by Mr. Ge
Yiyang for the benefit of his family members. TMF (Cayman) Ltd. indirectly held
120,000,000 Shares in the capacity of trustee of such trust. Therefore, Mr. Ge
Yiyang is deemed to have interest in such Shares held in trust for the purpose
of Part XV of the SFO.

The letter “L” denotes the person’s long position in the Shares.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2021, the Company has
not been notified by any person who had any interests or short positions
in the Shares or underlying shares of the Company which would fall to be
disclosed to the Company under the provisions of Divisions 2 and 3 of Part
XV of the SFO or which were recorded in the register required to be kept
by the Company under section 336 of the SFO.

EaEE e

P e -

(1) BE—BTIHRE  SEEEBRBREEREER
(AR F s E B A) RAE %M%@H}iﬁﬁh
EEABRRIAERERNEBKE AR ZESEN
BT S M ERIAR R K & @B AT EjﬂuZTﬁ/ BEREE
FEMPREEE BRI HILERK —BHER -
BEEHRBEB2015F1 A1BHENEKEER
EREEAREEESNBRAUAREEAE) R
BIRARA A RZERBRETIRE -

it - 72021412 A31H * Glorious Villa Limited
i#[FSplendid Sun Limited * Sound Limited -
Shade (BVI) Limited & He Hong Limited A A~
AIRERARE FEHT72.47% MR ERE - Bt
Glorious Villa Limited * Splendid Sun Limited »
Sound Limited *+ Shade (BVI) Limited 2He Hong
Limited B2 B AREH A E o

@ HBEHFEBEKRIME  KEZZ(BRNHEE
WEB)HEREEBNINEENRADANE

v
m °

@) MEFLHMEGOTHE  HHEELL(BE-HE
ERRE)RRSERE —BRERANAF R

Ny
Zs o
Im

@) BEFRBEGAmE  REMLL(ENRL
SRS KRR BERBNERERRNR TR

5o

(5) BB AER2020F8 A26H #Glorious Villa
Limited®) 2 Z8 2 87 AR A #25& F Grandeur Home
Limited ° Grandeur Home Limitedid8 & —B5 5L 4
RASHEN YN ELTUUERKKNEAZEA)
28¥A - TMF (Cayman) Ltd. AF AR & 15 [
¥ 5B %1575120,000,000/% B fn o Atk - BLEE
HFREEGPIEXVEME B—BiAEWEA

RZETHENEERO P EG#EE -

©) FEILHEZALRBROTOETE -

B E XTI ERE SN - FR20218F 128318 » AR
R EE MG E E R ATHRAR RN IE
foﬁﬂwﬁ*ﬁm‘% E5 R B EIERPIEXVERE2 K&

FIDEHMEX BRI ARG E - ek AR
T*E%szﬁ%%&ﬁﬂiﬂ B 336K BFEMNETR
AR EfERSOXRE °

20215 % ANNUAL REPORT 2021 105



DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continueq)
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME

The Company approved and adopted a share option scheme (the “Share
Option Scheme”) on 10 September 2018.

Details of the Share Option Scheme
(a) Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to
grant options to selected participants as incentives or rewards for
their contribution to the Group. The Directors believe the Share Option
Scheme will enable the Group to reward the employees, the Directors
and other selected participants for their contributions to the Group.
Given that the Directors are entitled to determine the performance
targets to be achieved as well as the minimum period that an option
must be held before an option can be exercised on a case by case
basis, and that the exercise price of an option cannot in any event fall
below the price stipulated in the Listing Rules or such higher price as
may be fixed by the Directors, it is expected that grantees of an option
will make an effort to contribute to the development of the Group so
as to bring about an increased market price of the Shares in order to
capitalize on the benefits of the options granted.

(b) Who may join

The Directors (which expression shall, for the purpose of this
paragraph, include a duly authorized committee thereof) may, at their
absolute discretion, invite any person belonging to any of the following
classes of participants, who the Board considers, in its sole discretion,
has contributed or will contribute to the Group, to take up options to
subscribe for Shares (collectively the “Eligible Participants”):

(i) any directors (including executive Directors, non-executive
Directors and independent non-executive Directors) and
employees of any member of the Group; and

(i) any advisors, consultants, distributors, contractors, customers,

suppliers, agents, business partners, joint venture business
partners, service providers of any member of the Group.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

For the purposes of the Share Option Scheme, the options may
be granted to any company wholly owned by one or more persons
belonging to any of the above classes of participants. For the
avoidance of doubt, the grant of any options by the Company for the
subscription of Shares or other securities of the Group to any person
who falls within any of the above classes of participants shall not, by
itself, unless the Directors otherwise so determine, be construed as a
grant of option under the Share Option Scheme.

The eligibility of any of the above class of participants to the grant of
any option shall be determined by the Directors from time to time on
the basis of the Directors’ opinion as to the participant’s contribution
to the development and growth of the Group.

Maximum number of Shares

(i)  The maximum number of Shares which may be issued upon the
exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to be exercised
under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
issued share capital of the Company from time to time.

(i) The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of
all options to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group shall not in aggregate
exceed 10% of the aggregate of the Shares in issue on the day on
which trading of the Shares commences on the Stock Exchange,
and such 10% limit represents 80,000,000 Shares (the “General
Scheme Limit").

(i) Subject to paragraph (i) above and without prejudice to paragraph
(iv) below, the Company may issue a circular to its Shareholders
and seek approval of its Shareholders in a general meeting to
extend the General Scheme Limit provided that the total number
of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options to
be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
options scheme of the Group shall not exceed 10% of the Shares
in issue as of the date of approval of the limit and, for the purpose
of calculating the limit, options (including those outstanding,
cancelled, lapsed or exercised in accordance with the Share
Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group)
previously granted under the Share Option Scheme and any
other share option scheme of the Group will not be counted. The
circular sent by the Company to its Shareholders shall contain,
among other information, the information required under Rule
17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and the disclaimer required under
Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (continueq)
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(iv) Subject to paragraph (i) above and without prejudice to paragraph
(iii) above, the Company may seek separate Shareholders’
approval in a general meeting to grant options beyond the General
Scheme Limit or, if applicable, the extended limit referred to in
paragraph (i) above to participants specifically identified by the
Company before such approval is sought. In such event, the
Company must send a circular to its Shareholders containing a
general description of the identified participants, the number and
terms of options to be granted, the purpose of granting options
to the identified participants with an explanation as to how the
terms of the options serve such purpose and all other information
required under Rule 17.02(2)(d) of the Listing Rules and the
disclaimer required under Rule 17.02(4) of the Listing Rules.

(d) Maximum entitlement of each participant

(e)

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise
of the options granted and to be granted under the Share Option
Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group (including
both exercised and outstanding options) to each participant in any
12-month period shall not exceed 1% of the issued share capital
of the Company for the time being (the “Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of options to a participant in aggregate in excess of the
Individual Limit in any 12-month period up to and including the date
of such further grant shall be subject to the issue of a circular to the
Shareholders and the Shareholders’ approval in general meeting
of the Company with such participant and his/her close associates
abstaining from voting. The number and terms (including the exercise
price) of options to be granted to such participant must be fixed before
Shareholders’ approval and the date of board meeting for proposing
such further grant should be taken as the date of grant for the purpose
of calculating the exercise price under note (1) to Rule 17.03(9) of the
Listing Rules.

Grant of options to connected persons

(i) Any grant of options under the Share Option Scheme to any
Director, chief executive or substantial Shareholder of the
Company or any of their respective associates must be approved
by the independent non-executive Directors (excluding any
independent non-executive Director who is the proposed grantee
of the options).
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DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

Where any grant of options to a substantial Shareholder of the
Company or an independent non-executive Director or any of their
respective associates would result in the Shares issued and to
be issued upon exercise of all options already granted and to be
granted (including options exercised, cancelled and outstanding)
to such person in the 12-month period up to and including the
date of such grant:

e representing in aggregate over 0.1% (or such other higher
percentage as may from time to time be specified by the
Stock Exchange) of the Shares in issue; and

e having an aggregate value, based on the closing price of the
Shares as stated in the daily quotations sheets issued by the
Stock Exchange on the date of each grant, in excess of HK$5
million (or such other higher amount as may from time to time
be specified by the Stock Exchange);

such further grant of options must be approved by the
Shareholders in a general meeting. The Company must send a
circular to its Shareholders no later than the date on which the
Company gives notice of the general meeting to approve the
Share Option Scheme. The grantees, their associates and all core
connected persons of the Company must abstain from voting
at such general meeting, except that they may vote against the
relevant resolution at the general meeting provided that any of
their intention to do so has been stated in the circular to be sent
to the Shareholders in connection therewith. Any vote taken at
the general meeting to approve the grant of such options must be
taken on a poll. Any change in the terms of options granted to a
substantial shareholder or an independent non-executive Director
or any of their respective associates must be approved by the
Shareholders in a general meeting.
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Time of acceptance and exercise of option

An option may be accepted by a participant to whom the offer is made
within 5 business days from the date on which the letter containing
the offer is delivered to that participant. An option may be exercised
in accordance with the terms of the Share Option Scheme at any
time during a period to be determined and notified by the Directors to
each grantee, which period may commence on a day after the date
upon which the offer for the grant of options is made but shall end in
any event not later than 10 years from the date of grant of the option
subject to the provisions for early termination under the Share Option
Scheme. Unless otherwise determined by the Directors and stated
in the offer of the grant of options to a grantee, there is no minimum
period required under the Share Option Scheme for the holding of an
option before it can be exercised.

An offer shall be deemed to have been accepted and the option to
which the offer relates shall be deemed to have been granted and
to have taken effect when the duplicate of the offer letter comprising
acceptance of the offer duly signed by the grantee with the number of
Shares in respect of which the offer is accepted clearly stated therein,
together with a remittance in favor of the Company of HK$1.00 by
way of consideration for the grant thereof, which must be received by
the Company within 5 business days from the date on which the offer
letter is delivered to the grantee.

Performance targets

Unless the Directors otherwise determine and state in the offer of the
grant of options to a grantee, a grantee is not required to achieve
any performance targets before any options granted under the Share
Option Scheme can be exercised.

110 DAFA PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED KXkt =EHABR AT

®

©)

B RITIEIE K IERIR

BEZNN2BALTITERHRERNMN T
28 A TH A SE % X B AR MBI
o BRETRETRELANGERARA
MEEA - RIEERE S 8 8RR BER T
% ZHMEAAREZBORLBRERREKRE
ARG BEEEAERITLARKEHEBR
R BET10FNER - R RIEREAE
Sl BOURATAR L - FRIFEFERITRE
EREBHRDBRERD RARARSA -
7 R B A T 81 30 S AR E B AR N AT (R AT
ARENREHR -

Tl 2R 2 A 27 3% A K A T AR AE AT B
EEANBEE—HARABALREEZELHA
BEMBOZERER  HPRER &N
2RZBENEE  ERXMNFARFN.00
BILHE  ERRTHEREZAE AR
MRS EEAMmEENER B
BHESHES/ERBLE LR -

KBEEF

BRIEZRTRELRNBLHR L BRER
ERFARARA - B RAERTEARAR
1T AR 45 8 PR =1 8133 ) 0 (AR R B A T
JREMIEMRIREIR



DISCLOSURE OF INTERESTS (Continued)

(h) Subscription price for Shares and consideration for the option

()

The subscription price per Share under the Share Option Scheme
will be a price determined by the Directors, but shall not be less than
the highest of (i) the closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock
Exchange’s daily quotations sheet on the date of the offer of grant,
which must be a business day; (i) the average closing price of the
Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotations sheets for
the five business days immediately preceding the date of the offer of
grant (provided that in the event that any option is proposed to be
granted within a period of less than five business days after the trading
of the Shares first commences on the Stock Exchange, the new issue
price of the Shares for the Global Offering shall be used as the closing
price for any business day falling within the period before listing of the
Shares on the Stock Exchange); and (jii) the nominal value of a Share
on the date of grant.

Ranking of Shares

(i) Shares allotted and issued upon the exercise of an option will be
identical to the then existing issued shares of the Company and
subject to all the provisions of the Memorandum and Articles for
the time being in force and will rank pari passu in all respects
with the fully paid Shares in issue on the date the name of the
grantee is registered on the register of members of the Company
or, if that date falls on a day when the register of members of the
Company is closed, the first day of the re-opening of the register
of members (the “Exercise Date”) and accordingly will entitle the
holders thereof to participate in all dividends or other distributions
paid or made on or after the Exercise Date other than any
dividend or other distribution previously declared or recommended
or resolved to be paid or made if the record date therefor shall be
before the Exercise Date. A Share allotted upon the exercise of an
option shall not carry voting rights or rights to participate in any
dividends or distributions (including those arising on a liquidation
of the Company) declared or recommended or resolved to be
paid to the Shareholders on the register until the completion of
the registration of the grantee on the register of members of the
Company as the holder thereof.

(i) Unless the context otherwise requires, references to “Shares” in
this paragraph include references to shares in the ordinary equity
share capital of the Company of such nominal amount as shall
result from a subdivision, consolidation, reclassification or re-
construction of the share capital of the Company from time to
time.
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() Restrictions on the time of grant of options

No offer for grant of options shall be made after a price sensitive event
has occurred or a price sensitive matter has been the subject of a
decision until such price sensitive information has been announced in
accordance with the requirements of the Listing Rules. In particular,
during the period commencing one month immediately preceding the
earlier of () the date of the meeting of the Directors (as such date is first
notified to the Stock Exchange in accordance with the requirements
of the Listing Rules) for the approval of the Company’s results for any
year, half-year, quarter or any other interim period (whether or not
required under the Listing Rules); and (i) the last date on which the
Company must publish its announcement of its results for any year,
half-year, quarter or any other interim period (whether or not required
under the Listing Rules), and ending on the date of the announcement
of the results, no offer for grant of options may be made.

The Directors may not grant any option to a participant who is a
Director during the period or time in which Directors are prohibited
from dealing in shares pursuant to the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers prescribed by the Listing
Rules or any corresponding code or securities dealing restrictions
adopted by the Company.

(k) Period of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme will remain in force for a period of 10 years

commencing on the date on which the Share Option Scheme is
adopted.

Details of Share Options Granted
No option was granted or agreed to be granted under the Share Option

Scheme since the adoption date and during the year ended 31 December
2021.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

B ERTARE

Ernst & Young LXK SR BT Tel T3E: +852 2846 9888
27/F, One Taikoo Place EB 8 A FE E2E9795% Fax {2&: +852 2868 4432
§7i 979 King’s Road Ko —Reo7iE ey.com

Quarry Bay, Hong Kong

To the shareholders of DaFa Properties Group Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of DaFa Properties
Group Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set
out on pages 117 to 298, which comprise the consolidated statement of
financial position as at 31 December 2021, and the consolidated statement
of profit or loss, the consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
the consolidated statement of changes in equity and the consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

We do not express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements of
the Group. Because of the potential interaction of the multiple uncertainties
and their possible cumulative effect on the consolidated financial
statements as described in the Basis for Disclaimer of Opinion section of
our report, it is not possible for us to form an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. In all other respects, in our opinion, the consolidated
financial statements have been properly prepared in compliance with the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continueq)

BY FETEIRE (=

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern

As set out in note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, the
Group recorded a net loss of RMB428,771,000 for the year ended 31
December 2021. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s total bank and
other borrowings and senior notes amounted to RMB12,648,506,000,
out of which RMB6,739,984,000 will be due for repayment within the
next twelve months, while its cash and cash equivalents amounted to
RMB1,051,775,000. Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group did
not repay a principal of US$40,360,000 (equivalent to RMB257,323,000)
and interest of US$22,275,000 (equivalent to RMB142,019,000) for certain
senior notes due in January and March 2022, respectively. On 1 April
2022, the Group received the acceleration notices from the holders of at
least 25% in an aggregate principal amount of the senior notes due in July
2022 and April 2023, respectively. As a result, senior notes and interest-
bearing bank and other borrowings with an aggregate principal amount
of RMB4,189,720,000 became default or cross-default, out of which
RMB3,307,425,000 were repayable on demand. A winding-up petition
was filed by certain senior notes holders against the Company and an
indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, respectively, on 18
February 2022. These conditions, together with other matters set out in
note 2.1 to the consolidated financial statements, indicate the existence of
material uncertainties that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern.

The directors of the Company have been undertaking measures to improve
the Group’s liquidity and financial position, which are set out in note 2.1
to the consolidated financial statements. The validity of the going concern
assumption on which the consolidated financial statements have been
prepared depends on the outcome of these measures, which are subject
to multiple uncertainties, including (i) successfully completing the holistic
restructuring of its senior notes; (ii) successfully dismissing the winding-up
petitions; (i) successfully negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders
for the renewal or extension for repayment of the Group’s bank and
other borrowings; (iv) successfully securing project development loans for
qualified project development timely; (v) successfully obtaining additional
new sources of financing as and when needed; (vi) successfully carrying
out the Group’s business strategy plan including the acceleration of the
sales of properties; (vii) successfully implementing measures to speed
up the collection of outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control
costs and expenses; and (viii) successfully disposing of the Group’s equity
interest in project development companies when suitable.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continued)

BASIS FOR DISCLAIMER OF OPINION
(CONTINUED)

Multiple uncertainties relating to going concern
(continued)

Should the Group fail to achieve the above-mentioned plans and
measures, it might not be able to continue to operate as a going concern,
and adjustments would have to be made to write down the carrying values
of the Group’s assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any
further liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets and
non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities, respectively.
The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in the consolidated
financial statements.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE DIRECTORS
FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view in
accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”)
issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (the “IASB”) and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance, and
for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable
the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the
Company are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern
and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the directors of
the Company either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The directors of the Company are assisted by the Audit Committee in
discharging their responsibilities for overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting process.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT (continueq)

B ETRERE @

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE
AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Our responsibility is to conduct an audit of the Group’s consolidated
financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on
Auditing issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
(“HKICPA”) and to issue an auditor’s report. Our report is made solely to
you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. However, because of the matters described in the Basis for
Disclaimer of Opinion section of our report, it is not possible for us to form
an opinion on the consolidated financial statements.

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code
of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the “Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s
report is Ho Wai Ling.

Ernst & Young

Certified Public Accountants
Hong Kong

14 April 2022
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS
mEBEER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;220214 12531 H IF F/&

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETTT

REVENUE 1§ 3 5 5,911,260 9,188,494

Cost of sales $4% f 7 (5,055,541) (7,270,798)
Gross profit &7l 855,719 1,917,696
Finance income & & Yg A 66,047 26,151
Other income and gains £ b Y A M Uk 25 5 219,232 345,471

Selling and distribution expenses $4%& & 7 #4 5 (271,851) (289,660)

Administrative expenses 17 H 5 (445,436) (449,526)

Other expenses b Bis% (24,467) (26,110)

Impairment losses on financial assets, net ;%% &l & &R EE 18 (1,993) (2,639)

Fair value losses, net: ‘A 7 {BEFE S ¢
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BARBEFABGHNEREE (163,682) (2,893)
Fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties
REWMEN DI BERES(EBB) 20,799 (8,164)
Finance costs &t & i Zx 7 (465,613) (235,457)
Share of profits and losses of: 715 F ¥ & E518 -
Joint ventures & & 1% (5,110) (15,364)
Associates B & 2 7] 27,730 (9,277)
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX K%t A1 (B1#8),Fi8 6 (188,625) 1,250,222
Income tax expense FT15 5 & 10 (240,146) (534,888)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F & (E518) /F# (428,771) 715,334
Attributable to: LA A FE(L :
Owners of the parent &2 7B A (480,401) 338,859
Non-controlling interests JE12 f& # 25 51,630 376,475
(428,771) 715,334

(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE ATTRIBUTABLE TO
ORDINARY EQUITY HOLDERS OF THE PARENT
BRREARSHAARGEERER), BT

Basic and diluted E 7 K #55 RMB(0.58) RMBO.41
12 AK#¥(0.58)T ARE0.417T
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
SEEEBAR

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (220214 12531 H IF F/&

2021 2020
20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARET T
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR F & (E518) /78 (428,771) 715,334

Other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods:
BEHETESHHOERABENEMEERA(FB)
Equity investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive income:
EERBEARBESARMPERANRERE

Changes in fair value A # BEEF) 36,040 (20,641)
Income tax effect TS IB £ (9,010) 5,160

Net other comprehensive income/(loss) that will not be reclassified to profit or
loss in subsequent periods

“ERETESFTOEABENEMFE2AEKA(EB) 27,030 (15,481)
OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME/(LOSS) FOR THE YEAR, NET OF TAX
FRHEMPEBA (BB - MKRTHE 27,030 (15,481)
TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE (LOSS)/INCOME FOR THE YEAR
FRLE2mEER), WA (401,741) 699,853
Attributable to: JA T A &L :
Owners of the parent & A 7B A (453,371) 323,378
Non-controlling interests JE12 i #E 25 51,630 376,475
(401,741) 699,853
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
R a BBk Lk

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12 H31H

NON-CURRENT ASSETS ¥ #REI&EE

2021
20214

RMB’000
AR® T

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBT T

Property, plant and equipment 1% « W= L& 13 108,865 112,938
Investment properties 1% & ¥ % 14 2,775,500 2,723,700
Right-of-use assets 1 PR & & 15(a) 3,710 5,064
Intangible assets &/, & & 16 16,913 14,971
Investments in joint ventures R A & EMRE 17 1,119,699 403,777
Investments in associates B ‘& A & 1% & 18 2,774,150 1,876,466
Equity investments designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income
BEREBEAABESAHEMEZEBWANKRERE 21 131,140 95,100
Deferred tax assets IEIEF TEH & & 19 292,904 228,485
Total non-current assets 42 3E 7 E) & &= 7,222,881 5,460,501
CURRENT ASSETS iB1 & &
Properties under development 7£ 2 ¥ 2 22 17,621,680 12,676,017
Completed properties held for sale 3% T i {/ESH E ¥ 2 23 946,189 2,042,689
Trade receivables & 5 & Y 5018 24 14,632 13,860
Due from related companies & Us BB A &) 58 41 3,670,172 2,204,035
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets
FARRIA -« Eofth R MCRIA R HoAth & A 25 6,561,691 4,202,111
Tax recoverable B Yz [E1 #5718 354,825 258,105
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
RARBEFABZNERHEE 20 856,388 937,053
Cash and bank balances 3 & M iR7T 48 26 3,859,218 7,276,076
Total current assets 42/ B) & &= 33,884,795 29,609,946
CURRENT LIABILITIES 8 & &
Trade and bills payables & 5 f& (< 5018 & &+t 2% 27 2,255,389 2,289,005
Other payables and accruals H th f&{~ 7B & fE 51 & 28 4,321,421 2,329,049
Contract liabiltties & [F & (& 29 10,589,836 7,073,740
Due to related companies [t Ba B A ] 5018 41 1,444,271 780,294
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5+ 8 R7T R EMEE 30 3,238,375 1,887,593
Senior notes 18 £ F#& 31 3,501,609 3,217,164
Lease liabilities 1H & & & 15(b) 2,554 2,008
Tax payable &1 18 10 750,125 686,423
Provision for financial guarantee contracts 81 &R & R B 32 25,500 =
Total current liabilities 487 ) & (& 26,129,080 18,265,276
NET CURRENT ASSETS F B & E 7,755,715 11,344,670
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES @& ER KB & & 14,978,596 16,805,171
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continueq)

e BRI R @

31 DECEMBER 2021 2021412 H31H

2021
20214

RMB’000
AR® T

NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES R EB A&

2020
20204F
RMB’000
AREFT

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings =t 8817 & HAbfEE 30 5,267,314 5,198,726

Senior notes 18 % 2% 31 641,208 2,345,678

Lease liabilities T & & {& 15(b) 1,433 3,073

Deferred tax liabilities &L 518 & (& 19 471,415 471,126

Total non-current liabilities #23E %81 & & 6,381,370 8,018,603

Net assets FEE 8,597,226 8,786,568

EQUITY #%=

Equity attributable to owners of the parent & 2 B #H A FE{L %

Share capital A% 2 33 730 730

Reserves f## {# 34 3,122,035 3,660,920
3,122,765 3,661,650

Non-controlling interests JE3% ik fE 3 5,474,461 5,124,918

Total equity Bz 8,597,226 8,786,568

Mr. Ge Yiyang Mr. Leng Junfeng
E-BEHE REBEEE
Director Director
= EF
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

At1 January 2020 1202051 1R
Proft for the year £ /571

Qther comprenensive loss for the year:
EREHAEES:

Changes in fair value of equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, net of tax

ERARAA BB ALBZERAD
REREALRERD  NBRA

Share

capital
RMB'000
Note 33

Treasury
shares
RMB'000
Note 33

Share
premium
RMB'000
Note 34(a)

1,249,269

Merger
resenve

RMB'000
Note 34(d)

(43,000)

mEEESER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;2202141231 H 1F F/Z

Fair valug

resenve of

financial

assets at fair

value through

Statutory Asset other com- Non-
Capital surplus revaluation prehensive Retained controling Total
resenve resene resene income profts Total Interests equity
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Note 34(b) Note 34(c) Note 34)

(7,020 301,030 15,134 2807 1,908,105 3,422,995 2234528 5,667,483
- - - - 338,859 336,859 316475 715,334

(15,481) - (15,481) - (15,481)

Total comprehensive income for the year
EREZERA
Capital contribution from
non-controling shareholders of
subsidiaries
FRTFARRRTE
Acquistion of subsidiaries
AR
Acquistion of non-controling shareholders
WEkERER
Disposal of subsidiaries (£ F A7
Disposal of partial interests in
Subsidaries without losing control
HEFATHARGN AR FHIE
Appropriations to statutory surplus resenve
SREETRREA
Dividends paid to non-controling shareholders
mIARRERARE
Dividends and distioutions 1} 8 &3

- - - (15,481) 338,859 323378 376475 699,853

- - - - - - 2,502,211 2,602,211

- - - - - - 2,638 2538

(296) - - - - (2% - (296)
N B} B - - - 20 200)

57 - - - - 57 (57) -

- 182,775 - - (132,775) - - -

_ B} - - = - 8637 8637
- - - - 84444 (84,444) - (84,444)

At 31 December 2020 14202051231 B

130

1249269

(43,0001

(7,259 434705° 15,134 (12674 2024745" 361,650 5,124918 8,786,568
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY (ontinued)
MERREBHR =

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (22021412431 H IFF/Z

Attributable to owners of the parent

BATRRARE

Fair value
reserve of
financial
assets at fair
value through
Statutory Asset other com- Non-
Share Treasury Share Merger Capital surplus  revaluation prehensive Retained controlling Total

capital shares premium reserve reserve reserve reserve income profits Total interests equity
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
Note 33 Note 33 Note 34(a) Note 34(d) Note 34(b) Note 34(c) Note 34(e) Note 34(f)

ROAEETA
SH2ENAN
k&R AH&E AGE LERMER HEEMRE  QAEERR FERRE
AEBTR  ARMTT  ARBTZ  ARNTR  ARMTR  ARMTR KRBT
K34ta) BiE34(d) HizEs4(b) H34(c) Kz 34e) it
At January 2021 K011 A1R 730 - 1,249,269 (43,000 (7,289 434,705* 15,134* (12,674 2,024,745* 3,661,650 5,124918 8,786,568
Loss for the year FAEE - - - - = S o = (480,401) (480,401) 51,630 [28,711)
Qther comprehensive income for the year:
EREHEIENA
Changes in fair value of equity investments
designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income, net of tax
ERARAA BB AL 2EERD
RERELLEERD HIEHE - - - 0 = 0 c 2,00 : 27,000 = 27,080

Total comprehensive loss for the year

EhELTER - - - - - - = 21,030 (é80401)  (453,374) 51,630 (401,741)
Capital contrioution rom non-controling

shareholders of subsidiaries

FREEERERTE - - - - - - o = = = 692,122 692,122
Repurchase of shares (note 33)
BOR( (%) o (7.825) = o = = = = = (7,825) = (7,825)
Acquistion of subsiciaries (note 36)
W&+ A7 (Ht30) = = = 0 = = = = = = 5,053 5,053
Acquistion of non-controling shareholders
e SRR = = 2 c (2397) : S = : (37 (392000 (304397)
Disposal of subsidaries it 727 - - - - = (21,485) = = 21,485 = (8,078) (3,078)
Disposal of partil inferests in subsidiaries

without losing control
HEFATRHRETERLEHE = o o = 4,184 = = = = 4,184 (4,184 =
Appropriations to statutory surplus reserve
ERTERRRGE - - - = = 18,142 = = (18,142) = = =
Dividends and distributions 5. Rk - - - - - - - - (79,476) (79,476) - (79,476)
At 31 December 2021 120215124318 JE) (7,825 1,249,269* (43,000 (b4 431362 15,134* 1435 1,468,211 3,122,765 5,474,461 8,607,226

*  These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves of * ZEHEEREBESETBRIRANGEE
RMB3,122,035,000 (2020: RMB3,660,920,000) in the consolidated statement EARY3,122,035,0007T (20204 : AR
of financial position. 3,660,920,0007T) °
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
RERERER

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;2202141231 H 1F F/Z

2021 2020
20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RETBHELENEERE
(Loss)/Profit before tax K&t Al (&5 18) ,/ FE8 (188,625) 1,250,222
Adjustments for: F% :
Depreciation of items of property, plant and equipment

ME - WELREEEFTE 6,13 13,593 16,968
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (£ & ETE 6, 15(a) 6,295 6,327
Amortisation of intangible assets & i2 & /2= #4 § 6,16 2,413 1,849
(Gain)/loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment, net

HEWE  KERREBEBF W), BB (1,968) 23
Gain on disposal of associates HH & B4 N &7 Uk 5 (33,618) (463)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries, net & F 2 Bl F W 2% 5 (66,153) (103,745)

Remeasurement gain on investments in joint ventures and
an associate held before business combination

EBAaHAMEReEERBERRNKRENENTENRA 5 (189) (18,631)
Gain on bargain purchase % {8 i 8 U 25 5, 36 (8) (267)
Share of profits and losses of: 21 Fl B f &518 -
Joint ventures & & 1b % 5,110 15,364
Associates B & /2 &) (27,730) 9,277
Changes in fair value of investment properties
REMENRABEES 14 (20,799) 8,164

Fair value losses, net: X A BEFE1E ¢
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

RARBEFABRNEHEE 163,682 2,893
Impairment losses on financial assets, net %% &t & & B &8 1,993 2,639
Dividends received = A% & (33,002) =
Finance costs &l & Ak 2 7 465,613 235,457
Finance income & & YA (66,047) (26,151)

220,560 1,399,926
Increase in properties under development and completed properties

held for sale

TERYHERE % TR EHEEMEE N (3,082,399) (1,164,097)
Increase in trade receivables & 5 & W FRIALE (772) (332)
Increase in prepayments, other receivables and other assets
FARRIE - Eofth REMCRIR N Hofth & 3 AN (3,284,525) (2,754,991)
(Increase)/decrease in amounts due from related parties
FE W BB 75 R IE (B n), R (1,283) 27,827
Decrease/(increase) in restricted cash =R #1238 @ 4>, (1 10) 458,578 (669,896)
Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits & 377 2O 4>, (32 1n) 19,111 (12,560)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and bills payables
B 5 R FE RN RE (R L), /18N (57,883) 343,519
Increase in other payables and accruals H fth J& < 5018 f & 5+ 2 FR g hn 2,698,246 1,356,398
Increase/(decrease) in contract liabilities & [ & &% hn, CFi4») 2,407,483 (760,926)
Decrease in amounts due to related parties F& 1< BE 8% A &) R 5 > (1,941) (1,015)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continueq)

ERERER S

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 (22021412431 H IFF/Z

2021
20214

RMB’000
AR® T

2020
20204
RMB’000

ARETT

Cash used in operating activities L& ZEfTARE (624,825) (2,236,147)
Interest received E U Fl & 66,047 19,590

Tax paid 2 F1E (359,029) (471,230)
Net cash flows used in operating activities FZ ZBFTAFRERE (917,807) (2,687,787)
CASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

REZBHELENEESRE

Purchases of items of property, plant and equipment

BEME  BEIEZEEE (11,715) (6,488)
Disposal of items of property, plant and equipment

HEME - BFERKHEE 3,923 75
Purchase of intangible assets & & # 12 & & (4,355) 6,774)
Additions in investment properties 7~ & 1% & ¥ 3 (31,001) (67,864)
Acquisition of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

WERARBEFABRNEREE (669,675) (961,416)
Disposal of financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

HERARBEFABRNERHEE 586,658 617,500
Acquisition of subsidiaries Y& F A 7] 36 171,703 192,117
Disposal of subsidiaries 1% 1A &) 150,712 760,642
Investments in joint ventures & & ERIRE (718,887) (326,617)
Investments in associates P B & A &l A% & (846,599) (176,953)
Disposal of associates (& B A 7] 33,618 41,064
Dividends and interest received 2 4% 2 & 7 & 33,002 6,561

Repayment of advances to related companies 88t /A a11E & B30 41 2,824,165 2,203,875
Advances to related companies 18 A T /EH B ZA F0 41 (4,289,019) (2,406,901)
Net cash flows used in investing activities

REZHMAFRERE (2,767,470) (181,179)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (continued)
HEHERER @

YEAR ENDED 31 DECEMBER 2021 ;2202141231 H 1F F/Z

2021 2020
20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

RETBHELENEESRE

Capital contribution from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

FRARIGEERRFEE 692,122 2,502,271

Dividends and distributions % 8 & 5k (68,151) (119,826)

Dividends paid to non-controlling shareholders 2 15 JE 2 3% B 5 A% 2. = (8,637)

Acquisition of non-controlling interests 4 i 3F3% PR A 25 (394,397) (296)

Advances from related companies B A 518 3K 41 3,232,529 1,739,393

Repayment of an advance from related companies 1€ i& B8 Bt A &) 3K 41 (2,566,611) (1,535,482)

Decrease/(increase) in pledged deposits & & #1E U L, (3 0) 156,970 (476,975)

Principal portion of lease payments f & 5t XA A & 55 (8,229) (8,251)

Proceeds from issuance of senior notes 31718 £ & 15 718 2,387,274 3,547,309

Repayment of senior notes & &8 L ZiE (3,750,395) (988,138)

Proceeds from interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

SERRITREMEERSHIE 6,583,597 7,710,483

Repayment of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

EEFERITREMESR (3,972,810) (7,251,313)

Interest paid 217 & (1,438,251) (1,211,909)

Repurchase of shares 8 B f% 15 33 (7,825) =

Net cash flows from financing activities

RETHELENTRERE 845,823 3,898,629

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

REeERRSZEWRECRD) 18 (2,839,454) 1,079,663

Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

FYRERREEEY 3,891,229 2,811,566

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT END OF YEAR

FRASRRESEEY 1,051,775 3,891,229

ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

AERALSENEHBI

Cash and bank balances 3¢ & $R17T 4 84 26 3,859,218 7,276,076

Less: Restricted cash & : ZR#I3H & 26 1,747,639 2,128,643
Pledged deposits B & #1734 26 1,059,804 1,256,204

Cash and cash equivalents as stated in the statement of cash flows

RensXMINBREMEEEED 1,051,775 3,891,229
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 7% ¥ 2% P o

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. A REEER

INFORMATION

The Company was incorporated as an exempted company with limited
liability in the Cayman Islands on 18 December 2017. The Company’s
shares were listed on the Main Board of the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) on 11 October 2018.
The registered office of the Company is located at 190 Elgin Avenue,
George Town, Grand Cayman KY1-9008, Cayman Islands.

During the year, the Group was principally involved in property
development, property leasing, providing property management
services and management consulting services.

In the opinion of the directors, the holding company and the ultimate
holding company of the Company is Splendid Sun Limited, which is
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AR REEER (E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BEFLARANER

Information about subsidiaries

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: ARBEBTRARMFBAT :

Subsidiaries

NG
Directly held: E##5% :

Place of
incorporation/
registration

and business
ML/ SMBER
=ik

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
ERTEER/
R A

Actual
percentage

of equity
attributable to
the Company
NG ) S
ERBEAL

Principal activities

FRER

DaFa Blooms Limited British Virgin Islands US$200 100%  Investment holding
EBRUES 200% T REEKR

Indirectly held: B#£#5

YinYi Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited Hong Kong HK$200 100%  Investment holding

REFBER AT B 200/ 7T REER

BMNAEEEERFRAA People’s Republic of US$70,000,000 100%  Investment holding
Wenzhou Kaiyang China (‘PRC”)/ 70,000,000 70 REER
Group Co., Ltd. (Wenzhou Kaiyang)* Mainland China

RN EEERERARCRMANG) RE AR £NE

(B, /R E A,

LEREEHEERAR A PRC/Mainland China RMB500,000,000 100%  Property development
Shanghai Dafa Land e/ E R AR 500,000,000 and property leasing
Group Co., Ltd. NERERMERE

EBREREHESEERAR

HRSBEHEREER AR PRGC/Mainland China RMB56,000,000 100%  Property development
Nanjing Kaihong Real Estate B R E A AR #56,000,0007T and property leasing
Development Co., Ltd. MERERDERE

BRI BEHEREERAA

AR ERHEREERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB56,000,000 100%  Property development
Nanjing Kairun Real Estate HE /R ER AR 56,000,0007T and property leasing

Development Co., Ltd.
AR EEHEREER LT

MEFAERNFHEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued
5 7% ik M = (oo

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ARIREEBER (E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BREFRANER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ARRAEBFARWFENT  (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Actual
Place of percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration registered | attributable to
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company | Principal activities
TR EL L i B R ERTLER/ | ADAEGRE
FAT EESE AR ERGAN | TBEHR
AMTEREXBERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 90%  Property development
Wenzhou Guiyin Real hE/REA AR #100,000,0007T MERE
Estate Co., Ltd. ™
BNTEREZARAA
ERNGEEERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB338,000,000 98%  Property development
Ningbo Kaiyang Real B/ FEA AK1338,000,0007T MERE
Estate Co., Ltd. **
ERBEXBRAF
BRABREERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
Nanjing Kaize Investment e/ E R AR#50,000,0007 L
Management Co., Ltd.
BRIBREBRAA
BMTELEEREBR AR PRC/Mainland China RMB365,470,000 100%  Property development
Wenzhou Kaize Real L/ E R AR ¥365,470,0007C MERE
Estate Co., Ltd.
BMNTEHEEEARAA
BNEREXBRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100%  Property development
Wuhu Qiyin Real hEL/ R E R AR #10,000,0007T R
Estate Co., Ltd.
HAEREZERAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)

Subsidiaries

TRH
FREREXERARAA
Shanghai Wangyin Industrial

Development Co., Ltd. **
FREREXEREARDA

RERETEEXBRAA
Changxing Yinyi Real
Estate Co., Ltd. ***

RERSEXBRAA™

AR ZREXBRAR
Jurong Xuanyin Real
Estate Co., Ltd. ***

DREZREEBRAR™

RETEREXFBERAR
Yingde Yuque Real
Estate Co., Ltd. **

RETERAEEERAA"

HEMKERHEREERAT
Xinzhen Chengmei Property
Development Co., Ltd. **

HEMRERMEREERAR"

Place of
incorporation/

registration

and business
TMEL FMEER
=ik

PRC/Mainland China
e/ E R

PRC/Mainland China
HE /R ERL

PRC/Mainland China
FE/FERAL

PRC/Mainland China
R/ RER

PRC/Mainland China
mE/hE AL

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

1. RAREEER (E)

BEFRAANER(E)

ADEEEFRROHEOT : (8)

Issued ordinary/
registered

share capital
BRTEER/
A
RMB50,000,000
AK%50,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AR #50,000,0007T

RMB40,000,000
AR#40,000,0007T

RMB50,000,000
AK#50,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000
AR #10,000,0007T

Actual
percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company | Principal activities
NG ) S
ERGAL | TEEER

93%  Property development
MERE

32%  Property development
MERE

47%  Property development
MERE

92%  Property development
EEN

90%  Property development
MERE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued
5 7% ik M = (oo

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ARIREEBER (E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BREFRANER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ARRAEBFARWFENT  (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Actual
Place of percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration registered | attributable to
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company | Principal activities
TR EL L i B R ERTLER/ | ADAEGRE
FAT EESE AR ERGAN | TBEHR
BHHNBEXBERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB1,174,400,000 45%  Property development
Wuxi Kalyang Real mEhE R AR#1,174,400,0007 S
Estate Co., Ltd. ***
BHIGEXERAR™
AEREEZERAA PRG/Mainland China RMB210,000,000 64%  Property
Taicang Weishi Real B/ FEA AR210,000,0007T ES
Estate Co., Ltd. **
AREHBEBRAR
KENEBEEEBRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 45%  Property development
Yongkang Kaibin Real e/ E R AR10,000,0007T mERE
Estate Co., Ltd. ***
KESBERBRAR
BMEEBXBRAF PRC/Mainland China RMB443,220,000 26%  Property development
Suzhou Weihe Real hE /R E R AR %443,220,0007T MERE
Estate Co., Ltd. *™*
HNBREZBRAR™
REBHUELARETAT PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 97%  Property development
Chengdu Hangeng Real HE /R R AR 10,000,0007C MERE

Estate Co., Ltd. **
REBHNELEREE AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AR REEER (E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BEFRAANER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: RAREEZEFRARMNFBRT : (8)

(continued)

Subsidiaries

T2AH

Place of
incorporation/

registration

and business
TMEL FMEER
=ik

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEER/
iR A

Actual
percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company | Principal activities
NG ) S
ERGAL | TEEER

BNTIREBXBRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB46,200,000 41%  Property development
Changzhou Yinwang Real HE /R ER AR #46,200,0007T MERE
Estate Co., Ltd. ™*

BMMREEXBRAF

EEFREEHERZBRATF PRC/Mainland China RMB273,600,000 48%  Property development
Chongaing Dongyinyuan Property HE /R ERL AR 273,600,000 E ik
Development Co., Ltd. ***

ERRRREHERZBRAR™

REBREEFR AT PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 48%  Property development
Chengdu Hanben Real mE /R E R AR10,000,0007T mERE
Development Co., Ltd. ***

EBHAEEERR A

mEmRNEZER AR PRC/Mainland China RMB60,000,000 24%  Property development
Ruian Ronghe Real hE /R E R AR #60,000,0007T ELHE
Development Co., Ltd. **

REMBANEEERAR™

R EREXEARAR PRC/Mainland China RMB70,000,000 32%  Property development
Ruian Jiayi Real hE/RERL AR #70,000,0007 ES S

Development Co., Ltd. ***
hemeeEEARAR™
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued
5 7% ik M = (oo

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ARIREEBER (E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BREFRANER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ARRAEBFARWFENT  (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Actual
Place of percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration registered | attributable to
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company | Principal activities
TR EL L i B R ERTLER/ | ADAEGRE
FAT EESE AR ERGAN | TBEHR
LEARESERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 96%  Property development
Shanghai Kaiyuan Trading HE /R ER, AR #50,000,0007T ESE
Co., Ltd. ™
LERESBRAF
LARMEXERBRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
Shanghai Rongaue Industrial hE/FEA AR%50,000,0007T MERE
Development Co., Ltd.
TERRERERARAA
LEEREEEREBRAA) PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 90%  Property development
Shanghai Guiyin Industrial e/ E R AR ¥50,000,0007T MERE
Development Co., Ltd. **
TEEREZERARDA
LERREXEREBRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
Shanghal Hankal Industrial hE /R E R AR#50,000,0007T MERE
Development Co., Ltd.
TEREEEERAERAA
HRENEEZERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 91%  Property development
Nanjing Qicheng Real HE /R R AR 10,000,0007C MERE

Estate Co., Ltd. **
BREREFERAA
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AR REEER (E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BEFRAANER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: RAREEZEFRARMNFBRT : (8)

(continued)

Subsidiaries

T2AH

Place of
incorporation/

registration

and business
TMEL FMEER
=ik

Issued ordinary/
registered
share capital
BRTEER/
iR A

Actual
percentage
of equity
attributable to
the Company | Principal activities
NG ) S
ERGAL | TEEER

LEBAEEERERAF PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
Shanghai Hanben Industrial HE /R ER AR #50,000,0007T ELHE:
Development Co., Ltd.

FERAEEERERAA

MNTIREEEAR AR PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
Huzhou Yinwang Real hE/FEA AR%50,000,0007T MERE
Estate Co., Ltd.

MMTIREEXBRAR

BMAEEHERR AR PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 100%  Property development
Wenzhou Kaiyang Property e/ E R AR#50,000,0007T mERE
Development Co., Ltd.

BNFEEHERRAT

BRENEXERARF PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 90%  Property development
Nanjing Qike Real hE /R E R AR#10,000,0007T ELHE
Estate Co., Ltd. **

HREMEXERAR

RReBERMEREBRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB251,000,000 31%  Property development
Taian Jinyanghua Property mE/hE AL AR %251,000,0007C E

Development Co., Ltd. ***
RRcHERMERBER AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued
5 7% ik M = (oo

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ARIREEBER (E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BREFRANER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ARRAEBFARWFENT  (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Actual
Place of percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration registered | attributable to
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company | Principal activities
TMAL FMEER ERTEBER | AAREGRE
FAT EESEY R A ERGAN | TBEHR
BRIEBEEFRAF PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100%  Property development
Ningbo Kaifa Real HE /R ER, AR #10,000,0007T ESE
Estate Co., Ltd.
ERHEEXBRAR
AEGEEXERAF PRG/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 43%  Property development
Hefei Yangfa Real B/ FEA AR%10,000,0007T MERE
Estate Co., Ltd. **
AEGEBEERRR™
BEEGEXFERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 31%  Property development
Hefei Zeyang Real hE /BN AR #50,000,0007T MERE
Estate Co., Ltd. ***
BEEGEEERRA™
hEmBREXEARAR PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 45%  Property development
Ruian Hongding Real hE /R E R AR #10,000,0007T ESE
Estate Co., Ltd. **
mxmEREFARAR™
AMEEEXARARF PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 41%  Property development
Taizhou Xingde Real HE /R E R AR 10,000,0007C MERE

Estate Co., Ltd. ***
AMBEEEERAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AR REEER (E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BEFRAANER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ADEEEFRROHEOT : (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Actual
Place of percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration registered | attributable to
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company | Principal activities
TEMREL L i B R BRITEER/ | FARAEERE
FAH =ik R BEREAL | TEEH
BRIEEEFRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100%  Property development
Ningbo Kailv Real HE /R ER AR #10,000,0007T ELHE:
Estate Co., Ltd.
ERNEEXBRAR
LARABEERBRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100%  Property development
Shanghai Yinbang Industrial hE/FEA AR%20,000,0007T MERE
Development Co., Ltd.
FERAERERARAA
MEMEGEHEREERATF PRC/Mainland China RMB645,000,000 34%  Property development
Tongxiang Zeyang Property e/ E R AR #645,000,0007T MERE
Development Co., Ltd. ***
RATEGEHEREARAR™
BEREEEREERAF PRC/Mainland China RMB101,527,700 52%  Property development
Qinghai Hengchuang Property hE /R E R AR#101,527,7007T ESE
Development Co., Ltd. **
BRERFHEREBRAR
BERBEHEREER AR PRG/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 100%  Investment holding
Hefei Geyang Property mE/hE AL AR %100,000,0007C (Note) #&EEK
Development Co., Ltd. (P &)

AERGEHERE AR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ARIREEBER (E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BREFRANER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ARRAEBFARWFENT  (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Actual
Place of percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration registered | attributable to
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company | Principal activities
TMAL FMEER ERTLER/ | ADAEGRE
FAT EESE AR ERGAN | TBEHR
BREBELERAH PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 43%  Property development
Ningbo Honghui Real HE /R ER, AR #10,000,0007T ESE
Estate Co., Ltd. ***
ERBEEXBRAR
MIMTREAERBRAR PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 56%  Property development
Zhejiang Xinyuan Investment RE /R E AN AR #10,000,0007T Ek
Management Co., Ltd.**
HIMTREERERAE
KEBREXRBRAR PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 46%  Property development
Yongjia Hongrui Real e/ E R AR#20,000,0007T mERE
Estate Co., Ltd.***
XEBEREXFERDA™
BKHEEXBRAR PRC/Mainland China RMB2,200,000,000 27%  Property development
Lishui Hanhe Real RE/RERL AR #%2,200,000,0007T E kS
Estate Co., Ltd.***
BKBaEXBRAR™
BERBRBEBRAH PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 43%  Property development
Ningbo Hongda Real HE /R R AR 10,000,0007C MERE
Estate Co., Ltd. ***
EREREZBRAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AR REEER (E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BEFRAANER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ADEEEFRROHEOT : (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Actual
Place of percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration registered | attributable to
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company | Principal activities
TMEL FMEER ERTEER/ | AAREERE
SN EEME AR A EREAL | TEEH
BMTRIIEEBR AR PRC/Mainland China RMB100,000,000 51%  Property development
Wenzhou Yinchuan Real e/ E R AR 100,000,000 MERE
Estate Co., Ltd. **
BINTIRII EEARA A
BRIGEEERAR PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100%  Property development
Nantong Kaiyang Real hE/FEA AR%20,000,0007T MERE
Estate Co., Ltd.
BRIGEEXERAA
REBNEEFR AT PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100%  Property development
Chengdu Hankai Real e/ E R AR#20,000,0007T mERE
Estate Co., Ltd.
RN EXBRAF
BERNREXEBRAF PRC/Mainland China RMB50,000,000 70%  Property development
Wuhu Kaiyin Real hE /R E R AR #50,000,0007T MERE
Estate Co., Ltd.*™
HERREEBRAA
BHKREEBRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB898,000,000 70%  Property development
Wuhu Maoyin Real hE/RERL A #:898,000,0007 ES S

Estate Co., Ltd. **
BEREREEERAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. ARIREEBER (E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BREFRANER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ARRAEBFARWFENT  (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Actual
Place of percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration registered | attributable to
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company | Principal activities
TR EL L i B R ERTLER/ | ADAEGRE
FAT EESE AR ERGAN | TBEHR
EFMREHERERRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB294,000,000 50%  Property development
Chongaing Hanrong Property HE /R ER, AR #294,000,0007T (Note) ~ #5FI%
Development Co., Ltd. *** i3]
EERREHEREERAR™
HBREEXBRAF PRC/Mainland China RMB39,215,700 100%  Property development
Chengdu Hanwei Real R/ R E A, AR139,215,7007T (Note)  ¥EF%
Estate Co., Ltd. (B 52)
HEBEEXARAA
RESBHEECEEBFNABLE PRC/Mainland China RMB747,100,000 80%  Property development
Chengdu Dinghan Joint Intelligence HE /R E R, AR#747,100,0007T (Note) ~ #ZFI%
Enterprises Management (3
Consulting Partnership™
RBEAE A EERARASREE
BRENEZXERAA PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100%  Property development
Nanjing Yuanhe Real hE /R ER AR #10,000,0007T ELE

Estate Co., Ltd.
ARENEEERAF
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AR REEER (E)

INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
BEFRAANER(E)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

ADEEEFRROHEOT : (8)

Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows:

(continued)
Actual
Place of percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration registered | attributable to
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company | Principal activities
TMEL FMEER BRITEER/ | FARAEERE
FATHE EEEY iR A EBRBESL | 2K
ERIXEZBRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB19,610,000 100%  Property development
Ningbo Kalye Real HE /R ER AR#19,610,0007T (Note) #WIER%
Estate Co., Ltd. (P 32)
ERNEEXBRAR
HRREEXBRAR PRG/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 100%  Property development
Nanjing Haoyuan Real RE/ RN AR #20,000,0007T E ik
Estate Co., Ltd.
BREREZXERAA
ARBBEEERAH PRC/Mainland China RMB20,000,000 70%  Property development
Nanjing Hanyang Real mE /R E R AR#20,000,0007T MmERE
Estate Co., Ltd.**
HRBGERERAR
REBRSTEXBRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 34%  Property development
Chengdu Hancheng High Tower hE /B R AR #10,000,0007T ESE

Real Estate Co., Ltd.**
REBKETEEBRAR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b T E R

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP 1. AR REEER ()
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)
Information about subsidiaries (continued) BEBETFRARNERE
Particulars of the Company’s principal subsidiaries are as follows: KRB EZFRARMFBOT : (B
(continued)
Actual
Place of percentage
incorporation/ Issued ordinary/ of equity
registration registered | attributable to
Subsidiaries and business share capital the Company | Principal activities
FEMAYL/ EME R ERTEER/ | AAREERE
FAT EESE R A EBRBESL | TBEE
REBGEEEBEAGRLE PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 100%  Property development
Chengdu Hanyang Enterprises mEhE R AR#1,000,0007 S

Management Consulting Partnership
ARG EXEEAAGBLER

LBBERBEXBRAA PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 100%  Property development
Shanghai Aifa Real Estate Co., Ltd. RE /R E A AR#10,000,0007 (Note)  #ERI%

FBBEBRBEXBRAF (Bt 53)

BERZREEBRAF PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 70%  Property development
Wuhu Xuanyin Real HE /R ER, AR#10,000,0007T ES e

Estate Co., Ltd.**
BRZREXERAA

The English names of all group companies registered in the PRC FERFEFMHEEARMNEXEETY
represent the best efforts made by the management of the Company BHAARIERERZAS NEZEAFH
to translate the Chinese names of these companies as they do not XEBBEMS  DEAEYEENEE
have official English names. The legal form of these principal PRC e FXNIEBEMNZETEFRRTRAMN
subsidiaries disclosed above is limited liability company. FEEEABERRT

The above table lists the subsidiaries of the Company which, in the ERIDAEERATEFEAEBRFTEE
opinion of the directors, principally affected the results for the year or BERER AN EB AL FEENEARTF
formed a substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To give NA) - EERE - REHEEMTARMNER
details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion of the directors, FERFBERE -

result in particulars of excessive length.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

1. CORPORATE AND GROUP
INFORMATION (CONTINUED)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

Note:

The Group legally transferred the equity interests in the following subsidiaries as
collateral to companies as at 31 December 2021.

Chengdu Dinghan Joint Intelligence Enterprises Management Consulting Partnership
RESHEECETELAEBLE

Chengdu Hanwei Real Estate Co., Ltd. ik #5## & 2B R A 7]

Ningbo Kaiye Real Estate Co., Ltd. ZF S EEXFR AR

Shanghai Aifa Real Estate Co., Ltd. b8 E % B2 AR A A

Hefei Geyang Property Development Co., Ltd. & LTI = EFI 3 B R A 7
Chongging Hanrong Property Development Co., Ltd. EE#EiFEREGR AR

Under the afore-stated arrangements, the Group was obliged to purchase the
collateral equities at a fixed amount on a future date upon repayment of the
borrowings from certain legal non-controlling shareholders. The Group retains
the power to control these companies in the ordinary course of business by
consensual agreements with legal equity holders. In this regard, considering
the facts that the substance of the arrangements is to collateralise some equity
interests in these companies for the borrowings for project development and
the Group retains the practical ability to govern the financial and operating
policies of these project companies so as to obtain benefits from the operating
activities of these project companies, the directors of the Company are of the
view that the financial position and operating results of these companies should
be consolidated into the Group’s financial statements.

Wenzhou Kaiyang is registered as a wholly-foreign-owned enterprise
under PRC law.

** These companies are subsidiaries of non-wholly-owned subsidiaries of the
Company and, accordingly, are accounted for as subsidiaries by virtue of
the Company’s control over them.

As the Group has exposure or rights to variable returns from its
involvement with those companies, and has the ability to affect those
returns through its majority voting position and the existing rights to direct
the relevant activities, including, but not limited, to the budget, pricing
and promotion strategies of these companies, the Group has control
over these companies and these companies are thus accounted for as
subsidiaries of the Group.

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

RAREEER (F)

BEFLARANER(H)
G

R2021F12A310 » AKEHR 7 F AR
PR ZEET ARERERY -

Percentage of equity pledged

as at 31 December 2021
R2021F12 A1 HNEREHR B DL

50%
49%
49%
48%
31%
30%

Big Bz sk AREAEENERERRER
REAE B B B E £ 8 A TOAE SRR S
BHEMRE - AEERBERTEHBIETARB
BURE R A AR B R IBHEHZ SRR
RN - Bt E - ZEINBERINEL TR
TH B B EERHZE QRN S BRI RIER
MEAEEREERENEEZETEBE ARMNE
BREEBERIABZEFREB R AL L EEER
M - ARAEERBRZE RN BN KL
BREREA NRIEARNEEMBEIRE

* OBMNIBERBTEIEEEMAIEEE
p= S

O RZERARARBNFEEEFRARNTA
Al AARARRRZEARREAZGEMA
BRI F AR -

HRAEER2EZERRMERRARE
ZENEZO0%  BREBRERZERAFMN
ZERERTE LM R AEEGZE
ARIMARLEE  BEETRREE - &
BRIEERE  AESEHZERARHERE
R MRERRINERERENFAR o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b E T EL )

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION 2.1 fmBLE %

These financial statements have been prepared in accordance with
International Financial Reporting Standards (“IFRSs”) (which include all
International Financial Reporting Standards, International Accounting
Standards (“IASs”) and Standing Interpretations Committee
interpretations) approved by the International Accounting Standards
Board (the “IASB”) and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. They have been prepared under the historical
cost convention, except for investment properties, financial assets at
fair value through profit or loss (“FVTPL”), equity investments designed
at fair value through other comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and other
financial liabilities which have been measured at fair value. These
financial statements are presented in Renminbi (“RMB”) and all values
are rounded to the nearest thousand except when otherwise indicated.

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 December 2021, the Group recorded a
net loss of RMB428,771,000. As at 31 December 2021, the Group’s
total bank and other borrowings and senior notes amounted to
RMB12,648,506,000, out of which RMB6,739,984,000 will be due
for repayment within the next twelve months, while its cash and
cash equivalents amounted to RMB1,051,775,000. Subsequent
to 31 December 2021, the Group did not repay a principal of
US$40,360,000 (equivalent to RMB257,323,000) and interest of
US$22,275,000 (equivalent to RMB142,019,000) for certain senior
notes due in January and March 2022, respectively. On 1 April 2022,
the Group received the acceleration notices from the holders of at
least 25% in an aggregate principal amount of the senior notes due in
July 2022 and April 2023, respectively. As a result, senior notes and
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings with an aggregate principal
amount of RMB4,189,720,000 became default or cross-default, out
of which RMB3,307,425,000 were repayable on demand. A winding-
up petition was filed by certain senior notes holders against the
Company and an indirectly wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company,
respectively, on 18 February 2022.

The above conditions indicate the existence of material uncertainties
which may cast significant doubt over the Group’s ability to continue
as a going concern. In view of such circumstances, the directors of
the Company have undertaken a number of plans and measures to
improve the Group’s liquidity and financial position, including:
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Going concern basis (continued)

U

(i)

(i)

(iv)

The Group has appointed financial and legal advisers to assist it
in a holistic restructuring of its senior notes, in order to reach a
consensual solution with all the stakeholders as soon as practical;

The Group has appointed legal counsels in relation to the winding-
up petitions;

The Group has been actively negotiating with the Group’s existing
lenders to seek renewal or extension for repayment of the Group’s
bank and other borrowings;

The Group will continue to actively communicate with banks to
timely secure relevant project development loans for qualified
project development;

The Group will continue to seek other alternative financing and
borrowings to finance the settlement of its existing financial
obligations and future operating and capital expenditures;

The Group has prepared a business strategy plan mainly focusing
on the acceleration of the sales of properties;

The Group has implemented measures to speed up the collection
of outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and
expenses; and

(viii) The Group will continue to seek suitable opportunities to dispose

of its equity interests in certain project development companies in
order to generate additional cash inflows.

The directors of the Company are of the opinion that, taking into
account the above plans and measures, the Group will have
sufficient working capital to finance its operations and meet its
financial obligations as and when they fall due within the following
twelve months from 31 December 2021. Accordingly, the directors
of the Company are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the year ended 31
December 2021 on a going concern basis.

MEHRERHE @
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b E T EL )

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 21 #mBE%E(F)

Going concern basis (continued)

Notwithstanding the above, significant uncertainties exist as to
whether the management of the Group will be able to implement the
aforementioned plans and measures. Whether the Group will be able
to continue as a going concern will depend upon the Group’s ability
to generate adequate financing and operating cash flows through the
following:

(i) successfully completing the holistic restructuring of its senior
notes;

(i) successfully dismissing the winding-up petitions;

(i) successfully negotiating with the Group’s existing lenders for the
renewal or extension for repayment of the Group’s bank and other
borrowings;

(iv) successfully securing project development loans for qualified
project development timely;

(v) successfully obtaining additional new sources of financing as and
when needed;

(vi) successfully carrying out the Group’s business strategy plan
including the acceleration of the sales of properties;

(vii) successfully implementing measures to speed up the collection
of outstanding sales proceeds and effectively control costs and
expenses; and

(viii) successfully disposing of the Group’s equity interests in project
development companies when suitable.

Should the Group be unable to operate as a going concern,
adjustments may have to be made to write down the carrying values
of assets to their recoverable amounts, to provide for any further
liabilities which might arise, and to reclassify non-current assets
and non-current liabilities as current assets and current liabilities,
respectively. The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected in
the consolidated financial statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED)

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include the financial statements
of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the
“Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2021. A subsidiary is an
entity (including a structured entity), directly or indirectly, controlled
by the Company. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee
and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the
investee (i.e., existing rights that give the Group the current ability to
direct the relevant activities of the investee).

When the Company has, directly or indirectly, less than a majority
of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power
over an investee, including:

(@ the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the
investee;

(b) rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and

(c) the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared for the
same reporting period as the Company, using consistent accounting
policies. The results of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on
which the Group obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income are
attributed to the owners of the parent of the Group and to the non-
controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling interests
having a deficit balance. All intra-group assets and liabilities, equity,
income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between
members of the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b T E R

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

21 BASIS OF PREPARATION (CONTINUED) 21 #mBE%E(H)

Basis of consolidation (continued)

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee if
facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to one or
more of the three elements of control described above. A change in
the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is
accounted for as an equity transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises (i) the
assets (including goodwill) and liabilities of the subsidiary, (i) the
carrying amount of any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and recognises (i) the fair
value of the consideration received, (i) the fair value of any investment
retained and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or loss.
The Group’s share of components previously recognised in other
comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss or retained
profits, as appropriate, on the same basis as would be required if the
Group had directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES

AND DISCLOSURES

The Group has adopted the following revised IFRSs for the first time
for the current year’s financial statements.

Interest Rate Benchmark Reform
— Phase 2

Amendments to IFRS 9,
IAS 39, IFRS 7,
IFRS 4 and IFRS 16

Covid-19-Related Rent Concessions
beyond 30 June 2021 (early adopted)

Amendment to IFRS 16
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 BT BERNEE RIEE (8

AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

RETERVBEREENNEERTZEH
FIaT

The nature and the impact of the revised IFRSs are described below:

(a) Amendments to IFRS 9, IAS 39, IFRS 7, IFRS 4 and IFRS 16 (a) B3R AF REER TSR ERRF X

address issues not dealt with in the previous amendments which
affect financial reporting when an existing interest rate benchmark
is replaced with an alternative risk-free rate (“RFR”). The
amendments provide a practical expedient to allow the effective
interest rate to be updated without adjusting the carrying amount
of financial assets and liabilities when accounting for changes in
the basis for determining the contractual cash flows of financial
assets and liabilities, if the change is a direct consequence of the
interest rate benchmark reform and the new basis for determining
the contractual cash flows is economically equivalent to the
previous basis immediately preceding the change. In addition,
the amendments permit changes required by the interest rate
benchmark reform to be made to hedge designations and
hedge documentation without the hedging relationship being
discontinued. Any gains or losses that could arise on transition
are dealt with through the normal requirements of IFRS 9 to
measure and recognise hedge ineffectiveness. The amendments
also provide a temporary relief to entities from having to meet the
separately identifiable requirement when an RFR is designated as
a risk component. The relief allows an entity, upon designation of
the hedge, to assume that the separately identifiable requirement
is met, provided the entity reasonably expects the RFR risk
component to become separately identifiable within the next
24 months. Furthermore, the amendments require an entity
to disclose additional information to enable users of financial
statements to understand the effect of interest rate benchmark
reform on an entity’s financial instruments and risk management
strategy. The Group had certain interest-bearing bank borrowings
denominated in RMB and foreign currencies based on the
exchange rates quoted by the People’s Bank of China as at 31
December 2021. Since the interest rates of these borrowings
were not replaced by RFRs during the period, the amendments
did not have any impact on the financial position and performance
of the Group. If the interest rates of these borrowings are replaced
by RFRs in a future period, the Group will apply this practical
expedient upon the modification of these borrowings provided
that the “economically equivalent” criterion is met.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b E T EL )

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 BT BERNEE RIKE (&)

AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

(b) Amendment to IFRS 16 issued in March 2021 extends the
availability of the practical expedient for lessees to elect not
to apply lease modification accounting for rent concessions
arising as a direct consequence of the covid-19 pandemic by
12 months. Accordingly, the practical expedient applies to rent
concessions for which any reduction in lease payments affects
only payments originally due on or before 30 June 2022, provided
the other conditions for applying the practical expedient are met.
The amendment is effective retrospectively for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 April 2021 with any cumulative effect of
initially applying the amendment recognised as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained profits at the beginning of the
current accounting period. Earlier application is permitted.

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January 2021
and elected not to apply lease modification accounting for all rent
concessions granted by the lessors as a result of the covid-19
pandemic for the year ended 31 December 2021 as the reduction
in the lease payments was insignificant. The amendment did
not have any significant impact on the financial position and the
performance of the Group.

The Group has changed its accounting policy for the classification
of the interest paid in the consolidated statement of cash flows from
operating activities to financing activities during the current year
(the “Policy Change”) so as to provide reliable and more relevant
information of cash flows generated from financial liabilities. In the
opinion of the directors of the Company, it is more appropriate to
classify all cash flows of the Group’s borrowings as financing activities
in the consolidated statement of cash flows and the Policy Change
can result in a consistent presentation which is beneficial to users of
the financial statements to understand all the related cash flows of the
same financial liabilities and provides more comparable information
with industry peers.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

22 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES 22 BT BERNEE RIEE (8
AND DISCLOSURES (CONTINUED)

Set out below are the amounts by which each financial statement line TREFHIBZE20214F 2020512 H31H 1k
item was affected for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020 FERBEEE M EN S I HmE A
as a result of the Policy Change: Be® -

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETTT

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
RETHELENREESRE
Interest paid &2 15 F.8 1,438,251 1,211,909

Increase in cash flows related to operating activities
KREEBHEBNIR S REL M 1,438,251 1,211,909

CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES @i EZEBELANWRERE
Interest paid 2 1 F.& (1,438,251) (1,211,909)

Decrease in cash flows related to financing activities
BEEEEENR 2R ER D (1,438,251) (1,211,909)

NET (DECREASE)/INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
RERBREZSEWRERD), BN - -

The adoption of the Policy Change has had no impact on the KB REHEGREaERR  FE2HK

)
consolidated statements of profit or loss, comprehensive income, AR BREVBRAREGEEREH R
financial position and changes in equity. W E -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

MEHRFTHEE =

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS

The Group has not applied the following new and revised IFRSs,

that have been issued but are not yet effective, in these financial

statements.
Amendments to IFRS 3 Reference to the Conceptual
Framework

Amendments to IFRS 10 Sale or Contribution of Assets between

and IAS 28 an Investor and its Associate or Joint
Venture ®
IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts ?

Amendment to IFRS 17 Initial Application of IFRS 17 and

IFRS 9-Comparative Information ?

Amendments to IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts %4

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or
Non-current?

Amendments to IAS 1 and
IFRS Practice
Statement 2

Disclosure of Accounting Policies 2

Amendments to IAS 8 Definition of Accounting Estimates 2

Amendments to IAS 12 Deferred Tax related to Assets
and Liabilities arising from a Single
Transaction ?

Amendments to IAS 16 Property, Plant and Equipment:
Proceeds before Intended Use

Amendments to IAS 37 Onerous Contracts — Cost of Fulfilling a
Contract’

Amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9,
lllustrative Examples accompanying
IFRS 16, and IAS 41 '

Annual Improvements to
IFRS Standards
2018-2020
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS

(CONTINUED)

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2022
2 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023

9 No mandatory effective date yet determined but available for adoption

& As a consequence of the amendments to IFRS 17 issued in June 2020,
IFRS 4 was amended to extend the temporary exemption that permits
insurers to apply IAS 39 rather than IFRS 9 for annual periods beginning
before 1 January 2023

Further information about those IFRSs that are expected to be
applicable to the Group is described below.

Amendments to IFRS 3 are intended to replace a reference to the
previous Framework for the Preparation and Presentation of Financial
Statements with a reference to the Conceptual Framework for Financial
Reporting issued in March 2018 without significantly changing its
requirements. The amendments also add to IFRS 3 an exception to its
recognition principle for an entity to refer to the Conceptual Framework
to determine what constitutes an asset or a liability. The exception
specifies that, for liabilities and contingent liabilities that would be
within the scope of IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 if they were incurred separately
rather than assumed in a business combination, an entity applying
IFRS 3 should refer to IAS 37 or IFRIC 21 respectively instead of the
Conceptual Framework. Furthermore, the amendments clarify that
contingent assets do not qualify for recognition at the acquisition date.
The Group expects to adopt the amendments prospectively from 1
January 2022. Since the amendments apply prospectively to business
combinations for which the acquisition date is on or after the date of
first application, the Group will not be affected by these amendments
on the date of transition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS 23 C f8# {8 &4 M5 BB B %

(CONTINUED)

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 address an inconsistency
between the requirements in IFRS 10 and in IAS 28 in dealing with the
sale or contribution of assets between an investor and its associate
or joint venture. The amendments require a full recognition of a gain
or loss when the sale or contribution of assets between an investor
and its associate or joint venture constitutes a business. For a
transaction involving assets that do not constitute a business, a gain
or loss resulting from the transaction is recognised in the investor’s
profit or loss only to the extent of the unrelated investor’s interest in
that associate or joint venture. The amendments are to be applied
prospectively. The previous mandatory effective date of amendments
to IFRS 10 and IAS 28 was removed by the IASB in December 2015
and a new mandatory effective date will be determined after the
completion of a broader review of accounting for associates and joint
ventures. However, the amendments are available for adoption now.

Amendments to IAS 1 Classification of Liabilities as Current or Non-
current clarify the requirements for classifying liabilities as current or
non-current. The amendments specify that if an entity’s right to defer
settlement of a liability is subject to the entity complying with specified
conditions, the entity has a right to defer settlement of the liability at
the end of the reporting period if it complies with those conditions
at that date. Classification of a liability is unaffected by the likelihood
that the entity will exercise its right to defer settlement of the liability.
The amendments also clarify the situations that are considered a
settlement of a liability. The amendments are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied
retrospectively. Earlier application is permitted. The amendments are
not expected to have any significant impact on the Group’s financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS

(CONTINUED)

Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure of Accounting Policies require
entities to disclose their material accounting policy information rather
than their significant accounting policies. Accounting policy information
is material if, when considered together with other information included
in an entity’s financial statements, it can reasonably be expected
to influence decisions that the primary users of general purpose
financial statements make on the basis of those financial statements.
Amendments to IFRS Practice Statement 2 provide non-mandatory
guidance on how to apply the concept of materiality to accounting
policy disclosures. Amendments to IAS 1 are effective for annual
periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and earlier application
is permitted. Since the guidance provided in the amendments to IFRS
Practice Statement 2 is non-mandatory, an effective date for these
amendments is not necessary. The Group is currently assessing
the impact of the amendments on the Group’s accounting policy
disclosures.

Amendments to IAS 8 clarify the distinction between changes in
accounting estimates and changes in accounting policies. Accounting
estimates are defined as monetary amounts in financial statements
that are subject to measurement uncertainty. The amendments also
clarify how entities use measurement techniques and inputs to develop
accounting estimates. The amendments are effective for annual
reporting periods beginning on or after 1 January 2023 and apply to
changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates
that occur on or after the start of that period. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 12 narrow the scope of the initial recognition
exception so that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise
to equal taxable and deductible temporary differences, such as
leases and decommissioning obligations. Therefore, entities are
required to recognise a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability
for temporary differences arising from these transactions. The
amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on
or after 1 January 2023 and shall be applied to transactions related
to leases and decommissioning obligations at the beginning of the
earliest comparative period presented, with any cumulative effect
recognised as an adjustment to the opening balance of retained profits
or other component of equity as appropriate at that date. In addition,
the amendments shall be applied prospectively to transactions other
than leases and decommissioning obligations. Earlier application is
permitted.
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23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS 23 C f8# {8 &4 M5 BB B %

(CONTINUED)

The Group has early adopted the amendment on 1 January 2021
and recognised a deferred tax asset and a deferred tax liability for
temporary differences arising from lease activities. The amendments
did not have any significant impact on the financial position and the
performance of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 16 prohibit an entity from deducting from the
cost of an item of property, plant and equipment any proceeds from
selling items produced while bringing that asset to the location and
condition necessary for it to be capable of operating in the manner
intended by management. Instead, an entity recognises the proceeds
from selling any such items, and the cost of those items, in profit or
loss. The amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or
after 1 January 2022 and shall be applied retrospectively only to items
of property, plant and equipment made available for use on or after the
beginning of the earliest period presented in the financial statements
in which the entity first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. The amendments are not expected to have any significant
impact on the Group’s financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 37 clarify that for the purpose of assessing
whether a contract is onerous under IAS 37, the cost of fulfilling the
contract comprises the costs that relate directly to the contract.
Costs that relate directly to a contract include both the incremental
costs of fulfilling that contract (e.g., direct labour and materials) and
an allocation of other costs that relate directly to fulfilling that contract
(e.g., an allocation of the depreciation charge for an item of property,
plant and equipment used in fulfilling the contract as well as contract
management and supervision costs). General and administrative
costs do not relate directly to a contract and are excluded unless they
are explicitly chargeable to the counterparty under the contract. The
amendments are effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2022 and shall be applied to contracts for which an entity has
not yet fulfilled all its obligations at the beginning of the annual reporting
period in which it first applies the amendments. Earlier application is
permitted. Any cumulative effect of initially applying the amendments
shall be recognised as an adjustment to the opening equity at the date
of initial application without restating the comparative information. The
amendments are not expected to have any significant impact on the
Group’s financial statements.

154 DAFA PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED KAkt =EHABR AT

HEA ()
AEEER202151 518 RBRAEMIE
§T 0 FE R 8 B A OB IE BB A
FERBRELEHER - REETLE
YR R BB R R R REREAEX

By 488
T2 o

RERTERE16RMNEBRIELERLY
X BEARERBEAATHGREEES
BEEERENAESNE(BRUERKF
) EREPHEREBEENEMMASZHR -
MR BERABLEEMNEHEERNME
AR EKAF AR © ZFEF] 52022
FIATERZERFARNFEREER -
EHEBERNERERENMBHREE
5 1) B 5 B F aA B 3 2 1& AT R R B9 )
X BMEARBEERBEVER  LAFFRE
FER - BHZSEIB I eHAREY
BRFEKRERMEATE -

BER gt ZEREI7HRMERRIE - BLRE
BFR 25 R EI7TRAEEREEEERE
EmS  BITARMNKABRRESRER
MHEREARMKA - BEREZBBNKAEE
BT e ROBERA(FIMERS T R
F) R EETTE R ERAENEMKAD R
(Bl DEEBTERMAYE - BB R&
IR B T E R SUARE R & 12 B ES B X
K)o —RRITERARALES R HEE X
® - BRIFARAEAYF IWE - BRIH
HPEREID - ZFBRIN2022F1 1A
ZEFENFEERRER  ERARER
REREBBETNFERSBRERER
HABITHEZMEENAR - LAFESR
&R - I EAETNEMNREZERR
IR A MER S RVEENFE - B
BASIILBRER - BHRZFEITLETE
BARKENHEREERTAEATZE -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

23 ISSUED BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE IFRSS 2.3 2 J8# 18 7k 4 30 5 B R Bt 7%

(CONTINUED) HEER|(4])
Annual Improvements to IFRS Standards 2018-2020 sets out [ % B 7% 7 25 2 Rl 1Y) F S22 (2018F 2
amendments to IFRS 1, IFRS 9, lllustrative Examples accompanying 20204F) &5\ B BR BF 75 3 5 22 R B 1 5% -
IFRS 16, and IAS 41. Details of the amendments that are expected to BREF 7SR HE RISE 05 « PR B TSR &5 B
be applicable to the Group are as follows: F 165 BEM 2 #HI AV EFT R BB & 5t A Al
FA415 - HEKERARAEENZEEE]
FEMT
e IFRS 9 Financial Instruments: clarifies the fees that an entity o BIRMBEmMELRNESFLHTA &
includes when assessing whether the terms of a new or modified BERERBAMES LB eR
financial liability are substantially different from the terms of the BEMNKFEFRERAENERTFE
original financial liability. These fees include only those paid or EEZENBEENER - ZZEHR
received between the borrower and the lender, including fees EREEBERAEERAZHE Z sk
paid or received by either the borrower or lender on the other’s WEHER  BEERAXERAR
behalf. An entity applies the amendment to financial liabilities that REMASINIWBHNER - BEEH
are modified or exchanged on or after the beginning of the annual FHEIIEARNERERERAEHE
reporting period in which the entity first applies the amendment. FIRMFERSHAR I CBIERIR
The amendment is effective for annual periods beginning on B e BE - &IBFIR2022F1 A1
or after 1 January 2022. Earlier application is permitted. The Holz &FABHMEERBER - AR
amendment is not expected to have a significant impact on the FIREER - BHZBII B TEEAR
Group’s financial statements. SEVBHRRENBEATE -
e IFRS 16 Leases: removes the illustration of payments from the o HRHBEMEELERNFEIHHEE « Mk
lessor relating to leasehold improvements in lllustrative Example B B 75 3R 5 22 R 55 1655 B BT 2 #8151
13 accompanying IFRS 16. This removes potential confusion 1I3FEAEEMEREHHBEARNK
regarding the treatment of lease incentives when applying IFRS R o WWERBERNEABR Y BERS
16. ERF16REBEHE R BRER

HH)EREIRE °

r Parax

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 20 ERETHTHERBE
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Investments in associates and joint ventures REBEATREELENRE
An associate is an entity in which the Group has a long term interest of BE AR AREERE BT DR20%&
generally not less than 20% of the equity voting rights and over which AEERTRERAEZNER By
it is in a position to exercise significant influence. Significant influence is ERESATEN BAFENE2HEE
the power to participate in the financial and operating policy decisions BHRNPEMESERRNED - BT2
of the investee, but is not control or joint control over those policies. el sk R I SRR AIRE S o
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

A joint venture is a type of joint arrangement whereby the parties that
have joint control of the arrangement have rights to the net assets of
the joint venture. Joint control is the contractually agreed sharing of
control of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions about the
relevant activities require the unanimous consent of the parties sharing
control.

The Group’s investments in associates and joint ventures are stated in
the consolidated statement of financial position at the Group’s share of
net assets under the equity method of accounting, less any impairment
losses. Adjustments are made to bring into line any dissimilar
accounting policies that may exist. The Group’s share of the post-
acquisition results and other comprehensive income of associates and
joint ventures are included in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss. In addition, when there has been a change recognised directly
in the equity of the associate or joint venture, the Group recognises
its share of any changes, when applicable, in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and its associates or joint
ventures are eliminated to the extent of the Group’s investments in the
associates or joint ventures, except where unrealised losses provide
evidence of an impairment of the assets transferred. Goodwill arising
from the acquisition of associates or joint ventures is included as part
of the Group’s investments in associates or joint ventures.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments in associates and joint ventures
(continued)

If an investment in an associate becomes an investment in a joint
venture or vice versa, the retained interest is not remeasured. Instead,
the investment continues to be accounted for under the equity
method. In all other cases, upon loss of significant influence over the
associate or joint control over the joint venture, the Group measures
and recognises any retained investment at its fair value. Any difference
between the carrying amount of the associate or joint venture upon
loss of significant influence or joint control and the fair value of the
retained investment and proceeds from disposal is recognised in profit
or loss.

When an investment in associate or a joint venture is classified as held
for sale, it is accounted for in accordance with IFRS 5 Non-current
Assets Held for Sale and Discontinued Operations.

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The consideration transferred is measured at the acquisition
date fair value which is the sum of the acquisition date fair values of
assets transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the Group to
the former owners of the acquiree and the equity interests issued
by the Group in exchange for control of the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the
non-controlling interests in the acquiree that are present ownership
interests and entitle their holders to a proportionate share of net assets
in the event of liquidation at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components of non-
controlling interests are measured at fair value. Acquisition-related
costs are expensed as incurred.
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

The Group determines that it has acquired a business when
the acquired set of activities and assets includes an input and a
substantive process that together significantly contribute to the ability
to create outputs.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets
and liabilities assumed for appropriate classification and designation
in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances
and pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the
separation of embedded derivatives in host contracts of the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the previously held
equity interest is remeasured at its acquisition date fair value and any
resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.

Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer
is recognised at fair value at the acquisition date. Contingent
consideration classified as an asset or liability is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss. Contingent
consideration that is classified as equity is not remeasured and
subsequent settlement is accounted for within equity.

Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the
aggregate of the consideration transferred, the amount recognised for
non-controlling interests and any fair value of the Group’s previously
held equity interests in the acquiree over the identifiable assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this consideration and
other items is lower than the fair value of the net assets acquired, the
difference is, after reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain
on bargain purchase.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any
accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is tested for impairment
annually or more frequently if events or changes in circumstances
indicate that the carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31 December. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated to each of the
Group’s cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating units,
that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the Group are
assigned to those units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit (group of cash-generating units) to which the
goodwill relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) is less than the carrying amount,
an impairment loss is recognised. An impairment loss recognised for
goodwill is not reversed in a subsequent period.

Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units) and part of the operation within
that unit is disposed of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the operation when
determining the gain or loss on the disposal. Goodwill disposed of in
these circumstances is measured based on the relative value of the
operation disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement

The Group measures its investment properties, derivative financial
instruments and equity investments at fair value at the end of each
reporting period. Fair value is the price that would be received to
sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value
measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to
sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either in the principal
market for the asset or liability, or in the absence of a principal
market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability. The
principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by
the Group. The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using
the assumptions that market participants would use when pricing
the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their
economic best interest.

A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account
a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using
the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market
participant that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

The Group uses valuation techniques that are appropriate in the
circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure
fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and
minimising the use of unobservable inputs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Fair value measurement (continued)

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in
the financial statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy,
described as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant
to the fair value measurement as a whole:

Level 1 —based on quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities

Level 2 —based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
observable, either directly or indirectly

Level 3 —based on valuation techniques for which the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement is
unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements
on a recurring basis, the Group determines whether transfers have
occurred between levels in the hierarchy by reassessing categorisation
(based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when annual impairment
testing for an asset is required (other than inventories, contract assets,
deferred tax assets, financial assets, investment properties and non-
current assets/a disposal group classified as held for sale), the asset’s
recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s recoverable amount is
the higher of the asset’s or cash-generating unit’s value in use and
its fair value less costs of disposal, and is determined for an individual
asset, unless the asset does not generate cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other assets or groups of assets, in which
case the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-generating
unit to which the asset belongs. In testing a cash-generating unit for
impairment, a portion of the carrying amount of a corporate asset (e.g.,
a headquarters building) is allocated to an individual cash-generating
unit if it can be allocated on a reasonable and consistent basis or,
otherwise, to the smallest group of cash-generating units.
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying amount of an
asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value using
a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the
time value of money and the risks specific to the asset. An impairment
loss is charged to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which
it arises in those expense categories consistent with the function of the
impaired asset.

An assessment is made at the end of each reporting period as to
whether there is an indication that previously recognised impairment
losses may no longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated. A previously
recognised impairment loss of an asset other than goodwiill is reversed
only if there has been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an amount higher
than the carrying amount that would have been determined (net of any
depreciation/amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years. A reversal of such an impairment loss
is credited to the statement of profit or loss in the period in which it
arises, unless the asset is carried at a revalued amount, in which case
the reversal of the impairment loss is accounted for in accordance with
the relevant accounting policy for that revalued asset.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@ the party is a person or a close member of that person’s family
and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group; or

(iiy is a member of the key management personnel of the Group
or of a parent of the Group;

or
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERGTTHERBE ()
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)
Related parties (continued) B 5 (1)
(b) the party is an entity where any of the following conditions applies: b) BEFAERBBERE TIEMN—IEK
4+ :
() the entity and the Group are members of the same group; () ZEBEASEBR-—SBEHNKE
NG
(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture of the other entity (or iy " ERAES—EEBEHS—EED
of a parent, subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the other entity); BR7 - FRAEEFETFAR)E
BENTREERE
(i) the entity and the Group are joint ventures of the same third (i) ZEBEAEERR—F=-F84
party; B
(iv) one entity is a joint venture of a third entity and the other entity vy —ERAF=SEENSG Mfﬁ%
is an associate of the third entity; S—ERAZE-HEENEE
NS
(v) the entity is a post-employment benefit plan for the benefit () ZEBRREH-IBEREENET
of employees of either the Group or an entity related to the REBESAEEBHERNEBE
Group; BE
(vi) the entity is controlled or jointly controlled by a person (Vi) B RS (a)PpTill A L sk R
identified in (a); o
(vi) a person identified in (a)(i) has significant influence over the (vii) (@FTItA THEEBAEEEATE
entity or is a member of the key management personnel of NHBZER(ZEREY ’A A E
the entity (or of a parent of the entity); and EEBABM—ENE :
(viiiy the entity, or any member of a group of which it is a part, (viiiy MRS E A EEHGF A RREE
provides key management personnel services to the Group or EEEBABRBNERENAE
to the parent of the Group. DEEMEEKE R A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EREHTHEBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation

Property, plant and equipment, other than construction in progress,
are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and any impairment
losses. The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly attributable costs of
bringing the asset to its working condition and location for its intended
use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant and equipment
have been put into operation, such as repairs and maintenance, is
normally charged to profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied, the expenditure
for a major inspection is capitalised in the carrying amount of the
asset as a replacement. Where significant parts of property, plant
and equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the Group
recognises such parts as individual assets with specific useful lives and
depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis to write off the cost
of each item of property, plant and equipment to its residual value over
its estimated useful life. The principal estimated useful lives and the
annual depreciation rates are as follows:
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Annual depreciation rates
FHEE

Buildings 5

Motor vehicles Y&

Office equipment and electronic devices A RE R ETEE
Leasehold improvements 72 & ¥ ¥ £ (&

Where parts of an item of property, plant and equipment have different
useful lives, the cost of that item is allocated on a reasonable basis
among the parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at least at each financial year end.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including any significant part
initially recognised is derecognised upon disposal or when no future
economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the statement of profit or
loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the difference between the
net sales proceeds and the carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents a building under decoration, which
is stated at cost less any impairment losses, and is not depreciated.
Cost comprises the direct costs of construction and capitalised
borrowing costs on related borrowed funds during the period of
construction. Construction in progress is reclassified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for use.

Investment properties

Investment properties are interests in land and buildings (including
the leasehold property held as a right-of-use asset which would
otherwise meet the definition of an investment property) held to earn
rental income and/or for capital appreciation, rather than for use in
the production or supply of goods or services or for administrative
purposes; or for sale in the ordinary course of business. Such
properties are measured initially at cost, including transaction costs.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment properties are stated at
fair value, which reflects market conditions at the end of the reporting
period.

Gains or losses arising from changes in the fair values of investment
properties are included in profit or loss in the year in which they arise.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investment properties (continued)

Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an investment
property are recognised in profit or loss in the year of the retirement or
disposal.

For a transfer from investment properties to owner-occupied
properties or inventories, the deemed cost of a property for
subsequent accounting is its fair value at the date of change in use.
If a property occupied by the Group as an owner-occupied property
becomes an investment property, the Group accounts for such
property in accordance with the policy stated under “Property, plant
and equipment and depreciation” for owned property and/or accounts
for such property in accordance with the policy stated under “Right-
of-use assets” for property held as a right-of-use asset up to the
date of change in use, and any difference at that date between the
carrying amount and the fair value of the property is accounted for as
a revaluation in accordance with the policy stated under “Property,
plant and equipment and depreciation” above. For a transfer from
inventories to investment properties, any difference between the fair
value of the property at that date and its previous carrying amount is
recognised in profit or loss.

Transfers to or from investment property

Transfers to or from investment property shall be made when and only
when there is a change in use evidenced by:

(@ commencement of owner-occupation, for a transfer from
investment property to owner-occupied property;

(b) commencement of development with a view to sale, for a transfer
from investment property to inventories;

(c) end of owner-occupation, for a transfer from owner-occupied
property to investment property; or

(d) commencement of an operating lease to another party, for a
transfer from inventories to investment property.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Properties under development

Properties under development are intended to be held for sale after
completion.

Properties under development are stated at the lower of cost
comprising land costs, construction costs, borrowing costs,
professional fees and other costs directly attributable to such
properties incurred during the development period and net realisable
value.

Properties under development are classified as current assets unless
those will not be realised in the normal operating cycle. On completion,
the properties are transferred to completed properties held for sale.

Completed properties held for sale

Completed properties held for sale are stated in the statement of
financial position at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
comprises development costs attributable to the unsold properties.
Net realisable value is determined by reference to the sale proceeds
of properties sold in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses, or by management estimates based on
prevailing marketing conditions.

Allocation of property development cost

Land costs are allocated to each unit according to their respective
saleable gross floor area (“GFA”) to the total saleable GFA.
Construction costs relating to units were identified and allocated
specifically. Common construction costs have been allocated
according to the saleable GFA similar to land costs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial
recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets acquired in a
business combination is the fair value at the date of acquisition. The
useful lives of intangible assets are assessed to be either finite or
indefinite. Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently amortised
over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment whenever
there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired. The
amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial year
end.

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested for impairment
annually either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. Such
intangible assets are not amortised. The useful life of an intangible
asset with an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine whether
the indefinite life assessment continues to be supportable. If not,
the change in the useful life assessment from indefinite to finite is
accounted for on a prospective basis.

Software is stated at cost less any impairment loss and is amortised
on the straight-line basis over its estimated useful lives of 5 years.

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are
measured at the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in the statement
of profit or loss in the period when the asset is derecognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases

The Group assesses at contract inception whether a contract is, or
contains, a lease. A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract
conveys the right to control the use of an identified asset for a period
of time in exchange for consideration.

Group as a lessee

The Group applies a single recognition and measurement approach for
all leases, except for short-term leases and leases of low-value assets.
The Group recognises lease liabilities to make lease payments and
right-of-use assets representing the right to use the underlying assets.

(@) Right-of-use assets

Right-of-use assets are recognised at the commencement date of
the lease (that is the date the underlying asset is available for use).
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any accumulated
depreciation and any impairment losses, and adjusted for any
remeasurement of lease liabilities. When the right-of-use assets
relate to interests in leasehold land held as inventories, they are
subsequently measured at the lower of cost and net realisable
value in accordance with the Group’s policies for “properties
under development” and “completed properties held for sale”. The
cost of right-of-use assets includes the amount of lease liabilities
recognised, initial direct costs incurred, and lease payments made
at or before the commencement date less any lease incentives
received. Right-of-use assets are depreciated on a straight-line
basis over the shorter of the lease terms and the estimated useful
lives of the assets as follows:

Offices 2 to 3 years
Motor vehicles 2 to 3 years

If ownership of the leased asset transfers to the Group by the end
of the lease term or the cost reflects the exercise of a purchase
option, depreciation is calculated using the estimated useful life of
the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EREHTHEBE ()

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued) HE@E

Group as a lessee (continued) FEBFEREMA B

(a) Right-of-use assets (continued) (@) FEREEEE)
When the right-of-use assets relate to interests in leasehold BEAEEFRAIERYEINIERT
land held as inventories, they are subsequently measured at the BEHEWEINBER  MEREEE
lower of cost and net realisable value in accordance with the HBEFTENHEL N ERGE
Group’s policy for “properties under development” or “completed A E iR p AN B2 v] B F AW & HRIE
properties held for sale”. When a right-of-use asset meets the EBRTRENE EFRAEEETNSE
definition of investment property, it is included in investment KEMENTERE - AIFTAREYME
properties. The corresponding right-of-use asset is initially Fo BBEAEENREMEIBEE - A
measured at cost, and subsequently measured at fair value, in EHFEREEEVSIEKAGE &
accordance with the Group’s policy for “investment properties”. BIBAREERE °

(b) Lease liabilities b) HEEBRE
Lease liabilities are recognised at the commencement date of the NI ERG B BB AR ED A
lease at the present value of lease payments to be made over the ENFRERRHEEESE HENK
lease term. The lease payments include fixed payments (including BREETEMNR(GELDEERE)RT
in-substance fixed payments) less any lease incentives receivable, MEWAEESR « BURK IS F =
variable lease payments that depend on an index or a rate, and WA Z A EN KA RTBER IR F 62 E
amounts expected to be paid under residual value guarantees. BEERINNEE HENRINEE
The lease payments also include the exercise price of a purchase AEEGEBETENEEEEED
option reasonably certain to be exercised by the Group and TEEREEKLEEENEYSER
payments of penalties for termination of a lease, if the lease term (MR AEEITHEEEERIER
reflects the Group exercising the option to terminate the lease. E) o FEUARIBESFERHNAEAE
The variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a NHRELNRBENROEHTIEER
rate are recognised as an expense in the period in which the event EAERAEMAS -

or condition that triggers the payment occurs.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)

Group as a lessee (continued)

(b)

Lease liabilities (continued)

In calculating the present value of lease payments, the Group
uses its incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date because the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable. After the commencement date, the amount of
lease liabilities is increased to reflect the accretion of interest and
reduced for the lease payments made. In addition, the carrying
amount of lease liabilities is remeasured if there is a modification,
a change in the lease term, a change in lease payments (e.g., a
change to future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate) or a change in assessment of an option to purchase
the underlying asset.

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition exemption to
its short-term leases of office equipment (that is those leases that
have a lease term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option). It also applies the
recognition exemption for leases of low-value assets to leases of
office equipment and laptop computers that are considered to be
of low value.

When the Group enters into a lease in respect of a low-value
asset, the Group decides whether to capitalise the lease on a
lease-by-lease basis. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as an expense on a
straight-line basis over the lease term.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b T E R

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor

When the Group acts as a lessor, it classifies at lease inception (or
when there is a lease modification) each of its leases as either an
operating lease or a finance lease.

Leases in which the Group does not transfer substantially all the
risks and rewards incidental to ownership of an asset are classified
as operating leases. When a contract contains lease and non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in the contract to
each component on a relative stand-alone selling price basis. Rental
income is accounted for on a straight-line basis over the lease terms
and is included in revenue in the statement of profit or loss due to
its operating nature. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised over the lease term on the same basis
as rental income. Contingent rents are recognised as revenue in the
period in which they are earned.

Leases that transfer substantially all the risks and rewards incidental
to ownership of an underlying asset to the lessee are accounted for as
finance leases.

At the commencement date, the cost of the leased asset is capitalised
at the present value of the lease payments and related payments
(including the initial direct costs) and presented as a receivable at an
amount equal to the net investment in the lease. The finance income
on the net investment in the lease is recognised in profit or loss so as
to provide a constant periodic rate of return over the lease terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Leases (continued)
Group as a lessor (continued)

When the Group is an intermediate lessor, a sublease is classified as a
finance lease or operating lease with reference to the right-of-use asset
arising from the head lease. If the head lease is a short-term lease to
which the Group applies the statement of financial position recognition
exemption, the Group classifies the sublease as an operating lease.

Investments and other financial assets
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial assets are classified, at initial recognition, as subsequently
measured at amortised cost, fair value through other comprehensive
income, and fair value through profit or loss.

The classification of financial assets at initial recognition depends on
the financial asset’s contractual cash flow characteristics and the
Group’s business model for managing them. With the exception of
trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing component
or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient of not
adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the Group
initially measures a financial asset at its fair value, plus in the case of
a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss, transaction
costs. Trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or for which the Group has applied the practical expedient
are measured at the transaction price determined under IFRS 15 in
accordance with the policies set out for “Revenue recognition” below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b T E R

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Initial recognition and measurement (continued)

In order for a financial asset to be classified and measured at
amortised cost or fair value through other comprehensive income, it
needs to give rise to cash flows that are solely payments of principal
and interest (“SPPI”) on the principal amount outstanding. Financial
assets with cash flows that are not SPPI are classified and measured
at fair value through profit or loss, irrespective of the business model.

The Group’s business model for managing financial assets refers to
how it manages its financial assets in order to generate cash flows.
The business model determines whether cash flows will result from
collecting contractual cash flows, selling the financial assets, or both.
Financial assets classified and measured at amortised cost are held
within a business model with the objective to hold financial assets in
order to collect contractual cash flows, while financial assets classified
and measured at fair value through other comprehensive income are
held within a business model with the objective of both holding to
collect contractual cash flows and selling. Financial assets which are
not held within the aforementioned business models are classified and
measured at fair value through profit or loss.

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised
on the trade date, that is, the date that the Group commits to purchase
or sell the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period
generally established by regulation or convention in the marketplace.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial assets depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial assets at amortised cost (debt instruments)

Financial assets at amortised cost are subsequently measured using
the effective interest method and are subject to impairment. Gains and
losses are recognised in the statement of profit or loss when the asset
is derecognised, modified or impaired.

Financial assets designated at fair value through other comprehensive
income (equity investments)

Upon initial recognition, the Group can elect to classify irrevocably
its equity investments as equity investments designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income when they meet the definition
of equity under IAS 32 Financial Instruments: Presentation and are not
held for trading. The classification is determined on an instrument-by-
instrument basis.

Gains and losses on these financial assets are never recycled to the
statement of profit or loss. Dividends are recognised as other income
in the statement of profit or loss when the right of payment has been
established, it is probable that the economic benefits associated with
the dividend will flow to the Group and the amount of the dividend
can be measured reliably, except when the Group benefits from
such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of the financial asset,
in which case such gains are recorded in other comprehensive
income. Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income are not subject to impairment assessment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b T E R

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Investments and other financial assets (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are carried in the
statement of financial position at fair value with net changes in fair
value recognised in the statement of profit or loss.

This category includes derivative instruments and equity investments
which the Group had not irrevocably elected to classify at fair value
through other comprehensive income. Dividends on equity investments
classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss are also
recognised as other income in the statement of profit or loss when
the right of payment has been established, it is probable that the
economic benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group
and the amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or
part of a group of similar financial assets) is primarily derecognised (i.e.,
removed from the Group’s consolidated statement of financial position)
when:

e the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

e the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the
asset or has assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows
in full without material delay to a third party under a “pass-through”
arrangement; and either (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) the Group has neither
transferred nor retained substantially all the risks and rewards of
the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

When the Group has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from
an asset or has entered into a pass-through arrangement, it evaluates
if, and to what extent, it has retained the risk and rewards of ownership
of the asset. When it has neither transferred nor retained substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the
asset, the Group continues to recognise the transferred asset to the
extent of the Group’s continuing involvement. In that case, the Group
also recognises an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and
obligations that the Group has retained.

Continuing involvement that takes the form of a guarantee over the
transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying
amount of the asset and the maximum amount of consideration that
the Group could be required to repay.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises an allowance for expected credit losses
(“ECLs”) for all debt instruments not held at fair value through profit
or loss. ECLs are based on the difference between the contractual
cash flows due in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at an approximation
of the original effective interest rate. The expected cash flows will
include cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit
enhancements that are integral to the contractual terms.

General approach

ECLs are recognised in two stages. For credit exposures for which
there has not been a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition, ECLs are provided for credit losses that result from default
events that are possible within the next 12 months (a 12-month ECL).
For those credit exposures for which there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, a loss allowance is
required for credit losses expected over the remaining life of the
exposure, irrespective of the timing of the default (a lifetime ECL).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
General approach (continued)

At each reporting date, the Group assesses whether the credit
risk on a financial instrument has increased significantly since initial
recognition. When making the assessment, the Group compares the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument as at the reporting
date with the risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition and considers reasonable and
supportable information that is available without undue cost or effort,
including historical and forward-looking information.

The Group considers a financial asset in default when contractual
payments are 90 days past due. However, in certain cases, the Group
may also consider a financial asset to be in default when internal or
external information indicates that the Group is unlikely to receive the
outstanding contractual amounts in full before taking into account any
credit enhancements held by the Group. A financial asset is written off
when there is no reasonable expectation of recovering the contractual
cash flows.

Financial assets at amortised cost are subject to impairment under the
general approach and they are classified within the following stages
for measurement of ECLs except for trade receivables which apply the
simplified approach as detailed below.

Stage 1 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has not increased
significantly since initial recognition and for which the loss
allowance is measured at an amount equal to 12-month
ECLs

Stage 2 — Financial instruments for which credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition but that are not credit-
impaired financial assets and for which the loss allowance is
measured at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs

Stage 3 — Financial assets that are credit-impaired at the reporting
date (but that are not purchased or originated credit-
impaired) and for which the loss allowance is measured at
an amount equal to lifetime ECLs
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)
Simplified approach

For trade receivables that do not contain a significant financing
component or when the Group applies the practical expedient of
not adjusting the effect of a significant financing component, the
Group applies the simplified approach in calculating ECLs. Under
the simplified approach, the Group does not track changes in credit
risk, but instead recognises a loss allowance based on lifetime ECLs
at each reporting date. The Group has evaluated the expected loss
rate that is based on its historical credit loss experience, adjusted
for forward-looking factors specific to the debtors and the economic
environment.

For trade receivables that contain a significant financing component
and lease receivables, the Group chooses as its accounting policy
to adopt the simplified approach in calculating ECLs with policies as
described above.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement

Financial liabilities are classified, at initial recognition, as financial
liabilities at fair value through profit or loss, loans and borrowings,
payables or as derivatives designated as hedging instruments in an
effective hedge, as appropriate.

All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the
case of loans and borrowings and payables, net of directly attributable
transaction costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings, corporate bonds and senior notes (collectively called
“loans and borrowings”), lease liabilities, trade and bills payables, other
payables, and amounts due to related parties.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b T E R

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 EREFTHERME (8

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Financial liabilities (continued)
Subsequent measurement

The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their
classification as follows:

Financial liabilities at amortised cost (loans and borrowings)

After initial recognition, loans and borrowings are subsequently
measured at amortised cost, using the effective interest rate method
unless the effect of discounting would be immaterial, in which case
they are stated at cost. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as through the
effective interest rate amortisation process.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or
premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part of
the effective interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation is
included in finance costs in the statement of profit or loss.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts
that require a payment to be made to reimburse the holder for a loss
it incurs because the specified debtor fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument. A financial
guarantee contract is recognised initially as a liability at its fair value,
adjusted for transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequent to initial recognition, the Group
measures the financial guarantee contracts at the higher of: (i) the
ECL allowance determined in accordance with the policy as set out in
“Impairment of financial assets”; and (ii) the amount initially recognised
less, when appropriate, the cumulative amount of income recognised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Derecognition of financial liabilities

A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the
liability is discharged or cancelled, or expires.

When an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the
same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing
liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification
is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and a recognition
of a new liability, and the difference between the respective carrying
amounts is recognised in profit or loss.

Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount
is reported in the statement of financial position if there is a currently
enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there is
an intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets and settle
the liabilities simultaneously.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and
cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and demand deposits, and
short term highly liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value, and have a short maturity of generally within three months
when acquired, less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of financial position,
cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and at banks,
including term deposits, and assets similar in nature to cash, which are
not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation (legal or
constructive) has arisen as a result of a past event and it is probable
that a future outflow of resources will be required to settle the
obligation, provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the amount recognised for a
provision is the present value at the end of the reporting period of the
future expenditures expected to be required to settle the obligation.
The increase in the discounted present value amount arising from the
passage of time is included in finance costs in the statement of profit
or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax. Income tax relating to
items recognised outside profit or loss is recognised outside profit or
loss, either in other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities, based on
tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively
enacted by the end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries in which the
Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on all temporary
differences at the end of the reporting period between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT
ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable temporary
differences, except:

when the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition
of goodwill or an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, when
the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and it is probable that the temporary differences will not
reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary
differences, and the carryforward of unused tax credits and any
unused tax losses. Deferred tax assets are recognised to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilised, except:

when the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary
differences arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability
in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time
of the transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable
profit or loss; and

in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with
investments in subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates, deferred
tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that
the temporary differences will reverse in the foreseeable future
and taxable profit will be available against which the temporary
differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of
each reporting period and reduced to the extent that it is no longer
probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or
part of the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred
tax assets are reassessed at the end of each reporting period and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that
are expected to apply to the period when the asset is realised or the
liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are offset if and only if
the Group has a legally enforceable right to set off current tax assets
and current tax liabilities and the deferred tax assets and deferred tax
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation authority
on either the same taxable entity or different taxable entities which
intend either to settle current tax liabilities and assets on a net basis,
or to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously, in each
future period in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value where there is
reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and all attaching
conditions will be complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis over the periods
that the costs, for which it is intended to compensate, are expensed.

Where the grant relates to an asset, the fair value is credited to a
deferred income account and is released to profit or loss over the
expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal annual instalments
or deducted from the carrying amount of the asset and released to
profit or loss by way of a reduced depreciation charge.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received
or receivable for the sale of properties and services provided in the
ordinary course of the Group’s activities. Revenue is shown, net of
taxes.

Sale of properties

Revenues are recognised when or as the control of the asset
is transferred to the purchaser. Depending on the terms of the
contract and the laws that apply to the contract, control of the asset
may transfer over time or at a point in time. Control of the asset is
transferred over time if the Group’s performance

e provides benefits which are received and consumed
simultaneously by the purchaser; or

e creates and enhances an asset that the purchaser controls as the
Group performs; or

e does not create an asset with an alternative use to the Group and
the Group has an enforceable right to payment for performance
completed to date.

If control of the asset transfers over time, revenue is recognised
over the period of the contract by reference to the progress towards
complete satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the purchaser obtains
control of the asset.

The progress towards complete satisfaction of the performance
obligation is measured based on the Group’s efforts or inputs to the
satisfaction of the performance obligation that best depict the Group’s
performance in satisfying the performance obligation.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Sale of properties (continued)

In determining the transaction price, the Group adjusts the promised
amount of consideration for the effect of a financing component if it is
significant.

For property development and sales contracts for which the control
of the property is transferred at a point in time, revenue is recognised
when the purchaser obtains the physical possession or the legal title of
the completed property and the Group has a present right to payment
and the collection of the consideration is probable.

Property management service income

Property management service income derived from the provision of
property maintenance and management services is recognised when
the relevant services are rendered and the customer simultaneously
receives and consumes the benefits provided by the entity’s
performance as the entity performs.

Management consulting service income

Management consulting service income derived from the provision
of support services in connection with development of property
projects is recognised when the relevant services are rendered and the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits provided
by the Group.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Revenue recognition (continued)
Revenue from other sources

Rental income is recognised on a time proportion basis over the lease
terms. Variable lease payments that do not depend on an index or a
rate are recognised as income in the accounting period in which they
are incurred.

Other income

Interest income is recognised on an accrual basis using the effective
interest method by applying the rate that discounts the estimated
future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument of
the net carrying amount of the financial asset.

Dividend income is recognised when the shareholders’ right to receive
payment has been established, it is probable that the economic
benefits associated with the dividend will flow to the Group and the
amount of the dividend can be measured reliably.

Contract liabilities

A contract liability is recognised when a payment is received or a
payment is due (whichever is earlier) from a customer before the
Group transfers the related goods or services. Contract liabilities are
recognised as revenue when the Group performs under the contract
(i.e., transfers control of the related goods or services to the customer).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT 24 ERESFTHERBE(E)

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Contract cost

Other than the costs which are capitalised as inventories, property,
plant and equipment and intangible assets, costs incurred to fulfil
a contract with a customer are capitalised as an asset if all of the
following criteria are met:

(@ The costs relate directly to a contract or to an anticipated contract
that the entity can specifically identify.

(b) The costs generate or enhance resources of the entity that will
be used in satisfying (or in continuing to satisfy) performance
obligations in the future.

(c) The costs are expected to be recovered.

The capitalised contract costs are amortised and charged to profit or
loss on a systematic basis that is consistent with the transfer to the
customer of the goods or services to which the asset relates. Other
contract costs are expensed as incurred.

Employee benefits

The Group operates a defined contribution Central Pension Scheme.
The Group’s employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the Central Pension Scheme. For the year
ended 31 December 2021, there was no forfeiture of contributions
under the Central Pension Scheme. In addition, there were no forfeited
contributions available for the Group to reduce its existing level of
contributions to the Central Pension Scheme as at 31 December
2021.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which operate in Mainland
China are required to participate in a central pension scheme operated
by the local municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a certain proportion of these payroll costs to the central
pension scheme. The contributions are charged to profit or loss as
they become payable in accordance with the rules of the central
pension scheme.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction
or production of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that necessarily take a
substantial period of time to get ready for their intended use or sale,
are capitalised as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets are substantially
ready for their intended use or sale. Investment income earned on the
temporary investment of specific borrowings pending their expenditure
on qualifying assets is deducted from the borrowing costs capitalised.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they are
incurred.

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that an entity
incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds.

Dividends

Final dividends are recognised as a liability when they are approved
by the shareholders in a general meeting. Proposed final dividends are
disclosed in the notes to the financial statements.

Interim dividends are simultaneously proposed and declared, because
the Company’s memorandum and articles of association grant the
directors the authority to declare interim dividends. Consequently,
interim dividends are recognised immediately as a liability when they
are proposed and declared.

Foreign currencies

Since the majority of the assets and operations of the Group are
located in Mainland China, the financial statements are presented
in RMB, which is the functional currency of the Company. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the Group are initially
recorded using their respective functional currency rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at the functional
currency rates of exchange ruling at the end of the reporting period.
Differences arising on settlement or translation of monetary items are
recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

24 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT

ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the dates
of the initial transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair value
in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the
date when the fair value was measured. The gain or loss arising on
translation of a non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change in fair value of
the item (i.e., translation difference on the item whose fair value gain
or loss is recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or loss,
respectively).

In determining the exchange rate on initial recognition of the related
asset, expense or income on the derecognition of a non-monetary
asset or non-monetary liability relating to an advance consideration,
the date of initial transaction is the date on which the Group initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary liability arising
from the advance consideration. If there are multiple payments or
receipts in advance, the Group determines the transaction date for
each payment or receipt of the advance consideration.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group’s financial statements requires
management to make judgements, estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and
liabilities, and their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and
estimates could result in outcomes that could require a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected
in the future.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Judgements

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies,
management has made the following judgements, apart from those
involving estimations, which have the most significant effect on the
amounts recognised in the financial statements:

Going concern consideration

In the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies, apart
from those involving estimations, management has prepared the
consolidated financial statements on the assumption that the Group
will be able to operate as a going concern in the coming year, which is
a critical judgement that has the most significant effect on the amounts
recognised in the consolidated financial statements. The assessment
of the going concern assumption involves making a judgement by
the directors, at a particular point of time, about the future outcome
of events or conditions which are inherently uncertain. The directors
consider that the Group has the capability to continue as a going
concern and the major events or conditions, which may give rise to
business risks, that may individually or collectively cast a significant
doubt upon the going concern assumption are set out in note 2.1 to
the consolidated financial statements.

Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor

The Group has entered into commercial property leases on its
investment property portfolio. The Group has determined, based on
an evaluation of the terms and conditions of the arrangements, such
as the lease term not constituting a major part of the economic life
of the commercial property and the present value of the minimum
lease payments not amounting to substantially all the fair value of the
commercial property, that it retains substantially all the significant risks
and rewards incidental to ownership of these properties which are
leased out and accounts for the contracts as operating leases.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. E RS HE R A (&)

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Judgements (continued)

Classification between investment properties and owner-occupied
properties

The Group determines whether a property qualifies as an investment
property, and has developed criteria in making that judgement.
Investment property is a property held to earn rentals or for capital
appreciation or both. Therefore, the Group considers whether a
property generates cash flows largely independently of the other
assets held by the Group. Some properties comprise a portion that is
held to earn rentals or for capital appreciation and another portion that
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. If these portions could be sold separately or
leased out separately under a finance lease, the Group accounts for
the portions separately. If the portions could not be sold separately,
the property is an investment property only if an insignificant portion
is held for use in the production or supply of goods or services or for
administrative purposes. Judgement is made on an individual property
basis to determine whether ancillary services are so significant that a
property does not qualify as an investment property.

Classification between investment properties and completed properties
held for sale

The Group develops properties held for sale and properties held to
earn rentals and/or for capital appreciation. Judgement is made by
management on determining whether a property is designated as an
investment property or a property held for sale. The Group considers
its intention for holding the properties at the early development stage
of the related properties. During the course of construction, the related
properties under construction are accounted for as properties under
development included in current assets if the properties are intended
for sale after their completion, whereas, the properties are accounted
for as investment properties under construction included in investment
properties if the properties are intended to be held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Upon completion of the properties,
the properties held for sale are transferred to completed properties
held for sale and are stated at cost, while the properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation are transferred to completed
investment properties. Investment properties, both under construction
and completed, are subject to revaluation at the end of each reporting
period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period, that have
a significant risk of causing a material adjustment to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

Provision for expected credit losses on trade receivables and
prepayments, other receivables and other assets

The Group uses a provision matrix to calculate ECLs for trade
receivables and prepayments, other receivables and other assets. The
provision rates are based on days past due for groupings of various
customer segments that have similar loss patterns (i.e., by geography,
product type, customer type and rating, and coverage by letters of
credit and other forms of credit insurance).

The expected loss rate is initially based on the Group’s historical
observed default rates. The Group will calibrate the matrix to adjust
the historical credit loss experience with forward-looking information.
For instance, if forecast economic conditions (i.e., gross domestic
product) are expected to deteriorate over the next year which can lead
to an increased number of defaults in the property sector, the historical
default rates are adjusted. At each reporting date, the historical
observed default rates are updated and changes in the forward-
looking estimates are analysed.

The assessment of the correlation among historical observed default
rates, forecast economic conditions and ECLs is a significant estimate.
The amount of ECLs is sensitive to changes in circumstances and
forecast economic conditions. The Group’s historical credit loss
experience and forecast of economic conditions may also not be
representative of a customer’s actual default in the future. The
information about the ECLs on the Group’s trade receivables and
prepayments, other receivables and other assets is disclosed in note
24 and note 25 to the financial statements, respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b T E R

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. E RS HE R A (&)

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale

The Group’s properties under development and completed properties
held for sale are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Based on the Group’s historical experience and the nature of the
subject properties, the Group makes estimates of the selling prices,
the costs of completion of properties under development, and the
costs to be incurred in selling the properties based on prevailing
market conditions.

If there is an increase in costs to completion or a decrease in net sales
value, the net realisable value will decrease and this may result in a
provision for properties under development and completed properties
held for sale. Such provision requires the use of judgement and
estimates. Where the expectation is different from the original estimate,
the carrying value and provision for properties in the periods in which
such estimate is changed will be adjusted accordingly.

PRC corporate income tax (“CIT”)

The Group is subject to corporate income taxes in the PRC. As a
result of the fact that certain matters relating to the income taxes have
not been confirmed by the local tax bureau, objective estimation and
judgement based on currently enacted tax laws, regulations and other
related policies are required in determining the provision for income
taxes to be made. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is
different from the amounts originally recorded, the differences will
impact on the income tax and tax provisions in the period in which the
differences realise.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
PRC land appreciation tax (“LAT”)

The Group is subject to LAT in the PRC. The provision for LAT is based
on management’s best estimates according to the understanding of
the requirements set forth in the relevant PRC tax laws and regulations.
The actual LAT liabilities are subject to the determination by the tax
authorities upon the completion of the property development projects.
The Group has not finalised its LAT calculation and payments with
the tax authorities for all its property development projects. The
final outcome could be different from the amounts that were initially
recorded, and any differences will impact on the LAT expenses and
the related provision in the period in which the differences realise.

Estimation of fair value of investment properties

In the absence of current prices in an active market for similar
properties, the Group considers information from a variety of sources,
including:

(@ current prices in an active market for properties of a different
nature, condition or location, adjusted to reflect those differences;
and

(b) recent prices of similar properties on less active markets, with
adjustments to reflect any changes in economic conditions since
the date of the transactions that occurred at those prices; and
discounted cash flow projections based on reliable estimates of
future cash flows, supported by the terms of any existing lease
and other contracts and (when possible) by external evidence
such as current market rents for similar properties in the same
location and condition, and using discount rates that reflect
current market assessments of the uncertainty in the amount and
timing of the cash flows.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b T E R

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 3. E RS HE R A (&)

JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Estimation of fair value of investment properties (continued)

The carrying amount of investment properties at 31 December 2021
was RMB2,775,500,000 (2020: RMB2,723,700,000). Further details,
including the key assumptions used for fair value measurement and a
sensitivity analysis, are given in note 14 to the financial statements.

Impairment of non-financial assets (other than goodwill)

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for all non-financial assets (including the right-of-use assets) at the
end of each reporting period. Other non-financial assets are tested for
impairment when there are indicators that the carrying amounts may
not be recoverable. An impairment exists when the carrying value of an
asset or a cash-generating unit exceeds its recoverable amount, which
is the higher of its fair value less costs of disposal and its value in use.

The calculation of the fair value less costs of disposal is based on
available data from binding sales transactions in an arm’s length
transaction of similar assets or observable market prices less
incremental costs for disposing of the asset. When value-in-use
calculations are undertaken, management must estimate the expected
future cash flows from the asset or cash-generating unit and choose a
suitable discount rate in order to calculate the present value of those
cash flows.

Deferred tax assets

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent
that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against which
the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is
required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that can be
recognised, based upon the likely timing and level of future taxable
profits together with future tax planning strategies.
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3.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
JUDGEMENTS AND ESTIMATES
(CONTINUED)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Fair value of unlisted equity investments

The unlisted equity investments have been valued based on a
discounted initial offering price as detailed in note 42 to the financial
statements. The valuation requires the Group to make estimates about
the discount for illiquidity. The Group classifies the fair value of these
investments as Level 2.

The fair value of the unlisted equity investments at 31 December 2021
was RMB131,140,000 (2020: RMB95,100,000). Further details are
included in note 21 to the financial statements.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

Management monitors the operating results of the Group’s business
which includes property development and leasing and commercial
property management by project locations for the purpose of making
decisions about resource allocation and performance assessment,
while no single location’s revenue, net loss or total assets exceed
10% of the Group’s consolidated revenue, net loss or total assets,
respectively. As the economic characteristics are similar in all the
locations, where the nature of property development and leasing and
management is similar, and the nature of the aforementioned business
processes, the type or class of customer for the aforementioned
business and the methods used to distribute the properties or provide
the services are similar as well, all locations were aggregated as one
reportable operating segment.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

MEHRFTHEE =

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

4. OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION 4.
(CONTINUED)

Geographical information
No geographical information is presented as the Group’s revenue from
the external customers is derived solely from its operation in Mainland

China and no non-current assets of the Group are located outside
Mainland China.

Information about major customers
No sales to a single customer or a group of customers under common

control accounted for 10% or more of the Group’s revenue at the end
of the reporting period.

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5.

An analysis of revenue is as follows:

REDHER(E)

i EE R

RN AREEREINPES R SEREE
FA FR B P B 48 4 P45 B AR S B 3
BEERI A P B SN - B 25
BBk o

EHETEEFNEHR
RBEHERE  WE—F S HEEH

TH—HEFPHHEE T EGAEEKED
10%3K A £ o

s - HABAR WS

BRI DITIT -

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR® T ARETIT

Revenue from contracts with customers 2 & [El14 25 5,859,587 0,138,944
Revenue from other sources H 1t 55 ¢ z5
Gross rental income from investment property operating leases:
BEMECLTHERS AL -
Lease payments, including fixed payments F & {3 - B IEFEEE K 51,673 49,550
5,911,260 9,188,494

198 DAFA PROPERTIES GROUP LIMITED K&~ EHAERAR



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. li% - i A R Wz (48)
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers ZEFREARWE
() Disaggregated revenue information () 25 EF

2021 2020
20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT

Types of goods or services: & = IRIFER :

Sale of properties #13 $5 & 5,819,943 9,085,255
Property management service income ¥ % & 32 AR 5 U A 7,291 9,000
Management consulting service income & 32 54 3 AR 15 U A 32,353 44,689
Total revenue from contracts with customers & F & B 421z 5,859,587 9,138,944

Timing of revenue recognition: Y5 2R :

Properties transferred at a point in time 733 — & 2h 88 28 1) 1) 22 5,819,943 9,085,255

Services transferred over time 7 — E& B [ ;R 85 58 19 AR 745 39,644 53,689

Total revenue from contracts with customers &P & @ 424z 5,859,587 0,138,944
The following table shows the amount of revenue recognised in TR IR AR E BRI RER I A 3RS H 9)
the current reporting period that was included in the contract FAARAEBENKESBERABAEHBE
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period and recognised TRHETMERN KNS

from performance obligations satisfied in previous periods:

2021 2020
20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETT

Revenue recognised that was included in contract
liabilities at the beginning of the reporting period:
SFARERVIERBENDHERKE 3,521,528 5,724,724
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

MEHRFTHEE =

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS
(CONTINUED)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)
(i) Performance obligations

The Group’s performance obligations are related to property
sales contracts, property management service contracts and
management consulting service contracts. For property sales
contracts, the Group recognises revenue equal to the contract
amount when the purchaser obtains the physical possession or
the legal title of the completed property. For property management
service and management consulting service contracts, the Group
recognises revenue equal to the right-to-invoice amount when it
corresponds directly with the value to the customer of the Group’s
performance to date, on a monthly basis. The majority of the
property management service contracts do not have a fixed term.
The Group has elected the practical expedient not to disclose the
remaining performance obligations for both types of contracts.

The transaction price allocated to the remaining performance
obligations (unsatisfied or partially unsatisfied) as at 31
December 2021 amounted to RMB12,725,546,000 (2020:
RMB12,007,781,000). Management expects that 54% and 46%
of the amount will be recognised in profit or loss within one year
and in more than one year, respectively (2020: 34% recognised
within one year and 66% recognised in more than one year). The
amount disclosed above does not include unsatisfied performance
obligations that were related to the Group’s contracts with
customers with an original duration of one year or less.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

5. REVENUE, OTHER INCOME AND GAINS 5. li% - i A R Wz (48)

(CONTINUED)
Revenue from contracts with customers (continued) EF &R (&)
(i) Performance obligations (continued) (i) EBHIEHFGE

All property management services and management consulting
services are for periods of one year or less. As permitted under
IFRS 15, the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied
contracts is not disclosed.

PrEMEEERS REEERRE B
[RGB/ —FLIAT o MBIFR 5 HRE
EQEAGSEAATA  YEKEORET
ZERBITERNRXHER -

2021 2020
20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETTT

Other income E U A

Others Efih 1,303 5,597
Gains
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries & F A &l 66,153 103,745
Foreign exchange differences, net J$[& i =58 67,530 200,414
Gain on disposal of associates i & 54 A~ 71U 25 33,618 463
Dividend and interest income from equity investments
designated at FVOCI and financial assets at FVTPL
BERBEARBESAEMEZEBANRERE RIEZAABE; ABEZN
TRIEERE RN BBA 33,002 6,561
Government grants B T # B 10,948 7,160
Deposit forfeiture #2478 I 4,510 2,610
Gain on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
HEWE - BELREBHEB KA 1,971 23
Remeasurement gain on investments in joint ventures and
an associate held before business combination
EBEMRIFFNG SR EREERANRENENT 8 WS 189 18,631
Gain on bargain purchase (note 36) % {E & & Wz (M 5£36) 8 267
217,929 339,874
219,232 345,471
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b T E R

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

6. (LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX 6. FRBiAT(E518) FE
The Group’s (loss)/profit before tax is arrived at after charging: AEEKRBA(BR) FBHIEATEE
TR EE :
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMT T ARETTT
Cost of properties sold & & ¥ 2 A A 23 4,950,542 7,236,342
Impairment losses recognised for properties under development
MERYERERHRERE 22 7,918 =
Impairment losses recognised for completed properties held for sale
MERTHIEHE M EERNRERE 23 70,852 =
Cost of rental service 2 & AR 7 A A 7,074 6,588
Cost of property management service 1) 3 & 3% iR 1 A 2 1,380 1,264
Cost of management consulting service & 32 58 ) AR %5 5k 2 17,775 26,604
Depreciation of items of property, plant and equipment
ME - BERREREFE 13 13,593 16,968
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {£ & EITE 15(a) 6,295 6,327
Amortisation of intangible assets 2 & 2§ 16 2,413 1,849
Loss on disposal of items of property, plant and equipment
HEME - BERREBEBER 3 46
Lease payments not included in the measurement of lease liabilities
RTAHEB B ENHEERNK 5,465 5,613
Auditor’s remuneration 2 &1 &l B & 4,550 4,450

Employee benefit expense (including directors’ and
chief executive’s remuneration (note 8)):

BERNAX(BREZTERHTERABFHM) (S

Wages and salaries T& N Fi& 267,879 297,882
Pension scheme contributions and social welfare
S UNCAT B Ka s /AR =R 55,530 61,847
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

7. FINANCE COSTS 7. BhE A

An analysis of finance costs is as follows: BERAH AT

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARETIT

Interest on bank and other borrowings and

senior notes $R1T R HMEE REBIEZERNTE 1,437,852 1,200,744
Interest expense arising from revenue contracts Wz & R ZE £ R F 8 X 229,331 160,045
Interest on lease liabilities & & & &) A & 550 870
Total interest expense on financial liabilities not at fair value through

profit or loss W3ER ARt BEFABENSRAENH S RBFY 1,667,733 1,361,659
Less: Interest capitalised J& : &AL F| & (1,202,120) (1,126,202

465,613 235,457

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S 8. EERESTTHAEHM
REMUNERATION

Directors’ and chief executive’s remuneration for the year, disclosed RE EMRA - BB QBEHIFE383(1)@)
pursuant to the Listing Rules, section 383(1)(a), (b), (c) and (f) of the b) * ) MERATI(HEEEFNZER)R
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Part 2 of the Companies DI IEENEERERTTHRAENEE
(Disclosure of Information about Benefits of Directors) Regulation, is as FHET
follows:
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ T AREFIT
Fees 8% 2,027 2,027
Other emoluments: E B4 :
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥4 - 85 R EWET 3,244 6,348
Performance-related bonuses* &K I8 & 85 EAT* 2,240 2,540
Pension scheme contributions and social welfare iR K& 51 2| 2k & i+ €18 K 388 346
5,872 9,234
7,899 11,261

Certain executive directors of the Company are entitled to bonus payments * ARREBETHROTEEEHESEANK
which are associated with the profit after tax of the Group. TEAL AR S BRR B & FE B RA S -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b E T EL )

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EERES{THABSH

REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) (&)
(a) Independent non-executive directors (@) BLFHITESE
The fees paid to independent non-executive directors during the FRMBYIIFRTESZAES N
year were as follows: S ¢
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
- Mr. Gu Jiong Ea MR %t & 180 180
— Mr. Sun Bing #&iK 7t 4 180 180
= Mr. Fok Ho Yin Thomas & &R 74 180 180
540 540
There were no other emoluments payable to the independent non- HE2021F12A31H ELFELEE A
executive directors for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020: FER B IERTTE EMBN S (20204 -
Nil). ) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

8. DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 8. EENES{THAETFM

REMUNERATION (CONTINUED) (#&)
(b) Executive directors and the chief executive (b) BITEERESTHAE
Pension
Salaries, scheme
allowances | Performance | contributions
and benefits related and social Total
in kind bonuses welfare | remuneration
E 2 4 BNSETE
we REYER | REHBEAL [HARLEEF P
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T R AR¥T R AR¥T R AR¥TR AR¥T R
2021
20214

Executive directors: H{TE S -

—Mr. Ge Yiyang - B — B35 & 755 1,175 930 116 2,976
= Mr. Liao Lujiang -~ B&T k4 263 1,413 710 116 2,502
= Mr. Chi Jingyong — 2/ B o 4 263 328 300 116 1,007
= Mr. Yang Yongwu — #57K R 5 & 206 328 300 40 874
1,487 3,244 2,240 388 7,359
2020
20204

Executive directors: H{TE S -

—Mr. Ge Yiyang - B— B3t & 755 SNl23 930 102 4,910
= Mr. Liao Lujiang - B &I L4 263 2,625 710 102 3,700
~Mr. Chi Jingyong - 1% B 5 4 263 300 450 102 1115
—Mr. Yang Yongwu — 55K R £ 4 206 300 450 40 996
1,487 6,348 2,540 346 10,721
Mr. Liao Lujiang was the chief executive officer and an executive BRIXESAARNFRNERNTE
director of the Company, who resigned on 31 January 2022, and FHITES © HH02022F1 A31HET
Mr. Leng Junfeng was appointed as Mr. Liao’s successor. There REBLEEEZTREETA - F
was no arrangement under which a director or the chief executive N EEEIHESTHRABRES
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during the year. R B REE A H I L5 -
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

= 3t
9. FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 9. AEEREFMES
The five highest paid employees for the year ended 31 December 2021 HE2021F12A31BIEFENREES
included four directors (2020: four), details of whose remuneration are FTHMEEBRIENAES(2020F : IEE
set out in note 8 above. Details of the remuneration for the year ended =) HEFEMWEFEBHEN LXHFEs - & ZE
31 December 2021 of the remaining one (2020: one) highest paid 2021F12A31AIEFE @ WHEARRES
employee who is neither a director nor chief executive of the Company HEEITHRABRNSB T —H(20204F : —
are as follows: BT MMEEMNHFWFBESRIOT ¢
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T AREFIT
Salaries, allowances and benefits in kind ¥ & + 285 & & W& 5 2,266 2,392
Performance related bonuses 7% I8 ##37E 4T 1,258 1,645
Pension scheme contributions and social welfare Rk & &5+ 21 4 7% L it €18 7 15 14
3,539 4,051
The number of non-director and non-chief executive highest paid FMARNUATEHENEEERIEZERITH
employees whose remuneration fell within the following bands is as AEMERFHES AZNAT :
follows:
Number of employees EBE A

Number of employees
EEA™

2021 2020

20215 20204

HK$4,000,001 to HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T & 4,500,000 7T 1 —
HK$4,500,001 to HK$5,000,000 4,500,001 7T & 5,000,000/ 7T = 1

1 1
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE

The Group is subject to income tax on an entity basis on profits arising
in or derived from the tax jurisdictions in which members of the Group
are domiciled and operate. Pursuant to the rules and regulations
of the Cayman Islands and British Virgin Islands, the Company and
the Group’s subsidiaries incorporated in the Cayman Islands and
British Virgin Islands are not subject to any income tax. The Group’s
subsidiary incorporated in Hong Kong was not liable for income tax as
it did not have any assessable profits arising in Hong Kong for the year
ended 31 December 2021.

Subsidiaries of the Group operating in Mainland China were subject to
the PRC corporate income tax at a rate of 25% for the year ended 31
December 2021.

LAT is levied at progressive rates ranging from 30% to 60% on
the appreciation of land value, being the proceeds from the sale
of properties less deductible expenditures including land costs,
borrowing costs and other property development expenditures. The
Group has estimated, made and included in taxation a provision for
LAT according to the requirements set forth in the relevant Mainland
China tax laws and regulations. The LAT provision is subject to the
final review and approval by the local tax bureau.

Current tax: ENEAFHIE :

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

0. FrEBiE R

NEBARAEERE DAt K& &R
ERERAEERES KRB ENFBIZ
ERELEHWNAEN BERASHERE
BREZHSHHAREL - RAa RASE
ERHEeHS R EBEZES ML
FRABEABNEMAEE - AEERE
MK F AR EABNAGER - B
BEZARREZE2021F12A31BILFEW
EBRBBEENTMAERTAE -

REBRPABEAMEENTRARIRESR
202112 A31 8 IF FE /B 25% 8 i R 5
MBS -

T IR E R THIE RN T30% E60% ) R iE
RS EBEHR - LB EEEYD
EEEMEFOER AR (BE LK
A EBERAREMYERERS) - A%
BRI E R B A B A5 A 2 ROA AR AR
AL MIEER G « (EH R RBIERE
18 o THIGEREE AR E R ISR
TR EZ B -

2021 2020
20215 20204

RMB’000
ARBT T

RMB’000
ARETT

PRC CIT R B> 2 T3 337,685 464,352
PRC LAT A B £ #b18(E 4,187 74,078
Deferred tax #EIEF7 A (101,726) (3,542)
Total tax charge for the year G NARF B X 240,146 534,888
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED) 10.

A reconciliation of income tax expense applicable to (loss)/profit before
tax at the statutory rate for the jurisdictions in which the Company and
the majority of its subsidiaries are domiciled to the income tax expense
at the effective income tax rate is as follows:

FriE®i & A ()

ARRREKE D FARGEMAERDEE
BRZEEREAENRBA (BR),/F
BERANAERERRRERMESH R
BOMERERERAT

2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T ARBTTT
(Loss)/profit before tax Er &1 g (E518),/F;H (188,625) 1,250,222
Tax at the statutory income tax rate 2% € FT{5 i R 5t B A Fi1E (47,156) 312,556
Profits and losses attributable to joint ventures and associates
BB NS N R G B &R (5,655) 6,160
Income not subject to tax B R F YA (6,842) (47,401)
Expenses not deductible for tax 7~ ] 1 #% f 2 9,528 6,804
Tax losses and deductible temporary differences utilised from previous years
BEFENANNIBEBERATMRERNERE (17,687) (17,937)
Tax losses and deductible temporary differences not recognised
RERBIAERE R AR R =5 304,818 219,148
Provision for LAT = tth & (& %1 5 5 4,187 74,078
Tax effect on LAT T 38 {E R B0 F 75 57 28 (1,047) (18,520)
Tax charge at the Group’s effective rate I AN EB B Rt E W IES H 240,146 534,888

The share of tax charge attributable to joint ventures and associates
amounting to RMB43,161,000 is included in “Share of profits and
losses of joint ventures and associates” in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB13,607,000). The share of tax credit attributable to joint ventures
and associates amounting to RMB35,621,000 is included in “ Share of
profits and losses of joint ventures and associates” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB21,821,000).
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HE2021F12A31BILFE » DA%
TERBEARELHHEESHAEARE
43,161,0007T (20204 = A R¥13,607,000
L) APAREBRERAIDHEELER
B A RFERBEIET - HE20214F
12A31BIEFE r pheEELERBE
NAELTRIBEIR 2 A ARES5,621,0007T
(20204 : AR#21,821,0007T) @ 5t A4
AREERAIDEEEEEREEQRFE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

10. INCOME TAX EXPENSE (CONTINUED)

Tax payable in the consolidated statement of financial position
represents the following:

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

0. FRIEHREHR (&)

AT B e BRI R AR EMHIA -

2021 2020
20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

PRC CIT payable &/ B3 FT1SEL 654,061 579,675
PRC LAT payable &1/ B £t 32 E 96,064 106,748
Total tax payable FE1 42718 750,125 686,423

1. DIVIDENDS

1 RE

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

Interim — RMB4.8 cents (2020: RMB3.4 cents) per ordinary share

ARBTFT ARMBTTT

FHIRR B - SR B ARKE4.85 (2020F : AR¥3.45) 39,738 28,148

Proposed final — Nil (2020: RMB4.8 cents) per ordinary share

BEAERE - FRT BT (20205 : ARKE4.89) = 39,738
39,738 67,886

In August 2021, the Board resolved to declare the payment of an
interim dividend (the “2021 Interim Dividend”) of RMB4.8 cents
(equivalent to 5.8 HK cents) per ordinary share for the six months
ended 30 June 2021 in the form of cash, amounting to a total of
RMB39,738,000. In March 2022, the Board resolved to further
postpone the payment of the 2021 Interim Dividend to on or
about 6 July 2022.

The Board has resolved not to declare any dividend for the year ended
31 December 2021.

M2021568H » EEEREST RELZE2021
F6A308 LENAA 2R HRR S ([20214F
FHIRSBREBEBRAREL8S (HHER
5.87%1l) - 5 AR®39,738,0007T ° A
2022F 37 EECERZEE2021FHH
I8 BB E— P HEEZE2022F7 H6A X
A& o

EEeERE TEIREE2021F12 A31
H I FEREREE
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

12 (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 2 BAREERAREEARML

ATTRIBUTABLE TO ORDINARY EQUITY
HOLDERS OF THE PARENT

The calculation of the basic (loss)/earnings per share amount is based
on the (loss)/earnings for the year attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent, and the weighted average number of ordinary shares of
825,587,000 (2020: 827,880,000) in issue during the year, excluding
ordinary shares purchased by the Group and held as treasury shares
(note 33).

No adjustment has been made to the basic (loss)/earnings per share
amounts presented for the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020
in respect of a dilution as the Group had no potentially dilutive ordinary
shares in issue during the years ended 31 December 2021 and 2020.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share
amounts is based on:

BR(GE) BT

BREXR(ER), /BRRES AR LR
EEBEABGEFERER) BAARSE
N E B 1T I AR N4 15 81825,587,000
A% (20204 : 827,880,000/t » T4
RBASEEBEWHIEE RH T @R P
33) °

AR AR EERE E20214 K 2020512 A 31
HIEFEWMEBTELEELBR i)
WA FEZE20214F K 2020F12 A31H L F
BEEVZzERERNER) BFELEE

EER

SIREAREE(BR), RAGHEDE
0o

2021 2020
20214 20204

Earnings Z |

(Loss)/profit attributable to ordinary equity holders of the parent (RMB’000)

BRREBERTE ARG (BB, FBARETT (480,401) 338,859

Shares % {2

Weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the year

FREBETEBRME T 825,587,000 827,880,000

(Loss)/earnings per share & (&18) &

Basic and diluted £ 7% K # 5% RMB(0.58) RMBO0.41
AR¥((0.58) T  AR®0417T
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 1B YE BRERRZRE

Office
equipment
Motor | and electronic Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices | improvements Total

MARBR
BF It BTRE | HEURKE ECH
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | AR®TR ARBTR ARBTR | AR®TR

31 December 2021
2021%F12H31H

At 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021:
M2020512A31H k202141 A1A :

Cost XA 109,021 25,292 13,509 34,346 182,168

Accumulated depreciation 2T & (15,056) (17,297) (7,880) (28,997) (69,230)
Net carrying amount ;5B & 93,965 7,995 5,629 5,349 112,938
At 1 January 2021, net of accumulated

depreciation 20211 A1H - MR RFTITE 93,965 7,995 5,629 5,349 112,938

Additions /A & - 5,129 182 6,404 11,715

Disposals & = (1,950) (5) = (1,955)

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36)

L SNGIGERD) - 150 - = 150

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37)

HEF AR (MF37) = ®) (334) (48) (390)

Depreciation provided during the year

FRITERE (3,373) (1,642) (1,792 (6,786) (13,593)
At 31 December 2021, net of accumulated

depreciation 20215128318 » MR RAME 90,592 9,674 3,680 4,919 108,865
At 31 December 2021: 72202112318 :

Cost pX A 109,021 28,274 12,214 34,100 183,609

Accumulated depreciation £+ & (18,429) (18,600 (8,534) (29,181) (74,744)
Net carrying amount /5 Bk & 90,592 9,674 3,680 4,919 108,865
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT  #. ¥ - RER & # ()
(CONTINUED)

Office
equipment
Motor | and electronic Leasehold
Buildings vehicles devices | improvements

MARBR
BT e ETRE | HEWRERE :
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTL | ARETL ARBTT ARBTL | ARETL

31 December 2020
2020128 31H

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020:
2019512318 k202051 A1A :

Cost XA 109,021 28,558 14,229 35,243 187,061
Accumulated depreciation 2T & (11,604) (17,190) 6,771) (20,510) (56,075)
Net carrying amount JS Bk El & 97,417 11,368 7,458 14,733 130,976
At 1 January 2020, net of accumulated
depreciation 202051 A1H - ks RZ5HHTE 97,417 11,368 7,458 14,733 130,976
Additions /R E - 5,730 442 316 6,488
Disposals & = (25) (73) = (98)
Acquisition of subsidiaries 48 2 7l - = 361 = 361
Disposal of subsidiaries & 1 A - (6,588) (873) (360) (7,821)
Depreciation provided during the year
FRITERE (3,452) (2,490) (1,686) (9,340) (16,968)
At 31 December 2020, net of accumulated
depreciation 20205128318 » MR R E 93,965 7,995 5,629 5,349 112,938
At 31 December 2020: 2020124318 :
Cost A A 109,021 25,292 13,509 34,346 182,168
Accumulated depreciation 51 E (15,056) (17,297) (7,880) (28,997) (69,230)
Net carrying amount /BRI {E 93,965 7,995 5,629 5,349 112,938
At 31 December 2021, the Group’s property, plant and equipment AEBR2021F12A31BEABEEEYD
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB82,439,000 AR®82,439,0007L (20204 : AR
(2020: RMB83,177,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing bank 83,177,000 MM % « BMERRHEEZ
and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 30). o AAERERNERTREMEE

AR (B RE30) -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES u REYE

Under

Completed construction Total

2RI TE st

RMB’000
ARBTR

RMB’000
AR®T

RMB’000
ARBFR

Carrying amount at 1 January 2020 72202041 51 B #ERE{E 2,798,600 = 2,798,600
Addition RE - 67,864 67,864
Disposal of a subsidiary & T2 & (134,600) - (134,600)
Net gain/(loss) from a fair value adjustment

DA BEAEMEF RS (EEB) 3,000 (11,164) (8,164)
Carrying amount at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

R2020%F 12 A31H &2021F1 A1 B MEREE 2,667,000 56,700 2,728,700
Addition RN & - 31,001 31,001

Net gain/(loss) from a fair value adjustment

AR EEFABREFRE(EE) 35,300 (14,501) 20,799
Carrying amount at 31 December 2021

2021912 A31 B ERHEE 2,702,300 73,200 2,775,500

The Group’s investment properties are situated in Mainland China. The
Group’s investment properties were revalued on 31 December 2021
based on valuations performed by Jones Lang LaSalle Corporate
Appraisal and Advisory Limited (“JLL”"), an independent professionally
qualified valuer, at RMB2,775,500,000 (2020: RMB2,723,700,000).
The Group’s chief financial officer decides, after approval from the
board of directors of the Company, to appoint which external valuer
to be responsible for the external valuations of the Group’s properties.
Selection criteria include market knowledge, reputation, independence
and whether professional standards are maintained. The Group’s
chief financial officer has discussions with the valuer on the valuation
assumptions and valuation results when the valuation is performed for
financial reporting.

On 31 December 2021, the Group’s investment properties with an
aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB2,519,700,000
(2020: RMB2,481,100,000) were pledged to secure interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings granted to the Group (note 30).

NEBNIREMEN R PR A - NEH
MR EMENDENBLEES ERGEERM
MEBRTLCETHERERABRAA((HE
Bt 1T DB TR 202112 A1 B &R A
AR #2,775,500,0007T (2020%F : AR
2,723,700,0007) - AEBEM HEH B E L
RAREBEBGHERRTEZEINEBEER
BEAEEYEMNIDEE - BBIZER
FEhisad B2 BUMKESREHR
E2E - AEENEEVKE D EGERM
RETVBEREHENFERERGES
REITHM ©

AEBER2021F12A31BNARKREEL
AR #2 519,700,0007T (20204 : AR
2,481,100,000) I EMEBDEWR - &
NEFERNTBRITREMEEEET
(FfF5E30) °
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
(CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy

The following table illustrates the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s investment properties:

Recurring fair value measurement for
BRATEHEETHREEAABEFE
Commercial properties 78 % ¥ %

W REY = (&)

DIREEER
TRAPAEEREMENRAEBEFE
B

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2021 using

R2021F12A31 B EAU T REINA L EETE

Quoted
prices in

Significant
observable

Significant
unobservable

active markets inputs inputs

BEATABE

WARE
(Level 3) Total
(E=H) @st
RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®BTR AR®T R

RIE BT I% BEATEE
KR IE BWABE
(Level 1) (Level 2)
(E-H) (gt 1))
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMET T ARMET T

Completed B T - - 2,702,300 2,702,300
Under construction 752 = = 73,200 73,200
= - 2,775,500 2,775,500

Recurring fair value measurement for
ATEBETHEEERABENE
Commercial properties & % 4) %

Fair value measurement as at 31 December 2020 using
R2020F 12 A1 B AU T RN AR EEFTE

Quoted Significant Significant
prices in observable unobservable
active markets inputs inputs
WG BRI %5 BERABE | EXMAIEE
B (E BWARE W\ 2R
(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3) Total
(E—R (B (E=H) et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETFT ARETT AREFT

Completed 2% T - - 2,667,000 2,667,000
Under construction #£32 = = 56,700 56,700
= - 2,723,700 2,723,700
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

4. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES

(CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

1%

During the year ended 31 December 2021 there were no transfers of
fair value measurements between Level 1 and Level 2 and no transfers

into or out of Level 3 (2020: Nil).

Set out below is a summary of the valuation techniques used and the
key inputs to the valuation of investment properties:

Completed commercial properties

BRTEENE

Commercial properties under

construction EEHEME

Valuation techniques
LR

Income approach

WA

Comparison method

HEE

Significant
unobservable inputs

EXTIRERAHE

Estimated rental value
(per square metre
and per month)

EREE A
(BFHKREA)

Capitalisation rate

BRfE

Long term vacancy rate
EHEER

Expected profit margin

LIRS

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

REW=(R)

DIREEER(E)

HE2021F12A31BILFEE » F—HEFE
“HETEARBETFENER - NE
T e R B 5 = R (20204 : &) o

AT BB ESEMAR S ERMNRE
RHABBEHE -

Range or weighted average
31 December

GEHMEFY
128318

2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB69-609 RMB69-609
AR#69-6097T AR#69-6097T
3.5%-6.25% 3.5%6.25%
2%-15% 2%-10%
10% 10%
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

14. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES u BREYWEE)

(CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

The fair value of completed commercial properties is determined
using the income approach by taking into account the rental income
of the properties derived from the existing leases and/or achievable
in the existing market with due allowance for the reversionary income
potential of the leases, which have been then capitalised to determine
the fair value at an appropriate capitalisation rate. Where appropriate,
reference to the comparable sales transactions as available in the
relevant market has also been considered.

A significant increase (decrease) in the estimated rental value would
result in a significant increase (decrease) in the fair value of the
investment properties. A significant increase (decrease) in the long
term vacancy rate and the capitalisation rate in isolation would result
in a significant decrease (increase) in the fair value of the investment
properties.

The fair value of commercial properties under construction is
determined using the comparison method, with reference to
comparable sales evidence as available in the relevant market to derive
the fair value of the property assuming that it was completed and,
where appropriate, after deducting the following items:

e Estimated construction cost and professional fees to be expensed
to complete the properties that would be incurred by a market
participant; and

e Estimated profit margin that a market participant would require to
hold and develop the property to completion.

A higher estimated construction cost would result in a lower fair value
of the investment properties under construction.

A higher expected profit margin would result in a lower fair value of the
investment properties under construction.
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IREEER(E)

ERTEENENRABEDFBKEE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

5. LEASES

The Group as a lessee

The Group has lease contracts for various items of offices, motor
vehicles and other equipment used in its operations. Leases of offices
and motor vehicles generally have lease terms between 2 and 3 years.
Other equipment generally has lease terms of 12 months or less and/
or is individually of low value. Generally, the Group is restricted from
assigning and subleasing the leased assets outside the Group.

(a) Right-of-use assets

The carrying amounts of the Group’s right-of-use assets and the
movements during the year are as follows:

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

5 HE

REBE/EBEA

AEBBERZEMAE - AERA AR
LHARBHNHEEAR - MAERTEN
MEBEN F2E3F - HREMNHELE
BR12EAFIATR, RERRENEE
BIK - —RME - NEE A RS E AR
SMANTEEEADHBEEEE -

@ RHESE

ARERFRANERREEREER
HET

Motor
Offices vehicles Total

/N AE et

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARETT AREETTT

As at 1 January 2020 73202051 H1H 6,396 568 6,964
Additions "R E 5,662 457 6,019
Disposal of a subsidiary & A & (1,592) = (1,592)
Depreciation charge 3T & &2 6,111) (216) (6,327)
As at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021

M2020F12 A31H K% 202141 51H 4,255 809 5,064
Additions R E 4,733 208 4,941

Depreciation charge T &R X (5,452) (843) (6,295)
As at 31 December 2021 7202112 H31H 3,536 174 3,710
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

5. LEASES (CONTINUED) 5. HE(E)
The Group as a lessee (continued) AEBEREEA(E)
(b) Lease liabilities b) HERE
The carrying amount of lease liabilities and the movements during FANHEARRAEREESHOT :

the year are as follows:

2021 2072{0)
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETFIT
Carrying amount at 1 January 71 A1 B/ EREE 5,081 7,059
New leases #10 & 4,941 6,019
Disposal of a subsidiary 1 & A &) = (1,733)
Accretion of interest recognised during the year
F AR SIEE 550 870
Payments 1 X (6,585) (7,134)
Carrying amount at 31 December 712 831 H K BREE 3,987 5,081
Analysed into: D4 :
Current portion i B E8 5 2,554 2,008
Non-current portion FEE1Ef &R 1,433 3,073
The maturity analysis of lease liabilities is disclosed in note 44 to HEBEE B D TR EN I % @m &
the financial statements. MIzE44 -
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15. LEASES (CONTINUED)

The Group as a lessee (continued)

(c) The amounts recognised in profit or loss in relation to leases are

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

15 HE (&)

REBEER/FEBEA(E)

(c) WBzFERHHERRNELT -

as follows:
2021 2020
202145 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT
Interest on lease liabilities 16 & & E#F 2 550 870
Depreciation charge of right-of-use assets £ & EFEFH X 6,295 6,327
Expense relating to short-term leases
(included in administrative expenses)
BRI HES AR GEATTRFX) 5,312 5,470
Expense relating to leases of low-value assets
(included in administrative expenses)
EEBEEEHERBNMX GTATTEHAX) 153 143
Total amount recognised in profit or loss R 18 %5 A HER 4258 12,310 12,810

(d) The total cash outflow for leases relating to leases that have
not yet commenced is disclosed in note 38(c) to the financial
statements.

The Group as a lessor

The Group leases its investment properties (note 14) consisting of
3 commercial properties in Mainland China under operating lease
arrangements. The terms of the leases generally require the tenants
to pay security deposits and provide for periodic rent adjustments
according to the then prevailing market conditions. Rental income
recognised by the Group during the year was RMB51,673,000 (2020:
RMB49,550,000), details of which are included in note 5 to the
financial statements.

@ mARIBNEERBNEERS R
#ERR R R I B IS R MY FE38(c)

AEBESHBEA

AEBBELCLHELHEAEREY
¥ (WiE14)  BEPEANBOIEEEY
¥ ZSHENKRBEERBRLXIM
EREZESTYREBERITMRAETEHRES
AE - FR - AEEMNEBRIES KA
A ANREES1,673,0007T (20204 : AR
49,550,0007T) * FF BN Y EHRE M T
5o
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

5. LEASES (CONTINUED) 5. HE (&)
The Group as a lessor (continued) AEBEAEHEAGE
At 31 December 2021, the undiscounted lease payments receivable M2021F12A318 - REBERIFEEBR
by the Group in future periods under non-cancellable operating leases BT AT RS AC & T B R SR HAR B U R B 3R
with its tenants are as follows: MERFWAT
2021 2020
20215 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARETTT
Within one year —F & 57,040 55,423
After one year but within two years — A _F{ER G AR 51,590 47219
After two years but within three years BF A 1B =F LA 46,548 40,833
After three years but within four years = A F{EIIFE AR 39,755 35,829
After four years but within five years PO A B RFLAR 36,244 32,916
After five years FLF & 192,855 210,796
424,032 423,016
16. INTANGIBLE ASSETS 6 BEEEE
2021 2020
20215 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T T ARBT T
Software ¥ #4
At the beginning of the year: & 4] :
Cost XA 20,770 14,015
Accumulated amortisation 2 514§ (5,799) (3,962)
Net carrying amount /FBREE 14,971 10,053
Carrying amount at the beginning of the year F ¥/ 8& I (& 14,971 10,053
Additions RN E 4,355 6,774
Disposal of subsidiaries H & T2 &l = @)
Amortisation provided during the year F A B 1 {55 2 $4 (2,413) (1,849)
Carrying amount at the end of the year F R ERHEIE 16,913 14,971
At the end of the year: F K :
Cost XA 25,125 20,770
Accumulated amortisation 2 514 $4 (8,212) (5,799)
Net carrying amount % ERE (& 16,913 14,971
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

1. REELENKRE

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETTT

Share of net assets D 1hFEE 1,117,554 403,777
Financial guarantees provided to joint ventures 12 F & & (> Z M B IS ER 2,145 -
1,119,699 403,777

The Group has guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings
made to its joint ventures. Details are set out in note 32. In the opinion
of the directors, the financial guarantee services are unlikely to be
compensated in the foreseeable future and are considered as part of
the Group’s net investments in the joint ventures.

The Group’s balances with joint ventures are disclosed in note 41 to
the financial statements.

(a) Particulars of the Group’s material joint venture are as follows:

Place and year
Name of company of registration

AEECRAESELEFERMNE TR
REMEERHEER - FBEEHRMES2 -
BEERR UBERRENAELHED
RARRESHE  LRE/AEEREE
EEFREN B -

AEH RS E DR RI I B MR T
4R

(@ AEEXTEAEEENFBHI A

Actual percentage
of ownership interest

ARER iR 5
BTG EEERAR () Jiangsu, PRC
Changzhou Kaiyang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (note) R &
2019

2019%

Note: Pursuant to the investment framework agreement and the
articles of association of Changzhou Kaiyang Real Estate Co.,
Ltd. (“Changzhou Kaiyang”), all shareholder resolutions of the
company shall be resolved by all shareholders on a unanimous
basis. Therefore, Changzhou Kaiyang was accounted for as a joint
venture of the Group during the year.

Registered attributable to | Principal
share capital the Group | activities
RMB’000
rEBEEER
R ERERAIL
ARBT T
2,000,000 43.00%  Property
development
mERE

iz : REFEMNHIABEZFERIF(EMSL
BDIREERGZEREMERRZAA - 2
AMERRARI AL BER %8
B o Bt - BMNSEREARARAEEA
RIMEEER%E -
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s T N Se
17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 7. REELENRE(E)

(CONTINUED)

(b) Changzhou Kaiyang Real Estate Co., Ltd. which is considered (b) FMNTENEEEER D AIERIERE

as a material joint venture of the Group for the year ended 31 BREZE2021F12A31B LFERN=E
December 2021, co-develops a property development project with ZHECE  HARAMMNEMEE
the other joint venture partners in Mainland China and Changzhou TEHERRAEMEIER - BEMNEE
Kaiyang is accounted for using the equity method. REREEAR -
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information TEREAFNTIABGEXEER AT
in respect of Changzhou Kaiyang Real Estate Co., Ltd. adjusted BHERBEE  EREABERNEM
for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled to the ZREHARKEEES PBHREAL
carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements: IREEEEE -

31 December

2021
20214
12A31H
RMB’000
ARET T
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & MR & S B 4,907
Other current assets E bR B & & 141,634
Current assets it B) & & 146,541
Non-current assets FE7 & & 97
Current liabilities R E & & (56,418)
Net assets JF& &= 90,220

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the joint venture:
HEASERALhRERNVEER

Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7~ £ B ffr & # &9 Lt 51 43%
Group’s share of net assets of the joint venture AEEDIE A SR 2N FEE 38,795
Carrying amount of the investment 1% & #) BR E & 38,795
Revenue Yz 533,956
Expenses F X (437,586)
Tax fi I8 (24,674)

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
FANEREZERA 71,696
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17. INVESTMENTS IN JOINT VENTURES 7. REELENRE(E)
(CONTINUED)
(c) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of () TRITFAKREBIEFERNERE &1
the Group’s joint ventures that are not individually material: EWBITEER

2021 2020
20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Share of the joint ventures’ loss and total comprehensive loss for the year

DMEEECEFNEERREAEEIE (35,939) (15,364)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s investments in the joint ventures
REEREGEPENRENEREE 1,080,904 403,777
The joint ventures have been accounted for using the equity EOEEPRZENBREPEAERE
method in these financial statements. )\ﬁE ®
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision KABIEERAE - MN2021F128310 » &
for impairment is necessary as at 31 December 2021 (2020: Nil). TR E R (20204 : M) -
18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES B REBEQXTNRE
2021 2020
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥ET T ARBTIT
Share of net assets 71 F & & 2,750,795 1,876,466
Financial guarantees provided to associates et FBf 4 A &) 8 B #5&R 23,355 -
2,774,150 1,876,466
The Group has guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings REED RAEEE D FELNE TRIT
made to its associates. Details are set out in note 32. In the opinion MEAEERHEER - FBEEHRHEI2 -
of the directors, the financial guarantee services are unlikely to be EERAE  UBERRBENIERERT
compensated in the foreseeable future and are considered as part of AAREESHE  WRAASEREEQ
the Group’s net investments in the associates. ANFIRER—F 5 o
The Group’s balances with associates are disclosed in note 41 to the 7N 52 (B BB N R B A SR B S SRR P 5T
financial statements. 413555 o
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

(a) Particulars of the Group’s material associates are as follows:

Place and year

Name of company of registration

EfbHEREG

EELTEEEBERAR M) Shanghai, PRC

Shanghai Hongbian Corporate Management Co., Ltd. R L
(note) 2019
2019%

SEMXERHERRABR AT Zhejiang, PRC
Jinhua Meirun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. HET
(note) 2019
2019

EENREEERERDA (M) Shanghai, PRC

Shanghai Lique Corporate Management Co., Ltd. HE LS
(note) 2019
2019%

Note: Pursuant to the articles of association of Shanghai Hongbian

Corporate Management Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Hongbian”), Jinhua
Meirun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. (“Jinhua Meirun”) and
Shanghai Lique Corporate Management Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai
Lique”), the other shareholders of these entities have enough voting
power to control and operate the entities. Thus, these entities are
accounted for as associates of the Group with the Group holding
49.00%, 27.00% and 49.00% of equity interests in Shanghai
Hongbian, Jinhua Meirun and Shanghai Lique, respectively.

(b) Shanghai Hongbian Corporate Management Co., Ltd., which is
considered a material associate of the Group, develops property
projects with the other associate partners in Mainland China and
is accounted for using the equity method.
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8. NEEE R BAVIRE (&)

() AEBEEEHEQARFBEI 0

I

Registered
share capital
RMB’000

RI0TES
AR¥TR

1,000,000

40,000,000

2,000,000

B aE

Actual percentage

of ownership interest

attributable to | Principal
the Group | activities
rEBEEER
EZBERAAL
49.00%  Property
development
mERE
27.00%  Property
development
MEFE
49.00%  Property
development
MERE

BRI EBITEEERARAA
(TE&R]) - EEMXBEHE
BERARAA(SEXED R LE
NELEXERERAR(TLEEN
BMOMAZKERME - ZSEEN
H AR R R B IR R DA ) &2
EZERE - Bt EBT &
EXBRLEENBRBAEED R
F§H49.00% * 27.00% K 49.00%f%
% MZEFEBRAREARIE

BEAT -

(b) LEUSTEEERERARRBIER
SENETEBRENR - EREAME
HipBt 2B HHAEWEER - XEA
EEEANR °
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES
(CONTINUED)

18 REEE R BAVIRE (&)

(b) (continued) (b) (%&)

Jinhua Meirun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd., which is
considered a material associate of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2021, develops property projects with the other
associate partners in Mainland China and is accounted for using
the equity method.

Shanghai Lique Corporate Management Co., Ltd., which is
considered a material associate of the Group, develops property
projects with the other associate partners in Mainland China and
is accounted for using the equity method.

The following table illustrates the summarised financial information
in respect of Shanghai Hongbian Corporate Management Co.,
Ltd. adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and
reconciled to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial
statements:

SEMEBRMWEZRERQAAER
EREBNEE2021F12A318 L4
EMEBHENE  BRERAHHE
MR HREETRER - WiF AR
AN ©

EBNBREXREEARRBHERIER
SENTIRHRENT - BhE RN
HMEBHREYWEER - XEA
AN °

TRHUPALBITEEEEBRAA
MPHERBME  CREBERMNE
MERMEHBHBEREBLEEMBRERA
YRR E{E $ AR

2021 2020
20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT

Cash and cash equivalents 3R & MR & S B

- 1

Other current assets E fth /R 8) & & 999,998 1,000,000
Current liabilities 7 & & - @)
Net assets JF& & 999,998 999,999
Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the associate:
BAREE NI AR R
Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7 £ [ Fr /5 # 8 L 171 49% 49%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate 25 B {5 B ‘& A Bl H)F & & 489,999 490,000
Carrying amount of the investment 1% & #) BRE & 489,999 490,000
Expenses X (1) -
Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year
FREBREZEEE (1) -
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8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 18 REEE N TNIRE (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) (continued) (b) (&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information TERAHASEMEHEHERREAR
in respect of Jinhua Meirun Real Estate Development Co., Ltd. NEIMPEERBME  ERGETEE
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled B Efa] 2= BIVE I 82 R B4R & B 75 3R
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements: FARKREBEHE
2021
20214
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & MR & S B 146,331
Other current assets E b8 & &= 1,089,787
Current assets 8 & &= 1,236,118
Non-current assets BN E & 15
Current liabilities 8 & & (650,104)
Net assets JF& &= 586,029

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the associate:
BRSO A AR A H AR

Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7~ £& B Ffr /5 # 4 Lt 71 27%

Group’s share of net assets of the associate 7N & B 7 (h B & A & 8 F & & 158,228
Carrying amount of the investment & & HERE B 158,228
Revenue W 682,611
Expenses F X2 (464,887)
Tax fi18 (23,576)

Profit and total comprehensive income for the year
FAFNEREZERA 194,148
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18. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES B REEQRTNRE (&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) (continued) (b) (%&)
The following table illustrates the summarised financial information TRHFPALEENHREEEERR QA
in respect of Shanghai Lique Corporate Management Co., Ltd. MEFEEREE  ERSTERENE
adjusted for any differences in accounting policies and reconciled AIZERIEN AR R EEE B HREA
to the carrying amount in the consolidated financial statements: HEREE SR -
2021 2020
20214 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARBT T
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & MR & S B 20 520
Other current assets E A 81 & & 1,999,480 1,998,980
Net assets & & 1,999,500 1,999,500

Reconciliation to the Group’s interest in the associate:
BN B B A AR A AR ¢

Proportion of the Group’s ownership 7 £ [ Fr /5 # §9 L& 151 49% 49%
Group’s share of net assets of the associate 7N 5= & 2 (H Bt & N 7 KR B E 979,755 979,755
Carrying amount of the investment 1% & &) BRE & 979,755 979,755
Expenses F 5z = (500)

Loss and total comprehensive loss for the year
FREBEEIEEZEER - (500)
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8. INVESTMENTS IN ASSOCIATES 8. REtE Qe NiRE (18)
(CONTINUED)
(c) The following table illustrates the aggregate financial information of () TRINIFAEEEIEERHBKRBEE D
the Group’s associates that are not individually material: RIMEB TS AR

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Share of the associates’ profit or loss and total comprehensive income

or loss DG HE & N R A B S ET 1B R A 2 E WA S E 18 (24,690) (9,032)
Aggregate carrying amount of the Group’s investments in the associates
REEREE R EHIRE N EREE 1,146,168 406,711
The associates have been accounted for using the equity method BENTERZ SV MR P ERAE
in these financial statements. wIENER o
The directors of the Company are of the opinion that no provision KAREERE  KR2021F12A31H
for impairment was necessary as at 31 December 2021 (2020: EIAFTIRR BB E (20204 : 48) -

Nil).
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19. DEFERRED TAX 19 IEZEBIE
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year BEEFRBEERBERFARNNESHOT

are as follows:

Deferred tax assets EEHREEE

Fair value

adjustments

of equity

[

Losses at fair value
available | through other

for offsetting | comprehensive Unrealised Impairment

against future income revenue losses on

taxable profits | &AREEA Accrued in contract Accrued financial

Lease WK | Ht2EUAN | construction liabilities LAT assets
liabilities ARERT | REREELN cost ERAEN i s SREE Total
HERE FEnEE | AAEERE | EGERAL RERKE BEH REFE @t
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETT ARETT ARETFL ARETT ARETFL AREFT ARETT ARETT

At 1 January 2020

R202051R18 1,765 4,066 - 49,119 194,654 68,819 205 318,628
Acquisition of subsidiaries

U SN - - - - 34,779 - - 34,779
Disposal of subsidiaries

HETATF (433) - - (10,89) (102,876) - - (114,208)

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
profit or loss during the year
FWEA/ (IR B)EEE
EREHE (62) 12,885 - (2,623) 41,540 (66,094) 659 (13,699)
Deferred tax credited to other
comprehensive income during
the year
ERFAEMEERAR
BEEHE - - 4,225 - - - - 4,225

At 31 December 2020
12020F 128318 1,270 16,951 4,225 35,600 168,097 2,725 864 229,732
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9. DEFERRED TAX(CONTINUED) 10, IR ZE R EH (5]8)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year BEEMRBEERBERFRNNESNOT -
are as follows: (continued) (#8)
Deferred tax assets (continued) EERIEEE (B

Fair value

adjustments

of equity

investment

Losses at fair value

available | through other
for offsetting | comprehensive Unrealised Impairment
against future income revenue losses on

taxable profits | A REEA Accrued in contract Accrued financial

Lease AtES | Ht2ERAR | construction liabilities LAT assets
liabilities RRERD | REREEEN cost RRAEN et L SREE Total
HEAE AENER | ALEEEE | EAERAL AERNE BEH BEEE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBFTT ARETT ARBTI ARBTFT ARETT AREFT AREFT AREFT

At 1 January 2021

20211818 1,270 16,951 4,225 35,600 168,097 2,725 864 229,732
Acquisition of subsidiaries

(note 36)
e SN (IR - - - = 43,002 = = 43,002
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37)
HEF AR (37 = 2,118) = = (44,403) = = (46,521)

Deferred tax credited/(charged) to
profit or loss during the year
EMEA/ (IR E) B
BIEHE (273) (12,881) - (6,051) 94,054 (2,725) 498 72,622
Deferred tax charged to other
comprehensive income during
the year
FREEBZERADIRE
BEHE - = (4,225) = = = = (4,225)

At 31 December 2021
20215128317 997 1,952 - 29,549 260,750 - 1,362 294,610
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19. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 10, IR FEBI T (48)
The movements in deferred tax assets and liabilities during the year BEEFRBEERBERFARNNESHOT
are as follows: (continued) (#8)
Deferred tax liabilities EEHBREE
Fair value
adjustments
of equity
investment
at fair value
Fair value through other Fair value
adjustments comprehensive adjustments
arising from income arising from
investment RAREEFA business
properties Rt 2ERAN combinations Right-of-
REMEELEN BREREELN ERAHELN use assets Total
NABERE NABERE NABERE RRESE At
RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTT ARBTTT AREFT ARETFT ARBTT
At 1 January 2020 202051 A 1H 461,274 935 - 1,741 463,950
Acquisition of subsidiaries MK & ¥ 72 7 - - 29,157 - 29,157
Disposal of subsidiaries i/ (2,164) = = (398) (2,562)
Deferred tax credited to profit or loss during the year
FRHABENELHE (2,041) = (15,119) (77) (17,237)
Deferred tax credited to other comprehensive income during
the year ERET ALt 2ERARELHIE = (935) = = (935)
At 31 December 2020 #2020%12A31H 457,069 - 14,038 1,266 472,373
At 1 January 2021 1202151418 457,069 - 14,038 1,266 472,373
Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) WA 7 (1 3£36) - = 25,067 = 25,067
Deferred tax (credited)/charged to profit or loss during
the year ER (T A) /M B ERMELHE 5,200 = (33,964) (340) (29,104)
Deferred tax charged to other comprehensive income during
the year £ME A2 ERANRMELHE - 4,785 - = 4,785
At 31 December 2021 #20214512A31H 462,269 4,785 5,141 926 473,121
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19. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED) 19, IR ER I (4F)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

For presentation purposes, certain deferred tax assets and liabilities
have been offset in the consolidated statement of financial position.
The following is an analysis of the deferred tax balances for financial
reporting purposes:

Net deferred tax assets recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position M 4R & M AR R AFER K FIRLERIAE &

Net deferred tax liabilities recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position M4R & MR AR NER K FIRLERIAS &

R R 8 & ()

BRENME  BETELERBEERARED
REFAMBARRKRAEE - AT AMB
AR E A REBRIAGER DT -

2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFIT
292,904 228,485
(471,415) (471,126)
(178,511) (242,641)

Pursuant to the PRC Corporate Income Tax Law, a 10% withholding
tax is levied on dividends declared to foreign investors from the foreign
investment enterprises established in Mainland China. The requirement
is effective from 1 January 2008 and applies to earnings after 31
December 2007. A lower withholding tax rate may be applied if there is
a tax treaty between Mainland China and the jurisdiction of the foreign
investors. For the Group, the applicable rate is 10%. The Group is
therefore liable for withholding taxes on dividends distributed by those
subsidiaries established in Mainland China in respect of earnings
generated from 1 January 2008.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

19. DEFERRED TAX (CONTINUED)

Deferred tax liabilities (continued)

At 31 December 2021 and 2020, no deferred tax has been recognised
for withholding taxes that would be payable on the unremitted
earnings that are subject to withholding taxes of the Company and
the Group’s subsidiaries established in Mainland China. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the Group’s fund will be retained in
Mainland China for the expansion of the Group’s operation, so it is
not probable that these subsidiaries will distribute such earnings in the
foreseeable future. The aggregate amounts of temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries in Mainland China for
which deferred tax liabilities have not been recognised totalled
approximately RMB2,317,934,000 as at 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB1,737,565,000).

Deferred tax assets have not been recognised in respect of the
following items:

Tax losses Tt 18 &5 18

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

i SE B 1 (4])
ST IR B ()

MR2021FE K2020F12A31H » "XAR K&
7N 2 [ 3 4 A P B R BB R S B A B FE
B TE B A AR B 1 2 F M FE AT R TR0
BRIELERE - ARREERE - A5E
WELKBIRASBEMNLL MM E
W RE - MZETFRRRAI AR R
AR KRB EAEF - 1202112 H31
H - BRABERH TR FREE R
BREEHEABENEAENEHARNA
AR#2 317,934,0007T (20204 : AR#E
1,737,565,0007T) ©

WEFANE B ERELEHRIBEE

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000
AR® T

1,141,420

RMB’000
ARETIT
854,925

Deferred tax assets are recognised for tax losses carried forward to
the extent that the realisation of the related tax benefits through future
taxable profits is probable. At 31 December 2021, the Group did not
recognise deferred tax assets of approximately RMB285,355,000
(2020: RMB213,731,000), in respect of tax losses amounting to
approximately RMB1,141,420,000 (2020: RMB854,925,000), that can
be carried forward to offset against future taxable income. These tax
losses will expire up to and including years ending 31 December 2022,
2023, 2024, 2025 and 2026.

Tﬁ%*ﬁﬁﬁﬁﬁﬂﬁﬁ—fﬁbLiﬂﬂEXJEu%@%T‘J
BER - AgMmEENFRIEEBBRERE
Uﬁl%? MW2021%F12/831H - leﬁl
I 4 B AR H1,141,420,0007T (2020
£ AR#854,925,0007T) H)F: 18 &5 18 1
RELEHEEE N AR 285,355,0007T
(20204 : AR¥213,731,0007T) @ :ZHiE
EFRIBEER TS AR R ERRR K
Ao ZEMIBBEHEREZE20229F - 2023
&~ 20244 - 2025%F K 202612 A31H 1E
FEMBEZEFFE)EM -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

MEHRFTHEE =

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

20. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE
THROUGH PROFIT OR LOSS

PR /N
'BE

REEFABEENER

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T ARETTT

Listed equity investments, at fair value ¥ /A it (BEFTH_ETARERE 677,902 733,086
Unlisted investments, at fair value £ A 2 BETAIIE EHRE 178,486 203,967
856,388 937,053

The above listed equity investments were classified as financial assets
at fair value through profit or loss as they were held for trading.

The above unlisted investments were funds issued by exempted
companies incorporated under the laws of the Cayman Islands. They
were classified as financial assets at fair value through profit or loss as
they were held for trading.

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s financial assets at fair value
through profit or loss with an aggregate carrying amount of
approximately RMB191,860,000 (2020: RMB263,498,000) were
pledged to secure bank and other borrowings granted to the Group
(note 30).

21 EQUITY INVESTMENTS DESIGNATED
AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER
COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

i EERERERBIEEER DB RIZ
RABEFARENEREE -

b3 EIRE TIIRER 2 8 SR DI EM
R ER R RBEITHES - ZFRE
REEEERIERRAABEN AR
MEMEE -

R2021%F12A31H ' AEBBAREENA
AR ®191,860,0007T (2020%F : AR
263,498,0007T) MIE AR BEF AERZH
TRMEECER  RASEERNRITR
HE e EEEAR(MIFES0) ©

BEERRAABET AR
EHBRANKRERE

2021 2020
20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARETTT

Unlisted equity investments, at fair value 1% A 72 (BB AIIE L IR ERE

131,140 95,100

The above equity investments were irrevocably designated at fair value
through other comprehensive income as the Group considers these
investments to be strategic in nature.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

2. PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®T ARBTTT

Carrying amount at 1 January A1 318 M ERHEIE 12,676,017 9,844,872

Additions RN E 9,030,945 9,413,013

Acquisition of subsidiaries (note 36) Yz && A & (B 5£36) 2,213,790 2,670,100
Transferred to completed properties held for sale (note 23)

BREDRTHRHEHEYE (FI23) (4,732,002) (8,183,816)

Impairment losses recognised (note 6) & & 2R & &5 18 (M1 5£6) (7,918) =

Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) & F 2 &7 (f13£37) (1,559,152) (1,068,152)

Carrying amount at 31 December 7312 A31 B R R HEIE 17,621,680 12,676,017

The Group’s properties under development are situated on leasehold
lands in Mainland China.

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s properties under development with
an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB8,623,302,000
(2020: RMB8,927,099,000) were pledged to secure bank and other
borrowings granted to the Group (note 30).

AEENERZMECLRTEAMNEE L
e

R2021F12A310 * AEBBEREEELN A
AR #8,623,302,0007T (20204 : AR
8,927,099,0007) WERMECDEWR - &
REBERMIRITREAAEEERT P T
30) °
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

22 PROPERTIES UNDER DEVELOPMENT 22 &Y% (&)
(CONTINUED)

The movements in provision for impairment of properties under EEMEREBREEDBROT -
development are as follows:

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARBT R

At the beginning of the year F 4]] -

Impairment losses recognised (note 6) 2 & 52 5 (B /&5 18 (Fff 5£6) (7,918)
At the end of the year &K (7,918)
The value of properties under development is assessed at the end of EEMENBER SRS ARTM - HE
each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying value MY ENEEEERS 0] #IR5E - A
exceeds its net realisable value. The net realisable value is determined RABRE AZRFEDLEERNT
by reference to the selling price based on the prevailing market price ERERAEENIRBRERKEINE
less applicable selling expenses and the total anticipated construction BETE -

cost.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

23. COMPLETED PROPERTIES HELD FOR
SALE

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

B ERTHIFHENE

2021 2020

20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T ARETTT

Carrying amount at 1 January A1 318 M ERHEE 2,042,689 2,864,311

Transferred from properties under development (note 22)

BRAEEYEMHE22) 4,732,002 8,183,816
Disposal of subsidiaries (note 37) & F 2 &l (f5£37) (807,108) (1,769,096)
Transferred to cost of sales (note 6) $& ¥ Z i & B Zx (M1 5£6) (4,950,542) (7,236,342)
Impairment losses recognised (note 6)E #3278 (B 518 (Ff5£6) (70,852) =
Carrying amount at 31 December 7212 431 B /BRI E 946,189 2,042,689

At 31 December 2021, the Group’s completed properties held for sale
with an aggregate carrying amount of approximately RMB109,592,000
(2020: Nil) were pledged to secure bank and other borrowings granted
to the Group (note 30).

The movements in provision for impairment of completed properties
held for sale are as follows:

At the beginning of the year & #]]
Impairment losses recognised (note 6) & & 2R & &5 18 (M1 516)

MR2021%F12831H » AEBE % TH1EH
EVMENRERBELN A ARE109,592,000
JC(2020%F : E)EEH - AASEEEN
$RAT R E A BRI IR (BT RE30) ©

ERTHEHEDERERBESNT

2021
20214

RMB’000
AR® T

(70,852)

At the end of the year &

(70,852)

The value of completed properties held for sale is assessed at the end
of each reporting period. An impairment exists when the carrying value
exceeds its net realisable value. The net realisable value is determined
by reference to the selling price based on the prevailing market prices
less applicable selling expenses and cost.

ERTHEHEVENEER S HREHK
A - HARYENREEEBAE &
BFE AIRAARE - AIZ2RFENZ
ZERHTERERHEEM RRANE
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24, B 5 EWFIE

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%T R AR¥ET T

Trade receivables & 5 fE U8 14,632 13,860
Impairment JE1E = =
14,632 13,860

Trade receivables mainly represent rentals receivable from tenants.
The Group seeks to maintain strict control over its outstanding
receivables and has a credit control department to minimise credit
risk. Overdue balances are reviewed regularly by management. In view
of the aforementioned and the fact that the Group’s trade receivables
relate to diversified customers, there is no significant concentration
of credit risk. The Group does not hold any collateral or other credit
enhancements over its trade receivable balances. Trade receivables
are unsecured and non-interest-bearing.

The carrying amounts of trade receivables in the consolidated
statement of financial position approximate to their fair values.

An ageing analysis of the trade receivables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

Less than 1 year DA —4

BHRURATERRREFEAS - XK
] =5 S EL R UK 0 R LA K TR A R R AR 2
YREEAZEHFFIAGEERR &N
- EEESTEHEMAMGE - EERIN
bRt R AR BN E 5 RIS KT H
BUEP UEBAEEERBREFER -
AEESEREE HRUHBESRITHE
MERYHEMERERTFR - BHEK
RIAREHFETETE -

REMBARRKRTE S RKFIANEREE
HERAEEMRE

RBEHERET  EREZAHNEFE
WHRIBRRER DT T -

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTF T ARETT
14,632 13,860

Receivables that were neither past due nor impaired relate to a large
number of diversified customers for whom there was no recent history
of default.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

24. TRADE RECEIVABLES (CONTINUED)

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for expected
credit losses prescribed by IFRS 9, which permits the use of the
lifetime expected loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade receivables have been grouped
based on shared credit risk characteristics and the days past due. The
expected loss rate of trade receivables is assessed to be 0.1%. Based
on the evaluation on the expected loss rate and gross carrying amount,
meanwhile, the directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
ECL in respect of these balances is considered to be immaterial, and
therefore, there has not been a loss allowance provision.

25. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES
AND OTHER ASSETS

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

24, B 5 EWFIE(58)

AEEBRABICIE  HREBRMBRE
ZRIFORRENBREERSE - BRAKRX
RABAAE S RYFBENEEEFEY
MBHEBEEREE - RFFERYEEERE
B 5 RUGRERE X RIE &R RS BANE
HIRBETHE - BZREIANTAHE
BRMEFR01% - RIBHBHEREX LA
FREEMNFG - A ARAREZTAS
RERBROFEHEEHRLAEKR - BA
ERTIREERE -

25 FE{FFE - HttEWRER

b EE

2021 2020
20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARETT

Due from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

JEUS F 2 18 IE 45 AR AR 3R FRIE 5,125,594 3,369,887
Prepayments for acquisition of land use rights U B £ 3t & FA A Y FE 1 ZR08 425,294 =
Other tax recoverable H & Ui [B] 7+ 18 505,890 323,635
Land auction and other deposits i #15 K& E iz & 174,485 420,022
Distributed profit receivables from a disposed subsidiary
BEHEFRRMERFES K 140,000 -
Consideration receivables from disposal of a subsidiary Hi & F /A 7 #) fE Y £ (& 47,000 =
Prepayments for construction cost 2 5% A 7N H 78 - 3k 38 11,943 5,181
Other receivables H fth & U 7118 136,935 86,843
6,567,141 4,205,568
Less: Impairment & : J& & (5,450) (3,457)
6,561,691 4,202,111
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2. PREPAYMENTS, OTHER RECEIVABLES 25 FA{YFIE - HttEWRIER

. = —
AND OTHER ASSETS (CONTINUED) Hth & = (&)
Other receivables are unsecured, non-interest-bearing and repayable H W sRIE R EET - PR RREK
on demand. & -
The internal credit rating of amounts due from non-controlling FEWF R AR FEIERIRRFIE - BIRE=
shareholders of subsidiaries, amounts due from third parties and other FRIEREMIZSHAEERSERER A
deposits was regarded as the grade of performing. The Group has RITER - AEBE DA% FEWRIE
assessed that the credit risk of these receivables has not increased BWEERKE BV &R RI EEE L
significantly since initial recognition. The expected loss rate of these e ZERKFIBNEREEERFTER
receivables is assessed to be 0.1%. The Group has evaluated 01% > AEECHEHEEX RERAE
the expected loss rate and gross carrying amount, measured the HEITRE - RIB12 A EREE &R
impairment based on the 12-month expected credit losses, and ERE - W 52021512 A31 B FEH]
assessed that the expected credit losses were RMB5,450,000 as at EEEEAARYS,450,0007T (20204 :
31 December 2021 (2020: RMB3,457,000). AR #¥3,457,0007T) °
S
26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES 2. MERBITEER
2021 2072{0)
20214 20204F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARETFIT
Cash and bank balances IR & K& R 1T 45 84 3,859,218 7,276,076
Less: Restricted cash J& : R HIIR& 1,747,639 2,128,643
Pledged deposits £, & #1735k 1,059,804 1,256,204
Cash and cash equivalents IR & M IR & EE Y 1,051,775 3,891,229
Pursuant to relevant regulations in the PRC, certain property BEEBAPEER  AEBNETYWER
development companies of the Group are required to place certain BNRBEKETRENBEEENIETIRT
amounts of cash in designated bank accounts for specified use. RPERTERAZ - M2021F12H318 -
As at 31 December 2021, such restricted cash amounted to ZEZREIRE /ARE,745,647,0007T
RMB1,745,647,000 (2020: RMB1,138,643,000). (2020%F : AR#1,138,643,0007T) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

2%. CASH AND BANK BALANCES
(CONTINUED)

As at 31 December 2021, the restricted cash did not include any
time deposit (2020: RMB990,000,000) maturing in more than three
months when acquired by the Group and earned interest at the time
deposit rates. As at 31 December 2021, the restricted cash included
an amount of RMB1,992,000 which was frozen by the People’s Court
due to lawsuits (2020: Nil).

As at 31 December 2021, deposits of RMB1,059,804,000 (2020:
RMB1,256,204,000) were pledged for the Group and third parties as
securities for mortgage loans and the construction of projects, bank
facilities, or as collateral for issuance of bank acceptance notes.

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

2. HERBITHESRGE)

M2021612H31H » XRFIBF & AEEAR
SEESKN=@ABIBEIZTHETER
1) = % XA B /9 £ 7] TE B 77 3K (20204 -
AR #990,000,0007T) ° 72021412 A 31
H ZBEHHSEEERFAEARERR
HEE AR #1,992,0007T (20204 - ##) o

R2021FE12A831H  TERARKE
1,059,804,0007L (20204 : AR
1,256,204,000T) E AAEBERE=HHE
- ERIRBERRIER BZRHEMSm
RITRE S E AR ITIRITA N ZHEMIKT

[}
on ©

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARETIT

RMB’000
AR® T

Denominated in RMB LA A R#EEHE 1,049,989 2,701,229
Denominated in HK$ JA7B TEHE 960 1,573
Denominated in US$ LAZETTEHE 826 1,188,427
Cash and cash equivalents IR & N8 & SEY 1,051,775 3,891,229

The RMB is not freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control Regulations and
Administration of Settlement, Sale and Payment of Foreign Exchange
Regulations, the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct foreign exchange
business.

ARBIGEHABRAEMEY  BRIE
B P ) SN B IR R B S AEEE - BEE I
NMEEERE - ARE A RBEREET
SMNEXBHRITHARB LB BEME
M o
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

26. CASH AND BANK BALANCES

2.

(CONTINUED)

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank
deposit rates. The bank balances are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default. The carrying amounts of the
cash and cash equivalents approximated to their fair values.

As at 31 December 2021, the internal credit rating of restricted cash,
pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents was regarded as the
grade of performing. The Group has assessed that the credit risk of
the restricted cash, pledged deposits and cash and cash equivalents
has not increased significantly since initial recognition and measured
the impairment based on 12-month expected credit losses, and has
assessed that the expected credit losses were immaterial.

TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES

An ageing analysis of the trade and bills payables as at the end of the
reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as follows:

26.

21.

BERBITHERGE

RITRESREE B RITFRNRIZFZEF
RE B - RITEBRTFR BT HE DTN
EEASNRT REMRSFEVNR
mEEERAEERS

R2021F12A318 » B HIEE - 2 E#H
BRURBEERREEEMOANBERE
TBHEBRITER - AEBEFEZR S
Re DEHABERUERBEERREEED
B2 B R\ B ) 25 52 LA 2R 37 4% 78 = 15 41
MiRE12 EAANEHEEBENERE
WEFHEHREEBEBETEK -

BEZENRERENRE

RBEEHERE  ERERAHNEZE
NRIERENRIERESITAOT

2021
20214

2020
20204
RMB’000
ARBTIT

RMB’000
ARBT

Less than 1 year D —4F 2,235,397 2,279,941
Over 1 year —F I £ 19,992 9,064
2,255,389 2,289,005

Trade and bills payables are unsecured, interest-free and are normally
settled based on the progress of construction.

The fair values of trade and bills payables as at the end of the reporting
period approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts due to
their relatively short maturity terms.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

28. OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS 2 HMENRERESTEH

2021 2020
20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT

Advances from non-controlling shareholders of subsidiaries

FREEIE R AR R B 3,775,470 1,450,155
Retention deposits related to construction and rental 248 K & HHRR LB 1L S 185,727 151,373
Deposits related to land use rights Tt {F MR IZ S = 408,956
Business tax and surcharges & 3£ %1 & Fff i1 & 125,633 101,735
Dividends payable &1 % & 39,738 28,413
Payroll and welfare payable &1 T& & 39,459 51,468
Interest payable F& {51 5 33,683 34,082
Deposits related to sales of properties ¥ ¥ 5 EHEEIL S 27,719 59,746
Others EAfth 93,992 43,121
4,321,421 2,329,049
Other payables and advances from non-controlling shareholders of Hih EARIERFARERBRRAR A
subsidiaries are unsecured, interest-free and repayable on demand, EER - RBEWEZRERER  EARE
except for an amount of RMB1,034,417,000 bearing interest at 8% per 1,034,417,0007T &) 7038 B 12 8% F FI| & 5
annum. The fair values of other payables at the end of the reporting B o HMt BRI RERREBERENQAR
period approximated to their corresponding carrying amounts. BEEEERNEREEBERES
20. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 20 SRAE
The Group recognised the following revenue-related contract liabilities: REBEDHRTIWEREENERAE -
2021 2020
2021 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®BT ARBT T
Contract liabilities & R & f& 10,589,836 7,073,740
The Group receives payments from customers based on the billing REERBEYEHEES B TR BGE
schedules as established in the property sale contracts. Payments are FRBEMREREFPHNK - FHBERE
usually received in advance of the performance under the contracts RAETZAWBR(EEREMERERE
which are mainly from property development and sale. K
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 3. it ESR{TRHE#MESE
BORROWINGS

Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
(%) Maturity RMB’000 (%) Maturity RMB’000
BRF=
(%) 8| AR®TR
Current E1
Bank loans - secured
BOTER— FER 4.0-8.3 2022 325,987 3.5-7.5 2021 421,930
Other loans — secured
Hip &5 — FEM 8.0-14.5 2022 272,650 5.1-18.8 2021 915,409
Current portion of long term bank loans
- secured
RBRTETNNBRHD — FEA 4.7-9.5 2022 982,741 4.6-10.0 2021 418,524
Current portion of long term other loans
- secured
HEi REERNNBEES — FHER 6.5-12.0 2022 1,656,997 6.5-14.0 2021 126,730
Current portion of long term other loans
—unsecured
HiRBEFNNHHD — HEH - - - 10.0 2021 5,000
3,238,375 1,887,593
Non-current 3£ B3
Bank loans — secured
RITEF— FEM 46-7.7  2023-2033 3,905,957 4.6-10.0 2022-33 4,197,119
Other loans — secured
Hip &5 — FHEM 6.5-18.0 2023 1,361,357 6.0-15.0 2022-23 937,963
Other loans — unsecured
Hit &5 — FEM - - - 15.0 2022 63,644
5,267,314 5,198,726
8,505,689 7,086,319
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31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30 :tEH{TREMEE (&)
BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

2021 2020
20215 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETT

Analysed into: 9 4F :
Bank loans repayable: JEEERITER ¢

Within one year or on demand — F Ay sk 1% Z 3k 1,308,728 840,454
In the second year A58 — 4 1,572,545 1,564,256
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=ZZF A F (BIEEEMF) 836,436 1,177,420
Beyond five years L& A £ 1,496,976 1,455,443
5,214,685 5,037,573
Other borrowings repayable: JEE @ HEE
Within one year or on demand —F A sk 1% Z 3k 1,929,647 1,047,139
In the second year I 88 — 1,361,357 667,767
In the third to fifth years, inclusive RE=FF A F (BIEEEMF) - 333,840
3,291,004 2,048,746
8,505,689 7,086,319
The Group’s borrowings are denominated in RMB, HK$ and US$. AEBMBEUARYE - BT RETF
-
Pursuant to some of the Group’s borrowings’ agreements, any default BREBEASENITDEERHE  A5EEL
under the Group’s senior notes or borrowings will trigger the cross- ZRNEEE THEMELNGBEINE
default resulting in the relevant borrowings becoming repayable - BHEABEKRAERERER - R
on demand. Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Group was in 20215 12H3181#% + B B R202241
default of certain senior notes, as disclosed in the announcement RH18HMAEMER A&EEHNE TEL
of the Company dated 18 January 2022, causing a total amount ZREN - BEHA X ARYE117,280,0007T
of RMB117,280,000 interest-bearing bank and other borrowings ZETERITRAEMEERI XELN (X XNE
have become cross-defaulted (the “cross-default borrowings”) and HEEDWEREREE - IEXINEY
repayable on demand. All cross-default borrowings are presented EEHRAEBR2021F12A31BHLERE
under current liabilities in the Group’s consolidated statement of MBMRARPORBBEERETZS) o

financial position as at 31 December 2021.
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

30. INTEREST-BEARING BANK AND OTHER 30. :tEH{TREMEE (&)

BORROWINGS (CONTINUED)

Certain of the Group’s bank and other borrowings are secured by the
pledges of the following assets with carrying values at the end of the
reporting period as follows:

AEEWNETRITMEBEEARERNUT
REBERERFERNENTHEEREE
o

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000
ARBT

RMB’000
ARETTT

Property, plant and equipment ¥ % - 2= M & 13 82,439 83,177
Investment properties 1% & ¥ % 14 2,519,700 2,481,100
Properties under development 7£ i) % 22 8,623,302 8,927,099
Completed properties held for sale & 3 T {E# & W2 23 109,592 =
Pledged deposits 2 & # 17 146,642 1,223,419
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BAnBEFAERNEHEE 20 191,860 263,498
11,673,535 12,978,293

As at 31 December 2021, the Controlling Shareholders have
guaranteed certain of the interest-bearing bank and other borrowings
of up to RMB1,645,942,000 (2020: RMB833,926,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the Group has pledged future proceeds
in respect of property leasing as collateral to secure interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings amounting to RMB1,319,000 (2020:
RMB101,040,000).

As at 31 December 2021, the non-controlling shareholders of the
Group’s subsidiaries and the third parties have guaranteed certain
of the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other borrowings of up to
RMB2,195,994,000 (2020: RMB3,348,998,000).

The management of the Company has assessed that the fair values
of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings approximate to their
carrying amounts largely due to the fact that such borrowings were
made between the Group and independent third party financial
institutions based on prevailing market interest rates.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

31. SENIOR NOTES A EBEEE

Principal Principal
at original |Contractual at original | Contractual

currency interest currency NEEN

US$000 rate (%) Maturity |  RMB’000 US$'000 rate (%) Maturity RMB'000

REAE | GEFE W | ARETR | REAe | ARAX HE | ARETT
TER (%)

Senior notes due 2021 (“July 2019 Notes I")

K021 3 BB EZR (201957 AZEI) = = = - 160000  12.875% 2021 1,066,181

Senior notes due 2021 (“July 2019 Notes II'

R0 FEBMERER (201957 AZEI) = = = - 120000  12.875% 2021 803,173

Senior notes due 2021 (“January 2020 Notes”)

R2021 3 M E LR E (202051 ARE]) - = = - 200000  11.500% 2021 1,347,810

Senior notes due 2022 (“July 2020 Notes I")

20225 5B £ 2B (202057 AZEI]) 150,000  12.375% 2022 933,080 150,000 12.375% 2022 958,797

Senior notes due 2022 (“July 2020 Notes II’)

20225 5| BB £ 2B (202067 AR EN 130,000  12.375% 2022 844,192 130,000 12.375% 2022 866,560

Senior notes due 2022 (“July 2020 Notes IlI)

20204 5 BB £ F B (202067 AREN) 80,000  12.375% 202 505,109 80,000  12.375% 202 520,321

Senior notes due 2022 (*January 2021 Notes )

R0 E|BEBE R TR (202151 AR 180,000 9.950% 2022 561,727 = = = =

Senior notes due 2022 (*January 2021 Notes I

o024 E|Em B R R (120011 AR 100,000 9.950% 2022 657,501 = = = =

Senior notes due 2023 (“October 2021 Notes”)

2023 EI B £ R (202110 A R 100,000  13.500% 2023 641,208 = = = =
4,142,817 5,562,842

Less: Current portion J5; : MVEZ % 3,501,609 3,217,164

Non-current portion 3EETE 55 641,208 2,345,678

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT R ARETTT

The Group’s senior notes were repayable as follows:
AEBEBEAZBNEEBRLOT :

Repayable within one year fEF —F N E & 3,501,609 3,217,164
Repayable in the second year JEIN & — F (& 641,208 2,345,678
Total 4851 4,142,817 5,562,842
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b E T EL )

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

3. SENIOR NOTES (CONTINUED) 3 BEEE(E)

July 2020 Notes |

On 30 July 2020, the Company issued the July 2020 Notes | at a
coupon rate of 12.375%, which will be due in 2022 with an aggregate
principal amount of US$150,000,000. The Company raised net
proceeds of US$145,339,000 (after deduction of an underwriting
discount and commissions and other expenses). At any time prior
to 30 July 2022, the Company may, at its option, redeem the July
2020 Notes | at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

July 2020 Notes Il

On 21 October 2020, the Company issued the July 2020 Notes
II'at a coupon rate of 12.375%, which will be due in 2022 with an
aggregate principal amount of US$130,000,000. The Company raised
net proceeds of US$126,157,000 (after deduction of an underwriting
discount and commissions and other expenses). At any time prior to
30 July 2022, the Company may, at its option, redeem the July 2020
Notes Il at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

July 2020 Notes Il

On 17 December 2020, the Company issued the July 2020 Notes
[ll at a coupon rate of 12.375%, which will be due in 2022 with an
aggregate principal amount of US$80,000,000. The Company raised
net proceeds of US$75,588,000 (after deduction of an underwriting
discount and commissions and other expenses). At any time prior to
30 July 2022, the Company may, at its option, redeem the July 2020
Notes Ill at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Company did not make
the interest payment under the July 2020 Notes amounting to
US$22,275,000 (equivalent to RMB142,019,000) before the expiry of
the grace period, resulting in the default of the July 2020 Notes with
an aggregate principal amounting of US$360,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,295,252,000), as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 2 March 2022.

In addition, the Company received a notice of acceleration from
the holders of the July 2020 Notes on 1 April 2022, resulting in the
principal of the July 2020 Notes, amounting to US$360,000,000
(equivalent to RMB2,295,252,000) becoming immediately due and
payable, this event triggered the cross-default of the October 2021
Notes with a principal amount of US$100,000,000 (equivalent to
RMB637,570,000), as disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 1 April 2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

31. SENIOR NOTES (CONTINUED)

January 2021 Notes |

On 18 January 2021, the Company issued the January 2021 Notes
| at a coupon rate of 9.950%, which will be due in 2022 with an
aggregate principal amount of US$180,000,000. The Company raised
net proceeds of US$175,056,000 (after deduction of an underwriting
discount and commissions and other expenses). At any time prior to
18 January 2022, the Company may, at its option, redeem the January
2021 Notes | at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

January 2021 Notes Il

On 10 June 2021, the Company issued the January 2021 Notes
[l 'at a coupon rate of 9.950%, which will be due in 2022 with an
aggregate principal amount of US$100,000,000. The Company raised
net proceeds of US$101,506,000 (after deduction of an underwriting
discount and commissions and other expenses). At any time prior to
18 January 2022, the Company may, at its option, redeem the January
2021 Notes Il at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

On 29 October 2021, the Company redeemed the January 2021
Notes in the open market in an aggregate principal amount of
US$95,500,000 (the “Repurchased Notes”). After cancellation of the
Repurchased Notes, the aggregate principal amount of the January
2021 Notes that remains outstanding was US$184,500,000.

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the Company completed the
exchange offer for the January 2021 Notes on 18 January 2022,
resulting in an aggregate principal amount of US$144,140,000
of the January 2021 Notes being cancelled, and the remaining
outstanding principal amount of the January 2021 Notes was
US$40,360,000, however, the Company failed to make the payment
of the remaining outstanding US$40,360,000, leading to the default
of the January 2021 Notes with an aggregate principal amount of
US$40,360,000 (equivalent to RMB257,323,000), as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 18 January 2022. This event
of default also resulted in the cross-default borrowings amounting to
RMB117,280,000 (note 30).
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3 BEREE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

3. SENIOR NOTES (CONTINUED) 3 BEEE(E)

October 2021 Notes

On 28 October 2021, the Company issued the October 2021 Notes
at a coupon rate of 13.500%, which will be due in 2023 with an
aggregate principal amount of US$100,000,000. The Company raised
net proceeds of US$97,872,000 (after deduction of an underwriting
discount and commissions and other expenses). At any time prior to
28 April 2023, the Company may, at its option, redeem the October
2021 Notes at a pre-determined redemption price. The details of the
redemption price are disclosed in the relevant offering memorandum.

Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the cross-default of the October
2021 Notes was triggered on 1 April 2022, in addition, on the same
day, the Company received a notice of acceleration from the holders
of the October 2021 Notes, indicating that the principal amounting
to US$100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB637,570,000) on the October
2021 Notes has become repayable on demand, as disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 1 April 2022.

The fair values of the early redemption options of the July 2020 Notes
[, ' & lll, January 2021 Notes | & Il and October 2021 Notes were not
significant and, therefore, were not recognised by the Group on their
inception and at 31 December 2021.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

32 PROVISION FOR FINANCIAL

GUARANTEE CONTRACTS

At the beginning of the year & 1]]
Additions RN &

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

2 UBEREERE

2021
20214

RMB’000
ARBT T

25,500

At the end of the year &7k

25,500

The financial guarantee contracts represent guarantees given to banks
and other financial institutions in connection with borrowings made to
the Group’s joint ventures and associates. Details are set out in note
41,

The Group does not provide financial guarantees except for limited
circumstances. All guarantees are approved by the directors of the
Group.

The financial guarantee contracts are measured at the higher of the
ECL allowance and the amount initially recognised less the cumulative
amount of income recognised. The ECL allowance is measured by
estimating the cash shortfalls, which are based on the expected
payments to reimburse the holders (i.e., the banks) for a credit loss
that it incurs less any amounts that the Group expects to receive from
the debtor (i.e., the joint ventures and associates). During the year
ended 31 December 2021, an ECL allowance of RMB25,500,000 was
provided as a result of guarantees provided to the joint ventures and
associates (2020: Nil).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

By 755 R AR Y B (o2

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

33. SHARE CAPITAL

Shares

33, IR AR
BH

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETTT

Issued and fully paid: 2217 L& R :

827,880,000 (2020: 827,880,000) ordinary shares of HK$0.001 each (note)
827,880,0000% (20204 : 827,880,0000%) & A% T 1E0.0017%8 T K & 58 A% (B 5%) 827,880 827,880

Equivalent to RMB’000 18 & R AR Tt

730 730

Note: Purchase of own shares

During the year, the Company repurchased its own ordinary shares on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited as follows:

Number
of shares

st BBE B &)

FA - ARBARBEBBREXZABERDA
R e s ERRNBERET

Highest price | Lowest price Aggregate

Month/year repurchased Par value | paid per share | paid per share price paid

A/ E4 BEROBE

BB BB
REE RIEKE iz #E
HK$ HK$ RMB’000
BT BT ARBTR

December 2021 2021412 A 2,293,000 0.001

4.35 4.11 7,825

The repurchase was governed by section 257 of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance. The total amount paid on the repurchased
shares of RMB7,825,000 was paid wholly out of retained profits and
debited to “treasury shares”. Subsequent to 31 December 2021, the
Company has completed the de-registration procedures for all the
repurchased own shares, as disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 24 January 2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

34. RESERVES

The amounts of the Group’s reserves and the movements therein for
the year ended 31 December 2021 are presented in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(a) Share premium

The share premium represents the difference between the par
value of the shares issued and the consideration received.

(b) Capital reserve

The capital reserve mainly represents the difference between
the cost of acquisition and the non-controlling interests acquired
in the case of acquisition of additional non-controlling interests
of subsidiaries, or, the difference between the proceeds from
disposal and the non-controlling interests disposed of in the
case of disposal of partial equity interests in subsidiaries to non-
controlling shareholders without loss of control. Details of the
movements in the capital reserve are set out in the consolidated
statement of changes in equity.

(c) Statutory surplus reserve

In accordance with the PRC Company Law and the articles
of association of the subsidiaries established in the PRC, the
Group is required to appropriate 10% of its net profits after
tax, as determined under PRC GAAP, to the statutory surplus
reserve until the reserve balance reaches 50% of its registered
capital. Subject to certain restrictions set out in the relevant PRC
regulations and in the articles of association of the Group, the
statutory surplus reserve may be used either to offset losses, or to
be converted to increase share capital, provided that the balance
after such conversion is not less than 25% of the registered capital
of the Group. The reserve cannot be used for purposes other
than those for which it is created and is not distributable as cash
dividends.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b T E R

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

34. RESERVES (CONTINUED) 34, & (58)
(d) Merger reserve (d) &0t E
The merger reserve of the Group represents the issued capital REBMEHEBEAREAREAR
of the then holding company of the companies now comprising ERRTREERAEBN QG E R
the Group and the capital contributions from the equity holders RARIME BITRARBRAK AN E
of certain subsidiaries now comprising the Group before the ErE T FAR B AEE -

completion of the corporate restructuring and the reorganisation.

(e) Asset revaluation reserve (e) EEEMLRE
The asset revaluation reserve arises from change in use from an EESEHRERN —BEBAVENA
owner-occupied property to an investment property. BEMBIREYEHE o

() Equity investments revaluation reserve (H REREEMHE
The equity investments revaluation reserve represents unrealised BRERESHH#HERBEERERANE
fair value gains or losses for equity investments designated at fair Bt AR E2EWBANBRERENR
value through other comprehensive income. BIM N EENESEE -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES B EBEARFEREENFEE
WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING = al/N|
INTERESTS
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material non-controlling AEBEFERFEREZNTARFE
interests are set out below: FHywT :

Percentage of Profit/(loss)
effective equity for the year Accumulated
interest held by allocated to balances of
non-controlling | non-controlling | non-controlling
interests interests interests

PEFHER
FERBREE BEHFR FERES
NWERRERD L @/ (B8) Rit@am
% RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETTT ARETT

31 December 2021 20215125311
Ruian Hongding Real Estate Co., Ltd. (‘Ruian Hongding”)

REmEREXRERAR(HLBSR]) 54.640 (39,839) 139,044
Yongjia Hongrui Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Yongjia Hongrui”)

XEBREEERDR(kEEH) 54.405 162,926 173,985
Ningbo Honghui Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Honghui”)

EREBEXERAR(ZRBE]) 57.535 112,947 337,174
Ningbo Hongda Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Ningbo Hongda”)

ERBAEXERAA(ZRBKX]) 56.515 64,284 72,388
Lishui Hanhe Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Lishui Hanhe”)

BRKBEEXERRA(BEXKEE]) 72.797 (11,624) 1,240,805

31 December 2020 20205125311
Ruian Hongding Real Estate Co., Ltd. (‘Ruian Hongding”)

RETEREXERARHLBSR]) 54.720 173,602 179,145
Hefei Zeyang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Hefei Zeyang”)

AREGEXERAR(SRER]) 69.244 109,368 137,905
Shanghai Kaique Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Kaique”)

LS BRAEERAR AR LR 49.000 (30) 979,972
Shanghai Queyang Enterprise Management Co., Ltd. (“Shanghai Queyang”)

LERRCRERERAF( BRG] 49.000 (142) 489,858
Wuxi Kaiyang Real Estate\ Co., Ltd. (“Wuxi Kaiyang”)

EHYBEXERAR(EHHE]) 55.445 (5,368) 645,749
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51 755 2% P o

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

35. PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES B EEEAFERERNESR
WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING =G aNCLE )
INTERESTS (CONTINUED)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial information of TR LM FRABIMBERRE - F R
the above subsidiaries. The amounts disclosed are before any inter- ZERAEMARIEEHEI 225

company eliminations:
For the year ended 31 December 2021 BZE2021F12831H 1L EE

Ruian Yongjia Ningbo Ningbo Lishui

Hongding Hongrui Honghui Hongda Hanhe
REES | XBEE ERBE | ERBA| BKBE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR

Revenue Yizs 364,456 2,221,975 1,474,625 986,993 -
Total expenses %35 (411,286) (1,820,426) (1,179,830)  (818,274) (18,674)
Income tax (expenses)/credit FTf5 B,/ #% (26,082) (102,079) (98,485) (54,973) 2,707

Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

B/ (BE)RFEREZERA (BB) (72,912) 299,470 196,310 113,746 (15,967)
Current assets 8 & & 416,599 959,882 976,342 315441 3,354,582
Non-current assets 3ER 8 & & 9 34,823 3,613 8 13,031

Current liabilities i 21 & & (162,135)  (670,012)  (393,922)  (187,203)  (879,780)
Non-current liabilities 3F7 8 & & = (4,895) = (161) (788,100)

254,473 319,798 586,033 128,085 1,699,733

Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities
BmeEB(FA)/ EENTFReTE (142,060) (93,002) 726,146 (94,145)  (633,927)
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities

(
)
(
BAERD(MA)/ELNFRERE - - - - -
(
)

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities

RETBFA)/EENFRENE = = (742,699) - 1,035,358
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
BeRASZEMEORD), /1L (142,060) (93,002) (16,553) (94,145) 401,431
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

35 PARTLY-OWNED SUBSIDIARIES ¥ EEERFEREZNIES
WITH MATERIAL NON-CONTROLLING BFNTE(E)
INTERESTS (CONTINUED)

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HZ2020F12A31BLLEE

Ruian Hefei Shanghai Shanghai Wuxi

Hongding Zeyang Kaique Queyang Kaiyang
Wi M aIEEE HiE55 HERE EH595
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFR | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR | ARETFT

Revenue Yz 1,784,834 1,010,108 = = 218
Total expenses 4 3 (1,319,760 (796,880) (60) (290) (12,972)
Income tax (expenses)/credit 5% (E ),/ HE % (147,820) (55,272) = = 3,072
Profit/(loss) and total comprehensive income/(loss) for the year

FiE/ (BB RERE2EEA/(5E8) 317,254 157,956 (60) (290) (9,682)
Current assets i) & & 891,579 688,628 2,000,005 1,000,001 2,844,765
Non-current assets 3ER & E 27,396 11,314 = = 8,716
Current liabilities &) & & (590,291) (400,772) 61) 291)  (1,688,815)
Non-current liabilities JERE) & (& (1,299) (100,000) = = =

327,385 199,170 1,999,944 999,710 1,164,666

Net cash flows (used in)/from operating activities
REEDH(FIA)/BENFHRERE (139,450) 340,852 60 200 (1,241,236)
Net cash flows (used in)/from investing activities

(
)
(
TXﬁ/E@J Fﬁﬁﬁ)/@imﬂifﬁimi - = - = -
(
)

Net cash flows (used in)/from financing activities

BEEH(FTA)/ EENFRERE = (403,338) (60) (290) 1,560,196
Net (decrease)/increase in cash and cash equivalents
BeRBREEEWFRD), /L0 (139,450) (62,486) = = 318,960
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36. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS 3. EKE G

Acquisition of Zhejiang Xinyuan Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Xinyuan”)

The Group held an effective equity interest of 28.2% in Zhejiang
Xinyuan, which is engaged in property development and was
previously accounted for as a joint venture of the Group. The remaining
equity interests were held by a third party, namely ;B /R IBE ¥ 5 R
A |)(Wenzhou Ruishun Real Estate Co., Ltd., “Wenzhou Ruishun”).
On 25 June 2021, the Group entered into an agreement with Wenzhou
Ruishun, pursuant to which the Group acquired an additional 26%
equity interests in Zhejiang Xinyuan from Wenzhou Ruishun for a
consideration of RMB2,600,000. As a result, Zhejiang Xinyuan has
become a subsidiary of the Group since then as the Group has taken
control over Zhejiang Xinyuan.

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Zhejiang
Xinyuan as at the dates of acquisition were as follows:

WA I T REEERRLAF
(TSIt )

AREEFBEMIRITERRERN28.2% -
It EMEREALAEREREE
VEEEAR - BRTREDDBE=ZR
(BmBEMIKIEE ZHR QA (DRMIBIED)
A o R2021F6H25H » A& B ELE N
WIEET %% BUHASBUREBEARK
2,600,0007T B &M 5 IIE UL B8 47 T R T B b
26% I ARHE o AL - BRASE LTI
TTHEBESIE - IR ALERALRE
Bz FARA] -

AT IRT A B EE R B ERUEE B 88
AREERAT :

Fair value

recognised

on acquisition

W R R

AREE

RMB’000

AR¥T

Property, plant and equipment #13 « /= &% & 150

Properties under development 7£ 32 ) 2 2,213,790

Deferred tax assets #& i i B & &= 43,002

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets JA{ I8 « E b fE U /I8 & H & & 264,586

Restricted cash 2R fill 3R & 164,114

Cash and cash equivalents IR & NI & %5 EW 174,303

Trade and bills payables & 5 f& - FUB & N =& (331,979)

Other payables and accruals E th /&~ FUIB & fE =T & (38,204)

Contract liabilities & R & & (2,454,025)

Deferred tax liabilities &L 518 B (& (25,067)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value I A7 BEFEMNA N #RFEE 10,670

Non-controlling interests 3F1% A% fE 5 (5,053)

Net assets acquired FT Uk & %4 &= 5,617
Fair value of investments in the joint ventures and an associate held before business combinations

EBEHRBEREECERBENRINRENARER 3,009

Gain on bargain purchase % B B Utz 8

Satisfied by cash LAIR & 37 1+ 2,600
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

3. BUSINESS COMBINATIONS
(CONTINUED)

Acquisition of Zhejiang Xinyuan Investment
Management Co., Ltd. (“Zhejiang Xinyuan”)
(continued)

An analysis of the cash flows in respect of the acquisition of
subsidiaries is as follows:

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

36. &S 6 (18)

WA IR T REEERRAF
(TR 7T ) ()

EREBTRARMNASRESTAOT

RMB’000
ARBT T

Cash considerations 3R &K (B (2,600)
Cash and cash equivalents acquired Fr it iEIR & RIRE ZEY 174,303
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents included in cash flows from investing activities

AARERHELANRERENRERREZEMWERA 171,703

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES

(a) Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary
resulting in loss of control

Disposal of Wenzhou Yinwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Wenzhou
Yinwang”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 28 April 2021,
the Group disposed of its 49.53% equity interests in Wenzhou
Yinwang to its associate named JEJM B P EEE LR B D
X (BBRE ) Wenzhou Aifa Enterprise Management Consulting
Partnership) for a consideration of RMB4,953,000 in total.
Subsequent to the disposal, the Group held 50.47% equity
interests in Wenzhou Yinwang. Wenzhou Yinwang became an
associate of the Group thereafter.

3. HEFLF
() HEFAABA B EHLE

2

HERMTTIREERBR A F (IR
%)

RIE B HIA20216F4 A28 B %8
e AEBEEBREQRAMNE B
TEEEZRNEREEERER) T
EHB IR B M49.53%M 1 - R
BAARM4953,0007T - NEEEE
1% REBBMNIREFEF50.47%0%
T o R MR BRI & K B AN £ B A B
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 3. HEFATF(E)

(CONTINUED)

(a) Disposal of partial interest in a subsidiary (a) HEF AR I EREHKE
resulting in loss of control (continued) 12 I 4 ()
Disposal of Wenzhou Yinwang Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Wenzhou HERINTTIRE & Z G R A 7 (LEMNIR
Yinwang”) (continued) Z)E
The above transaction is accounted for as disposal of partial LR G AL EF R A E D E=
interest in a subsidiary. Details of the net assets disposed of in Re-BERXSEANEEFEEMR
respect of the above transactions are summarised below: N

2021
20214

RMB’000
AR® T

Net assets disposed of: & HEE -

Prepayments, other receivables and other assets T FIE -« H b FE U F I8 & B B = 735,265
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & MR 5B 1
Other payables and accruals £t f& 1~ 5K 18 & fE 51 2 (726,300)
8,966
Fair value of the retained equity interest in an associate 7B ‘& A RIHY R B IAE D 12 BE (4,525)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary & F2 &z 512
Satisfied by cash IR & 1+ 4,953
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in FRALEAMNRENRERIESEE
respect of the disposal of Wenzhou Yinwang is as follows: VIEFMASITUT ¢
2021
20214
RMB’000
ARET T
Cash consideration 38 & (& 4,953
Cash and bank balances disposed of fTH &R € RIFEEEY (1)

Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of Wenzhou Yinwang
FRALERMNBEENHRE RREZFEBYHFRA 4,952
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries

()

(i)

(i)

Disposal of Pizhou Yinyi Real Estate Co., Ltd. (“Pizhou Yinyi”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 25 June
2021, the Group disposed of its 1% equity interest in
Pizhou Yinyi to a third party named U £ E X BR A7
(Nanjing Yuangin Real Estate Co., Ltd.) for a consideration of
RMB200,000 and its 99% equity interest in Pizhou Yinyi to
a third party named MR LB ZEER A A (Nanjing Leifan
Real Estate Co., Ltd.) for a consideration of RMB19,824,000.
The considerations were determined by reference to the fair
value of the equity interests of Pizhou Yinyi disposed of as at
30 June 2021.

Disposal of Shanghai Yuque Industrial Development Co., Ltd.
(“Shanghai Yuque”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 28 June
2021, the Group disposed of its 90.86% equity interest in
Shanghai Yuque to a third party named FIRREHEZEER A
7] (Nanjing Yuangin Real Estate Co., Ltd.) for a consideration
of RMB18,567,000 in total. The consideration was determined
by reference to the fair value of the equity interest of Shanghai
Yuque disposed of as at 30 June 2021.

Disposal of Shanghai Hanyan Industrial Development Co.,
Ltd. (“Shanghai Hanyan’)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 9 June 2021,
the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in Shanghai
Hanyan to a third party named Bk &B# 3% =i E R GR A
A} (Chengdu Kunfa Property Development Co., Ltd.) for a
consideration of RMB70,049,000 in total. The consideration
was determined by reference to the fair value of the equity
interest of Shanghai Hanyan disposed of as at 30 June 2021.

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

3. HEF A A ()

(b) HEF LA

()

(i)

(i)

HEBMNREEFH R 7 ([FM
RE])

BIE B A202146 A25H M A5
EERE  ARERE-TERR
HEEBRARNEERIBMIBE
B1% M - R1E A ARY200,000
TRME=FTERELEERBRA
A& E R ZBIN IR Z HI09% AR #E -
REEHAR19,824,0007T - RIB
& 2E 1202146 A30R £ &
MIBEREN AR EEET -

HE LEEHERZERER LA
([ LABAER])

1B15 B #1A20214F6 A28 H D
EEHE ASBERE=-FER
REBEARAFLEEN LEE
BH90.86% 1 - BREAAR
#18,567,0007C ° RBTIELXER
202146 A308 1 & L /B/E R iE
WAREBEEE °

HE LEBHREFRERFRA A
([ LA%EE])

BiE A H A2021F6 A9H KR HD
R 0 ANERE W E = A RENH
EEWERBERARHEER L
EBEAR100%E - BREABA
R#70,049,0007C - RETHELE
R2021546 A30R HE Hig®EaR

RO QA EEERE
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES
(CONTINUED)

(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued)

(iv) Disposal of Chongqging Rongque Real Estate Co., Ltd.

V)

(“Chongqing Rongque”)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 9 June
2021, the Group disposed of its 90.84% equity interest in
Chongaing Rongque to a third party named fX &6 # % 5 it
ERMEEAR QA (Chengdu Kunfa Property Development
Co., Ltd.) for a consideration of RMB12,127,000. The
consideration was determined by reference to the fair value of
the equity interests of Chongging Rongque disposed of as at
31 May 2021.

Disposal of Anqing Kairun Property Development Co., Ltd.
(“Anging Kairun’)

Pursuant to the share transfer agreement dated 3 September
2021, the Group disposed of its 100% equity interest in
Anging Kairun to a third party named R EEHBEEER A
7] (Jiaxing Qingmiao Real Estate Co., Ltd.) for a consideration
of RMB107,000,000. The consideration was determined by
reference to the fair value of the equity interests of Anging
Kairun disposed of as at 31 August 2021.
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3. HEF A A ()

(b) & F 27 (%)

() HEZEBHEFRAERLAEE

V)

)

R HH A2021F6 89H ML
R 0 ANEE M = A A
BEWERBERARHEERE
ERBAR90.84% 1 - RIEEAA
R#12,127,0007T - RIBTHEL%E
R2021FE5A31BHEEERBK

BOAABEETE °

HE L BT R s E R A R 2
AL EE])

R HH A2021F9 A3H MR D
HEHE AEERE=-FRH
EBHREXARAAHEENTE
FUBM100%KRE - REAARK
107,000,0007¢ ° RETIELER
2021F 8 A31H HE L E I HARHE
NAREEET -



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 3. HEF AR A
(CONTINUED)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (b) HEF 2T (&)
The carrying values of the assets and liabilities of the subsidiaries EXOEVAEE FARNEEB N
disposed of in (i) to (v) above at the dates of disposal were as EEMBEREENT -
follows:

Net assets disposed of: & HEE -

2021
20214

RMB’000
AR® T

Property, plant and equipment Y13 ~ BiE K %1 390
Deferred tax assets i iEFi 18 & & 46,521
Properties under development 7£ &%) 2 1,559,152
Properties held for sale # E$H & ¥ 5 807,108
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets B 5k I8 ~ - fE U 208 & E b & B 499,273
Tax recoverable A] Y& [@] £ 18 66,629
Restricted cash = BR #l37 & 86,540
Pledged deposits B & #1F 20,319
Cash and cash equivalents 3R & 38 © S{EY) 13,048
Trade and bills payables & 5 & 1~ U8 M JE (=% (307,712)
Other payables and accruals E b @ 2B & fE5H & B (1,063,121)
Contract liabilities & [Fl & & (1,345,412)
Tax payable FEfH {18 (82,490)
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &+ 8. #8717 & H b £ & (157,000)
Non-controlling interests 3E#% P& 25 (3,078)
140,167

Gain on disposal of subsidiaries H & A A1z 65,641
Outstanding consideration for disposal of subsidiaries & A WELH & T2 BB K (E 47,000
Satisfied by cash LAIR & 37 1+ 158,808
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 3. HEF AT (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Disposal of subsidiaries (continued) (b) HEF 2T (E&)
An analysis of the net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in BELEX)EVVEEFRARMNE SRR
respect of the disposal of the subsidiaries in (i) to (v) above is as CEEMNFRADNTET :
follows:
2021
20214
RMB’000
AR¥T T
Cash consideration 384 (& 158,808
Cash and bank balances disposed of FT i &35 & & SR 1745 & (13,048)
Net inflow of cash and cash equivalents in respect of the disposal of subsidiaries
FRALEFRANRERBESEEBYWHFERA 145,760
The directors of the Company consider that neither subsidiaries ARABEERELBRONEVFAHET
disposed of in (i) to (v) above were significant to the Group, and RAIHASEMEHEBEN Bt
thus, the individual financial information of some subsidiaries on HoFRraREEBBNER MK E
the disposal date was not disclosed. R AR FR
38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED BHGEEERERMTE
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(a) Major non-cash transactions (@) TEHFREXRS
During the year, the Group had non-cash additions to right- FR - AEBRBLAETRAENHE
of-use assets and lease liabilities of RMB4,941,000(2020: ZTHEENTERAEEERHEAED
RMB6,019,000) and RMB4,941,000 (2020: RMB6,019,000) IMEARNED R B ARE4,941,000
respectively, in respect of lease arrangements for offices and 7L (20204 : AR™6,019,0007T) &
motor vehicles. AR®4,941,0007T (20205 : AR¥E

6,019,0007T) °
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED B RERESRERM T (E)
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)
(b) Changes in liabilities arising from financing (b) MEETHELENEESH
activities

Total

liabilities

Interest- from bank
bearing bank Due to and other
and other Senior Lease related financing

borrowings notes liabilities companies activities

FTERTR FEAS BARE MEED

HitifE& BERE HEARE ARHE | EENBEEE

RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®TT ARETFT ARETT ARBTR ARETR

At 1 January 2020 7202051 H1H 6,099,149 2,993,756 7,059 577,398 9,677,362

Cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities

BEEHEL/(MA)BRLRE 327,981 2,027,531 (8,251) 203,911 2,551,172
New leases ¥ & - - 6,019 = 6,019
Interest expense FI| 8.5 659,189 541,555 870 = 1,201,614

Cash flows from/(used in)
non-financing activities

FMAEHEL (MR)RERE - - (616) (1,019) 4,388
At 31 December 2020 #2020F 12 A31H 7,086,319 5,562,842 5,081 780,204 13,434,536

Cash flows from/(used in)
financing activities

BEEDEL (FAESRE 797,996 (2,079,503) (8,229) 665,918 (623,818)
New leases ¥ & = = 4,941 = 4,941
Interest expense F 2.5 % 778,374 659,478 550 = 1,438,402

Cash flows from/(used in)
non-financing activities
FRmBEDEL/ (FTR)ReRE (157,000) = 1,644 (1,941) (152,356)

At 31 December 2021 20215124318 8,505,689 4,142,817 3,987 1,444,271 14,096,764
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38. NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED B FmERERERMET(E
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
(CONTINUED)
(c) Total cash outflow for leases (c) HEARRESR
The total cash outflow for leases included in the statement of cash FFARERERMAERR SR W
flows is as follows: T
2021 2020
20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥T ARETIT
Within operating activities A4 &5 &) 3,821 4,787
Within financing activities 7 & & & &) 8,229 8,251
12,050 13,038
30. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 0. HAEE
At the end of the reporting period, contingent liabilities not provided for RIBEHLERE - RRNGRE B RR AR
in the consolidated financial statements were as follows: BRSAAENT ¢

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Guarantees given to banks in connection with facilities granted to
purchasers of the Group’s properties
MRITEENEAR TAERMEE T RENER 1) 6,404,332 4,497,483
Guarantees given to banks and other institutions in connection
with facilities granted to joint ventures, associates and
independent third-party companies
MRITREMERBELHOFERTEERE BERAK
B E =7 REIRERER @) 3,206,869 1,858,500

9,611,201 6,355,983
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39. CONTINGENT LIABILITIES (CONTINUED)

Notes:

Q)

The Group provided guarantees in respect of mortgage facilities granted
by certain banks to the purchasers of the Group’s completed properties
held for sale. Pursuant to the terms of the guarantee arrangements, in the
case of default on mortgage payments by the purchasers, the Group is
responsible for repaying the outstanding mortgage principals together with
any accrued interest and penalties owed by the defaulted purchasers to
those banks.

Under the above arrangement, the related properties were pledged to
the banks as collateral for the mortgage loans. Upon default on mortgage
repayments by these purchasers, the banks are entitled to take over the
legal titles and will realise the pledged properties through open auction.

The Group’s guarantee period starts from the dates of grant of the relevant
mortgage loans and ends upon the issuance and registration of property
ownership certificates to the purchasers, which will generally be available
within half a year to two years after the purchasers take possession of the
relevant properties.

The Group did not incur any material losses during the reporting period
in respect of the guarantees provided for mortgage facilities granted
to purchasers of the Group’s completed properties held for sale. The
directors of the Company considered that in the case of default on
payments, the net realisable value of the related properties would be
sufficient to repay the outstanding mortgage loans together with any
accrued interest and penalty, and therefore, no provision has been made
in connection with the guarantees.

The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions in
connection with borrowings made to the related companies and
independent third-party companies. As of 31 December 2021, an
allowance of RMB25,500,000 (2020: Nil) was provided as a result of
the guarantees provided to the related companies. Further details of the
related party transactions are included in note 41.

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

3. AREE ()

R

Q)

AEERETRITAAEEE R THEH
EMEETRENERARERMHER - R
BERTHEMNGR  WEHHBRIZEMN
R AREBABERZSRITEEREER
WA ERZKE T PR EM EH R
K&K

R Lds  HEVNECSERTZER
THEREBEMRERMNERR - WZEETE
REWER - MZFEROTAEXEERZE
EXEE UBEBARMEERERYES
I5 e

AEBERBHRDABERER A
REBETEBREEMARERNEEL
It FEERA-RENETEEREYME
BEFFEMERERIG -

RS AEBETRARAEEERT
FEHEMEE RO MBERRERHEE
REEEFAEAEBR - ARAFREER /MW
HIREONR - HRAMEA R ERFEN
RABEERERBENEZOEREM RS
BREF - MW EEEREIE R o

REBRABB AR RBYLE = AaE
HREERBITREMEBRMEER - &
FE2021F 128318 - gtAEHE A R R IE
RETIR BB A R 25,500,0007T (20204F -
) BB AR SZHNE— S FHBEHRM
41 0
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40. COMMITMENTS 40. HIE

The Group had the following capital commitments at the end of the REBRMEMERIFHESB AT ERK
reporting period: g -

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

Contracted, but not provided for: & 5] 4118 R B :

Property development activities ¥ 3 5 3% )& &) 1,678,121 2,877,994

Acquisition of land use rights 4B £ {5 3 7 277,133 -

Capital contributions payable to joint ventures and associates

ENEECERBERNRIEE 635,739 1,468,935
2,590,993 4,346,929
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4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS HEBEBHIRS
(a) Significant related party transactions: (@ EXRBEBAIRS :

2021 2020
20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARETTT

Advances to related companies: [f] BaHE A T EH BB

Joint ventures & &% 2,195,580 1,017,402
Associates & A 7] 2,093,439 1,389,499
4,289,019 2,406,901
Repayment of advances to related companies: Bt A 78 @B
Joint ventures & &% 1,461,437 1,321,946
Associates & 2 7] 1,362,728 881,929
2,824,165 2,208,875
Advances from related companies: B5# A 7l B 5K ¢
Joint ventures & & 1% 466,623 640,967
Associates & A 7] 2,765,906 781,964
Companies controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholders
R AT AR AR R PR I Y 2 7] = 316,462
3,232,529 1,739,393
Repayment of advances from related companies: 1 3& B35t A 7124 7K
Joint ventures & &% 407,353 458,052
Associates & 2 7] 2,159,258 760,968
Companies controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholders
R AT AR AR R PR I Y 2 7] = 316,462
2,566,611 1,635,482
Purchase of equipment from a company controlled by the ultimate controlling
shareholders* [A] i B #2925 B A% BRAE I )2 5] 38 B i i 6,739 34,917
Management consulting services to associates and joint ventures*
RETHELNAREELENERZARE 32,353 44,689
Rental services from a company controlled by the ultimate controlling
shareholders* I B 4 AR AR R AE | 60 A RIHR A0 1 & AR 75~ 1,768 1,744
Property management services provided by companies controlled by
the ultimate controlling shareholders*
P AR AR PR AR IR R 28 11l 9 1) B4R (i B0 ¥ 22 5 B2 AR 75 14,718 2,892
*  These transactions were carried out in accordance with the terms * RERZDHIBE2EEH ARG EOER
and conditions mutually agreed by the parties involved. R AGHFELT -
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41. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4 BEEAERS (E)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Other transactions with related parties (b) HEBSHNEMRRS
As at 31 December 2021, the Controlling Shareholders have R2021F12A31H @ EBRBERDHH
guaranteed certain of the bank and other borrowings of up to = A AR #1,645,942,0007T (20204F :
RMB1,645,942,000 (2020: RMB833,926,000). AR #833,026,0007T) 5 FiRIT R EH

fEEEHER

The Group provided guarantees to banks and other institutions AEERMEELERBEEQRELR
in connection with borrowings made to the joint ventures & ARE2,806,869,0007T (2020
and associates amounting to RMB2,806,869,000 (2020: F : AR¥1,858,500,0007T) [MR1T &
RMB1,858,500,000). Hit B IR IR -
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4. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 4 BB L RS (&)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Outstanding balances with related parties (c) EEEAEE 5 M RIT 48R

31 December 31 December
2021 2072(0)

20214 20204

12A31H 12A31H
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT ARBEFT

Due from related companies: J& 4 BF B A 7 7008

Joint ventures & & 12 1,477,801 743,691
Associates & A A 2,192,371 1,460,344
3,670,172 2,204,035
Due to related companies: J& AR &) 708 -
Joint ventures & & 1% 445,146 385,877
Associates Bt & /A 7] 999,125 392,476
Companies controlled by the ultimate controlling shareholders
R AT AR AR R PR I Y 2 B - 1,941
1,444,271 780,294
(d) Compensation of key management personnel of (d) XAEEFEEBAESHMH :
the Group:
2021 2020
2021 2020%F
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBT T ARETTT
Short-term employee benefits %2 HA{E & 1& 7| 15,232 19,342
Pension scheme contributions (R K4 5121 5% 1,023 1,072
Total compensation paid to key management personnel
XN FEEZERABRETH 16,255 20,414
Further details of directors’ emoluments are included in note 8 to EEWemNE —PHBHNPBRKRMTE
the financial statements. 8
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 2ZFERETNERTE
CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RBEHERE  SEcRTAMNEREE
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: PO
31 December 2021 2021F12H831H
Financial assets cREE

Financial
assets at fair Financial
value through assets
profit or loss at fair value
designated | through other Financial
as such |comprehensive assets at
upon initial | income-equity amortised

recognition investments cost
RO SRR BRANEE
EERRAAE | FAHEMLRE
B AREN |KANEREE | REBHHEIER
SREE -RERE NERMEE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%TR ARBTR AR®T T AR®T

Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

ETAERA A BEFARMZERARNRERE = 131,140 = 131,140
Trade receivables Z 5 JEUZ I8 - - 14,632 14,632
Due from related companies JE U B8 22 7] 7008 = = 3,670,172 3,670,172

Financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets

FAENARE Bt FEREMEENSREE = = 5,449,529 5,449,529

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BARBEFABRNSREE 856,388 = = 856,388

Restricted cash %R &35 & = = 1,747,639 1,747,639

Pledged deposits 2 Z #1773 = = 1,059,804 1,059,804

Cash and cash equivalents 334 IR &£ £ B = = 1,051,775 1,051,775
856,388 131,140 12,993,551 13,981,079
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B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY A2 EHETHNEmM T A(E)
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
31 December 2021 2021F12H31H
Financial liabilities ol =R

Financial
liabilities at Financial
amortised | liabilities at
cost FVTPL

BHE | RAOAEE

BATIRREY | BT AREE
EMAE EHMAE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | AR®TR | AR®TR

Trade and bills payables & 5 [ <t 308 & B 2% 2,255,389 - 2,255,389
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
SFARMEMNFIEREFERNSRMEE 3,848,891 - 3,848,891
Due to related companies F&{<f BBt A & ZUB 1,444,271 - 1,444,271
Lease liabilities T & & & 3,987 - 3,987
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5t /2877 K& H b & 8,505,689 = 8,505,689
Senior notes 185t Z 1 4,142,817 - 4,142,817
Provision for financial guarantee contracts B 42 {% & B %5 = 25,500 25,500
20,201,044 25,500 20,226,544
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY 2ZWABE s WER T A (E)
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RBERERE - SEeRITANKEE
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) R ()
31 December 2020 2020512A31H
Financial assets cREE

Financial
assets at fair Financial
value through assets
profit or loss at fair value
designated through other Financial
as such | comprehensive assets at
upon initial | income-equity amortised

recognition investments cost
N
ATAEMEE
WA EmERE [REHKATER
- RIERE MWEeREE fast
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARETR ARETR ARET

Equity investments designated at fair value through
other comprehensive income

BERRAABETARZMZEBARNRERE = 95,100 = 95,100
Trade receivables & 5 fE W58 - = 13,860 13,860
Due from related companies [E U B8 22 7] 2008 - = 2,204,035 2,204,035

Financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets

FAENRE  EtERFEREMEENSREE = = 3,456,730 3,456,730

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BRARBEFABENEREE 937,053 = = 937,053

Restricted cash %R &35 & = = 2,128,643 2,128,643

Pledged deposits & #1173 - - 1,256,204 1,256,204

Cash and cash equivalents 314 RIR &£ Z B = = 3,891,229 3,891,229
937,053 95,100 12,950,701 13,982,854
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31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

42. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY R2ZFERE TN T AR
CATEGORY (CONTINUED)
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of financial instruments RBEHERK  SESRTAENERE
as at the end of the reporting period are as follows: (continued) W ()
31 December 2020 2020F12H31H
Financial liabilities TEIAE

Financial liabilities
at amortised cost

B HPARS AR

HeaE

RMB’000

ARBT T

Trade and bills payables & 5 & < 2B I B 2= & 2,289,005
Financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals

SFARMENFIERETERNSRMEE 1,512,650

Due to related companies F&{<f Bt A &7 B 780,294

Lease liabilities THE & (& 5,081

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings 5+ 2R 17 R H & & 7,086,319

Senior notes 18 5L 1% 5,562,842

17,236,191
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE BEMTENIABERAN
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL EREN=E
INSTRUMENTS
The carrying amounts and fair values of the Group’s financial REEEEARBEAEEENESRMIA
instruments as at the end of the year, other than those with carrying Gy RER ARBEESRITAMNEKREAER
amounts that reasonably approximate to fair values, are as follows: NABEAT :

Carrying amounts Fair values
ARTEE DMREE

2021 2020 2021 2020

20214 20204 20214 20204
RMB’000 RMB’000 | RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET R | ARETL | AR TR | ARETFT

Financial assets €@ & &E

Financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income

BEARBEFAEMZERANESHEE 131,140 95,100 131,140 95,100
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
BEARBEFABENEREE 856,388 937,053 856,388 937,053

987,528 1,032,153 987,528 1,032,153

Financial liabilities £ B & &
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

FPRIRITREMEER 8,505,689 7,086,319 8,574,619 7,081,380
Senior notes & £ £ 1% 4,142,817 5,562,842 3,673,260 5,560,271
Provision for financial guarantee contracts B 7§ 1E{R & [B #& 25,500 = 25,500 =

12,674,006 12,649,161 12,273,379 12,641,651
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Management has assessed that the fair values of cash and cash
equivalents, pledged deposits, restricted cash, amounts due from
related companies, trade receivables, financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables and other assets, trade and bills
payables, financial liabilities included in other payables and accruals
and amounts due to related companies approximate to their carrying
amounts largely due to the short-term maturities of these instruments.

The Group’s finance department headed by the finance manager is
responsible for determining the policies and procedures for the fair
value measurement of financial instruments. The finance manager
reports directly to the chief financial officer. At each reporting date, the
finance department analyses the movements in the values of financial
instruments and determines the major inputs applied in the valuation.
The valuation is reviewed and approved by the chief financial officer.
The valuation results are discussed with the audit committee twice a
year for interim and annual financial reporting.

The fair values of the financial assets and liabilities are included at
the amount at which the instrument could be exchanged in a current
transaction between willing parties, other than in a forced or liquidation
sale. The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate
the fair values:

For the fair values of listed equity investments, management has
estimated the fair value by quoting active market prices, and therefore,
the fair value measurement of the financial assets at fair value through
profit or loss is categorised within Level 1 of the fair value hierarchy.

For the fair values of the unlisted fund investments under IAS 39 during
the year ended 31 December 2020, management has estimated
the fair value by the expected future cash flows, and the fair value
measurement of the financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
is categorised within Level 3 of the fair value hierarchy.

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

RBEMTENAREBERIA

BEER(E)

EEEEHEREMASEEY BER
TR XRHIRE - EUEE A RFOR
BHRWHIA  FABRNRENEHE
E - HMEEREREBEE  BEZEN
FRERENRRE - st ARMBEN A RE
SAERNE R B E AR E B A R RIA
MARBEEZEKREERE  TELAR
ZETARNEHAZH -

AEEWMMBAFIRYHEETE AR
ETERIAQAABEFENRRELE
Fro-MBREERNEFMBEER -1
ERERY  YHEHMAO>TRTAE
BENEHWRETEANGEENTIEGAR
Be-HEREBEREVMBERHILE - BF
RHHLFEMBREEET R Y MG
BREFRETRRE R ©

TREERBBENAABENEBRRST
(REFBRFERINEMKZFZLE
WA R ZERAR c LTIERRRER
RAMEFT AR EE -

SRETRBREZAABENS @ BEE
BEABMSREGAAAEE  FtE
AnBEEAANBSENEREENAAEE
AERAABEERADERFE M -

REZE2020F12A31HILFE © SEES
FTERIFEIR TR LMESREN DR
EBEM:  TEEBRAEHANRRERE
HEAREE RAAEBBEFABEZNS
BEEMNAAEBEFERAABEERNA
DIEEE= -
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43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE BEMTENARBERAR

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

For the fair values of the unlisted fund investments under IAS 39
during the year ended 31 December 2021, management applied the
market value approach in determining the fair value of unlisted equity
investments, which is classified as equity investments designated at
FVOCI under IFRS 9, using the initial offering price and a discount
for lack of marketability (“DLOM”), which are calculated by using the
initial offering price, to determine the fair value of the unlisted equity
investments, and taking into account the marketability discount as the
appropriate adjustment. As the unlisted equity investments started
trading on the Shenzhen Stock Exchange’s Main Board on 17 January
2022, management adopted the initial offering price as the best proxy
of fair value. The fair value measurement of the equity investments
designated at FVOCI is categorised within Level 2 of the fair value
hierarchy.

The fair values of interest-bearing bank and other borrowings have
been calculated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
rates currently available for instruments with similar terms, credit risk
and remaining maturities. The Group’s own non-performance risk for
interest-bearing bank and other borrowings as at 31 December 2021
was assessed to be insignificant.

The fair values of senior notes are based on market prices. The
fair values of senior notes have been calculated by discounting
the expected future cash flows using rates currently available for
instruments with similar terms, credit risk and remaining maturities.

For the fair values of other financial liabilities, management has
estimated by discounting the expected future cash flows using
expected return rates for the underlying assets in order to estimate
the cash outflow amounts to settle the liability, and the fair value
measurement of the financial liability is categorised within Level 3 of
the fair value hierarchy.
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BEER(E)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity
analysis as at 31 December 2020:

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

BEB/TANDABERAR
BEERE

TREMNR2020F12A31B &t T A&
MERTAI B Rig ABURER T2 HHE
DT

Range/
Weighted | Sensitivity of
average | fair value to the input

AABEHEAMEN
6E/METY | BRE

Significant

Valuation | unobservable

technique inputs

BEATABE

fRE R BWARE

Unlisted equity investments classified Market Discount for
as equity investments designated at multiples lack of
fair value through other comprehensive miH & marketability
income Bz A
NBREERBRIABEARMBEEKA g

MR BRI EMRERE

P/B
mFE

14.9% 5% increase/decrease
in marketability would result
in decrease/increase in fair
value by RMB832,548
14.9%  ATEHIEIEAN, SR 5% E S
DREERD /N
AR832,5487T

4.5-11.9 5% increase/decrease
in P/E would result in
increase/decrease in fair
value by RMB1,990,131
45119 WMEAXREN/BI5%EL
DREELEN B
AR #1,990,1317C

0.5-1.4 5% increase/decrease
in P/B would result in
increase/decrease in fair
value by RMB2,764,892
05-1.4 TWFREM HI5%EL
DREELEN B
AR¥2,764,8927T
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE BETMIENDIABERAR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BEEHE
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Set out below is a summary of significant unobservable inputs to the TREMM2021F12A31BE &/ T AMKE
valuation of financial instruments together with a quantitative sensitivity WEATAIBEREGABBEREEHRNE
analysis as at 31 December 2021: DT
Significant
Valuation | unobservable Sensitivity of
technique input fair value to the input
EXFAHE ARBEHBAHEN
fRE R (PN ¢: E | BBE
Provision for financial guarantee contracts Expected  Recovery rate 35.7%-3839.4% 1% increase/decrease in
BISERE RRA credit loss o] 4 & recovery rate would result
model in a decrease/increase in fair
EHEE value by RMB126,430
BiRRE 35.7%39.4% [EIEREEM,/HI1%ES
DR EERD, /I
AR #126,4307C
Discount rate 1.3%-10.3% 1% increase/decrease in
= discount rate would result
in a decrease/increase in fair
value by RMB4,582
1.3%10.3% HFREELMHI1%EL
DREERD /LM
AR¥4,5827T
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31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE BEMTENIARBERAR
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL EEEHKE)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy AREEER

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRHEPEREBESRTANAREEE
the Group’s financial instruments: [E4%

Assets measured at fair value: UKD BEFENEE

As at 31 December 2021 M2021%F12831H

Fair value measurement using

ERANTRANAAEETE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RERT & EXTEHE EART

HHE BARE | BERAHE
(-8 (=& (B=H) gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETR ARETR AR¥T R

Equity investments designated at fair value through other
comprehensive income

BEARDABEFALMZARANRERE - 131,140 - 131,140

Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BARBESABENEREE 677,902 178,486 - 856,388
677,902 309,626 - 987,528
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE BEMTENIABERAN
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BEERGE)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREEERE)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRHAALREESRTIANAABEE
the Group’s financial instruments: (continued) Bk : ()

Assets measured at fair value: (continueqd) UR A BEFAENEE © (B)

As at 31 December 2020 72020512H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERATRAINAAEEE

Quoted

prices in Significant Significant
active observable | unobservable

markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

WEADSE | EBATBE | BATW

HEE BABE | BEHARER
(F—#) (B (B=#) @t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR | ARBTR | ARETR| ARETR

Equity investments designated at fair value through other

comprehensive income 8 A1E A7 BEF AL tZERA R RELE = = 95,100 95,100
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
RARBEFABRNERMEE 733,086 203,967 - 937,053
733,086 203,967 95,100 1,032,153
During the year, there were transfers of fair value measurements from FRN - ARBEFEHE=RBAZE_R
Level 3 to Level 2 for unlisted equity investments classified as equity RIELETMRBREDDEREEEARE
investments designated at fair value through other comprehensive Bt AE M2 AW AR RRERE (20204 :
income (2020: Nil). |) o
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE

HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

43,

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s financial instruments: (continued)
Liabilities measured at fair value:

As at 31 December 2021

Provision for financial guarantee contracts B 7 & (R & R4

Quoted
prices in
active
markets

(Level 1)
RERT &
HHE
(-8
RMB’000
AR%T R

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

TRTAENAIARBERAR
BEERE

DIREEER(E)

TRIAPALEE BT ENAAEE
B : (8

ok
=L
il

HAAIEEGTZEMEE
M2021F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERANTRANAAEETE

Significant Significant
observable | unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
EXTHE | EATAER
BAHE BAYE
(BE=&) (BE=8) gt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARET T ARBT R ARBT T

- 25,500 25,500

- 25,500 25,500
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE BEMTENIABERAN
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL BER&KGE)
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued) AREEERE)

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of TRHAALREESRTIANAABEE
the Group’s financial instruments: (continued) Bk : ()

Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: ERBENTIEENEE -

As at 31 December 2021 #2021512831H

Fair value measurement using
ERAATRANA L EBEFE

Quoted
prices in Significant Significant
active observable | unobservable
markets inputs inputs

(Level 1) (Level 2) (Level 3)

RERT EXTHE | EXATAER

SHRE BAHE BAHE
(-8 (=& (B=H) Bt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%T R ARETR ARETR AR®T T

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings =t2.88 17 & E £ & = 8,505,689 = 8,505,689
Senior notes B A2 4,142,817 = = 4,142,817
4,142,817 8,505,689 - 12,648,506
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

43. FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUE
HIERARCHY OF FINANCIAL
INSTRUMENTS (CONTINUED)

Fair value hierarchy (continued)

43,

The following tables illustrate the fair value measurement hierarchy of

the Group’s financial instruments: (continued)
Liabilities for which fair values are disclosed: (continued)

As at 31 December 2020

Quoted
prices in

active
markets

(Level 1)
NERTS
HRE
(-3
RMB’000
ARETT

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

TRTAENAIARBERAR
BEERE

DIREEER(E)

TRIAPALEE BT ENAAEE
B : (8

_I_

il

EFELTEENERE : (B
7A2020%F12H31H

Fair value measurement using

ERA TR LA EEE

Significant Significant
observable | unobservable
inputs inputs
(Level 2) (Level 3)
EXABE EDNGIL
BARE | ZREAZE
FE=®) (B=R) @t
RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB'000
AREFT AREFT ARETTT

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &+ 5.88 17 & At & & = 7,086,319 = 7,086,319
Senior notes BAZ 1 5,562,842 = = 5,562,842
5,562,842 7,086,319 - 12,649,161
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31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M BEEREERERBE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s principal financial instruments mainly include cash and
cash equivalents, restricted cash, pledged deposits, trade and other
receivables, and trade payables and other payables, which arise
directly from its operations. The Group has other financial assets
and liabilities such as interest-bearing bank and other borrowings,
senior notes, amounts due to related companies, amounts due from
related companies and provision for financial guarantee contracts. The
main purpose of these financial instruments is to raise finance for the
Group’s operations.

The main risks arising from the Group’s financial instruments are interest
rate risk, credit risk, liquidity risk and equity price risk. Generally, the
Group introduces conservative strategies on its risk management. To
keep the Group’s exposure to these risks to a minimum, the Group has
not used any derivatives and other instruments for hedging purposes.
The Group does not hold or issue derivative financial instruments for
trading purposes. The board of directors reviews and agrees policies
for managing each of these risks and they are summarised below:

(a) Interest rate risk

The Group’s exposure to risk for changes in market interest rates
relates primarily to the Group’s interest-bearing bank and other
borrowings set out in note 30. The Group does not use derivative
financial instruments to hedge interest rate risk. The Group
manages its interest cost using variable rate bank borrowings and
other borrowings.

If the interest rate of bank and other borrowings had increased/
decreased by 1% with all other variables held constant, the profit
before tax of the Group, through the impact on floating rate
borrowings, would have decreased/increased by approximately
RMB11,866,000 for the year ended 31 December 2021 (2020:
RMB5,536,000).
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
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31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M BEEREE R ERBEE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (%8)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (b) EER

The Group trades only with recognised and creditworthy third
parties. It is the Group’s policy that all customers who wish to
trade on credit terms are subject to credit verification procedures.
In addition, receivable balances are monitored on an ongoing
basis and the Group’s exposure to bad debts is not significant.
For transactions that are not denominated in the functional
currency of the relevant operating unit, the Group does not offer
credit terms without the specific approval of the Head of Credit
Control.

Maximum exposure and year-end staging

The table below shows the credit quality and the maximum
exposure to credit risk based on the Group’s credit policy, which
is mainly based on past due information unless other information
is available without undue cost or effort, and year-end staging
classification as at 31 December. The amounts presented are
gross carrying amounts for financial assets.

AEBERRAREEBENE=]
ETEE - AKENBRRASMBERE
WEEMETEREZER ARRE
BEBRZIEF o b4 BRIRARR
HEZE MAKREAXZERNRAR
WAREKN - HRIIFABEEEEN
DEEBHENRS  AREERK
EREREBMEE T ENERT
TEeETEES-

A RR R FRIEE

TREHI2ABBERAREREZER
RNEEEERGESEERR(EEE
REEHER - BRIEEMERTESE
BIANBERAREHMER - 8| SE
A AR ERBEDLE - IZ50E
HiEeMEENBRRME -

20215 % ANNUAL REPORT 2021 287



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued
5 7% ik M = (oo

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M BEEREERERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (%8)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EER B (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) =B B R R ARG E (&
As at 31 December 2021 M2021F12831H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
1218 B &9
BHEEEER EEFENNEHREESSE

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
£ EZRR EZRR IEEPaS et
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTR| AR®BTRT| AR®TRT| AR®TET

Trade receivables* & 5 JE IR E* = =
Due from related companies
JE U BB A B R IE 3,670,172 = — — 3,670,172
Financial assets included in

prepayments, other receivables

and other assets
FTATERFRIE « HAbFEUGRIE K

14,632 14,632

HtWEENSREE

= Normal*™ IE&** 5,449,529 = = = 5,449,529
Restricted cash R #llIR & 1,747,639 = = = 1,747,639
Pledged deposits & & #i1E 1,059,804 - - - 1,059,804
Cash and cash equivalents
ReEKREEFED 1,051,775 = = = 1,051,775

12,978,919 - - 14,632 12,993,551
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M HEREREEEERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (#&)
(CONTINUED)
(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EER B (&)
Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued) Ry R BR R R PEER (48)
As at 31 December 2020 M2020%F12H31H

12-month
ECLs Lifetime ECLs
121E A 59
TRHEEEE BEFEHNEREEEE

Simplified
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 approach Total
E—PEER E[EER E=[EER B IE st
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT | ARETRT| ARETT| AR®TT| AR®T

Trade receivables* & 5 & Uk 71 18* - - = 13,860 13,860
Due from related companies
ezl /NGB SEE 2,204,035 = = = 2,204,035

Financial assets included in
prepayments, other receivables
and other assets

FTATERFRIE - H b EUFRIE K

HtWEENSREE

— Normal** IE&* 3,456,730 = = = 3,456,730
Restricted cash %R #I3R & 2,128,643 = = = 2,128,643
Pledged deposits £ & #17 5 1,256,204 = = = 1,256,204
Cash and cash equivalents
RekReEEY 3,891,229 = = = 3,891,229

12,936,841 - - 13,860 2,950,701
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b T E R

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M BEEREERERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (%8)
(CONTINUED)

(b) Credit risk (continued) (b) EER B (&)

Maximum exposure and year-end staging (continued)

* For trade receivables to which the Group applies the simplified
approach for impairment based on the disclosure in note 24 to the
financial statements, there is no significant concentration of credit
risk.

ok

The credit quality of the financial assets included in prepayments,
other receivables and other assets is considered to be “normal” when
they are not past due and there is no information indicating that the
financial assets had a significant increase in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Credit risk is the risk of loss due to the inability or unwillingness
of a counterparty to meet its contractual obligations. Exposure to
credit risk arises primarily from its financing activities to customers.

The Group has no concentrations of credit risk in view of its large
number of customers. The Group did not record any significant
bad debt losses during the year ended 31 December 2021.

The credit risk of the Group’s other financial assets, which
mainly comprise cash and cash equivalents, restricted cash and
pledged deposits, other receivables, and amounts due from
related companies, arises from default of the counterparty, with
a maximum exposure equal to the carrying amounts of these
instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M BEEREE R ERBEE

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(c) Liquidity risk

The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance between continuity
of funding and flexibility through the use of interest-bearing
bank and other borrowings, and receipts under securitisation
arrangements. Cash flows are being closely monitored on an
ongoing basis.

The maturity profile of the Group’s financial liabilities as at the end
of the reporting period, based on the contractual undiscounted
payments, is as follows:

(o])] Less than
demand 3 months

RER [ ZEAUR

RMB’000 [ RMB’000
ARBTR | AR®TR

(#&)

(c) RENVER B

AEENEEREBERFERITR
HAh 8 B LA KR8 5L & B 0 WOk e 5
RESBEEEBREZMNTE - K
SESETYERRASRE -

REBRREAERFIZERAKLIE
NMRAENEREENIAB RN
-

3to Over
12 months 1 year Total

=E+=fEA BB—-F st

RMB’000 [ RMB’000 | RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTR | ARBTR

31 December 2021 2021512H31H
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

SARRITREMEE = 590,207
Trade and bills payables

BIRNRIBRENRE 2,255,389 —
Senior notes B LR & - 1,458,539
Lease liabilities 7 & & f& = 76

Financial liabilities included in other payables

and accruals
SAAHRMEMNRIERETERNSRARE 3,848,891 -
Due to related companies JEf BB A RIFIE 1,444,271 -

3,277,348 6,556,707 10,424,262

- - 2,255,389
2,382,560 579,700 4,420,799
4,010 1,495 5,581

- - 3,848,891

- - 1,444,271

7,548,551 2,048,822

5,663,918 7,137,902 22,399,193
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued
5 7% ik M = (oo

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M BEEREERERBE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (%8)
(CONTINUED)
(c) Liquidity risk (continued) (c) T Eh 14 /= B ()

On Less than 3to Over
demand 3 months 12 months 1 year Total

REK | ZEAURK |Z2+Z@EA Be—F st

RMB'000 [ RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 [ RMB'000
ARBTE | ARBTR | ARBTE | ARETT | ARBTT

31 December 2020 2020%12831H
Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings

FFERITREMBEE = 361,082 2,059,683 6,386,226 8,806,991
Trade and bills payables

B o EMNFIERENZEE 2,289,005 = = - 2,289,005
Senior notes 18 5%t & i& - 15192909 2274946  2,515813 6,310,058
Lease liabilities F & & & 2,008 - - 3,073 5,081
Financial liabilities included in other payables

and accruals

FAEMENRIBRESERANERERE 1,512,650 = = - 1,512,650
Due to related companies J&{< a5 A 7 5E 780,294 = = = 780,294

4,583,957 1,880,381 4,334,629 8,905,112 19,704,079

Other matters related to liquidity risk that may cast significant AN EFELEBRIEREREMD
doubt upon the going concern assumption are set out in note 2.1 MBNERR A E M E B TIE R LR A B R
to the consolidated financial statements. FMIEE2.1 °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT M BEEREE R ERBEE
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (%8)
(CONTINUED)

(d) Equity price risk (d) AR REE R

The Group is exposed to equity price risk arising from its
investments in listed equity investments included in financial
assets at fair value through profit or loss and unlisted equity
investments at fair value through other comprehensive income
as at 31 December 2021. Management manages this exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of investments with different risks. The
Group’s equity price risk is mainly concentrated on listed equity
investments quoted on the Stock Exchange. In addition, the
Group has appointed a special team to monitor the price risk and
will consider hedging the risk exposure should the need arise.

If the prices of the respective listed equity investments had been
5% higher/lower, the Group’s profit and total comprehensive
income for the year, net of tax, would have increased/decreased
by RMB25,421,000 as a result of the changes in fair value of listed
financial assets (2020: RMB27,491,000).

(e) Capital management

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital management are to
safeguard the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern and
to maintain healthy capital ratios in order to support its business
and maximise shareholders’ value.

The Group manages its capital structure and makes adjustments
to it in light of changes in economic conditions. To maintain or
adjust the capital structure, the Group may adjust the dividend
payment to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares.

R2021F 128318 * XEEREER
BERARBEFAEBGNESREEZ £
mkERERIZARBEFAREME
E YA 2 IE £ xR & i T R AR A
EXER  BEEE#BEETRAER
ZHREHAEUNEBEZERR - X£E
ZBREBREREESHREBRA
MEZ LTRERE - o - KEE
EZREEEKEZEERRR - L&
REZEZRZEE FAMEE 2 RAR -

WEBLETMREREZER LA
T5%  AEBEcEFRFBERER
AMBEAMBHREBE) SR LETSRE
EARBEZESEM B AR
#25,421,0007T (20204F : AR¥E
27,491,0007T) °

EXEE

AEEEAERNEIZEBRRRER
SERBERREVERRENEALL R
MBESD  UXHEEBIFERREE
RAE °

AEEERELENRNOE(CEE R
HEEERNERE -  REFIFHEER
BiE o ARERERBIRN TRRD
BB RERRENLEITHR
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

By 755 R AR Y B (o2

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

44. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES
(CONTINUED)

(e) Capital management (continued)

The Group monitors capital using a net gearing ratio, which
is calculated as net debt divided by the total equity. Net debt
includes total interest-bearing bank and other borrowings, and
senior notes less cash and bank balances. The net gearing ratios
as at the end of the reporting periods were as follows:

4 HEEREERBERBE
(#&)

(e) EXAEE ()

AEBRBFRER(RFEBRIAE
T E)RERER - FEB &
BROTLEAMEEREARBERE
IR E RIBITHER - RIS HERE

HFRERMT

2021 2020

20214 20204

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥T T AR®TTT

Interest-bearing bank and other borrowings &+ 88817 & H it & & 8,505,689 7,086,319
Senior notes 18 5L E & 4,142,817 5,562,842
Less: Restricted cash J& : S RH|IR & (1,747,639) (2,128,643)
Pledged deposits & & 717 3 (1,059,804) (1,256,204)

Cash and cash equivalents 3R & I8 & SEY (1,051,775) (3,891,229)

Net debt & 8,789,288 5,373,085
Total equity 42#E %5 8,597,226 8,786,568
Net gearing ratio /5 & &% 102% 61%
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continueq)

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD

(@

Pursuant to the equity transfer agreement dated 4 January
2022, the Company’s non-wholly-owned subsidiary, Chengdu
Hanwei Real Estate Co., Ltd. disposed of its 33% equity interest
in Chengdu Yuehu Lixin Real Estate Co., Ltd (an associate
of Chengdu Hanwei) to the independent third party named
Xiamen Chenxuan Enterprise Management Partnership (Limited
Partnership) for a consideration of RMB194,895,000. For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 5 and
14 January 2022.

On 4 January 2022, the Board of the Company had resolved
that the payment of the 2021 Interim Dividend, totally amounting
to RMB39,738,000, would be postponed to on or about 6 April
2022. On 31 March 2022, the Board has resolved that the
payment of the 2021 Interim Dividend will be further postponed
to on or about 6 July 2022. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 4 January and 31 March
2022.

On 18 January 2022, all conditions precedent to the exchange
offer and consent solicitation relating to the January 2021 Notes
have been fulfilled and the exchange offer and consent solicitation
has been completed, resulting in: (i) an aggregate principal amount
of US$144,140,000 of the January 2021 Notes being cancelled:; (ii)
the newly issue of US$138,384,000 of the 12.5% senior notes due
2022 (the “June 2022 Notes”). In addition, the Company obtained
the consent solicitation for the July 2020 Notes and the October
2021 Notes by paying a consent fee to waive any potential cross-
defaults if the January 2021 Notes were in default, and the terms
of the June 2022 notes also carved out any cross-default events
arising directly or indirectly from any defaults or events of default
under the January 2021 Notes. For details, please refer to the
announcements of the Company dated 17 and 18 January 2022.

On 18 January 2022 and 2 March 2022, certain non-payment
events relating to the January 2021 Notes and the July 2020
Notes have occurred respectively, leading to: (i) the default of the
January 2021 Notes with an aggregate principal US$40,360,000
(equivalent to RMB257,323,000), which also triggered the cross-
default borrowings amounting to RMB117,280,000; (ii) the default
of the July 2020 Notes with an aggregate principal amount of
US$360,000,000 (equivalent to RMB2,295,252,000). For details,
please refer to the announcements of the Company dated 18
January and 2 March 2022.

MEHRERHE @

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

45, HEHREIE

(@)
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A -
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AIAEA2022F 1 A17AE R1SHK A

4o

202241 A18H 202243 H2H -
D RIEEE T E2021F1 A =i %2020
FTRAEBEMNETARBENRES
B ()& #2%E40,360,0003 7T (17
BN ARK257,323,0007T) #2021 4
1TAZRBELN  NEESHEAARE
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
b E T EL )

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

45. EVENTS AFTER THE REPORTING
PERIOD (CONTINUED)

)

On 24 January 2022, the Company completed the cancellation
procedure of 2,293,000 issued shares repurchased from 17
December 2021 to 30 December 2021. In addition, on 11 March
2022, the Company completed the cancellation procedure of
2,050,000 issued shares repurchased from 11 January 2022 to
20 January 2022. For details, please refer to the announcements
of the Company dated 24 January and 11 March 2022. As at the
date of approval of these financial statements, the closing balance
of the number of shares was 823,537,000, decreasing from
827,880,000 shares as at 31 December 2021, without leaving no
repurchased but not cancelled shares.

On 18 February 2022, a winding-up petition was filed against
the Company, and a separate winding-up petition was filed
against YinYi Holdings (Hong Kong) Limited (“YinYi”), a subsidiary
of the Company at the High Court of the Hong Kong Special
Administrative Region in relation to the January 2021 Notes in the
principal amount of US$15,000,000 (plus accrued and unpaid
interest), in which the Company was the issuer and YinYi was a
guarantor. For details, please refer to the announcements of the
Company dated 21 February 2022.

On 1 April 2022, the Company received a notice of acceleration
from the holders of the July 2020 Notes, resulting in the principal
of the July 2020 Notes, amounting to US$360,000,000 (equivalent
to RMB2,295,252,000) becoming immediately due and repayable,
this event triggered the cross-default of the October 2021 Notes
and June 2022 Notes with an aggregate principal amount of
US$238,384,000 (equivalent to RMB1,519,865,000). In addition,
the Company received a notice of acceleration from the holders of
the October 2021 Notes, indicating that the principal amounting to
US$100,000,000 (equivalent to RMB637,570,000) of the October
2021 Notes has become repayable on demand. For details,
please refer to the announcement of the Company dated 1 April
2022.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
B R M EE )

31 DECEMBER 2021 20214 12H31H

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 46, N Bl 4r B BRI R
OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position of the Company RIREBEREBBAD AT EMRRTEKD
at the end of the reporting period is as follows: AR

2021 2020
20214 2020%F

RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®T T ARBTT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS REI&E

Investment in a subsidiary R F 2 FIHRE 439,442 439,442
Total non-current assets & IE R BN E E 439,442 439,442
CURRENT ASSETS B/ & &

Due from subsidiaries & F 2 &) 718 4,818,007 5,609,207
Prepayments, other receivables and other assets

FEftFRE - i ERGRIEREMEE 146,642 19,941
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss

BRARBEFAEBENEREE 677,902 733,086
Cash and cash equivalents I & M IR & S EW 1,675 412,960
Total current assets #n BN & &E 5,644,226 6,775,194

CURRENT LIABILITIES # & & &

Other payables and accruals £t F& 1~ 28 & fE 512 F 48,762 49,648
Due to subsidiaries fEf F R A15KIA 730,356 48,611
Interest-bearing bank borrowings &t £ R1TE & 325,987 206,730
Senior notes B % R & 3,501,609 3,217,164
Total current liabilities 427 & & 4,606,714 3,522,153
NET CURRENT ASSETS FRiE&E 1,037,512 3,253,041
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT LIABILITIES AEE R REBEE 1,476,954 3,692,483
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES ¥ #iE & &

Senior notes 184 Z % 641,208 2,345,678
Total non-current liabilities #3E 7 & & 641,208 2,345,678
Net assets F&EE 835,746 1,346,805
EQUITY

Share capital i&4~ 730 730
Reserves (note) & (B 5F) 835,016 1,346,075
Total equity 481 835,746 1,346,805
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
LR EA A

31 DECEMBER 2021 202141231 H

46. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION 46, XN Bl 4r & B AR R 3R (4E)
OF THE COMPANY (CONTINUED)

Note: BI5E -

A summary of the Company’s reserves is as follows: RARFEEBEET

Retained

profits/

Treasury Share | (accumulated
shares premium losses) Total

REFME,
EER & 42 55 18 (RETEH) Ly
RMB’000 ’ RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBETT REF T ARET T ARBET T

Balance at 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020

M2019F 12 A31 8 &2020%F1 A1 B & & - 1,249,269 167,606 1,416,875
Total comprehensive income for the year 4F A48 2 48 A = = 13,644 13,644
Dividends and distributions % & 5 %3 & - - (84,444) (84,444)
Balance at 31 December 2020 and 1 January 2021
R2020F 12 4318 &2021F1 A1 B & - 1,249,269 96,806 1,346,075
Repurchase of shares & [El A% {5 (7,825) = = (7,825)
Total comprehensive loss for the year 5 A 42 % [ &5 18 - - (423,758) (423,758)
Dividends and distributions % 8. & %3 /& - = (79,476) (79,476)
Balance at 31 December 2021 7220214 12 A31 H /Y &5 4 (7,825) 1,249,269 (406,428) 835,016
N,
47. APPROVAL OF THE FINANCIAL 47, b B 3Rk

STATEMENTS

The financial statements were approved and authorised for issue by IR ER2022F 48 14REEE

the board of directors on 14 April 2022. R RETE -
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY
MEHE

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

20215 20205 20195 20184 20174
RMB’000 [ RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 [ RMB’000
ARBTR | AREBTT | ARBTE | ARETT | ARBTT

Revenue 5,911,260 9,188,494 7,398,245 5,946,047 4,569,636
Weas
Cost of sales (5,055,541) (7,270,798) (5,701,515) (4,364,068) (3,912,355)
SHE KA
Gross profit 855,719 1,917,696 1,696,730 1,581,979 657,281
EH
Finance income 66,047 26,151 18,262 17,740 9,344
A WA
Other income and gains 219,232 345,471 21,706 37,672 2,958
E At A R iz
Selling and distribution expenses (271,851) (289,666) (269,258) (176,814) (94,293)
HE K5 HRAX
Administrative expenses (445,436) (449,526) (893,259) (875,071) (133,925)
TR
Other expenses (24,467) (26,110) (85,690) (20,284) (27,580)
HAh X
Impairment losses on financial assets, net (1,993) (2,639) (423) (895) -
FeMEERMERER
Fair value (losses)/gains, net:
R BEEF(ER), M
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss (163,682) (2,893) 58,363 - -
BAnBEGFABRNEHEE
Fair value gains/(losses) on investment properties 20,799 (8,164) 57,476 61,295 58,000
BREMENR R EENE (BB
Finance costs (465,613) (235,457) (249,760) (132,711) (1383,650)
BB
Share of profit and loss of joint ventures and
associates 22,620 (24,641) 47,059 (3,969) (2,607)
DEEELERBENRER
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAX (188,625) 1,250,222 951,206 989,442 335,528
BR AT (B51R), I
Income tax expenses (240,146) (534,888) (350,466) (500,067) (191,364)
FiSHiE A
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FINANCIAL SUMMARY (continued)
S EE

Year ended 31 December
BE12A31BLEE

2021 2020 2019 2018 2017

20215 20205 20195 20184 20174
RMB’000 ([ RMB'000 | RMB'000 | RMB'000 [ RMB’000
ARBTR | ARBTI | ARBTE | ARBTT | ARBTT

(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR (428,771) 715,334 600,740 489,375 144,164
Fr(EE),FE
Attributable to:
AT AT -
Owners of the parent (480,401) 338,859 515,821 476,817 137,495
(SYNCIEZZ DN
Non-controlling interests (51,630) 376,475 84,919 12,558 6,669
FEIEAR M =

(428,771) 715,334 600,740 489,375 144,164

Non-current assets 7,222,881 5,460,501 5,210,339 3,109,007 2,942,562
EMEBEE

Current assets 33,884,795 29,609,946 22,490,918 16,148,543 12,334,861
mENE E

Total assets 41,107,676 35,070,447 27,701,257 19,257,550 15,277,423
mEE

Non-current liabilities 6,381,370 8,018,603 6,192,133 3,847,427 5,783,528
EmEBE

Current liabilities 26,129,080 18,265,276 15,851,641 12,164,158 7,505,867
mEnafE

Total liabilities 32,510,450 26,283,879 22,043,774 16,011,685 13,289,395
BEE

Net assets 8,597,226 8,786,568 5,657,483 3,245,965 1,988,028
FEE

Equity attributable to owners of the parent 3,122,765 3,661,650 3,422,955 3,083,032 1,989,229
NRRES AEGER

Non-controlling interests 5,474,461 5,124,918 2,234,528 162,933 (1,201)
SRR

Total equity 8,597,226 8,786,568 5,657,483 3,245,965 1,988,028
HarEs
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